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LOK SABHA. SECRETARIAT

to
Evidence tendered before Joint Cbmmittee 
on the National Library Bill, 1972.

Page 2, col. 2, line 11, for Ms* read 'it'
Page 16, col.2, (i) line 21 from bottom for fgiveng*

read 'giving*
(ii) line 18 from bottjm, for ’mnaged' 

read ’managed’
Page 17, col. 2, (i) line 14., for ’ shoid* ’

read * snoul d’
(ii) line 26, for 1sitness’ 

read 1 witness'
Paje 20, shi ft last two lines of col.l to the top . 1 o f col.2. -
Page 2 7 ,  col.l, (i) line JL4, for ’aready'

read ' already1 
(ii) line 28, Jqi ’ feling' . 

read 'feeling'
(iii) line 29, for 'remdy ’ 

read ’remedy' 
col. 2, line 5 from bottom for. ' improveri*

. r ead: 'impoveri-'
Page 30, col. 1, line 30 for 'biography'

r ead 'bibliography'
Page 32, col.l, line i6 from bottom, for 'Kant'

want1
Page 44, col.2, (i). line 24, for 'is' r <*ad 'as'

(ii) line 39, for1 ’ fo' read 'of'
Page 46, col. 1, line 8, for 'it' rgad 'in’
Page 88, col.2, line 26, for 'dialotory'

read 'dialatory'
Page 97, col.l, line 3 from bottom, for 'live1 

. read 'like'
Page 101, col. l, line 7, for 'though' rpad 'thought'
Page 108, col. 2, line 8 from bottom for 'alright'

read 'a right'
Page 110, col. 2, line 30, after 'repute' a<jd 'and*

. . . 2 / -



(ii)

Page 12*+, col.2,lina 15, for 'services' raad ' 3arva$' 
Page 127, col.2, lino 27, for ' thair' road 'there'
Fage 1 0̂ , col. 2,lino 7, for •consideration*

road 1 considered view'
Fnga 1 col. 2,- laqt line jjQ£ 'specified'

■ road 1 specialised'
Page 165, col. 2, lino 16 from bottom, for 'powefl'

M O d  'poworo'
Fnga ,176, col. 1 lino 6, for ’it' rand 'if*
Page 178, col. 1, lino 17, for ’Dr. V.R. Singh1 road

‘Dr. V.r. Singh'
Fago 186, col. 2, lina 12 from bottom, for 'h~d'

rand 'bad1 .
Fr̂ go 196, col. 2, lina 19, for 1 autunomous' road

' autonomous'
Fnga 197, (i), col.1, line 13 from bottom, for

1 automonous' rand ' autonomous' .
(ii) col. 2, lino T> for 'whia' read 'vfaan'
(iii) col. 2, lino h from bottom ' for1

'furnisring' read 'furnishing' 
Fnge 198, col, 2 lina 13, .££>£ 'convi3aged'

road ' envisaged'
Fnga 2D2, (i), col. 1, line 6, from bottom, for

1 automonou3' raad ' autonomous1 
(ii) col. 2, line 5 from bottom, for ' intiaL'

road 'initial1 
Fnga 2D5, col. 1, lina 27, for 'mircro' read 'micro*
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W itnesses Exam ined

SI. Date of Page
No. Name o f witness bearing

<0 (2) (3) (4)

1. National Library Employees’ Assodaton, Calcutta. 6-6-1973 1

Spokesmen :

1. Shri Anil Chatterjee
2. Shri Asis Niyogi
3. Shri Ajit Ghosh
4. Shri Byomkesh Maiti

2. Shri Durlabh Chandra Bhattacharya, Research Student,
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5. Shri H. K . De Chaudhuri, Calcutta
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1. Shri Aiiil Chatterjee— Member
2. Shri Sitai Adhikari— Member
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9. Shri Gopal Haider, Calcutta 6-6-1973

10. Shri Rathindra Nath Ganguly, Research Scholar, Hooghly 6-6-1973

11. Shri Ashoke Kumar Ghosh, Reader, Metallurgical Enginee
ring Department, Jadavpur University, Calcutta. 6-6-1973

12. Shri Ramaprasad Mookerjee, Calcutta. 7-6-1973

10

14
20

22

26
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34
35 
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(iii)
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13 National Library Gazetted Officers* Association, Calcutta. 
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x. Shri M. N. Nagaraj
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3. Shri G. L. Ray
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7-6-1973
\

5i

14- Bengal Library Association, Calcutta
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7-6-1973 
&

8-6-1973
58
&
129

15- Shri Niharranjan Ray, Calcutta 7-6-1973 63

l6. Shri Karun Krishna Brahma chari, Calcutta 7-6-1973 70

17- Shri Gajendrakumar Mitra, Editor, Katha Sahitye, Calcutta. 7-6-1973 7i
18. Shri Amalendu Kishore Chakraborty, Calcutta. 7-6-1973 76
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Centre, Calcutta.
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1. Dr. B. Mukerji
2. Shri P. B. Roy
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8-6-1973 h6

22. Shri B. K. Daw, Advocate, Calcutta 8-6-1973 95
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25. Shri S. K. Gupta, I.C.S. (Retd.) Calcutta 8-6-1973 105

26. Shri Chinmohan Sehanavis, Calcutta 8-6-1973 i i i

27. Shri Narahari Kaviraj, Calcutta 8-3-1973 U5
28. Shri Nirmalaya Bagchi, Calcutta 8-6-1973 ; I l 8

29. Shri Satyapriya Roy, president, All Bengal Teachers, Asso
ciation, Calcutta. . 8-6-1973 122

3°: Prof. Jyoti Bhattacharji, Calcutta 8i6-I973 X24
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Janpath, N**r Delhi. ' * *6-7-1973 134
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32. Indiin Library Association,Delbi
i

Spokesmen :
z. Shri B. L. Bharadwaja
2. Shri Gurnam Singh
3. Shri 0. P. Trikha

16-7-1973 41
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34* Shri Sadhan Mukherji, C/o New Age Printing Press, New 

Delhi. I7-7-I973 157
35* Shri S. R. Bharatya Organising Secretary and Director, Chin- 

tamani Memorial Library, Allahabad-3. 17-7-1973 164

36. Shri J. C. Mehta, Director, Delhi Public Library, Delhi 18-7-1973 170

37.
3«.

Shri Asoke Chatterjee, Member Delhi Metropolitan Council, 
Delhi

Dr. A.U. Sheikh, Secretary, Education Department, Govern
ment of Maharashtra, Bombay.

18-7-1973
26-9-1973

181

189
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Spokesmen : '

1. Shri Ajit Kumar Banerjee
2. Shri S. M. Joshi

26-9-1973 198

40. Shri S. K. Havanur, Librarian, Tata Institute of Fundamen
tal Research, Bombay. 26-9-1973 200

41. Dr. M. B. Buch, Head, Centre of Advanced Study in Educa
tion, Baroda. 26-9-1973 204
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RECORD OF EVIDENCE TENDERED BEFORE THE JOINT COMMITTEE ON 
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I. National Library Employees9 Association, Calcutta 

Spokesmen:

1. Shri Anil Chatterjee
2. Shri Asis Niyogi
8. Shri Ajit Ghosh
4. Shri Byomkesh Maiti

II. Shri Durlabh Chandra Bhattacharyya, Research Student, Department of Com-
perative Philology, Calcutta University, Calcutta.

III. Central Reference Library Gazetted Officers9 Association. Calcutta. 
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1. Shri S. B. Ghosh—President
2. Shri P. N. Venkatachari—Secretary
3. Shri K. M. Govi—Member
4. Shri N. B. Marathe—Member

IV. Shri Mahadeva Saha and Syed Shahedullah, Calcutta.

V. Shri H. K. De Chaudhuri, Calcutta.

VI. Departmental Council (Staff Side) of the Ministry of Education, Government 
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X. Shri Rathindra Nath Ganguly, Research Scholar, Hooghly.
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National Library Employees3 Association, Calcutta.
Spokesmen:

1. Shri Anil Chatterjee
2. Shri Assis Niyogi
3. Shri Ajit Ghosh
4. Shri Byomkesh Maiti

[The witnesses were called in and 
they took their seats],

MR. CHAIRMAN: I have to inform 
you that when witnesses appear before 
a Committee to give evidence, they 
should understand very clearly that 
their evidence shall be treated as 
public and is liable to be published, 
unless they specifically desire that all 
or any part of the evidence given by 
them is to be treated as confidential. 
Even though you might desire your 
evidence to be treated as confiden
tial such evidence will have to be 
made available to Members of Parlia
ment. This is an information which 
you will please bear in mind.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Sir, we want to know what 
is their official position in the Asso
ciation.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You please ex
plain to the Committee the nature of 
your Association. We have received 
your memorandum and after having 
explained the nature of your Associa
tion, if you tltfnX fit, give us in very 
cshort a statement of what you want 
before the members individually go 
on asking you questions which you 
will have to answer.

SHRI BYOMKESH MAITI: I am a 
technical assistant of the National 
Library. I was an Executive Member 
of the Employees Association ito 
1971. Now I am an active member 
of the Association and one of the 
representatives of the 700 employees.

SHRI ASIS NIYOGI: I am Secre
tary of the National Library Employ
ees’ Astfocation. This is a service 
association under the rules framed 
by the Government of India.

SHRI ANIL CHATTERJEE: I am.
the President of the National Litar 
-fry Employees’ Assocation, repre^ 
sentjng 700 members.

AJIT GHOSH: I ana one ol 
the technical assistants of the*
National Library.

CHAIRMAN.* If you wish, any one 
of you may say in a few words 
something to supplement what you* 
have already stated in your 'memo
randum.

SHRI BYOMKESH MAITI: Sir,
before I proceed J /would like to 
express my heart felt thanks to the 
members of the Committee for
allowing us an interview and I would* 
like to appeal to the Committee that 
if any of our replies or comments 
hurt the sentiment of any of the 
’members in any manner we may b* 
excused. I also beg to state that if 
any of us sidetracks any point, othei 
members may be permitted to speak: 
in favour of our representation.

Sir, we have sent our origins^ 
memorandum and also a supplemen
tary memorandum which are already 
with you. We have detailed our 
view points therem and in a nut 
shall 1 would submit that the maiir 
feature of the Bill, i.e the autono
mous administration, the Board 
will not be at all suitable for the' 
administration of the National Libr
ary. We, the employees, feel specially 
perturbed because it will curtail our 
rights and privileges. Firstly, we' 
entered National Library as Govern
ment servants. We are now civil 
•servants. We enjoy privileges under 
the Constitution and there are other 
privileges allowed by the Govern-^
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ament. A* Government fmpk>yees 
*we are in comxpQn to enjoy tho#e* 
privileges. Under an autonomous 
Board we feel that those privileges 

w ill be curtailed and we shall be 
under a narrow administration under 
the local Board. We would, therefore, 
like to be continued under the 

^Government’s direct administration, 
ie . under the Ministry. That is 
all in a nutih^ll that I would like to 
submit. 1

SHRI AJTT GHOSH: What Ifr. 
Maiti has said will suffice. If any 
*hon. member of the Committee would 
^sk any question; we would reply to 
that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Before the mem
bers ask questions I just want to put a 
"few questions. Is it you r main fear 
that if the administration of the 
National Library is ehangted in 
accordance with the terms proposed 
in the Bill, then, your conditions of 
'service and other similar things 
would be endangered?

SHRI BYOJ&IKESH MAITI: Yes,
*Sir. Moreover, as employees we are 
concerned with the Library itself 
and the readers. At the same tftae, 
we feel that the functioning of the 
"National Library will |be lowered 
and it Will lose the linage it is hold
ing at present in public eyes. As a 
'Government institution it holds a 
-unique position. It is needless to 
point out that Government institu
tions are held very high in public 
eyes. From our day to day experi
ence in the functioning of different 
autonomous bodies we can gav that 

'public and international bodies pay 
fereat Respect to the Government 
institutions of India. We have ela
borated these things in our memo
randum and we do not want to take 
the time of the Committee by repeat
ing them.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Can the Commit
tee also take it that you are more or 
less content with the administration 
of the National Library as it is 
today?

SHRI BYOMKBSH MAITI. Tea, 
<*urely, Sir.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZAL- 
P | * Regarding introduction of 
this National Library Bill you have 
mentioned in your memorandum that 
it has shocked you and has also 
injured your feeling. Why are you 
feeling like that? Would you please 
give the reasons Why an Autonomous 
body has"tom ato you as a great 
surprise? You have also stated that 
is has injured the feeHngs of the 
employees because the employees 
were not taken into confidence before 
bringing auch a Bill of drastic nature.

SHRI BYOMKBSH MAITI: There 
were several Committees on the 
National Library and we expected 
that Government wpuld take certain 
measures according to the recom
mendations of those Committees. 
There were certain grievances of the 
employees which were communicat
ed to the Government of India from 
time to time, but we are surprised 
to ftn<J that, no action, or very little 
action was taken on those points. We 
had! no information that a Bill of 
this nature is coming. We heard 
very faintly that Government would 
be doing something. When the 
recommendations of the Jha Com
mittee were accepted, so far as we 
remember, in the flopr of the Parlia
ment, it w«s stated that Government 
would be taking some action very 
soon. We failed to find out what 
other actions were taken, but sudden
ly, at the Silver Jubilee celebration 
of the National Library Employees’ 
Association we came to know that a 
Bill had come before Parliament. We 
wanted that we should be given a 
hearing and we felt that our view 
points would be considered, but Gov
ernment did not consider our views. 
That is why we are shocked, and our 
feelings are injured.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZAL- 
PUpKAR: I want to put a question 
to you. A newn has appeared in 
today's Statesman that years ago a 
group of scholars came from Patna 
and other universities to study diffe
rent subjects but the employees were 
so irresponsible that they never came 4



to supply thoae books. What have 
you got to wy in regard to this?

SHRI BYOMKESH MAITI: To this 
point I shall answer that 1 do not 
understand whether the sense oi 
irresponsibility is collective Or indivi
dual If the individual employee is 
irresponsible then there are govern
mental machinery viz. conduct rules, 
<etc., to take dtisciplitftry action against 
that particular Individual4 employee. 
But if it means collective irresponsi
bility then surely it is vested with 
the top administration and not with 
the ordinary employees. Suppose, 
books in the National Library are 
lying unbound. In that case one book 
binder cannot take the books from 
shelf and get them bound. That is a 
policy matter, that is an administrative 
matter. He or some employees are 
surely to be ordered that books are 
to be bound.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is a matter 
of detail in the Administration. If the 
honourable member has any other 
question regarding the provisions of 
the Bill he can do so.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL* I 
want to put some questions to the 
witness. First, most of the educa
tional and cultural institutions in the 
world prefer to b£ governed by auto
nomous bodies. This is a hard fact of 
life. I repeat this is a hard fact of 
life. So, why this particular National 
Library or its employees do not want 
to have an autonomous body and in 
what way they expect that this would 
infringe their rights and privileges of 
service, etc.? The autonomous body 
suggested will have 9 Government 
employees out of 10 and it will vir
tually be a Government body. It 
will be, of course, autonomous in 
the sense that it will not interfere 
"with the day to day administra
tion of the National Library. Do 
you expect that this will infringe the 
rights and privileges of service, etc.? 
My second question is that Govern
ment institutions are more respected 
than others. In what wav this auto
nomous body will alter the situation 
from being a Government institution

because, in some cases, Government 
govern the institutions auto
nomous bodies. Instead of governing 
&t departmentslly it will be governed 
by an autonomous body. My third 
question is, your association affiliat
ed to any political party and, if so, 
what is the policy of that political 
party in respect of the National 
Library?

SHRI BYOMKESH MAITI: I will 
answer to the third question first. Our 
association does not belong to any 
political party. So, how this question 
comes in is not understandable to us. 
Why general politics or other things 
enter in the depositions I fail to 
understand. Coming to the first 
question, if there are maximum num
ber of Government nominees in the 
body, why this is being made an 
autonomous body is beyond my imagi
nation. As regards the second ques
tion, surely Government institutions 
are more respected than others— 
autonomous boards. We have men
tioned that in detail in our memoran
dum. Because it is under the Govern
ment the receipts under Delivery of 
Books Act are much larger than the 
other two receipient libraries.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTY: I would like you to let us 
know the difference between a dele
gated autonomy and simple autonomy 
qnd is it possible under the Constitu
tion to have a Government Depart
ment and at the same time having a 
delegated autonomy. What is your 
opinion if it becomes simply regional. 
To retain its national character, do 
you think it should remain under the 
Government department? If that is 
so, how do you propose, to remedy all 
those defects which are coming up for 
the last ten years?

SHfll AJIT GHOSH: As regards the 
point that how autonomy can be dele
gated, We should stress on the power 
and not on autonomy. We think that 
the spirit of the Jha Committee was 
to have more freedom of work vested 
in the local authority. That power 
c*n be delegated to the head of the 
local authority by raising the status 
of the National Library to an
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‘Attached Office’ of the Ministry. The 
other way, i.e. by declaring the 
National Library as a Department of 
Government, in that case also same 
thing will be done. That is how 
power can foe delegated. Regarding 
the second point viz,, the status of 
the National Library vis-a-vis the 
autonomous body we think that status 
of a Government department is more 
in the public eye than the autonomous 
Body.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You need not 
explain in detail all these because you 
have done it in your memorandum.

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: The 
witness appears to have some mis
apprehension about the employees. 
Suppose we ensure in the Bills or in 
the Rules that whatever advantages 
the employees hav* to-day they will 
enjoy the same hereafter either under 
the Government or under the autono
mous Board will they have any objec
tion. That is my first point. Second 
point is this. They say autonomous 
Board has no status but Government 
has more—it is a question of opinion, 
I am not saying whether they are 
right or they are wrong—I would like 
to put a specific question to them. 
Arising out of the answer which was 
given to one . of my friend’s question 
that this autonomous Board will be 
composed mostly of Government 
nominees— 9 out of 10—and to that 
they took the cue that in that case 
what is the use of autonomy and why 
not the Government itself if out of 
10 Government nominees are 9. I 
put this in a different light. Suppose 
the Select Committee decides to take 
away the right of nomination of Gov
ernment nominee but give it to the 
libraries of autonomous institutions 
and universities and professors who 
are really eminent scholars will that 
satisfy youf Will not that enhance 
the status? What is your opinion?

SHRI AJIT GHOSH: Regarding the 
first point, that is the privileges of the 
employees, we like to say that as soon 
as the library would be shifted to

autonomous Body the eights or prDe
tection given under Article 311 of the 
Constitution will be inoperative. In. 
an autonomous Body that protection 
cannot be given because Article 311 ia. 
applicable to civil servant# only and 
under the Board our status will be 
that of public servant only. Secondly,, 
as central Government employees we 
have the privilege of negotiating andL 
settling matters through Joint Consul* 
tative Machinery and Compulsory 
Arbitration constituted by the Gov
ernment to look into employer—em
ployees relation—that privilege will 
be withdrawn from us. Thirdly, at 
present if any injustice is done by 
the local authority we can approach, 
the higher authorities, the Ministry of 
Education or the Ministry of Home or 
even the Prime ̂ Sinister or the Presi
dent. But under the Autonomous 
Board which will be the supreme 
authority we will have no scope o f 
approaching any higher authority for 
redress of the injustice done to an 
employee. Regarding the Bill itself 
we are not suggesting any amendment 
because we are opposed to the Bill’ 
and we think that autonomous admi
nistration for the National Library 
will not be for the interest or for the 
good of the Library itself, for the 
readers and for the employees. For 
this reason we are totally opposed to 
the Bill and we have made it clear in 
our memorandum. Now coming to 
the point raised by one honourable 
member that as proposed in the Bill 
the composition of the Board will be 
that out of 10, 9 will be nominated or 
ex-officio members of the Govern
ment. In that case, one of the mem
bers said that indirect control is there. 
But one of my colleagues said that 
then what is the need of shifting the 
administration of the Librarv to an 
autonomous Body and why Govern
ment should not control it directly. 
Now, the Jha Committee recommend
ed the total representation of different 
quarters interested in the library 
affairs "and that Committee has made 
H clear in their recommendation that 
from which quarter representation 
will be made. But here in this case
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total deviation has been made in this 
Bill. We can suggest that this is not 
a real autonomy when Government 
keeps indirect control by allowing 9 
out of 10 nominees from the Govern
ment and the other one from the UGC.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: In your memorandum, you 
have given your objection regarding 
appointment of librarian. Do you 
want that Government should have 
the control of the library and then 
the librarian with high academic and 
professional qualification be appoint
ed? Secondly, at the end of your 
memorandum you have said that a 
comprehensive Act for the total 
library system and library service in 
the country be enacted. My point is, 
if the Parliament desires to bring 
forward a Bill for a particular insti
tution then that shows that Parlia
ment is more concerned with the 
status and importance of the parti
cular institution. But if you want 
that the entire system will be changed 
by a comprehensi\je legislation how 
do you think that the prestige and 
status of the National Library will be 
enhanced by such suggestion of yours?

SHRI AJIT GHOSH; For \he first 
point, our answer is that we do not 
think that. the autonomous adminis
tration will be suitable for the 
National Library and the Librarian 
will be a librarian-scholar. We think 
that a Librarian or Director of the 
Llbrarv or the head of the Library 
will have to guide, control and co
ordinate a team of technical experts 
in library science of course and also 
the Nation*! Librarian or the head of 
the National Library has the responsi
bility of directing* controlling, co
ordinating and planning the total 
library system of the country as also 
the profession itself, and, we think 
that" the man who is not in the pro
fession or who is not qualified in the 
profession will not be suitable to 
render the services. That is why we 
hav* asked that the head of the 
National Library should be a librarian 
first and then a scholar. Of course, 
the National librarian must possess

high academic qualifications as well as 
he must be a qualified librarian also.

Now, I come to the next question 
regarding a comprehensive Act. Sir, 
a comprehensive Act is necessary and 
the hon. Member has said, Parliament 
is thinking of giving more status to 
the National Library. Now, we can 
put it in other way. What are the 
actual duties and functions of a 
National Library? The UNESCO 
Seminars held in 1958 and at Manila 
in 1964 have already expressed their 
opinions in the reports which have 
already been published and they have 
already specified the duties, functions 
etc. of a National Library. I think that 
the Committee might have also gone 
into these reports. In our memoran
dum also we have specified the duties, 
functions etc. of the National Library. 
Now, the question as to why a com
prehensive act is necessary is related 
with the po»3ition, importance, role etc. 
of the National Library itself and the 
total library system in the country. 
We should get experience from other 
countries too. In other countries, the 
National Library itself controls the 
total library system of the country 
and it has a significant role and im
portance in this field and that is why 
we have said that the National Libr
ary should be placed in its proper 
perspective, in its proper place, and 
for that a comprehensive Library Act 
for the whole country should be 
enacted by the Central Parliament 
That is our contention, Sir.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: As far as I 
know, in different countries, the status 
of National Library as regards control 
etc. differ to some extent. There are 
some Libraries which are controlled 
by autonomous bodies and there are 
sOme countries where these are direct 
Government Institutions. I would 
like to put certain questions. Is it a 
fact that the National Library is a 
sub-office under the Education Minis
try? is it a fact that reference books 
and research books are not being kept 
or that they are being kept in such a 
fashion that t^ey become brittle or 
non-useable and that, proper biblio-
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graphy ia not there?. So it is vital to 
know whether the functions could not 
be properly discharged. Is it the lack 
of finance from the Government or 
supervision from the Government or 
because of inadequacy of staff? Thia^ 
is most important and unless we pro* 
vide for that there could not be any 
tangible improvement. The Jha 
Committee recommended only Rs.. 20 
lakhs to be spent on those items. I 
want to know whether those grants 
were made for the last three years 
and how much grant was made and 
how it affected the functioning of 
the Library? How did it contribute 
to the improvement of the func
tions of the Library? Or how did it 
contribute to the deterioration of the 
functions of the Library? What are 
the steps to be taken in that respect?

SHRI AJIT GHOSH: Sir, it requires 
time to answer the question of the 
honourable npember. I am starting 
from the very beginning i.e. the 
Imperial Library wa8 established in 
1903 and in 1948 by an Act of Parlia
ment, the then Constituent Assembly, 
it was re-named as National Library. 
Since then the actual functions of the 
National Library has not been assessed 
and it has not been properly directed 
as to what are its actual functions. 
There was no written plan or objective 
Qf the National Library. What should 
be functions, duties of the National 
Library have not been enumerated or 
nomenclatured. In our opinion that 
wa8 a defect in the administration. 
Now, the whole thing depends on the 
Government planning and the funds 
made available by the Government for 
the Institntfcm. There was no general 
policy for the Library. After inde
pendence never H ^as supplied with 
adequate fund for this purpose. The 
book budget will show this.

lift. You can give the'
detail in your supplementary iheifto- 
randhtim '

SHRI BYOMKESH MAITi; Sir, we 
would 1  ke to impress upop the Com-, 
mittee that the National Library 
should be thought in the proper pers

pective and that the National Library 
should control the entire Library 
system of India. If it is in that port* 
tion then only the National Library 
will be able to function properly. Sir* 
there is also the question of shortage 
of staff. You know, Sir, there are 
only 25 book binders and number of 
books per year to be bound is 70,000.

MR. CHAIRMAN: These are matters 
of detail. Kindly send us a supplemen
tary memorandum and we shall 
consider it.

PROF. S..NURUL HASAN; Do you 
think that under the Constitution 
it would be possible for the Parlia
ment to enact a legislation which 
would control the entire library 
system of the country?

SHRI BYOMKESH MAITI: Surely, 
Sir, why not. The people demand 
such a Bill. Sir, Dr. Ranganathan 
drafted a Bill and submitted that Bill 
to the Government twice. The Gov
ernment will be doing good if they 
give a look to this Bill.

MR. CHAIRMAN: So, leave it to 
Parliament and if you want to expand 
your idea in greater details, kindly 
send us a supplementary memorandum 
and we will be glad to consider that.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: I 
want to;know—suppose no comprehen
sive Bill comes or no autonomous 
Body is framed—do you think that 
the present statusquo of the National 
Library under the Department of the 
Government will satisfy you?

.sfeftj ANIL CHAfTEltotaS: The-
present status of the National Lib
rary is like a Subordinate office of the 
Government of India, and being a- 
subordinate offlce .it has some difficul
ties in functioning. The authorities 
have got limited powers to execute 
their things. That is , why we have 
suggested in our memorandum that 
the National Library should b? raised 
to the status of t}^ attached office pf 
the. Ministry o£ Education of the 
Government of India, and the Libra
rian of the National Library should!
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be given the status of the Joint Sec
retary.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: Since
you are talking about your status, I 
may raise a point that the Calcutta 
University is an autonomous body, do 
you mean to say that the status of the 
Librarian of Calcutta University is 
lower than that of yours?

SHRI ANIL CHATTERJEE: We
have never said that for the sake of 
only staff. We have said about the 
status of the institution, i.e., the Na
tional Library.

SHRI ASIS NIYOGI: Sir, let me 
clear by citing some instances her6. 
Once there was a request from the 
Ananda Bhawan Library* i.e., Late 
Prime Minister Shri Nehru’s Library 
to the National Library for its reor
ganisation. The request was made 
only t0 the staff of the National 
Library, Calcutta, and not to any 
other library, or that of U.P. The 
National Library people went there, 
they stayed there for 4 months and 
organised the library properly. The 
authorities of Ananda Bhavan were 
immensely satisfied. Even the Bangla
desh Government requested the Na
tional Library authorities to organise 
their libraries.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: You
have to clear your own back gear.

SHRI ASIS NIYOGI: Yes, Sir. We 
must clear our back gear. If adequate 
fund is provided and adequate train
ing is given, it will be easier for ua. 
The National Library personnel have 
to attend the Ji&nary halfran-hOUt 
earlier and have to leave half-an-hour 
earlier for the Library training clas
ses. There are many posts which are 
remaining vacant, j think if these 
problems are solved then the Na
tional Library can function better.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: If your 
grievances are solved then you have 
got nothing to say against this Bill—: 
is it your opinion?

Srffcl ASIS NIYOGI: I do not mean, 
to say like this. The Library is com
posed of workers and readers. Our 
grievances include the grievances of 
our readers, if the readers are not 
satisfied for want of better function
ing that is also our grievance.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: The total
number of employees in your Library- 
is more than 700. What is the ratio- 
between the staff and the readers?

SHRI ASIS NIYOGI: About 90(K
readers visit the National Library 
every-day. 450 books are issued from 
each of the 2 counters—one is lend— 
ing counter and the other is reading 
room counter.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: It means that 
the ratio is one reader for one staff. 
Can you tell us what is the ratio be
tween the employees and readers ot  
Delhi Public Library?

SHRI BYOMKESH MAITI: Actual
ly the idea of a National Library 
should not be related to the ratio o f 
readers only. Actually the policy of 
the National Library should be to* 
run in a different way. It is alleged 
that some scholars from Patna Uni
versity and Delhi University had 
come sometime ago and wanted some 
books but nothing was found. There 
should be a system of indexing and" 
documentation. There are various 
periodicals published in India. Even 
after the recommendation of the 
Reviewing Committee Report, Rs. 20rV 
lakhs book bought per year had tt* 
be granted hut in four years nothing1 
has been forthcoming. The readers- 
should be satisfied first and the staff 
should also be satisfied in the system 
of their works and then the National. 
Library will run well.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you for 
your assistance. As I have said ear-* 
lier, if you give us your supplemen
tary memorandum that will be very 
useful to us.

(The witnesses then withdrew)
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n . Shri Durlabh Chandra Bhatta eharyya, Research Student, Depart

ment of comparative philology Calentta University.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Bhatta*
*charyya, your evidence shall be 
t̂reated as public and is liable to be 

^published, unless you specifically de- 
.sire that all or any part of the evi
dence given by you is to be treated 

.as confidential. Even though you 
'might desire your evidence to be 
'reated as confidential, such evidence 
s liable to be made available to the 

.Members of Parliament.
Would you like to add anything 

nore to your memorandum?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACHARYYA: No Sir, I have 
-nothing more tc add to my memoran
dum.

SHRI PAUL PUTTAPPA: As a
reader attending the library every
day, have you found any difficulty in 

'having books from the library?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
"BHATTACHARYYA: There are some 
•difficulties such as rare books are not 
generally issued. The main difficulty 
is that special permission is to be 
taken from the authorities in respect 
o f the rare books. This system takes 
about two hours. First we have to 
'flu up a prescribed form. After that 
w e  have to deposit this form to the 
counter for having the book which 
takes 2 hours.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: 
"From a report we find that the per
centage of research scholars are dec-^ 
lining in the National Library. Can 
7 0 U give us an idea about that?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACHARYYA: First of all we 
have to find out as to who are the re
search workers and who are the rea
ders or professors or lecturers.

PR. RAJAT KUMAR CHARRA- 
BARTI: As a reader you must go 
tthrough the Bill. There is a contro

versy going on as to whether the 
National Library should be an auto
nomous body or it should be run by 
the Government of India—what is 
your opinion? Do you think that 
the National Library can serve its 
readers if it becomes an autonomous 
body like I.I.T. or Calcutta University 
or any other University?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACHARYYA: Some reorgani
sation will have to be done. If the 
hon. members feel that the autono
mous body will be a fit body to carry 
out the recommendation or fulfil the 
desire of the readers as well as the 
research workers then I think, the 
autonomous body will be preferable 
because it is a dynamic one.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: What are the present bottle
necks?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACHARYYA: We have no 
access in the Book Museum, in an 
autonomous body, the rules will be 
easier. The research workers can 
have easy access in the Book Museum 
and can get the books of his choice.

SHRj VIRENDRA AGARWAL: In 
the proposed Bill, there will be 9 or 
10 Government nominees. D0 you 
suggest that the representatives of 
Research workers from Government 
institutions and universities should 
also be there? If so, to what extent?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACHARYYA: Yes, Sir. Cer
tainly there Should b* representatives 
from the universities and Govern
ment institutlbns. Am regards the 
number of* representatives, I have al
ready mentioned in my memorandum. 
It niay be seven or nine members.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: You have 
mentioned that some reorganissition 
is necessary. Do you mean it in terms 
of more finance and more staff?
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SHRi DURLABH CHANDRA 

BHATTACHARYYA: I have explain
ed this aspect in. my memorandum 
that the whale liability will have to 
be borne by the Government as this 
is a national institution as mentioned 
in our Constitution. Regarding the 
finance, the library authorities should 
not bother. Regarding other difficul
ties, such as books, if a reader wants 
a book he will have to waste time 
for about 2  to 8 hours. In case of 
rare books, these are not issued.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: Do you
think that the rare books should be 
micro-filmed so that the compies may 
be readily available?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACHARYYA: Yes Sir. The 
readers should not be charged lor 
micro-filmed books___

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: Are you 
referring to books being issued to be 
taken home or being issued for the 
purpose of reading in the library? If 
you are referring that the books be
ing issued may be talcen home then 
can you cite any example where rare 
books are Issued for taking home?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACHARYYA; Yes, Sir. In 
Calcutta University.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you suggest 
as a serious scholar that the national 
collection of rare books with the Na
tional Library should be taken home 
by our readers?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACHARYYA: No, Sir. I do
not actually suggest that. My sug
gestion is that there should be a Book 
Museum where the research workers 
can have easy access.

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: Out 
o f about 2 lalchs of books, many States 
have not sent books, many publishers 
are not sending books. So, in such 
a big country of so many States and 
«o much population will he think it 

j desirable or proper that Instead of

having one National Library we may 
have 2 or 3 or 4 National Libraries 
and we may have 4 or 5 regional big 
libraries, thug forming the National 
Library as an apex library of the re
gional libraries. These regional lib
raries will feed all these national 
libraries.

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACHARYYA: I submit that 
the present library should not be dis
turbed or bifurcated. If you wish 
that more libraries should be opened, 
I think there is no objection, and at 
the same time that is desirable too 
because libraries are more than uni
versities. In my opinion the reader 
is trained in libraries and not in uni
versities. In the university he hears 
the lectures but in actual practice in 
libraries he prepares hi-s thesis or 
writes articles on many important 
matters. In my opinion more libra
ries are desirable but the present 
National Library has a tradition of 
its own and it should not be bifur
cated or transferred.

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI: Do 
you think that with autonomy effi
ciency will increase? Have you 
heard the name of an institution 
known as the Corporation of Calcutta?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACHARYYA: Sir, I submit 
that we should not be afraid of taking 
new ideas because India is now a 
dynamic country. It has its own 
force but an autonomous body does 
not mean a messacre.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: We 
have found a large number of people 
going there largely for text books. 
Text books are required by students 
of schools and colleges, and 54 per 
cent of the readers who go there go 
for text books. Do you think that 
the National Library would really be 
effective institution if the text book 
section of the library is separated 
from the real National Library?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACARYYA: I think there is 
no such need.
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SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: 

Text booke are there also in school 
and college libraries. The National 
Library is not meant for text books. 
The National Library has got a differ
ent function. Every college has a 
library, the university has got a lib
rary for text books. Similarly there 
can be a separate section altogether 
for text books and it should be sepa
rated from the National Library. 
Whoever would control or manage it 
is a different question. But do you 
think it would be worthwhile propo
sition to have a separate text book 
section so that the research scholars 
or those who are pursuing higher 
studies can find it really more con
genial and convenient to have the use 
of the National Library?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACHARYYA: It is very diffi
cult to differentiate between a text 
book and a book for research work.
I have a book with me entitled “Di
rections in Socio Linguistics". This 
may be used as a text book or a book 
for research material. Therefore, 
how will you differentiate this?

MR. CHAIRMAN: D o; you find as 
a research student any difficulty in
III. Central Reference Library Gazetted

Spokesman:

utilising the library because many 
graduates or undergraduates just 
crowd in that place with the result 
that the requirements of research and 
similar students are not looked after 
properly? What is your experience?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACHARYYA; The present 
authorities are cooperating with re
search students although I have felt 
certain difficulties for some books. 
They have not taken any special in
terest for-research materials.

MR. CHAIRMAN: So you do not 
find any difficulty in this respect?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACHARYYA: Some difficul
ties are there.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But not for the 
reason that the Hon’ble Member has 
suggested?

SHRI DURLABH CHANDRA 
BHATTACHARYYA: No.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very 
much Mr. Bhattacharyya.

(The witness then withdrew) 

Officers' Association Calcutta.

1. Shri S. B. Ghosh—President.
2. Shri P. N. Venkatachari— Secretary.
3. Shri K. M. Govi—Member.
4. Shri N. B. Marathe—Member.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The witnesses
may please note that the evidence 
they give would be treated as public
and is liable to be published unless 
they specifically desire that all or any 
part of the evidence tendered by them
is to be treated as confidential. Even 
though they may desire their evidence
to be treated as confidential such 
evid6nc6 is liable to be made avail
able to the Members of Parliament.

Now, your memorandum has been 
received and studied by this Com
mittee to the extent possible but if 
you wish to say something beyond 
that, you can do so after which Mem
bers will jaisk you questions which 
you will have to answer,

SHRI S. B. GHOSH: The Central 
Reference Library was established in 
1955 and up to 1970 it was under the 
direct control of the librarian of the 
National Library as its librarian in 
charge. After August 1970 the Cent



ral Reference Library has been de
clared as a subordinate office and its 
main function is the compilation of 
the Indian National Bibliography. 
Now, Sir, in the Review Committee 
report, it has been stated in para 105 
that the National Library, Calcutta, 
should publish the Indian National 
Bibliography. That is the only func
tion which is being discharged by 
the Central Reference Library and if 
National Library becomes autonomous 
and if autonomous board wishes to 
publish the Indian National Biblio
graphy, then what will be fhe future 
of the Central Reference Library. We 
are more worried about tlhis thing. 
Once from the Central Reference Li
brary we requested our Hon’ble Minis
ter and he assured us that the C.R.L. 
will only publish the Indian National 
Bibliography but if suitable provision 
is not made in the Act, then there is 
no guarantee that the C.R.L. -should 
publish the Indian National Biblio
graphy. Only for this reason we have 
come here to place our worries before 
the honourable Members.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are you anxious 
about the set up in the National Li
brary as envisaged in the Bill? Do 
you fear that the Central Reference 
Library would be outside the ambit 
of the National Library system? 
Or, would you suggest that in the 
legislation there should be a provision 
so that the Central Reference Library 
may remain a part of the National Li
brary complex and, therefore, all the 
misgivings that you have in your mind 
will be overcome?

SHRI S. B. GHOSH: What we want 
exactly is that there should be a pro
vision in the Act itself, so that the 
Central Reference Library can dis
charge the work of compilation of 
Indian National Bibliography. About 
index of periodical literature, thf 
Hon'ble Minister assured that the Cen
tral Reference Library should be pub
lishing it, but the Central Reference 
Library cannot do this because the 
books are deposited in the National 
Library. So, there should be some

provision in the Act itself, so that the 
CRL can have the books.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: As I have understood you, 
I think, you have not answered the 
main question. Do you suppose that 
if the National Library becomes an 
autonomous body the Central Refe
rence Library will remain still under 
Government, or it will be a part of 
the National Library—whether you 
would like to stay under the Govern
ment and let the National Library 
become an autonomous body?

SHRI S. B. GHOSH: We would like 
to be under direct control of the Gov
ernment of India. Only thing is that 
our interest should be safeguarded. We 
feel that Library may be may to kept 
under the Government and compila
tion should not be jeopardised.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: You
correctly referred to the assurance 
that I have given. The question that 
I would like to ask is, supposing this 
Bill is approved by the Parliament, 
would you like the Central Reference 
Library also to be transferred to the 
control of the National Library Board, 
or you would like the present status 
to continue, which would be more in 
the interest, (a) of the work, and (b) 
of your terms and conditions of ser
vice?

SHRI K. M. GOVI: In the interest 
of the work, e.g., the same dispensa
tion will be helpful. In fact the func
tions are interdependent.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: I could 
not understand what you mean by 
%ame dispensation’. Would you like 
the Central Reference Library to be 
merged into the National Library, or 
would you like it to remain a sepa
rate organisation directly under the 
control of the Ministry even if the 
National Library is placed under the 
autonomous Board?

SHRI K. M. G0VI: So far as work 
is concerned, merger w ill'be better. 
So far as our serivce conditions are 
concerned, the*e is some apprehen
sion.
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SHRI N. G. GORAY: As the Bill 

stands today, it visualises an autono
mous National Library Board. Whe
ther it will be passed in this form or 
not is another point. As the Minister 
asked you, supposing, this Bill is pas
sed, i.e. the National Library becomes 
an autonomous Board, would you like 
to continue under the Central Gov
ernment directly, or would you like 
to get yourself merged with National 
Library even if it becomes autono
mous? Would you like yourself to 
be merged or that the should be 
dropped?

SHRI S. B. GHOSH: About drop
ping of the Bill, we have not said 
anything.

SHRI P. N. VENKATACHARI: The 
general consensus of our Association 
is that our organization should be 
under Government and should con
tinue to evolve as the National Biblio
graphic Centre, doing bibliographical 
work which the National Library will 
not be doing, by making us of the 
rich collections of the National Library. 
So a provision may be made in the 
Bill so that the Central Reference 
Library may get necessary facilities.

DR RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Your point is that whatever 
happens to the National Library does 
not concern you. You want to re
main under the Central Government 
and get the facilities from the Nation
al Library as far as your work is 
concerned.

SHRI S. B. GHOSH: Yes, Sir.
SHRI MAHABIR DASS: Under

the Central Government the figure of 
students has gone down. May I know 
why the figure has gone down? We 
hope that under the autonomous Board 
this figure may go up and the people 
may get more advantages.

SHRI S. B. GHOSH: Sir, we belong 
to the Central Reference Library. We 
are sorry, we cannot give any answer 
to this question.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: It seems 
your apprehension is in regard to your 
service conditions. Supposing, the au

tonomous body assures you that it will 
not do anything prejudicial to your 
interest, what objection do you have 
about this Bill?

SHRI S. B. GHOSH: We have noth
ing to comment on the Bill itself. 
Functioning of the National Library is 
our only consideration.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: We 
can take it that you have no objec
tion if there is an autonomous body 
in case your interest is safeguarded.

SHRI S, B. GHOSE: That is al
most correct.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You are repre
senting a Gazetted Officers’ associa
tion. We expect of you very serious
thought on the objectives of the legis
lation. They have asked you that 
here in this Bill Parliament, subject 
to, amendments later on, have formu
lated certain ideas, and the Central
Reference Library at the present
point of time is outside the ambit of 
the technical organisation of the Na
tional Library. They have repeatedly 
asked you questions as to the set-up 
of the National Library which in 
your opinion is desirable. So, please 
give us some idea about this.

SHRI K. M. GOVI: As librarians 
we have the impression that if it 
becomes an autonomous organisation 
then collection of books—one of the 
basic functions of the National Lib
rary—might be affected. As it is 
under the Government it holds cer
tain prestige and it is able to collect 
larger materials as well as gifts. As 
librarians we feel that.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: 
Whether the National Library re
mains under direct control of Gov
ernment or it becomes an autonomous 
body, when you can complete the 
works of publication if bibliography 
from 190ft up to date. You have 
stated that due to administrative 
reasons you could not publish them.

SHRI S. B. GHOSH: No, Sir. We 
have published all the volumes but
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due to administrative reasons we 
could not publish 1968, 1969 and 1970 
works. Previously we used to print 
at Nasik but when the printing was 
transferred to the Government of 
India Press, Calcutta, they could not 
cope with the work. We are now 
printing the INB in the private press. 
Only three years backlog is there.

SHRI N. B. MARATHE: Our point 
is that once it becomes an autonomous 
body we apprehend that it is quite 
possible that the sort of link we now 
have may not be there. Our sub
mission is that present link should 
continue.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Apart from pre
paration of INB, what are the main 
items of work the Central Reference 
Library is engaged in?

SHRI S. B. GHOSH: We have
started one book exchange unit. But 
due to some administrative reasons 
that unit is not functioning. Then 
there is indexing of periodical lite
rature in English and Indian langua
ges. A proposal is being sent to the 
Ministry for indexing literature in 
Indian languages. Then we have 
started a project called publication of 
retrospective bibliography. You know 
Sahitya Academy published volumes 
from 1901 to 1953 and INB started 
publishing them from 1958. So, 
three years’ publication is lacking
i.e. from 1954 to 1957. We have pro
posed to the Ministry for publication 
of the same.. Then, since Independ
ence many books have been published 
in English and we can compile them 
in Indian languages. So, these are 
the some projects which we have al
ready stated and we are waiting for 
Ministry’s sanction.

MR. CHAIRMAN: For the prepa
ration of bibliography and index of 
publications in English and Indian 
languages you require day to day co
operation and assistance of the 
National Library? That is to say* 
your existence and the existence of 
the National Library should be as 
near to each other as possible.

SHRI S. B. GHOSH: Yes, Sir.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Before separa

tion of the Central Reference Library 
from the apparatus of the National 
Library, is it in your view that the 
operation in the earlier stage was 
more efficient or less.

SHRI S. B. GHOSH: After separa
tion we have .one full-time librarian 
who can devote all his time for the 
Reference Library. Previously there 
was one common librarians whose 
attention was more diverted to Na
tional Library. We can also say that 
within the last 2 years we have pub
lished 3 annual volumes and about 27 
monthly issues. Now we are regu
lar about annual volumes and biblio
graphies. Our sale has also increased 
now. Previously foreign exchange by 
sale was only Rs. 10 thousand but now 
it is about 61 thousand. Our working 
has gone up. But we want close co
operation of the National Library so 
that we can have access to the Na
tional Library but the existing facili
ties which we are enjoying should not 
be hampered.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In your view the 
comparative efficiency of the Central 
Reference Library is due to the fact 
of administrative re-arrangement that 
is allocation of a full time Director. 
But there is nothing to suggest disso
ciation of the Central Reference Lib
rary from the National Library.

SHRI K. M. GOVI: We do not
suggest that. Actually it should be 
as near to us as possible. Our work
ing is inter-linked with that of the 
National Library and so it should be 
intimate.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is it your view 
that the Central Reference Library’9 
association with the National Lib
rary should be as intimate and co
ordinated as possible?

SHRI K. M. GOVI: Correct, Sir.
MR. CHAIRMAN: And it is also 

your view that if in the legislation 
a provision is made to incorporate 
the Central Reference Library in the
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complex of the National Library, that 
will be proper.

SHRI K. M. GOVI: That is exactly 
what we want.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: I 
want to know whether in a vast 
country like India one National Lib
rary in Calcutta is sufficient or you

desire that there should be such 
library in every zone.

SHRI K. M. GOVI: A Country should 
have only one National Library. You 
can have regional libraries e.g., as we 
have in Madras or in Bombay, but 
National Library should be one.

(The witnesses then withdrew)

IV Sarvashri Mahadeva Saha and Syed Shahedullah, Calcutta

MR. CHAIRMAN: Before you give 
your evidence I have to make it clear 
to you that your evidence shall be 
treated as public and liable to be 
published unless you specifically desire 
that all or any part of the evidence 
given by you be treated as confiden
tial. Eveh though you may desire 
your evidence to be treated as confi
dential such evidence is liable to be 
made available to Memmbers of the 
Parliament.

Now, we have got your memoran
dum. If you have anything more to 
say in addition to the memorandum 
you are welcome.

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: We
have already submitted our view 
points. Our main point is about 
autonomy. Before we come to that 
we would like to know what parti
cular facilities are wanting now, and 
how the entire working is going down 
with regard to management. This 
has come to happen lately—only 
during the last 6|7 years. For instance, 
books are lying unbound, books are 
not indexed. These are simple things 
and the executive authorities are ex
pected to look into these things. Lot of 
money is spent but these things are 
remaining unattended, but it cannot be 
said that this is due to the absence of 
an autonomous Body. What are the 
executives paid for? Even during 
British administration things were not 
to badly administered as now. Exe
cutives are not giving attention in the 
matter of administration of the Naional

Library. In the 7th Schedule of the 
Constiution Library has been given a 
national status but in reality has it 
been given that status? Proposal now 
is to reduce the status. Previously the 
administration was funcion-wise but 
now it is not so.

So, it happens in language-wise 
arrangement of books. Even acquisi- 
tioning of books and ordering purchase 
thereof has become language-wise. 
Orders are placed thus and every de
partment has an ordering machinery. 
Now-a-days. instead of one ordering 
machinery and one acquisition de
partment as in the past there are lots 
of acquisition departments. There are 
different subjects, there are different 
languages and so what happens is 
that orders in certain languages go 
unattended to. This is what is 
happening. What happens is that 
somebody takes the chair for some 
years and some new innovations crop 
up, and everybody wants to give some
thing new during his tenure of office. 
So, we must know where the Gov
ernment stands so far as these ail
ments are concerned. So, instead of 
bringing this Bill we want that the 
Government should gather experi
ence to enable it to come before the 
people with a Bill through actual 
management. The actual management 
was not attended to. The Government 
should attend to it not only by mere 
executive management but by pro
viding finance and other things. Now, 
so far as status is concerned how 
should we conceive of this status? If 
we conceive the National Library to be 
the apex of things then we must pay 
due regard to the Constitution. In
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my opinion the Constitution envisage* 
that we ought to have our plans re
garding the National Library accord
ing to the Constitution. If that is so 
it goes against the  ̂ Constitution 
directly in spirit if the National Lib
rary is converted into an autonomous 
body. The Constitution has to be 
amended if it is made an autonomous 
body. If it is converted into an auto
nomous body then what will be posi
tion of those who have contributed 
hooks to it. Take the case of the 
Buhar Section. We have given over 
many books to it. The Buhar Library 
was handed over to the Government 
of India under an agreement in 1904. 
They gave it to the Government of 
India on the supposition that it will 
be taken care of by the Government. 
Other peoples have also contributed 
in that manner. Sir, the family of 
Sir Ashutosh Mukherjee have also 
contributed many books to the Na
tional Library. Would they give 
those books if they knew that the 
National Library would be an autono

mous body? From England also, an 
younger brother of comrade Abdulla 
Rasul—-our Chairman knows him— 
-sent all his books to the National 
Library. He was advised by us to 
send all these books. Would he send 
those books if he knew that the 
National Library would be an autono
mous body. Sir, the Ministry *may go 
and the Ministry may come but the 
National Library will continue. If it 
is to continue then it must accord to 
and inspire the imagination of entire 
nation so that the people feel that the 
Government is going to attend to it in 
a manner that it will be a great crea
tion of the nation itself. Now, if it 
becomes an autonomous body then it 
will plug the entire inspiration and co
operation which are needed by the 
Government in building this National 
Library. That is what has happened.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are very 
much interested in your ideas. If in 
regard to the general approach to the 
Library system in our country you 
have some detailed thinking in your 
mind you can let us know in your

supplementary memorandum which 
we shall consider. Now, one of the 
main points which the Committee 
Members were asking is that do you 
think that in the present circum
stances the Library should continue to 
be run as a subordinate office of the 
Government of India or do you think 
that autonomy, properly formulated 
and safeguarded, would be better for 
the smooth working of the Library in 
the national interest?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULL AH: We
have got a specific picture of autono
my in this Bill. What is the nature 
of autonomy? Nine members are 
being nominated, practically all are 
nominated. It means that Govern
ment or the individual Minister will 
control or will have the power to 
appoint the clerks etc. or whatever 
they want to do. The Government 
cannot go directly into the affairs of 
an autonomous body. The workingsf 
of this autonomous body can only be 
raised in the Parliament by the Mem
bers in the course of their budget 
speech or something like that. That 
also will have to be done in a round 
about way. As it is in the United 
States the Librarian is reseponsible to 
the Preseident and is appointed by 
him. The Librarian there enjoys the 
status like to though not exactly as 
that of Chief Justice of Supreme 
Court. Here also he must have some 
national importance like that. It de
pends on the nature of autonomy you 
are speaking of. If you say that an 
Under Secretary of the Government 
will handle the files then it is 
different. What we mean is that there 
should be greater attention given to 
the Library.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: I would 
like to ask the witness whether the 
composition of the autonomy as sug
gested in the Bill is to be changed to 
suit his requirement? Out of 10 mem
bers 9 are nominated by the Govern
ment. Would you have any objection 
to it?

SHRI SAYED SHAHEDULLA: I
suppose there have been two point*
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in my statement—one, in the nature 
of this particular committee. I have 
got exact picture in the Bill. So, as 
regards autonomy as such we have 
written here in our statement. 
Secondly, since the autonomy ia 
taking away the Library from the 
public view, that point is also clari
fied here in the statement. The 
character of autonomy—whatever 
autonomy you can imagine—ig going 
to separate the institution from the 
public view and is making it a sepa
rate body. We have seen that there 
is a suggestion that in the 5th Plan 
this Library is ought to be made a 
Regional Library of the eastern re
gion. There was some proposal made 
to our late Prime Minister Shri 
Nthru that the National Library 
is to be built up there but he is 
reported to have rejected it. I 
have no objection so far as the Lib
rary is concerned being built here or 
there. My point in this that this 
National Library should be given a 
national status as stated in the 
Constitution.

SHRI PATEL PUTTAPPA: Do you 
think that with greater power an 
autonomous body will be able to im
prove the condition of the Library?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: Gov
ernment can better form an Advisory 
Body which can be manned by the 
experts in this line.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZAL
PURKAR: Regarding the mismanage
ment in the Library such as acquisi
tion of books, stock verifications etc., 
are you not satisfied as to the powers 
given in Chapter III, Clauses 17, 18 
and 19?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: I
understand that the honourable mem
ber has mentioned only the provisions 
of the Act. The Committee has 
already visited the Library and has 
seen its functioning personally.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: What is
your opinion about the building up of 
af good library? i.e., supervision and 
maintenance, if it comes under the 
autonomous body?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: Fi
nance may stand in the way of the 
autonomous body. This can be met by 
the Government itself. In that event 
they can take the help of the Advisory 
Body.

SHRI SAROJ MUKHERJEE: What 
is your experience about other coun
tries? Can you tell us, if you have 
any knowledge, how the National Lib
raries are 'managed in other countries?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: In
United States, the Librarian is res
ponsible to the President because he 
is appointed by the President. The 
Government has got nothing to da 
with the Librarian of the National 
Library. There is a proposal that the 
British Museum should be taken over 
by the Government.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZAL
PURKAR: Do you think that the
present status-quo sholud be main
tained?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: 
Yes. I want that this should be 
maintained by the Government, 
and the requisite finance should be 
provided by the Government.

SHRIMATI SUSHILA SHANKAR 
ADIVAREKA: Mr. Chairman, the
witness says that all over the world 
the libraries are managed by the 
Government. He also advocates for 
giveng international status to the 
National Library. May I ask does he 
fear that the image of the library 
will go down if it is mnaged by an 
autonomos body?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAHr 
This should be directly managed by 
the Government, with all its ailments 
and liabilities. If it is handed over 
to an autonomous body, that body 
cannot cure its ailments and manage 
properly.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: I
feel that the public opinion in Cal
cutta is being mobolised that this* 
Bill js  inimical to the growth of the 
National Library, Of course the 
present witness has expressed cer
tain misapprehension and fears that 
the status of the National Library- 
would be reduced if it is made auto*



nomous. Another set of people feel 
that if it is made autonomous the 
rights and privileges of the staff will 
go down. If these inconveniences are 
properly met by the Govt., do you 
think that there is any objection to 
make the National Library an autono- 
nomous body?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: If
the National Library remains under 
the control of the Government, there 
is some likelihood of its gaining in
ternational status.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWALA: 
You have insisted that the National 
Library should be maintained by a 
Department of the Government. I 
would like to know, do they expect 
that the Government control on this 
library would maintained national
character of it?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH:
There is a lot to be done. Firstly, 
there comes the question of financing. 
The entinre thing is to be seen from 
the financial point of view as to thow 
the requisite fund can be provided and 
secondly, it is to be estimated proper
ly.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL:
At present the Government have 
provided Rs. 40 lakhs.

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: I
have not got the exact figure of the 
amount against the books but so far 
as my knowledge goes there are only 
Rs. 5 lakhs have been allotted for 
books.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I may like to 
make some correction. The provision 
for the books etc. is Rs. 5 lakhs and 
the administration and other expen
diture—total Rs. 40 lakhs.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: 
The witness has said about mismana
gement in the National Library. Does 
he really believe that the Depart
mental control on the Library can 
get rid of all these mis-management 
and corrupt practices?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLA: Yes„ 
I do.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: 
There is a misapprehension that the 
National library staff want more1 
finance and more staff for its im
provement. Do you really think that 
if these are provided the present ail
ments will be cured?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: 
Just now I cannot tell you, how 
much staff is necessary and how 
much finance is necessary. I want 
that finance shold be given for books. 
The first thing is books and then 
comes the management.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
VARTI: I think the honourable wit
ness is aware of the fact that with the 
present educational set up in the* 
whole country the educationists al
ways clamour for autonomous bodies 
just like universities and I.I.Ts. They 
always say that if education is con
trolled by Government then there will 
be no education at all as the sitness; 
is already in the knoledge that 
by introducing several Acts, Uni
versity Acts in the Parliament, there 
is so much hue and cry going on that 
autonomy is being taken away. Does 
the witness feel that if it becomes an 
atonomous body, the importance of 
the National Library will go down 
and will 'be treated as a regional li
brary just like any other regional 
libarary in the country? Is that the 
only criterion?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: 
That is only a fact because there 
was a note in the Fifth Plan like 
that. That apprehension is there also. 
My central point is that if it is taken 
away into an autonomous body it 
will not get the requisite attention. 
The second point is that the status 
of the National Library as envisaged 
in the Constitution will not be con
formed to. Various educationists may 
have given different opinions and I
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•do not know what they have
.said. This is a plitical question, it 
is an administrative question. Haw
.the thing is to be looked into from
those points of view. It is to be judged 
«on that account. I am not a big edu
cationist, but I think that so far as 
this matter is concerned, their idea is 
not correct in this sense that they have 

.not pointed to the particular ailments 
from which the Library is suffering. 
One of the ailments of the Library 
is want of books purchase of 
bookfj Does autonomous library 
necessarily make purchases very effi
ciently instead of the Government 
purchase?

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTY: But already you have seen 
the condition ot the books lying there.

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: But 
how did it come to happen? It came 
to happen with in a space of a few 
years. It has not been continuing 
externally. The Government owes an 
explanation to the people, to the 
Parliament to say how did it happen. 
It did happen within a few years. I 
have been a reader of that library 
since 1931—perhaps long before 
many of you were born.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Is it your apprehension that 
by making it autonomous body the 
National Library of Calcutta, they 
are going to make it a regional lib
rary and they are going to establish 
the National Library at Delhi?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: I
have repeatedly told you that that 
is not so. My apprehension is about 
the character of the autonomous body. 
Then my second serious objection is 
to the Calcutta Library being reduced 
to a regional library. It has come to 
our knowledge that there is a propo
sal in the fifth plan to reduce the 
National Library into an Eastern 
Regional Library. There was a 

♦cyclostyled note submitted to Gov
ernment—the ‘Minister can say that— 
'to that effect.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR; I would like to refer to one 
of the remarks made by the witness 
earlier. He has said that the language 
purchase policy of the National Li
brary is suffering from certain lacu
nae and one of them is that the lan
guages which are not represented 
in the library staff do not get justice 
or do not get any representation 
in the purchases. Now, I would 
bring to his notice one or two im
portant facts. The first is that the 
languages recognised by the Consti
tution of India as per the 8th Sche
dule are only 16. The number of 
languages recognised by the Sahitya 
Academy is only 20 and there are a 
large number of languages in the 
country in which literature of all 
types is being produced and published 
which is neither recognised by the 
Sahitya Academy nor by the Govern
ment of India but it is recognised by 
the people of India who constitute 
the nation. As such the National 
Library should be the repository of all 
the literature and it is worth while 
that such literatre should be produced 
and published in this country. In that 
view of the matter would the honour
able witness like specific provision 
in the present Bill that the literature 
produced and published in this 
country, in whatever language is may 
be, should be purchased and kept in 
the National Library?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: 
Yes: The Manipuri language and seve
ral other languages should be repre
sented and collection and preserva
tion of such literature should be done 
in the National Library. My regret 
is that it has not been done. All the 
languages are not being attended to 
in the manner they ought to be atten
ded to. For instance, in some meet* 
ing Dr. Suniti Kumar Chatterjee 
said the other day that 11 
crores of rupees had been sanctioned 
for Hindi Literature and only Rupees 
one crores for rest of the languages of 
India but nothing is said about how 
much the Manipuri language, the 
Bengali language, the Oriya language 
and other languages will get. 11 crores
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is going to the Hindi language in the 
Sahitya Academy .Dr. Chatterjee 
gave out an explanation why he could 
not sanction money for other lan
guages. Do you think that the Sahitya 
Academy as an autonomous body 
has helped much in this matter?

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: I would 
like to ask the honourable witness 
two points which are more on ques
tions of clarification of a certain thing 
and information on the other. The 
first point is that so far as books pub
lished in India are concerned, we want 
all these books to be delivered to the 
Library free of cost. Therefore, the 
question of rate of collection in differ
ent languages of India is not related 
to the allocation of money for the 
purchase of books in the various 
Indian languages because these are 
all supposed to be delivered free unless 
you want more copies. The clarifica
tion that I would like the honourable 
witness to give is, in such a situation 
would it be possible for the National 
Library to have functional division in 
respect of the various Indian langu
ages? For example, books published 
in Manipuri—you gave that example— 
would they be processed by catalo
guing section? In that case, in each 
of the sections there should be men 
with knowledge of each of the Indian 
languages. That will be come more 
cumbersome. Secondly, in view of 
the interest taken by the witness—I 
am equally interested—in Buhari col
lection—would the honourable witness 
say whether he is satisfied with the 
manner in which Buhari collection has 
been preserved in the National Li
brary?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: We 
ought to have within the staff, men, 
as many as possible, knowing differ
ent languages of India. Secondly, if 
the entire thing is done and distribut
ed and work of the Library organised 
or a functional basis through division 
of labour, then, one man can attend to 
several things. You can introduce 
knowledge of other languages. There 
may be a condition in the employ
ment that a man is expected to have

working knowledge in other langu
ages. It is not necessary to have 
erudition in that language.

So far as the records are concerned, 
I understand that they are kept pro
perly, but Arabic, Persian and Urdu 
books are not being acquired and 
collected up to expectation. I go 
there occasionally and I understand, 
it is difficult to obtain the latest pub
lications.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Have you gone there and 
have you seen in what stages the col
lections are kept?

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: I 
cannot possibly answer that question. 
Government is in a better position to 
enquire into that. I am told that the 
manuscripts are in safe custody. They 
should be kept separately.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: I can
personally vouchsafe that they are in 
safe custody.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: Sir, so far as 
allocation of fund for the develop
ment of languages in India is con
cerned, he has said that Rs. 11 crores 
has been allocated for Hindi and 
Rs. 1 crore for rest of the regional 
languages. So far as allocation of 
fund is concerned, Government of 
India is very serious atyout deve
lopment of all the languages. We 
have allocated Rs. 1 crore for the 
development of Bengali language but 
we have not been able to see that 
they have been able to spend one- 
fourth of the amount. So, it is not 
the allocation of funds. It all depends 
on how Bengali writers come forward 
and act for the development of books 
in Bengali language. So, the question 
should not be brought in that manner. 
Government of India is interested in 
the development of languages. For 
that money will never be a blockade. 
Supposing, we give you Rs. 20 crores. 
will you be in a position to spend it 
within the next five years? I say it 
categorically that for the develop
ment of languages we are bound to
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help all regional languages whether it 
is Hindi, Urdu or Bengali. For this 
purpose fund wil1 never stand in the 
way.

SHRI SYED SHAHEDULLAH: I
told you that it was not my statement. 
It wa9 a statement made in a meeting 
which I was invited to attend.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Deputy Min
ister wanted you to go back with the 
impression that Government will not 
be close-fisted in so far as allocation 
of money for cultural development is 
concerned. I am only explaining the 
information which tlje Deputy Minis
ter has already imparted. This infor
mation may please be communicated 
to other fellow writers and intellec
tuals that Government is ready to give 
money which West Bengal may re
quire.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You must have 
read the report of the Review Com
mittee.

SHRI SYED SHAHIDULLA: I have 
not read it. I have only heard about 
it. I was only surprised to hear the 
statement from Government that the 
Bill confonns to the proposal of the 
Review Committee.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do I take it that 
your opposition to the idea of having 
an autonomous body for the National 
Library is based more or less on the 
complete ignorance or the lack of com
plete acquaintance with what the Jha 
Committee had actually suggested in 
this regard?

SHRI SYED SHAHIDULLA: I did 
not say it was based on ignorance. I 
heard the contents from a member. 
Shri Saibal Gupta addressing a public 
meeting.

or you support National Library con
tinuing to be run as a subordinate 
department of Government?

SHRI SYED SHAHIDULLAH: It all 
depends on the meaning. What I 
mean is that National Library should 
receive proper attention and vigilance 
from the Government.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Your main objec
tion is not so much to autonomy as 
such?

SHRI SYED SHAHIDULLA: I have 
objected to autonomy.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If, therefore, the 
autonomy of the National Library can 
be formulated in a manner which 
would make for the better administra
tion of the National Library, you 
might reconsider your position.

SHRI SYED SHAHIDULLA: No, 
my apprehension is that an autono
mous body will not be able to capture 
the imagination of the people in a 
manner that an organisation properly 
managed and administered by Govern
ment does.

MR. CHAIRMAN; I would like you 
t0 go through a copy of the Review 
Committee, which has been laid On the 
Table of the Parliament and is now 
a public document. Cyclostyled copies 
would be available on request from 
the National Library. If you ask for 
a copy from the National Library yoi» 
will have it. And after going through 
the report if you feel that you will 
have to supplement your idea you 
may furnish the same.

SHRI SYED SHAHIDULLA: Thank 
you very much.
(The witnesses then withdrew).

V. Dr. H. K. De Chaudhuri, Dharxna- tattvacharya, Calcutta

MR. CHAIRMAN: Witness may treated a8 public and is liable to be
please note that his evidence shall be published,, unless he specifically det>-

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are you opposed ires that all 'or any part of the evidence
to the autonomous board on principle given by him is to be treated as con-
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fidential. He may further note that 
even though he might desire his evi
dence to be treated as confidential 
such evidence is liable to be made 
available to the Members of Parlia
ment.

Now, honourable members of the 
Committee would like to put some 
question to the witness.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZALPUR- 
KAR: What is your opinion regarding 
the autonomous body.

DR. H. K. DE CHAUDHURI: I have 
stated in the memorandum that I am 
not in favour of it because even then 
there will be many points which will 
have to be referred to the Ministry. I 
have been a reader member for more 
than a decade and I think the Library 
is functioning quite well.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: There has been a steady dec
line in the number of readers, in the 
number of research scholars and still 
how do you maintain that the position 
is still satisfactory?

DR. H. K. DE CHAUDHURI: There 
is hardly any declijw of genuine 
scholars. Among ordinary readers 
there may have been a decline be
cause many libraries have sprung up 
in the city.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You specialise in 
philosophy and Indology and you are 
a regular user of the library?

DR. H. K. DE CHAUDHURI: Yes, 
but previously I had been in service.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You hava sug
gested that autonomy for the library 
is not desirable.

DR. H. K. DE CHAUDHURI: I
th'nk the condition of the Library is 
quite sound.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You think the 
administration of the Library as it is 
now is quite efficient.

DR. H. K. DE CHAUDHURI: Yes, 
I think so. Of course there is certainly 
rcom for improvement.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If the status q u o  
h  improved then it is alright?

LR. H. K. DE CHAUDHURI; Yes, 
Sir.

MR. CHAIRMAN: And no basic 
change in the administration is neces
sary?

DR. H. K. DE CHAUDHURI: That 
is my humble opinion.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have sug
gested some change in the composition 
of the Board and you have recom
mended inclusion of educationists and 
scholars of standing to be members of 
the Board. Now, at the moment, is 
the library administered in a way 
wlvch satisfy the requirements of 
scholers and educationists? What is 
your view?

IR. H. K. DE CHAUDHURI: I 
think it does not because there is 
dearth of books in languages other 
than English, for instance, in German 
and French.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Apart from your 
memorandum have you got anything
r0 ?>a>?

DR. H. K. DE CHAUDHURI: No, 
Sir. except that Library should collect 
books of other languages especially in 
Got ms n and French.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you Dr. 
De Chaudhuri for your assistance to 
the Committee.

(The Committee adjourned at 13.00 
hours to meet again at 15.00 hours).

(The Committee reassembled at 15.00 
hours).
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VI. Department Council (Staff Side) of the Ministry of Education, Govern

ment of India.
Spokesmen:

1. Shri Anil Chatterjee—Member.
2. Shri Sital Adhikari—Member.
3. Shri B. C. Dey— Member.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Your memoran
dum lias been received by us. If you 
have anything to add to it. very con
cisely, please do so. If you do not 
h^ve anything to add then the hon 
men.:I*ers will put questions to you. 
Now, before you proceed I have to 
intimate that the evidence which you 
gjve shall be treated as puolic and is 
liable to be published, unless you 
specifically desire that all or any part 
of the evidence given by you is to be 
treated as confidential. Evei though 
you might desire your evic'cnce to be 
treated as confidential such evidence is 
liable to be made available to the 
Members of Parliament.

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI; Mr Chair- 
iran, Sir, the Bill has ben introduced 
in the Parliament on the basis of the 
recommendations of the Jha Commit
tee but our observation in *.his con
nection is that the Report of the Jbp. 
Committee has not been made public. 
Consequently, when we have* come to 
tender our evidence it is difficult for 
us to say here something as to what 
the i( port actually contains and what 
was the recommendation. Thi3 is our 
first point. Then coming to our next 
point we do not feel that by declaring 
thc National Library as an autonomous 
body the over-all functioning and 
development will be improved and an 
autonomous body is not the panacea 
for the ills and maladies the National 
.Library has been suffering from f*r 
the last few years. If the National 
Library is declared as an autonomous 
body then the staff-membera will be 
in difficulty as the provision of Article 
311 of the Constitution will not be 
(made applicable to the staff-member*. 
The existing employees will lute the

status of civil servants anj they will 
be oniy public servants. Sir, the Joint 
Consultative Machinery scheme and 
the Compulsory Arbitration Scheme 
are only restricted to the Civil Ser
vant s viz., the Central Government 
employees. As soon as the National 
Library will be declared to be an 
autonomous body those negotiating 
machinery will not be applicable and 
will not be extended to the existing 
employees. Those facilities as ore 
enjoyed now by the employees of the 
National Library will be denied. Ano
ther point is that an individual staff 
member, under the existing procedure, 
can go up to the highest level, even 
up to the President, for redressing 
grievances. But if the National Library 
becomes an autonomous body then the 
employees will be denied this privilege 
to redress their grievances by going 
upto to the highest level also. This is 
so far as the staff members are con
cerned. We consider that for proper 
development and efficient functioning 
of the National Library if the existing 
ills and maladies are removed by the 
Government then the National Library 
can function up t0 the mark the Gov
ernment desire and over-all develop
ment can be there. We do not consider 
that without rooting out the ills the 
autonomous body can be the only 
panacea for over-all development and 
better functioning. Sir, if the propos
ed autonomy is declared in respect of 
the National Library then the national  ̂
importance which i8 attached to the 
National Library and which has been 
accepted in the Constitution will go 
because of the existing social outlook 
that Government Institutions are con
sidered more prestigious than any 
autonomous or private institutions. In 
this connection we beg to point out, 
Sir, that the history of autonomous ^
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administration in India has not a very 
laudable tradition because the existing 
autonomous organisations are some
times considered inferior to other 
Government Department administra
tion.

MR. CHAIRMAN: This point has 
been laboured by many honourable 
witnesses. Have you got any other 
points?

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: No, Sir.

MR. CHAIRMAN: So, can I take it 
that you prefer that the present set 
up in the Library ought to continue 
and no change in the form of an auto
nomous board should be made?

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI; Yes, Sir.
SHRI MAHABIR DASS: The name 

of this Library was Calcutta Library 
previously and then it was changed 
to Imperial Library and then it be
came the National Library.

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: Yes, Sir.
SHRI MAHABIR DASS: In 1947-48 

the readership number per day was 
8590 whereas in 1971-72 the figure is 
1018. Why is it, can you clarify?

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI; I cannot 
correctly say what is the reason for 
this but I can safely say that by dec- 
lfifrttt# autonomy the position cannot 
be improved.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: Do you feel thaf by shifting 
the establishment to a new place from 
Esplanade the place has become inac
cessible and so th* number of reader
ship has declined?

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: This par
ticular question may be answerable by 
the authority—they will be in a posi
tion to give the correct figure , as to 
why the readership has gone down.

SHRI TUNA ORAON: So far as the 
autonomous body is concerned. I think, 
you have got bitter experience in their 
administration. I think, it Is upto you 

, to come to a corichndori, so far as the

matter is concerned, and so far as the* 
autonomous body is concerned, whe
ther it will be better to run the 
National Library by the Government 
as it is today or by an autonomous 
body. Everywhere, i.e. in Gujarat and 
in so many other Staton there are so 
many autonomous bodies which are 
functioning satisfactorily, but I do not 
mean to say that all the bodies are 
functioning satisfactorily.. In that case 
I cannot understand your anxiety. I 
only request you just to think over 
the matter and come to a final conclu
sion regarding the matter.

MR. CHAIRMAN; Mr. Oraon, it is- 
not a question. It is your opinion. So,, 
how can the witness answer this?

SHRI P. ANTONY REDDI: The Jha 
Committee and the Khosla Committee 
were appointed mainly because the 
working of the National Library was 
not satisfactory. What is your opinion?

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: Actually 
the Jha Committee’s report and the 
Khosla Committee’s report were not 
public as I have mentioned in the 
beginning. They were appointed to 
find out the ills and maladies in the 
department and to suggest remedial 
measures for better functioning.

SHRI P. ANTONY REDDI: We ac
cept your point that there have been 
maladies. In various criticisms, we 
have found, most answers were in the 
line that the workings of the National 
Library was not upto mark specially 
in the cases of readers and teachers. 
So, in that event do you not feel that 
the autonomous body will cure all 
these ailments?

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: We are
also anxious for it. We consider that 
under the overall direct control of the 
Govemjnent these defects can be re
moved.

SHRI P. ANTONY REDDI: Do you 
not feel that if the staff did work 
efficiently then there would not have 
been any difficulty?

SHRI ARIL CHATTERJEE: I can
not accept your views. When the
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Reviewing Committee report was plac
ed before the Lok Sabha and the 
Rajya Sabha in August. 1970, it was 
found that the Committee had men
tioned that some of the recommenda
tions to be implemented immediately. 
But, I am sorry to say that those re
commendations have not been imple
mented even now. The amount that 
■was recommended by the Reviewing 
Committee, i.e. about Rs. 20 lakhs 
book budget per year has not yet been 
sanctioned. So, the question of effi
ciency or inefficiency may not come 
where the question of policy remains.

SHRI P. ANTONY REDDI: The 
employees of the National Library 
should not have any grudge in dis
charging their regular duties. It is a 
fact that they have not been able to 
work efficiently but they have been 
paid their regular salaries, then I 
think, there is no reason why the staff 
o f the Library did not work efficiently 
and maintained the status of the 
'National Library at its required level? 
Of course I do not want to blame the 
staff.

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: If any
individual employee or any individual 
officer of the National Library is res
ponsible for not supplying the books 
to the readers thus causing inconveni
ence to the reader then the act of 
that particular officer or employee can 
he dealt with in terms of the Conduct 
Rules and other rules framed by the 
Government of India. If any indivi
dual officer or employee is found res
ponsible for non-supply of books to 
the readers and if you give stress on 
the point of declaring the Library as 
an autonomous one, I do not subscribe 
to that view.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZALPUR- 
KAR: The Jha Committee’s report has 
heen cyclostyled and is available in 
the National Library. In that report 
it has been recommended that a high 
power committee or a Governing 
Council may be appointed and more 
power may be delegated to them. So, 
in what angle you are condemning the 
Jha Committee’s report?

SHRI ANIL CHATTERJEE: The 
Jha Committee's Report has not been 
made public. If anybody goes to the 
National Library and give a requisi
tion for the Jha Committee's Report, 
he is informed that it is not for the 
public.

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: In this 
connection I may mention here that 
the Jha Committee recommended for 
delegated autonomy for the National 
Library. They have clearly stated 
that the nature of the autonomy 
should be that a Governing Council 
should be delegated powers to func
tion in the autonomous body, but 
not as a statutory one. We think that 
they wanted to remove the ills and 
maladies of the National Library 
with the very perspective of better 
functioning and development of the 
National Library.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If the Jha Com- 
mittyefs recommendation, as you 
have quoted, is properly implemen
ted would you support the *<*ea of flhe 
Jha Committee’s recommendation.

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: No. Sir. 
We cannot give our opinion in that 
line, I can say here that we are repre
senting the staff side of the entire 
Education Ministry as well as the De
partment of Science and Technology. 
Our feeling is that this thing should 
not be judged in a partial manner, 
but in totality, It is to be considered 
whether the whole educational 
system is under the Government 
control or not, whether a particular 
institution should be an autonomous 
body or not—this should be viewed 
in the proper perspective.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We do not want 
any philosophical discussion on this 
point. I have only picked up from 
your statement that you are against 
the autonomous body.

SHRI SAROJ MUKHERJEE: We
have got an experience about the 
functioning of the National Library 
while it was under the foreign rule 
before independence. It is now under 
the control of the National Govern*
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ment. So we have got 2 parallel ex
periences. Now we suggest if the 
present statusquo of the National 
Library is maintained what is your 
concrete suggestion for better ad
ministration and efficiency and to 
have the administration more befit
ting to the National Library.?

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: Our
suggestion is that in the administra
tion of the National Library more 
powers should be delegated or it 
should be declared as an attached 
office.

6HRI SAROJ MUKHERJEE: To
whom you suggest delegation of 
more powers—to the Government or 
to the autonomous body?

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: More
power should be delegated to the 
administration of the National Li
brary to be controlled by the Gov
ernment.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Under item 7 of your memo
randum you have stated “under the 
autonomous administration, the Li
brary, the readers, the workers— 
none will be benefited. The image 
and prestige of the National institu
tion will be undervalued. It is ap- 
prenhended that monetary involve
ment of the users for the use of the 
library will be greater under the 
autonomous administration that as 
at present and the strength of the 
enrolment of readers will be curtail
ed. Now would you agree to this 
remark? If so, why?

MR. CHAIRMAN: You can supple
ment your remarks in this respect 
afterwards in a supplementary me
morandum.

PROF. RASHEEDUDDIN KHAN: Is 
it your poition that the service 
condition might be lower than what 
it is at the moment and the status 
will also not be that which is at pre
sent?

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: Yes Sir. 
PROF. RASHEEDUDDIN KHAN: 

In your memorandum you have not 
indicated these factors that you are 

to it for these reasons. You

have only mentioned only two things 
apprehending the service condition* 
and scale of pay to the Govt depart
ments, and therefore you are oppos
ing it. You are afraid that your 
servce condition would not be equi
valent with that of what it may be 
in the autonomous body.

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: Sir, it 
is our apprehension that the service 
conditions will be altered. At the 
same time we are also anxious for 
efficient functioning and proper deve
lopment of the National Library and 
we consider that the Central Gov
ernment can alone do that keeping 
the library under its direct control. 
We consider that if the existing ills 
and maladies are removed from the 
National Library the Library can 
function up to mark. But when we 
say that the service conditions will 
be changed, that alone does not con
stitute the reason for which we 
oppose the autonomous board. That 
is one of the reasons.

PROF. RASHEEDUDDIN KHAN: 
Mr; Chairman, no reason has been 
given by the witnesses in their me
morandum how an autonomous body 
can make the functioning of the 
National Library weaker. They 
are concerned with only two points, 
namely, that they feel that their 
service conditions will be changed 
and that the status of the National 
Library will not be the same as it 
is now. I would like our members 
to ask them to advance some argu
ments to say how an autonomous 
body will not function.

MR CHAIRMAN: Professor Ra- 
sheeduddin Khan it may be better 
when we sit together we discuss all 
the implications of these problems 
because these friends do not seem 
to know more than what they have 
ponununicated in their memoran
dum

SHRI N. G. GORAY: I can under
stand your anxiety about service 
conditions under an autonomous in
stitution. But usually what happens 
is that whenever any private indus
try is taken over by Government o f
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a Government institution ia made 
autonomous there is always an 
understanding or a clause which 
says that the present service condi
tions will not be altered to the pre
judice of the Present employees. 
Supposing this saving clause was 
there, one of your major objections 
against this autonomous body will be 
knocked out.

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: There
is already one such clause in the Bill 
that without the approval of the 
Central Government no service con
dition can be changed which is ad
verse to the employees. But may I 
put this observation like this? It 
can be changed adversely with the 
approval of the Central Government 
and in fact, our anxiety is that this 
protection can be given up to that 
time to the staff of the National Li
brary so as long as they are not ap
pointed to higher posts or given an 
upgradation in the Board itself. As 
soon as their services are fconsidered 
under the Board ‘by way of promotion 
or upgradation they should be undfer 
the rules and regulations. They will 
lose the status o f civil servants which 
is being protected by the Govern
ment

MR. CHAIRMAN: What you want 
to be sure of is protection—protec
tion as envisaged in article 311. You 
can count on this Committee to look 
after that.

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: May I 
be given one minute more? Sir, when 
it is the policy of the Government to 
take over all sick industrie?.,..

MR CHAIRMAN: This Committee 
is not the Government of India and 
so we cannot tell you what the policy 
<rf the Government is. We are a Com
mittee of Parliament and we cannot 
propound the policy of the Govern

ment. You need not, however have 
any anxiety regarding the service 
conditions. The Committee represents 
the Parliament and Parliament would 
not like to take away the rights of 
the present employees. Your views 
will be kept in mind.

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: Our
view is that we oppose this autono
mous board.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Govern
ment has already given an assurance 
that so far as the present employees 
of the Central Government are con
cerned, their (position is not going 
to be changed toy any provision of the 
Bill. I hope that will satisfy you as 
far as your apprehension is concern
ed.

SHRI SITAL ADHIKARI: This
protection can be up to that time so 
long as the staff are not under the 
Board*. Supposing I am a L.D. clerk 
now. I am transferred to the Board. 
So long as I remain a L.D dark 
my position will not be changed. But 
as soon as I am promoted to a higher 
post, I do not have that protection 
that was being given to me by the 
Government.

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: 
Well after all the assurance has been 
given by the Chairman himself.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Subject to your
understanding to which we are
trying to respond. I can say with
out any fear that as far as the
present service conditions of the
Government of India employees are 
concerned, they are not going to be 
jeopardised by any piece of legisla
tion. So you need not have any 
apprehension.

Now, thank you very much fttr 
your assistance.

(The witnesses then withdrew)

TIL Shri Stair Kumar Da*, Lecturer In English, Calcutta University

MR. CHAIRMAN: You may please liable to be published unless you spe- 
note that the evidence you give cillcally desire that all or any part of
would be treated as public and is your evidence should be treated as
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oonfklenti&L But oven though you 
might desire your evidence to be 
treated as confidential such evidence 
\m liable to be made available to the 
members of the Parliament.

Now you have already given a me
morandum which is being consider
ed iby the Committee. But if you 
wish to say something more than 
what you hav© said in your memo
randum you may do so.

SHRI SISIR KUMAR DAS: I have 
nothing more to add to what I have 
aready said in my memorandum but 
I shall be prepared to answer the 
questions that you may ask me. I 
have got a copy of the memorandum 
with me. I have been using this 
library for the last 27 years and I 
have seen several changes taking 
place in the administration during 
the last 27 years but I do not think 
that ^administrative ohanges always 
have brought about an improvement 
in the working o fthe library. My 
feeling is this—I have no solid 
ground for this feeling, to substan
tiate this feling—that administrative 
changes might not remdy the ills 
that the library is at present 
suffering from. It is partly a 
a crisis of character and if we simply 
change the head, the administrative 
head and have a new administrative 
set up, I have a feeling that it is not 
going to solve the problems that we 
as readers face everyday. Moreover, 
the autonomous structure that has 
been envisaged in the proposed Bill 
is likely to give rise to certain other 
problems which we have not come 
across during the last few years. 
Whatever little I have read from the 
draft Bill I feel that some of the 
clauses in that Bill where the func
tions of the Director, the Board and 
the Council have been defined are 
not explicit enough. There is not
that kind of proper definition or full
definition of the powers or of the
activities of the members of the
Board or the Council and the Direc
tor. If I remember correctly, the 
Director is a person who may be a

non-technical or non-professional 
person and probably a very qualified 
person, but I have feeling that pro
fessional equipment also may be a 
very important part of his equip
ments and a person who is at the 
same time a great scholar as well as 
a person who is professionally skilled 
in his su/bject may be a more welcome 
choice. All this I say from the point 
of view of a reader. Other things, of 
course, are too obvious for me to 
mention. If you have any questions 
I shall be glad to answer them.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: You are using 
this library for the last 27 years. 
How old are you?

SHRI SISIR KUMAR DAS: I am 
40 years old.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: So, right frortl 
the age of 20 you have been using 
this library. Suppose we make you* 
the Director of this Library. What 
will you do to improve the lot of this 
Library?

SHRI SISIR KUMAR DAS: I have 
nb administrative experience and X 
shall not be prepared to accept the 
position of the Director. I do no* 
have the professional equipment.

PROF S. NURUL HASAN: You 
have raised the question that the Di
rector should be professionally quali
fied and a person of academic stand
ing. If we could have both these qua
lifications, there would be nothing like 
that. But supposing, we are unable to 
find a person who is a person of both 
academic stature and a person with 
technical qualification in library 
science, whom would you choose? A 
person of academic eminence, or a 
person without academic eminence 
who is qualified in library science?

SHRI SISIR KUMAR DAS: I have 
no knowledge of persons who are pro
fessionally qualified because I do not 
know many people who are associated 
with library science. But, I do not 
think that India is so impoveri
shed at the moment to offer a 
person who is both academi
cally qualified and profess
ionally skilled. I think it is passible
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to find somebody. It is a pity that we 
have lost Prof. Raganathan. We sin
cerely feel the loss of a person of his 
eminence. He was both academically 
eminent and professionally skilled.

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISHA: Do 
you have any name to suggest?

SHRI SISIR KUMAR DAS: Really 
I have not given any serious thought 
to this point.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: I refer you to an article in 
the news-paper and as a student of 
English may I ask you what is the 
difference between a 'delegated 
power* or ‘autonomy* and a ‘statutory 
autonomy’, and after defining these 
two—delegated autonomy and statu
tory autonomy—-can you give us some 
idea how the Government can give 
delegated autonomy instead of statu
tory autonomy?

SHRI SISIR KUMAR DAS: I do 
not understand it.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: In this article it has appeared 
that they function more or less in
dependently. In a powerful govern
ing council headed by a Director 
whose status would be equivalent to 
that of the Vice-Chancellor of a Cen
tral Universitry. So, it wanted dele
gated and not statutory autonomy. 
What is the difference between dele
gated autonomy and stautory autono
m y  and. secondly, how a Government 
can give to an institution a delegated 
autonomy and not statutory auto
nomy?

SHRI SISIR KUMAR DAS: Perhaps 
the writer of this article would be 
the best man to give the answer.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: My ques
tion is, when the budget was Rs. 1 
lakh 37 thousand 300 in 1947*43 the 
number of readers was 8,590. Now the 
bndget is Rs. 39 lakh 95 thousad 700 
and the figure of the readers is 1018. 
Why? Can you clarify?

SHRI SISIR KUMAR DAS: First 
of all, the figures given may be ques
tioned. I do not know the source.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: That is the 
National Library source.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Witness is natu
rally not in a position to answer that 
kind of question.

SHRI N. G. GORAY: Are you basi
cally opposed to the idea of autono
mous National Library because there 
have been people here who are op
posed to the very idea of it. The idea 
of an autonomous National Library 
militates against their concept Are 
you one of those?

SHRI SISIR KUMAR DAS: Perhaps 
this feeling has been generated from 
the institutions which are autonomous 
now. In fact, I worked in the library 
of the University of Calcutta and I do 
not want that Dhe National Library 
should become another Calcutta Uni
versity Library.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: It is suggesting in an imp
roved form that it should not become 
another Calcutta Corporation.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You are an intel
lectual working at a university and 
also a reader of the National Library. 
You have got some conception about 
the National Library. Whether it is 
run. as a subordinate office of the 
Govt., efficiently or inefficiently—it is 
another matter. Now, do you not en
visage that at some point of time hav
ing intellectuals of such calibre in 
our country that self-respecting intel
lectuals with administrative experien
ce would run an institution like the 
National Library? If you have any 
envisagement for the better future of 
our country are you in a position to 
suggest anything so that the National 
Library can be made to develop or do 
wc say that let it be run as subordi
nate office of the Govt.?

SHRI SISIR KUMAR DAS: I feel 
that at *he present moment things can 
be improved even wHhin the present 
set up. If we change the administra
tive set up it does not really always 
ensure any improvement, and imp
rovement is a thing which can be
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brought about even within the exist- tical idea o f an autonom y? 
ing set up. This is m y feeling.

SHRI SISIR KUMAR DAS: Yes.
MR. CHAIRMAN: You are antici

pating improvement of the basis on 
the present administrative set up and 
not on any experimental or hypothe-

Vm. Shri C. R.
MR. CHAIRMAN: You may please 

note that the evidence you will tender 
shall be treated as public and is liable 
to be published, unless you specifically 
desire that all or any part of the evi
dence given by you is to be treated as 
confidential. Even though you might 
desire your evidence to be treated as 
confidential such evidence is liable to 
be made available to the Members of 
Parliament.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI; Can you suggest anything 
for the imrovement of the National 
Library under the present adminis
trative set up?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very 
much.

(The witness then withdrew) 

Banerjee
tive steps have been taken to remedy 
them. So, public feel that even this 
Bill is not going to improve matters. 
Many people point out that after at
taining autonomy, irregularities, in
justices and instances of maladminis
tration can be taken up in the 'Parlia
ment and maladies can be remedied 
by discussions now. They feel that 
advantages of Parliament's vigilance 
will be lost. If you think that these 
are somewhat real you can make 
some provision in the Act. I have also 
suggested that the annual report of 
the National Library may please be 
placed before the Parliament.

SHRI C. R. BANERJEE: I support 
autonomy on principal but I want to 
say that the opposition to it by the 
staff and some readers of the Li
brary based on some apprehensions. 
There is a sense of insecurity of ser
vice amongst the staff. Clause 15 
says that staff services may be ter
minated by the Board after take over. 
That causes some misunderstanding. 
Then staff apprelhends that in case of 
any injustice done to him he will not 
have enough avenues for redress. 
They fear that their services would 
depend on the personal relations with 
the Director. Then, it is mentioned 
that all vacancies are to be filled by 
direct recruitment. Here again they 
fear that privileges of promotion will 
be denied to them if the Bill is pas
sed. Ttien, gazetted officers of the 
Library are reluctant to lose their 
presitigious status. It is felt that as 
soon as the Library is transferred to 
an autonomous Board, Govt, will gra
dually reduce the amount of financial 
assistance to the Library. Then, dur
ing the past few years therfe had 
been many complaints and no effec-

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAiKRA- 
BARTI: What is your idea about the 
point, as many people are saying this, 
that bv making it autonomous gra
dually it will be converted into a re
gional library and it will lose its na
tional prestige.

SHRI C. R. BANERJEE; This point 
has been raised for one thing. The 
Department of Culture had issued a 
report of the working group on Fifth 
Five-Year Plan on Library Deve
lopment. It is stated therein that it 
will be a regional library for the 
Eastern Region. It should be clearly 
stated in the Bill what would be the 
position of this Library in the hiera
rchy of library system in our country 
whether it should be like the British 
Museum wthere books are preserved 
for future generations of scholars or 
like Central Reference Library of 
England. So, before we decide we 
should come into some conclusion 
what should be the status of this Lib- 
brary in the hierchy of the Library 
system of our country. If it 
is a regional Library them there should
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be some representation from the 
eastern region. That should be men
tioned specifically.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: Mr. Banerjee. 
since you are referring to Reference 
Library what is your opinion regard
ing the role andA adminstrative ad
justment and other things with the 
National Library.

SHRI C. R. BANERJEE: I am not 
representing tJhe Central Reference 
Library. I have come here as an 
individual because you have not asked 
me to come as a representative of 
the Central Reference Library.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: Even then, 
since you have experience of Cen
tral Reference library what is your 
suggestion. Both the libraries have 
separate identity. Have you got any
thing to say even as an individual 
having experience of the Central Re
ference Library about the role, mu
tual understanding, administration 
and all these things?

SHRI C. R  BANERJEE: What was 
the idea of the Government about 
this Referenec Library? This is not 
a library at present. It only compiles 
the national biography. The idea 
of the Govt. of India was that Natio
nal Library at Calcutta will be a 
copy-right Library and the Central 
Reference Library will be in Delhi 
and act as an apex of the country’s 
library system. Only the bibliogra
phical wing of the Central Refe
rence Library was established lrL 
Calcutta in the premises of the Na
tional .V̂ ibrary pending construction 
of a bL tiding in Delhi. Site was 
selected, date for laying the founda
tion stole was fixed but then Mr. 
Nehru slid that he did not agree to 
have another national library in Delhi.

DR RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: The apprehension that Govt, 
is trying to revive the idea of a se
parate Reference library is agitating 
th# minds of the people here.

SHRI -C. R. BAX2RJEE: In this 
vast country only one library may not 
suffice.

DR RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: The question of reducing 
this into the status of regional li
brary and setting up a new library in 
Delhi—these things are agitating the 
people.

SHRI C. R. BNERJEE; There may 
be 4 or 5 National Libraries.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTT: As the National Library is
here for more than 100 years there is 
apprehension in the \ninds of the 
people that by making it ain autono
mous library you are trying to shift 
a part of the library to Delhi.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Chakrabarti, 
that is not the kind of question he is 
expected to answer. You can ask him 
as to what is the relationship bet
ween the two libraries; h* cannot give 
you answers as to the apprehensions 
of the people. Hypothetical questions 
he cannot answer.

SHRI C. R  BANERJEE: Central 
Reference Library which was propos
ed at Delhi was not planned to be a 
library like the National Library in 
Calcutta. In Great Britain also there 
are two libraries, one is British Mu
seum which serves the scholars of 
the country but then there is another 
National Central Library which is at 
the apex of the library system of the 
country which guides other libraries 
and there is no clash between the 
two because their roles are different.

MR. CHAIRMAN; Since the Cen
tral Reference Library's main work 
is bibliograj*hical and since the Na
tional Library at Calcutta is a copy
right library where maximum num
ber of books are received the work 
of the Central Reference Library and 
of the National Library seems to be 
closely linked. Therefore, is it not 
absolutely essential that both work 
in co-ordinaUon, perhaps in close as
sociation, even some kind of amal
gamation or does with the Central
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Reference Library require to be ope
rated as an entirely independent ap
paratus?

SHRI C. R. BANERJEE: As I have 
told the genesis of the Central Re
ference library, only a section of that 
library has been set up and other 
wings are not working. Now, no ins
titution can adhieve success or re~ 
cognition only by bringing out one 
bibliography. If it is to survive it 
will have to be amalgamated with 
the National Library or it will have to 
be developed in another way. For 
example, it may be a National Biblio
graphical Centre—all bibliographies 
will be compiled here, not only na
tional bibliography but others also. In

Italy and other countries there are 
centres like this. In that way this lib
rary can be developed.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Therefore, the 
site of the two Libraries logically 
should be the same.

SHRI C. R. BANERJEE: Yes, Sir, 
otherwise where can you get the 
books to work with? Besides, the 
staff of the Central Reference Libra
ry are frustrated because of the ab
sence of avenue of promotion— fu
ture they have tiottoing to hope for.

MR CHAIRMAN; Thank vou Mr. 
Banerjee. We have got your memo
randum and you have given many 
valuable points.

(The witness then withdrew).

IX Shri Gopftl Haidar, Calcutta

MR. CHAIRMAN: I welcome you, 
Mr. Haidar. Before you proceed I 
would inform you that the evidence 
that you give here shall be treated as 
public and is liable to be published, 
unless you sjecifically desire that all or 
any parfrof the evidence given by you 
is to be treated as confidential. Even 
if you desire your evidence to be 
treated as confidential such evidence 
is liable to be made available to the 
Members of Parliament.

Now, we have got your memoran
dum. If you wish to say a few words 
as a pretext on the general observa
tion you can do so but please make 
it very short.

SHRI GOPAL HALDAR: Sir, the 
first thing which I cannot understand 
even after reading the objects of the 
Bill, is that how the provisions of the 
Bill will serve the purpose of the 
Bill. Sir, the Department of Culture 
wants to divest itself of its responsibi
lities but wants to retain all the 
powers at the same time. I fail to 
understand this. Then I come to the

three tier arrangement .of Councils or 
statutory boards, etc. and tftiere again 
the Department is the head in all res
pects. This will give rise to more 
friction instead of smooth working, 
if it works at all. These are the 
things that strike me. There is prac
tically nothing in the Bill as to how 
the Library should be run, and what 
the policy of the Government is re
garding its improvement. There are 
only certain proposals for structural 
arrangement^ and that is all. Will 
that improve the working of the 
Library?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Haidar, the 
Bill is in a tentative stage and the 
Committee’s object is to improve upon 
it and report to Parliament. The Bill 
is directed towards a new orientation 
in the administrations of the National 
Library and for that purpose there 
is the concept of autonomy for running 
of the Library. The autonomous or
ganisation will be composed of people 
intellectually respectable and at the 
same time professionally capable. 
What is your view in regard to the 
concept of qualitative' change in the 
administration if it becomes aa 
autonomous organisation?
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SHRI GOPAL HALDAR: First of

all, it is not autonomy which is being 
desired or being attempted to. The 
Board formally may be autonomous 
but not in power. The Council as 
chosen is certainly something which 
cannot be called autonomous in that 
respect because all the authority 
will be practically in the hands of the 
Department which will run it. Then 
I do not know what is the actual 
desire of the Jha Committee as I have 
not seen it. There is a mention that 
on the basis of the recommendations 
of the Jha Committee it is being con
verted into an autonomous board or 
council. Those recommendations of 
the Jha Committee have not been 
made public. So we do not know as 
to what was their actual recommenda
tion and what did they mean by an 
autonomous board or autonomous 
council? These things are to be made 
clear and the report of the Jha Com* 
mittee should have been published or 
at least extracts or the relevant por
tions should have been published.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In practical terms 
you would like some kind of improve
ment in the administration of the Lib
rary and not any hypothetical ex
perimentation of any idea. Is it so?

SHRI GOPAL HALDAR: Yes, Sir.
I always like some improvement In 
the administration.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZALPUR
KAR: You have stated that you kant 
some improvement in the administra
tion of the National Library. How do 
you want to improve the administra
tion?

SHRI GAPAL HALDAR: For that 
purpose, of course, I have to go far 
deeper than you expect me to go. I 
am more or less a man from outside 
the Library; and I do not know how to 
run it. Only by experience as a stu
dent and as a reader I can help you 
and put in certain suggestions. Sir, 
there are some matters in the Libra
ry which should be looked after by 
he specialists who have also the ex

perience of this Library Science. 
This is my first point. Then I say 
that in practice if you want a parti
cular book here it is often delayed; 
sometimes the books are not there, 
sometimes we are told we do not 
possess that book. The library grant 
is not sufficient or has not been 
sufficient for some years. The pri
ces of books are going up and the 
amounts of grants are not keeping 
pace with that.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: Do you 
agree that if it becomes an autano- 
mous body there would be more via
bility in it and decision taking would 
be very smooth. There would not be 
any delay and it would consequently 
add to its efficiency.

SHRI GOPAL HALDAR: So far as 
the question of autonomy is concern
ed, in this case it will be the Depart
ment of Culture which will dominate 
the picture.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA; So, you 
are not in favour of autonomous 
bodies. You want that whatever 
autonomy is given to other Boards or 
such institutions should be withdrawn 
in the better interest of the country.

SHRI GOPAL HALDAR: You
mean the wider aspect of it. But I 
could not answer this question of 
yours unless I specifically know the 
institution referred to by you. I have 
complaints against many autonomous 
bodies but I cannot make such sweep
ing remarks about them.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Have you been 
able to read the Jha Committee’s 
Report?

SHRI GOPAL HALDAR: No, it
was never placed before us. We do 
not know anything except that there 
is some sort of talk about autoncftny.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Apart from that 
you have no knowledge whatsoever 
about the report or the recommenda
tions of the Jha Committee?

SHRI GOPAL HALDAR: No.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: What I would

like to know from you in this. Having 
been a member of the Jha Committee 
myself we had an impression that the 
intellectual atmosphere of the Natio
nal Library would improve qualita
tively a very great deal if it was run 
by a body of independent-minded, 
self-respecting scholar-cum-adminw- 
trators and that this place could be
come a genuine centre of research 
and other allied activities. That is 
why the concept of autonomy was 
brought into the picture—autonomy 
which would be co-existent with the 
maintenance of the good things in the 
present administration, autonomy 
which means the injection of a new 
spirit. Therefore, the idea was that 
instead of keeping this National Lib
rary merely as a subordinate office of 
the Government of India we can 
develop it into a genuine, live, intel
lectual institution. Now, is it your 
feeling—a feeling which has been ex
pressed by many of our witnesses - 
that in our country we are unable to 
run the autonomous bodies properly 
unless the Government or some such 
authorities help us. Is it your feeling 
also that intellectuals should come in
to the picture in the proper way 
along with the administrators to give 
a new tone to the National Library? 
From that angle could the experi
mentation of autonomy be given a 
trial or would you say that you would 
not favour any hypothetical experi
mentation for merely trying to im

' prove the administration of the Natio
nal Library. Which would be your 
point of view?

SHRI GOPAL HALDAR: I like to 
put it like that also. There is some
thing to be said in favour of the auto
nomous body, put in the Bill I do not 
find any real autonomy being granted 
there. Secondly, it depends on the 
point as to how the autonomus body 
will work in co-operation with the 
Department of Culture. After all the 
Department of Culture is a body 
which has taken interest in the Natio
nal Library and the National Library

is a part and parcel of the Govern
ment. What the Jha Committee has 
recommended, I do not know.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is it your appre
hension that if autonomy is imple
mented in some way or other, then 
the Government or Parliament will 
intend to wash their hands off the 
National Libary? If Government and 
Parliament continued to be in the 
picture and if the autonomous organi
sation is set up only in order to help 
and develop properly intellectual at
mosphere in the institution, then I 
would ask your feeling about it?

SHRI GOPAL HALDAR: I do not 
mean that every bit of work should 
be done by the Department of Cul
ture. They can also set up an Advi
sory Body. The people in general 
appreciate the prestige of the Govern
ment Service—Central Government 
service. They expect better pay and 
better service condition and in that 
event the Government would get 
better employees for he National 
Library.

DR. RAJAT KUMAfR CHAKRA
BARTI: I hope you have gone
through the Bill where it is mention
ed that in the Governing Body there 
should be 9 out of 10 members from 
the Department of Culture. Do you 
feel that the National Library should 
be made an autonomous Body or 
else the National Library will func
tion in a better and efficient manner 
if it is not made an autonomous 
body? My another question is whe
ther the autonomous bodies like Cal
cutta University and I.I.T. should be 
kept under the Government control 
instead of autonomy.

SHRI GOPAL HALDAR: It is not 
merely the composition of the bodies 
as proposed. I have my quarrels on 
that point. But first of all, I would 
like to be convinced as to whether 
that the Department of Education by 
itself, is not capable of looking after 
the National Library.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: That is not the direct answer.
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M y  point is this whether it is desir
able to put the National Library 
under an autonomous Body or to keep 
it under the Government as it is now 
for efficient and better functioning. 
The basic question is “autonomy”

SHRI GOPAL HALDAR: The basic 
question is improvement of working 
system and the improvement of the 
National Library. I cannot under
stand as to why the Ministry of Cul
ture cannot improve it.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: Then it shows that you do

X  Shri Rathindra Nath Ganfiily,

(The witness was called in and he 
took his teat).

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Ganguly,
your evidence shall be treated as 
public and is liable to be published, 
unless they specifically desire that all 
or any part of the evidence given by 
them is to be treated as confidential. 

It shall, however, be explained to the 
.witnesses that even though they 
might desire their evidence to be 
treated as confidential such evidence 
is liable to be made available to the 
Members of Parliament.

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: Do 
you stand for autonomy or oppose it?

SHRI RATHINDRA NATH GAN
GULY: I do oppose the proposed 
autonomy for the National Library.

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: If
you are in favour of autonomy I wel
come you, but if you oppose it we 
shall hear you,

SHRI RATHINDRA NATH GAN
GULY: While the Government is try
ing to bring under its control some 
big libraries then what is the harm 
of keeping the National Library 
under Government control.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: Can you mention as to which 
libraries are being taken over by the 
Gorenmi^it? *

not think in terms of autonomy.—Is 
not it?

SHRI GOPAL HALDAR: I think,
that even without autonomy it can 
run well. I have never said that an 
autonomous body cannot do anything 
towards development. My point is 
this that if the Government can run 
an organisation properly, then why 
the question of autonomy should 
come in.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you Mr. 
Haidar.

(The witness then withdrew).

Research Scholar. Hooghly.

SHRI RATHINDRA NATH GAN
GULY: Khudabax Library at Patna 
and Raja Library, etc.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: The
Khudabax Public Library is govern
ed by an autonomous Board under 
the Khudabax Public Library Act 
passed by Parliament. So, it is not 
that the Khudabax Library is being 
brought under the direct control of 
the Government. The T. N. S. S. 
Mahal Library is at the moment, 
under the control of Tamil Nadu Gov
ernment. We have offered to the 
Tamil Nadu Government our assis
tance for maintenance of this library, 
but it is under the control of the 
State Government of Tamil Nadu. 
Raja Library is at the moment under 
the Board in which the former ruler 
of Rampur is the Chairman. He him* 
self wants that it should be brought 
under the over all control of the Cen
tral Government, but to be governed 
by an autonomous board and the 
board of trustees of Raja Library 
have passed a resolution which is 
under the consideration of the Gov
ernment of U.P. After the Govern
ment of U.P. have taken their views, 
the Central Government will also 
take it views. If necessary, it can be 
placed before the Parliament. There 
is no intention in the case either of 
T. N. S. S. Mahal Library or Raja 
Library to administer them directly 
under the Department of Culture.
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SHRI RATHINDRA NATH GAN

GULY: There are other points too. 
The Bill has not considered the aspect 
that the National Library stands as 
an apex library in the system of 
public and special libraries in the 
country. Lending facilities should be 
improved in the University Libraries. 
Central libraries, Commercial Libra
ries, etc. This should have been the 
duty of the National Library Bill to 
consider seriously the possibility of 
relaxzation of copy right law by in- 
jserting proper provisions in the Bill 
so as to enable the library to get a 
copy of the graphic record by using 
micro-films facilities. I mean to say 
that the graphic records would be 
very useful in respect of the rare 
documents.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are you a rea
der in the National Library?

SHRI RATHINDRA NATH GAN
GULY: Yes Sir. For the last. 10

years I have been a reader.
MR. CHAIRMAN: I take it that

you are a post-graduate scholar. If 
so, you must have some idea—what 
is your feeling as to Ihow the National 
Library can be improved? Can it be 
run by the Government of India by 
issuing some orders or by injecting 
better personnel in the top ranks of 
the administration?

SHRI RATHINDRA NATH GAN
GULY: There should be some reform 
committee in the library to bring the
XI. Shri Adoke Kumar Ghoth, 

Jadavpur Unlvcnrity,

(The witness was called in and Tie 
took his seat).

MR. CHAIRMAN: You may please 
note that the evidence you give would 
be treated as public and is liable to 
be published unless you specifically 
desire that all or any part of your 
evidence should be treated aa confi
dential. Even though you might de
sire the evidence tendered by you to 
be treated as confidential, such evi
dence is liable to be made available 
to the Members of Parliament.

library under the direct and strict 
control of the Government. There is 
indiscipline in the main building and 
in the annexe. The employees of the 
annedure loiter and gossip and they 
do not take seriously their duties.

MR. CHAIRMAN: These are mat* 
ters of very detailed grievances which 
you have to pass on the authorities 
and if you have made a list of those 
grievances, you can pass them on to 
the Committee as a supplementary 
memorandum. But you have not 
made any detailed study in regard to 
any particular provision of the Bill 
which you would like to change in 
any direction?

SHRI RATHINDRA NATH GAN
GULY: The Bill has sought to lower 
the position of the library.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What do you
suggest in regard to the post of lib
rarian?

SHRI RATHINDRA NATH GAN
GULY: The librarian should be chief 
authority of the National Library. 
There should not be any Director or 
some other person taking the top
most position.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There should be 
a professionally qualified librarian?

SHRI RATHINDRA NATH GAN
GULY: Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very 
much for your assistance.

(The witness then withdrew).
Reader, Metallurgical Engineering 

Calcutta

If you have sent a memorandum, 
that has been taken into considera
tion by the Committee. But if you 
want to add a few words in regard 
to your ideas about the Bill, you can 
do so. But if you do not wish t* 
£ay anything, members will ask you 
some questions.

SHRI ASHOKE KUMAR GHOSH: 
Regarding the Bill, I have already 
given a statement. But if I am per
mitted, I can add a few more points.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes.
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SHRI ASHOKE KUMAR GHOSH: 

It has been found from the annual 
reports of the National Library, Cal
cutta and the Ministry of Education 
that for the last few years the book 
procurement under the D.B. Act is 
going down and I feel that one of the 
reasons is that the publishers in the 
country want to evade the provisions 
of the Act Though there are three 
recepient libraries in the country, the 
number collected by the National 
Library, Calcutta, is maximum. This 
shows that due to the National Lib
rary of Calcutta being held in high
est esteem in the country, its collec
tion is the maximum though all the 
three recepient libraries should have 
the same collection each year. This 
shows that if the National Library 
comes under an autonomous body, 
then the publishers of the country 
may not like to send their books. Na
turally collection will suffer. This is 
one thing which according to my 
view is against the interest of the 
National Library and against the in
terest of the nation.

Another thing is that from the last 
ten years’ report it has been found 
that the annual budget of the Library 
is going down. For example, from 
1069—1972 the total budget (both plan 
and non-plan) is going down from 
about Rs. 39 lakhs to 37 lakhs. This 
shows the lack of seriousness on the 
part of the Government to provide 
the Library with adequate funds, and 
since up till now the G<yernment is 
not so much serious about providing 
the Library with adequate funds* na
turally after the autonomous board 
comes into operation, how the Gov
ernment will provide it with adequate 
amount of funds necessary for the 
functioning of the Library? This 
shows that without proper seriousness 
on the part of the Government the 
Library cannot function properly and 
the Bill shows that the Government 
wants to part with the responsibility 
in managing the affairs of the Lib
rary. Naturally we see from the Bill 
that there is no clear cut responsibi
lity of the Government—the Govern

ment is not directly responsible 
though it controls the Library but 
nowhere in the Bill it has been put 
on the Government. It has clearly 
put down its responsibility upon the 
Library. So in the absence of such 
a responsibility I feel and I fear that 
the interest of the Library will be 
hampered.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: I would 
like to understand from the distin
guished witness who is himself a 
member of a well known university 
which We had the privilege of visit
ing this afternoon at a very sumptu
ous meal, whether if the Government 
of West Bengal wants to come up be
fore the Legislative Assembly in or
der to abrogate the Jadavpur Univer
sity Act and bring the Jadavpur Uni
versity directly under the control of 
the Education Department, the finan
cial grant given by the Government 
of West Bengal to the University will 
definitely increase?

SHRI ASHOKE KUMAR GHOSH: 
Sir, the grant may not increase but 
in the absence of adequate amount of 
funds, the students, teachers and 
other employees of the University 
may bring pressure on the Govern
ment to increase the fund. The State 
Government has got some responsi
bility in properly managing the 
affairs of education.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: So you 
would prefer the University to be 
brought directly under the adminis
tration of the Government?

SHRI ASHOKE KUMAR GHOSH: 
I shall prefer the University to be 
brought not under the State Govern
ment administration but under the 
administration of the Union Govern
ment.

SHRI PATIL PUTAPPA: You have 
said in your memorandum that this 
is a retrograde Bill. Why do you call 
this retrograde?

SHRI ASHOKE KUMAR GHOSH: 
At prepent there is a tendency on the 
part of the Government to bring in;



37
stitutions of national importance 
under its direct control to give effect 
to its socialistic principles. Now, in 
the case of the National Library we 
hope that the available resources of 
the country in the form of printed 
materials should be used to the opti
mum extent for the benefit of the 
maximum number o* people. At pre
sent we see that there is no coordi
nation between the different libraries, 
university or public. So a step to
wards autonomy will mean moving 
away from a coordinated approach to 
the development of library service. 
In that sense it is a retrograde step.

SHRI N. G. GORAY: Between an
institution managed by the people 
themselves and an institution managed 
by Government, I suppose the latter 
is more retrograde than the former.

SHRI ASHOKE KUMAR GHOSH: 
In the case of an autonomous board, it 
is not being run by the people. It is 
being managed by a board, i.e. by a 
few persons who do not represent the 
people. But the Government is made 
by the people's representatives. The 
Naional Library Board does not repre
sent the people. Nor are they 
directly answerable to the public. So 
in that respect it is a retrograde 
step.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: Mr. Ghosh, 
you have said that there is inade
quacy of fund. From the record and 
from my small memory I remember 

that we are spending today about 
Rs. 40 lakhs over National Library per 
year. Out of this we are purchasing 
books worth Rs. 5 lakhs from out
side the country. It means for a 
purchase of Re. 1). we are spending 
Rs. 7 fbr its maintenance. How much 
more money do you need to maintain 
the books in the Naional Library?

SHRI ASHOKE KUMAR GHOSH: 
This idea can be obtained from figures 
available for 1966-67.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: Let us talk of 
today.

SHRI ASHOKS KUMAR GHOSH: 
I am coming to that. At that time 
the Council suggested that book grant 
to be adequate Should be Ra. 6 lakh#. 
That was a pre-devaluation period. 
So, the National Library suggested 3 
times the money before devaluation. 
That was in 1967 and with that Rs. 2 
lakh the total number of volumes 
purchased was about 1591. Previously, 
in 1963-64 the total number of books 
purchased was 20,000. If, at least, we 
have to attend 1963-64 figure and with 
the increase price of books, I suppose, 
I cannot give you the exact figure, I 
think, it will be not less than a sum 

of Rs. 15 lakh.
SHRI D. P. YADAV: Government 

will not mind that amount, but I 
have got a very pointed question. 
Having spent Rs. 7 on a book of Re. 1 
how much more you want so that this 
Re. 1 book may be maintaine pro
perly in the Library? If you read 
today's Statesman you will see that 

the books which are there, are lying 
in a neglected condition, not even 

stacked in a proper way.
SHRI ASHOKE KUMAR GHOSH: 

As an outsider I want service from 
the National Library. It is for the 
Government to decide what is the best 
way of maintaining the books. It may 
be due to inefficiency in running the 
affairs of the National Library. How 
can an outsider say? In the words of 
Pandit Jawaharlal Nehru "National 
Library should possess all the printed 
materials in this country” . If we have 
to achieve this moto, I can say that it 
should utilise as much fund as is 
necessary. I do not know what 
should be the cost or the ratio.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: You have mentioned that 
book grant was only Rs. 2 lakh. The 
question is, how do you propose that 
simply by increased book grant they 
are going to handle the books pro
perly that are coming? You have 
read the condition of the books. The 
cost ratio is 1:7 today. How do you 
propose to improve the condition of 
the library simply by increased book 
grant?
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SHRI ASHOKE KUMAR GHOSH: 
It is not a question of money alone. 
The books are not properly maintain
ed. I can cite one example. Up to 
1970 there was not proper verification 
of the books. It is not due to money. 
There was no proper policy regarding 
the running of the Library. There 
should be an advisory body which 
should advise the library to take 
suitable measures. They can employ 
two or three persons for stock veri
fication. Yesterday, I saw in the 
journal section big volumes were kept 
in the open, not in a bound condition. 
They are bound to be damaged. It 
requires a strong will on the part of 
the management to manage the af
fairs properly.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Now, I would put this ques
tion to you, what do you think if we 
put this National Library as an auto
nomous body? Is it going to function 
In a better manner to take care of 
those points that you have mentioned 
than to keep it as a minor section 
under a department of the Central 
Government? What is your discreet 
opinion about it?

SHRI ASHOKE KUMAR GHOSH:
I want it to function as an attached 
office of the Government. Otherwise, 
the administration cannot have the 
responsibility.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: You maintain that under the 
present condition there is scope for 
lot of improvement and the Bill pre
cisely points to that direction. If the 
Parliament were providing a definite 
power with a specific task, scope and 
function to improve the condition of 
the library with autonomy, what Is It 
that stands i»  the way of your main
taining still that the proposed Board 
or autonomy will not do the miracle 
and the existing staff with adjust
ments here and there and a new room 
here or a new room there will im
prove matters?

SHRI ASHOKE KUMAR GHOSH:
Is not the question of existing staff. It

i« a question of strong will on the 
part of tne Government which so long 
did nol exert itself properly. Now it 
should exert itself. If it is an autono
mous body I feel that there will be no 
clear responsibility on any one 
because it will be composed of mem
bers who will not be directly 
answerable to the public. The Min
ister will take active interest in the 
affairs of the National Library because 
he will have to answer questions on 
the floor of the Parliament. The 
Director will not be required to do 
that.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Even then the report of the 
annual working has to be presented 
before the Parliament and the mem
bers can ask question and the members 
of the Board are directly responsible. 
You say, the Minister will be able to 
pass orders directly, but the Minister 
has his limitations and the department 
has to look after the affairs of the 
country. So, it is in the interest of 
the National Library itself that it has 
a number of people who are in this 
Board to look after the affairs of the 
National Library. You kindly see this 
point. I would also like to know 
whether it would improve matters if 
certain specific task is assigned to an 
autonomous body. At present you 
have no body. You have the Minister 
at the Centre and he is not the per
son to look after National Library 
affairs. He has to look after various 
things. But when you have a board 
it will directly look after your affairs.

SHRI ASHOKE KUMAR GHOSH 
At present also there is a National 
Library Council and there is not 
much fundamental difference between 
ttie existing Council and the proposed 
Board. If the record of performance 
of the National Library Council is 
not very good then how the Govern
ment is sure that an autonomous body 
will improve matter*

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very 
much for your assistance.

(The Committee then adjourned).
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I. Shri Ramaprasad Mookerjee, Calcutta.
MR. CHAIRMAN: You are welcome , and its administration could be re- 

Mr. Mukerjee not only as a distin- organised. But before we proceed 1
guished citizen of Calcutta and a parti- would like you please to note that
cipant in its cultural life but also the evidence you give would be trea-
as one of the donors of perhaps the ted as public and is liable to be publi-
largest single individual collection of shed unless you specifically desire that
books that the National Library has all or any part of the evidence ten-
had. So, we want to hear from you dered by you is to be treated as confl-
some important ideas in regard to how dential. Even though you may desire
the structure of the National Library your evidence to be treated as confl-



dentfal such evidence fe liable to be 
made availisble to Members of Parlia
ment. This is an intimation which I 
have to make to you. Now, would 
you like to say a few words explain
ing your ideas about the subject of 
the Bill before Members ask ques
tions?

SHRI RAMAPRASAD MOORER- 
JEE: I ha<i been connected with the 
National Library for decades together 
and I have an experience of the old 
Imperial Library from the days when 
it was in the Metcalfe House and sub
sequently also and know something 
about the ’management or mismanage
ment during different periods because 
in the earlier days my father Ashutosh 
Mukerjee was on the Imperial Library 
Committee for so*me time and after 
'Viat I had also been for some time on 
the Advisory Committee. Therefore I 
know something of the strong point? 
and the weak poinls of the administ
ration as it was in the past and I am 
sure the Bill has been introdued for 
the purpose of making it better than 
what it was. Before I go into the 
other points there is one question 
wtiich has been labouring me. I  think 
you were on the Jha Committee and 
you will be able to point out where 
my ignorance comes in. In the Ob
jects and Reascms of the Bill it is 
stated that it will be an autonomous 
institution after this. But in the Bill 
itself I do not find any reference to 
the word ‘autonomous’. On the other 
hand, I have had an opportunity of 
looking into the Jha Committee’s 
Report that is not published but I 
have a copy of that and I have studi
ed that. The Jha Committee had re
commended that the administration 
and the functioning of the National 
library should be improved. The 
Ministry has come forward with the 
Pill for an autonomous institution but 
Jn the Jha Committee's tepOrt theflre 
is no reference to tJhe autono
mous nature. On thi other hini, 
you will find that in the body

of the Report as also in the summary 
of the recomendatioipts it is specifically 
stated that the future constitution 
should be varying and modified ac
cording to their recommendation, not 
by a statute but by a resolution. I have 
not been able to find out from the Ob
jects and Reasons of this Bill any 
reason given why the specific recom- 
mention of the Jha Committee’s Re
port has been by passed.

MR. CHAIRMAN; Mr Mukherjee, if 
I may interrupt you at this moment. 
I find from the record that the Jha 
Committee had recommended that the 
Advisory Council should be replaced 
by a Governing Council exorcising 
real authority. This Governing Coun
cil, according to the Jha Committee, 
should be the final authority on pro
motion, selection, initiation of pro
jects etc. It should have the fullest 
liberty to function within the budget 
allotted f°r the National Library. This 
Council should be appointed by a re
solution of the Government and ful
lest powers will be delegated to it for 
running the organisation. The pro
posal for staff or initiation of project 
should be sent to the Ministry of Edu
cation for their approval. These pro
posals are within the framework of 
the fund allotted to the National Li
brary. The going should be smooth. 
The nature of autonomy invested to 
the Governing Council should be de
legate autonomy and not a statu
tory one. On this the legal experts 
came to be off the opinion that dele
gated autonomy is something which 
can hardly be defined* in legal terms, 
and, therefore, they considered seve
ral alternatives as to how to give 
substantial effect to the Jha Commit
tee’s recommendations and in their 
eiffort they have evolved a formula 
which you will find stated in the Bill. 
Now, if you agree to some extent or 
entirely with the Jha Committee’s 
idea then you could suggest to us ai#> 
as to how, first in conformity with
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the provisions of the Bill or as amen
ded in the direction, it is necessary, 
we can accomplish the objective what 
the Jha Committee recommended This 
is the position which I And from the 
records. “

SHRI RAMAPRASAD MOOKER
JEE: I was referring to the summary 
of recommendations as appearing at 
page 100 No. 5. Hie Advisory Coun
cil of the National Library should be 
replaced by a Governing Council. The 
Council dhould be constituted institu
ted by a resolution of the Government 
and n°t by a stalute i.e. to make it 
not a high-bound thing but something 
which may be modified or may be 
adapted as the occasion arises. I was 
analysing yesterday as to what actual
ly was in the Bill after I received 
notice for appearing before this Com
mittee. It it really autonomous body 
as suggested in the Bill? It is not in 
my humble submission. I have cate
gorised the various items from the 
Bill to show that the Government of 
India, in the Ministry, have retained 
the powers at different stages. So far 
as the functioning of the three tier 
system is concerned it has been made 
for evolving the rules or the regula
tions, modifications to be \nade, hang- 
es to be made, consultations with the 
board or with the Executive Body— 
all these have been provided but the 
final authority is left in the hands of 
the Ministry. As a member of the 
Advisory Committee, as it was then, 
we had noticed that powers, which 
were being exercised by the Ministry 
were being really exercised by some 
subordinate officer or officers. The 
officers in the Ministry who are 
in the Committee or was in the 
Committee Or are now proposed to 
be in the Governing Council or Board 
will exercise much greater power 
and final voice will be theirs 
and not of other people who are ex
perts or who have come from various

catgories. What I feel is that 
the Constitution as drawn up is wholly 
non-workable and the ideal with 
which the sponsors have come up can 
not be achieved by the Bill as it is 
drafted. The Bill has to be redrafted 
alltogether. Certain powers have to 
be kept, have to be given to certain 
persons—power of revision by higher 
authorities. But knowing as I do about 
the Government red-tapism the files 
begin to move and So on from one 
person to another and unless the head 
of the administration can be approach
ed it as very difficult to get things 
done. We are now concerned with 
an academic and cultural body like 
this. Here the final powers are to be 
given in certain domain not subject 
to revision by any other higher autho
rity. We had on more than one occa
sions difficulties to get our recommen
dations from the Council at that stage 
implemented by the Ministry and not 
only that if the Librarian was not in 
favour of the majority view and even 
of the unanimous view then it was 
very difficult for the other members 
to get the unanimous recommenda
tion of the Council to be accepted or 
to be favourably considered by the 
Ministry. Therefore, Sir, the final 
authority in academic matters and in 
cultural matters ought to be left to 
the academic and cultural persons 
concerned. The delegation has to be 
there—not delegation in that form but 
the final authority is to be given to 
certain persons who are actually ad
ministering the National Library. The 
defects in the administration of the 
National Library have been partly 
due to the different persons who had 
been at some time or to her in charge 
of the Library here as Librarian or 
because of the difficulties created from 
Delhi. Therefore, that has to be avoi
ded. In my humble submission, the 
Constitution as drawn up has to be 
changed in sutfi radical form that 
it will be very difficult for you. Mem~ 
bers of Parliament to pass that. Sir,
I had been in the Council of States
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in the twenties and that time and this 
occasion are quite different. It is very 
difficult tp make fundamental changes 
and get that passed by the Parliament. 
So, it is for you to devise ways and 
means as to whether thi& should be 
gone into in making fundamental 
changes in the prinicple underlying 
the Bill or whether a new Bill is to 
be drafted by a competent authority 
or competent experts. There is an
other thing which has struck me. Many 
of the recommendations the Jha Com
mittee *re very substantial and very 
well-meaning and they ought to be 
implemented. But this will not be 
implemented according to the Consti
tution, in my humble view. While go
ing through the Report of the Jha Com
mittee though I was not a member of 
the Committee 1 had gone through it.
I found that it was difficult for that 
Committee function because one ex
member and one present member of 
the Library were in the Committee. 
These two members being on a diffe
rent looking had viewed things from 
different angles and personal things 
have come in here which does not en
hance the reputation of the National 
Library. There have been difficulties 
in that way. If you read the principal 
report and the dissent and the subse
quent enquiry had has been niade you 
will fi'nd that these are the things 
responsible for the present form of 
the Bill and we have to rise above 
all those things if it is to be a Na
tional Library that has been recog
nised from the days in the last part 
of the last century. The Imperial Li
brary was established before Lord 
Curzon came. When Lord Curzon 
came and took over the public libra
ry which had been started and the 
ideals which had been laid down 
there—I have been comparing it some 
time ago but I do not have a copy 
just now—.were similar to that of the 
National Library. When Lord Cur- 
zon and later Late Jawaharlal Nehru 
entered the Belvedere building, I 
was present there on the last oca- 
sion not on the previous occasion, he 
said that many of these ideals of the 
National Library were similar.

Many of these ideals are similar. 
If you look to the National Library— 
in those days it was the Imperial 
Library,—it is not a State Library, 
it is not a regional library, but at 
the apex as the Jha Committee has 
stated at one place, I remember as 
apex on the entire Constitution—it 
should be guiding line of other libra
ries. There are no difficulties. It iff 
no use overlooking the foct that there 
have been attempts and there are 
even now in the dissent note of the 
Jha Committee, reference made—as 
to whether in a State Capital the 
National Library should be located.
I was present in Delhi as a Member 
of the Constituent Assembly at the 
time when the Imperial Library i.e., 
Christian National Library was made 
an all India Institution—a National 
Library.

There is no difficulty in State li
braries or even libraries in the capi
tal being subscribed to and made very 
big libraries. Take for instance in 
Delhi you can make National Ar
chive. Recently, Nehru Library and 
Museum has been stated and the func
tions of this Nehru Library and 
Museum for collecting materials— 
historical materials—concerning the
country are very good and encourag
ing. I myself had given some docu
ments belonging to my brother, Dr. 
Shyamaprasad Mookerjee and my 
father for the purpose of keeping 
them there. National Archive also has 
been keeping those documents and 
other things properly.

There is no difficulty in having 
such institution in Delhi. National 
Archive remains as national archive.
I cannot understand. What is the 
difficulty now in keeping the National 
Library here in Calcutta which had 
been the ssat of culture when the 
British people came, and after that 
it had 'been the place where the Na
tional Library has grown. In the 
Bill it is stated that it will remain 
in Calcutta, but there is dome referen
ce by other people that why it should 
not be in Delhi. If we keep this 
above that the National Library will 
remain as a National Library and
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will not be denigrated then we have 
to draw the ^constitution in a dif
ferent way.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I suggest that 
you send jome supplementary mate
rials. Now without wasting your 
valuable time, I think, the honour
able members may put their ques
tions for having much ideas from you.

•m

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI: May 
I ask Mr. Justic Mukherjee, while 
your father late Sir Asiitosh Mukher
jee, builder of the Calcutta University 
in the remote days, behaved that a 
very big library should go to the 
Calcutta University, then why you 
and your brother donated the books 
to the National Library? Is it be
cause that you thought that a institu
tion directly under the Government 
is a safer custody than under an auto
nomous institution?

SHRI RAMAPRASAD MOOKER
JEE: Sir, before I say something I 
humbly submit that I am not a jus
tice now. I have retired long ago.
I am simply Shri Ramaprasada Moo
kerjee.

~With regard to the donation, I did 
not refer to my father’s library in 
the opening words which I have spo
ken for obvious reasons. So far as 
my father’s library is concerned, the 
general public did not know that my 
grand father had started a library 
and mv father continued it. He in
vested a considerable part of his 
fmonth after month—sometimes even 
more IVian he earned. He referred 
one day “a miser amasses fortune 
which he does not use lor himself or 
make it available for the public or 
even members of his family.” Books 
are to be collected not merely for the 
purpose of merely for the sake of col
lection but for using them. He loved 
books more than his sons and mem
bers of the family. We the four 
toothers thought that the National 
Library would be the appropriate 
place -ef keeping books which would 
be in rdMe course a national asset. It

was for this purpose that we donated.
I do not know whether the letter 
which we had addressed to the then 
Education Minister, Maulana Abul 
Kolatn Azad, had come to your notice.

MR. CHAIRMAN: This brochure 
has been supplied to the members and 
they must have noticed the letter of 
Maulana Abui Kalam Azad. He as
sured you and your brothers includ
ing Dr. Shyama Prasad Mukherjee 
that the Government of India have 
no intention to remove the National 
Library from Calcutta and I am per
sonally of the opinion that there is 
no likelihood of this contingency to 
be arisen.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: In order 
that there may not be any misappre
hension on this score, and the time of 
our very distinguished witnens is not 
wasted I should like to state that it 
is the Government’s policy to treat 
the National Library is the National 
Library. That the Government of 
India propose to develop other lib
raries is a clear policy of the Govern
ment because quite obviously it is not 
possible to cater all the needs of the 
country from only one centre. But 
that does not mean that the pre
eminence of thg. National Library will 
not be preserved and maintained 
fully sg a National Library.

That by putting it in the Act that 
the central library shall continue to 
be located in Calcutta. Any misappre
hension that there may be in the 
minds fo any individual that the 
Government may, by an executive 
decision, remove this library from 
Calcutta is sought to be removed and 
therefore, on these two points, I would 
submit that there need not be any 
apprehension and I would be making, 
if necessary, further statement in the* 
Parliament when the report of this 
Committee will be discussed. The 
PoHcy of the Government is very 
dear.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In clause M, it is 
tftated categorically that the Library 
shall continue to be located at Cal
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cutta. By fhfeword ‘Library’ it means 
‘National L#>r*ry\

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MQOKER- 
JEE: I have no doubt that the library 
is to be located at Calcutta and I am 
glad that this statement has been 
made by the Hon’ble Minister here. 
Last month I wanted to meet him, but 
I could not.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN; In view 
of the entry 63 of the Constitution 
and as in the list of the 7th schedule 
the reponsibility for the maintenance 
of the National Library would conti
nue to vest in the Central Government 
and therefore the accountability of 
the Government to Parliament in 

'' respect of the National Library would 
be fully maintained because, a»s you 
know better than I do, the Constitu
tional position where the Parliament 
has jurisdiction of executive powers 
of th^ Union also extends the execu
tive power of accountability to Par
liament is fully safeguarded. There
fore, the question of responsibility of 
the Central Government is something 

■ which has been guaranteed by the 
Constitution itself and anything which 
the Parliament is contemplating to do 
is likely in any way to weaken the 
responsibility of the Central Govern
ment.

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI: Is 
‘ there any condition attached for the 

donation of your books to the National 
Library?

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOCKER- 
^ JEE: Yes. With regard to my father’s 

collection, the condition in which the 
books are now kept is very bad. The 
books are kept in such a condition 
that there is no sufficient space—the 
roof is low causing abnormal tem
perature—and sufficient steps are not 
taken for binding the books. We 
presented at one lot 74 thousand o f 
books. With regard to science and 

I art collection it is one of the ideal 
thlftgs not only in the east, but even 
In comparison with the western coun- 

‘ tries, it ls an asset to our nation. The 
 ̂ collection of scientific journals are

there from the beginning of the 17th 
century and these were donated by 
us. You cannot measure it in money 
alone. A few years ago when Mr. 
Kalia was there, he said that it is 
valued to a crore of rupees because 
there are only two or three copies in 
the whole world.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The National
Library authorities have shown us the 
floor of the annexe where Sir Asutosh 
Mukherjee's collections are kept. We 
were given information in regard to 
the preparation of separate catalogues 
of those collections were going on. 
Whatever you have said in regard to 
your misgivings,, we shall convey to 
the Library authorities. We shall 
convey to the library the importance 
of what you have said and the import
ance and the urgency of their duty of 
looking after these collections.

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER- 
JEEc I want to 'be excused, Sir, 
because my reference is not only to 
these collections but to other collec
tions also. For instance, the Bohar 
collection, the Sanikrit manuscripts 
have not been catalogued all these 
yeara. These collections had been 
given in 1949 and how many cata
logues have been published, how 
many volumes have been processed?

MR. CHAIRMAN: They tell liff
about three volumes.

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER- 
JEE: Out of 75 thousand volumes 52 
thousand volumes have been only 
accessioned, only 43 volumes have 
been processed and so on and so forth. 
Sa far as the other publications are 
concerned, the public is not being able 
to get the use of the library because 
the catalogues are not published, We 
have to depend upon Government 
press only. Persons are transferred 
from one office to another; catalogues 
are prepared by one and left unfinish
ed. Let the Constitution be, as the 
Committee Or the Board* whatever it 
may be, such that it can come to a 
decision and can implement it. Let it 
not depend on individuals—either the
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librarian himself or subordinate 
officers. The manner in which dele
gations have been made in the Bill 
shows that it ceases to be an autono
mous board and I have taken the 
provisions from the Bill to show how 
the word autonomous which is stated 
is merely a word which is used but it 
actual practice it cannot be autono
mous.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have said 
thcne things in the presence of the 
whole Committee—the Minister 
and the Deputy Ministers are here 
and they will give directions to the 
National Library authorities but we 
as a committee have to go into the 
merits of the Bill as it is.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: I will just read two or three 
sentences from an editorial of a news
paper and then I will seek your con
crete or-nion about one thing which 
is bothering our mind most. These 
are the lines: “But the need of the 
hour is a competent head, call him 
librarian, director or what you will* 
with the maximum autonpmy to take 
firm decisions unhampered by bureau
cracy and the drive to see them 
implemented.” Now, arising out of 
this I would like to have your opinion. 
As you have just now mentioned the 
condition of the books that is going 
on there for the past few years, do 
you think that under the direction of 
the Director or a Librarian, if you 
make the library an autonomous 
body, the library will be properly 
maintained upto the desired standard? 
If the Centre allocates a certain 
amount of fund every year and if the 
Ministrv is responsible to ♦he Parlia- 
m^.t for the accountability of the 
whole thing, do you think that under 
an autonomous body the library is 
going to function in a better manner 
nr can you nuggest any means—the 
Ministry still remaining in control of 
the library—how the Ministry can 
'give power to the Librarian or Direc
tor so efficiency of the library
can be effected?

SHRt RAMAPROSAD MOOKER
JEE: I have already stated that powers

have to be delegated but the question 
is the limit of the delegation to the 
Governing body or the council—by 
whatever name you call it—or the 
Librarian. But such powers should 
be delegated not as to ’make them the 
supreme authority over everybody 
else. The librarian must have certain 
delegated powers but not to override 
the Committee. Therefore, delegation 
should be with the final authority in 
majority of the matters except in 
financial matters for which finance 
has to come. The Committee has to 
take the final authority and the libra
rian is to be the final authority for 
implementing the same and also for 
the academic and technical matters 
but for the administration to give 
the final authority to the Librarian 
alone personally would create further 
difficulties because there is very 
large staff and a very large number 
of readers and users of the library 
and if one man is given charge, that 
would create difficulties.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: That is not my point. I am 
talking about the power being given 
to the committee in the form of a 
statutory body just like any university 
or national laboratory. There the 
whole power li?s with the committee 
which is the only administrative 
head. Do you prefer that sort of 
statutory body or you prefer some 
sort of modification that some powers 
are delegated to the Director or the 
Librarian and th» Government still 
retaining control of the whole library?

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER
JEE; There must be some provisions 
made without going to the Parlia
ment to modify some of those provi
sions as occasions may arise. Take for 
instance the question of modernisa
tion of a library. I have seen various 
things in libraries in other parts of 
Europe. Those things ought to Ibe 
introduced here. If it is to be provid
ed with technical assistance that has 
to be given and _fOr that to have a 
statutory body on a democratic basis 
is not approved of. For the Central 
body like this to have a democracy.
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to have the ereaders’ representatives 
by elections and others by election*— 
please keep away from those things.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: But how do you propose to 
get rid of the bureaucracy, of the red 
tapism of Government because the 
.files will still move from one table to 
another and take indefinite time to 
come to a decision,

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER
JEE: Final powers are to be given 
to the governing body. There the 
files will not go to Delhi. Only in 
financial matters and on questions of 
policies the files will be going to Delhi 
The Ministry must have the authority 
to say whether it would be 10 lakhs 
or 15 lakhs or 20 lakhs. The Jha 
Committee made certain recommen
dations that certain minimum steps to 
be taken and money is to be spent 
for those purpcoes. That has not 
been implemented. The constitution 
has been drawn up without money 
without improving the deficiencies 
which have occurred and had been 
noticed and had been recommended 
t0 be made good.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA
* SHAR: You have yourself stated that 

the final authority would be the gov
erning body. Do I take it that you 
have certain suggestions , regarding 
the nature and the composition of 
this governing body and you approve 
of the governing body being the final 
authority?

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER
JEE: Yes. The constitution will have 
to be a representative one and for a 
committee to be in session for three 
years and the entire committee going 
out—that is wrong. According to 
me there j?hould be a bigger body and 
a small body which will be meeting 
more often. Being connected with 
some other institutions I have seen 
that high officers or secretaries of 
Government are there and dates have 
to be fixed in consultation with them 
and if one officer is not able to come1 
he sends his representative. There 
are provisions like this but such pro
visions are obnoxious. I use the word

for certain difficulties. I had noticed 
in other places that the Ministry of 
Education of the Centre are paying 10 
lakhs, 2o lakhs or so but in meetings 
the Minister cannot come, he just 
sends one Deputy Secretary or Under 
Secretary to represent him. Those 
things ought to be avoided. There
fore, there ought to be a bigger body 
that would be changing, it may be 
three years or five years, whatever 
the term may be, and one-third of 
them will,go out every two years, 
thereby continuity will be kept.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Do I take it that this should 
be a broad based Committee with a 
small executive annex for the lib
rary? May I invite your attention to 
your own remarks. You have stated 
that some sort of a democratic insti
tution should not be put into thifr 
National Library concept. I invite 
your kind attention to the various 
library legislations in the various 
parts of the world. To my mind the 
•most revolutionary legislation has 
come in Brazil. I quote from Ranga- 
nathan’s book—‘The concept given by 
the legislation in Brazil is that libra
r ia n ^  is a profession. It should be 
accepted as such’. Therefore, what 
we mean by cultural and aca^e£lic 
bodies, or academic persoiw in a ditte- 
rent context, the library authorities or 
the legislation in that regard give 
greater prominence to the 
sionals in the library profess.on ra her 
than to other cultural bodies. .If that 
be the case, in such a body which 
would mean a national library, ere
should bs a representation given t
thp library profession and, in one oi 
the countries in Europe I have found 
that there is a provision where y 
public rereaentatives, Members oi 
Parliament and members of local
authorties, municipal corporations are 
also associated. Is it you n dea  that 
they are ipso facto elected and not 
elected through users associations or 
library service associations? Do I take
it lika that? ,rmT1

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER- 
JEE: If I may give an instance, for
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the development of the University 
Library 0^ Calcutta there was not 
auqh a drained librarian. The Univer
sity aent Or. Nihar Ranjan Hay to 
be trained in Ubrarianahip to Europe 
and other places and was appointed 
as the first grained librarian of the 
University Library. At the same 
time, there were Professors and 
Readers not to be led by the technical 
things, above "technical things, there 
are academic things which are to be 
looked after, about the library biblio- 
grahy, reference, etc. These sections 
are essential. At the present time 
you might have noticed, an institution 
has come up, an international insti
tution, and the original idea of 
national library or regional Library 
has been modified even in European 
countries. I will not trouble you 
with that. I will send you a copy of 
that. National Library, originally it 
was thought that it should be a refer
ence library only. But the readers 
who are coming here cannot be kept 
out and are not to be kept out. There
fore, National Library here in Cal
cutta should have to be managed by 
technical types °f librarians and also 
by academicians who will be able to 
assess about drawing up of its acade
mic and cultural matters. Not only 
that, SirrI may point out that they 
pointed out that consciousness among 
the people now is, in the administra
tion also, people come to the library 
now, not only in India but in other 
parts of the world also, to understand 
the political things and other things. 
People are much more interested In 
these things and, therefore, they must 
be guided, they must be shown whfiro 
to find them, how to find them. Pub
lication Department of the Library is 
also a very important function of the 
Library. Therefore, it ought, to be 
the Governing Body, or the bigger 
body. Although there will not b? 
bigger elected bodies, it may be that 
there w ill be 3 representatives from 
the University by rotation through
out India. It may be the other cul«r 
tural bodies throughout India by 
rotation. There would be nomina
tions by the Government—there will

be nominations by the State G overn 
ments by rotation. In this w ay you  
might have the representative* o*
different interests and different func
tions, but not actually any electoral 
roll for the purpose of election and 
election mania going in.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: What you are envisaging is a 
pattern. We have a similar body and 
then sin executive council, ijust tea 
you have said, with representatives 
by rotation. Do I take it that this ia 
your concept?

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER- 
JEE: It would have been better if 
Sahitya Academy were riot taken. 
The Minister knows what is going on 
there.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: This 
Bill, as you might have noticed, has 
suggested a Government nominated 
autonomous body. Are you in favour 
of this Government nominated body?

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER- 
JE1£: I have made it clear that it 
should not be wholly nominated.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: In
your opinion how many people should 
constitute the Governing Body?

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER- 
JEE; I have said that there chould be 
3 representatives from 3 Universities.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: How
many people do you think will con
stitute a workable Governing Body?

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOCKER- 
JEE: I am not giving my final opinion, 
but I think it should be about 30 to 
35 for the bigger body and the smaller 
body should have about 10 to 12 
members which should be meeting 
jnce a month or once in two months.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: How 
many members should come from 
Government as nominated members?

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER- 
JEE': These are questions of details.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: If 
there are 30 members in the Govern
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ing Body, da you think only 3 should 
come from Government?

MpOKJKH.
JEE: It may b$ one-rtjiird or on*-* 
fourth.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: 
Then there will be members from the 
universities and cultural bodies. Do 
you think representation should be 
given to Parliament and other bodies?

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER
JEE: Yes. I do not keep out the 
names of the Members of Parliament. 
What I suggest is that the $nal autho
rity will be the Government of India*

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: You have
said that bootos are being kept badly 
in National Library. From your 
experience what are the reasons? Is it 
due to lack of fund, lack of finance, 
or is it due to incompetence at the 
top, particularly of the Librarian, or 
negligence of the staff?

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER
JEE: I would not say all of them.
It is not possible to say within a 
sentence or two a detailed answer.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZAL- 
PURKAR: You have a rich experi
ence in the judiciary as also in law. 
Yesterday an article appeared in “The 
Statesman’* wherein the writer stated 
about delegated autonomy and statu
tory autonomy. Will you please en
lighten what is meant by delegated 
autonomy and statutory autonomy.

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER
JEE: These are technical matters.
There had been difference of opinion 
on that point. ^Delegation may be in 
different ways. It may be by legisla- 

i tion, by resolution or by a simple 
letter. There has been some provision 
in the Acts of different universities, 
for instance. Delegation has been 
given in a limited way, and there is 
a clause regarding emergency power 
in many of the Acts. Under emer
gency all the powers are vested in 
one individual and that has created 
in some places very good results and 
in some places autonomy and also 
mismanagement, Partiality comes in.

and decision—sometimes quick deci
sion—i? made? not in the interest of 
the organisation. It depends on the 
nature of the* particular delegation and 
the object with which delegation is 
to be given. The question is, are yoy 
going to make that body independent, 
excepting financial matters, of the 
Ministry? Rules and regulations are 
all subject to approval of the Govern
ment but the responsibility for imple
menting them lies on the bodies con
cerned.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZAL- 
PURKAR: Do you want delegated
autonomy for the National Library?

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER
JEE: There is no autonomy because
with regard to financial matters it had 
remained with the Government. 
Even under this it still remains with 
the Government. Government has 
not given away the responsibility of 
finding funds.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: How da 
you like, to propose that this Library 
should be truly national in charac
ter?

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER
JEE: By rotation. You cannot have 
every State in it and if you do so 
every State will try to serve its own 
interest and then it will become 
much larger than the Parliament 
itself.

DR. RAJATA KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: From your concept of dele
gated autonomy or statutory autonomy 
whatever it is, what do you think of 
the fate of the employees. Will you 
consider them Government employees 
or employees of the Board?

(SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER
JEE: According to my humble opi
nion, the provision is not legal, not 
constitutional. Employees are all 
Government servants having certain 
rights under the Constitution. These 
rights cannot be taken away without 
their consent. If* there is a new 
scale of pay or new service rules* 
according to the Constitution you
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have to take their consent. Under 
this Bill they are to continue as Gov
ernment servants until the Board de
cides otherwise. Next clause is that 
if there is anything done detrimental 
to their interest or status which they 
hold now, that will be done subject 
to the approval of the Ministry. What 
does it mean? In my humble opinion, 
Government can take away the rights 
which they have now got. That 
would lead to litigation and there 
will be various difficulties.

DR. RAJATA KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Supposing their privileges
as regards pay scales, promotional 
avenues, allowances, etc., are incor
porated in the Bill—they are afraid 
that they won’t be called class II or 
class I gazetted officers, they won’t 
be called Government employees—in 
that case do you find any difficulty?

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER
JEE: If the entire structure of the
staff is going to be changed under 
new constitution, you cannot have old 
people with their existing grades at 
every place. A particular office may 
be abolished, a particular office may 
be created, new rules may be fram
ed-a ll these are technical questions 
which would be affecting their inter
est. Therefore to make it a statutory 
body, as distinct from a Government 
institution, that would create difficulty 
for the staff.

SHRIMATI SUSHILA SHANKAR 
ADIVAREKAR: Being one of the
donors of a very valuable collection 
of books to the Library I would like 
to know from the honourable witness 
that there are a number of apprehen
sions being expressed in certain memo
randum submitted to the Committee 
that if this becomes an autonomous 
Board there is a danger that private 
donations might not come through and 
people might not be interested to give 
private collection to a *Body which is 
autonomous. Do you also feel the 
same thing?

SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER
JEE: I think so. We had given our
collection because it was a state 
thing; if it was a private thing we

would have thought twice before 
given the collection. As a matter of 
fact, after our collections were giving 
one or two other people came with 
the gift. I was even personally res
ponsible for having the heirs of the 
deceased to be brought in there say
ing that we had given our books. 
Therefore, if it be a private Body 
then there will be difficulty—donors 
might not come in—because we have 
experience of private collection in 
private libraries in Calcutta during 
the last century which had gone out 
of existence.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: The
distinguished witness used the word 
“private”. I think the word “ private” 
is perhaps not applicable to an insti
tution which is established by an Act 
of Parliament and which is under the 
control of legislative authority and 
control of Parliament. The second 
point I would like to clarify is that 
Jawaharlal Nehru Memorial Museum 
and Library is a registered society 
under the Societies Registration Act. 
Nevertheless, because it is a society 
sponsored by the Central Govern
ment, the authority and control of the 
Parliament remains over this society 
and I have myself been asked ques
tions in Parliament and have replied 
the question and have not said that it 
was a private Body and. therefore, I 
had nothing to do with it. I am very 
much required by Parliament to keep 
vigilance over the society, to look 
into matters, and to answer questions 
and give report to Parliament and 
that is the reason why in spite of the 
fact that it is technically a registered 
society, very many distinguished peo
ple have been coming forward and 
giving to this society gifts of papers 
of their families or of their illustri
ous ancestors that they might have 
had, I want to make this point clear 
that if the Parliament in its wisdom 
chooses to have a particular arrange
ment made for the administration of 
an institution it does not mean that 
it becomes a private rather than a 
national or State institution.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Mookerjee,
your view appears to me to be that
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the administration of the National 
Library would be better if it becomes 
truly representative and adequestly 
numerous bodies look after it and 
there is a smaller body to take deci
sion and becomes responsible and 
thirdly the operations of the library 
are always amenable to supervision 
and control by the Parliament. Now 
this can be done by restructuring of 
the administration and the idea of 
autonomy as the Minister has just ex
plained is by no means contradictory 
and the overall jurisdiction of Parlia
ment and Government continues to be 
operative. Now, in order to bring 
about a change in the structural posi
tion of the administration of the Na
tional Library there had been an idea 
and you also had hinted at it that 
Government by a letter could, per
haps, bring about a change. But it 
seems however from the advice re
ceived from certain other legal sources 
that it is safeir to bring about the 
changes through legislative processes, 
that is to say, by enactment whatever 
modifications are necessary by the 
Select Committee in the first place 
and by the Parliament in the later 
stage so that there can be no question 
about the position of the new admi
nistrative structure that is beiQg put 
up. Therefore, you are apparent'v in 
favour of intellectuals and others 
being associated with the administra
tion in a manner so that they can 
function with self respect and not 
treated as a Government department 
and they have nothing to do but 
merely to give advice. You are in 
favour of a kind of autonomous ad
ministration provided the control of

Government and answerability to 
Government is guaranteed. If that is 
your view I would like to have that 
view reiterated so that the Committee 
may take advantage of your thinking 
on the point.

'SHRI RAMAPROSAD MOOKER- 
JEE: I would suggest that whatever
is to be done you cannot say that it 
will be full-proof or the ideal thing. 
Therefore, it would be advisable, when 
the Parliament is coming to the pic
ture, to have that by a letter or by a 
resolution by Government. See how it 
works for 2 years or one year or 3 
years and then make necessary 
changes because whatever you want 
to make improvement has to be done 
quickly and effectively. The manner 
in which the' librarian had been ap
pointed, the council had been there, 
the work has deteriorated to such an 
extent that it should not be delayed 
in this manner. Therefore I would 
suggest this can be done effectively to 
remedy the defects. Some new con
stitution may be brought in so that 
you may see how it works and then 
make necessary changes. Before the 
Bill is passed, at this stage I would 
suggest that this may be done in the 
best interest of the Library as also 
keeping in view the responsibility of 
the Central Government and the status 
of'the Institution.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr.
Mookerjee, for your very valuable 
suggestions.

(The witness then tOithdrew) .

II. National Library Gazetted Officers* Association, Calcutta
Spokesmen: .

1. Shri M. N. Nagaraj 
' BJttfl ‘*uis 'Z

3. Shri G. L. Ray
4. Shri Balasubramanayan.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Before we pro
ceed I have to intimate to you that 
the evidence that you give would be 
treated as public and is liable to be 
published unless you specifically desire

that all or any part of the evidence 
tendered by you is to be treated as 
confidential. Even though you might 
desire your evidence to be treated as 
confidential such eveidence is liable



to be made available to the Members 
of Parliament.

Now, would you like, before Q ues
tions are asked by honourable Mem
bers, to give a statement as to the 
position you have taken?

SHKI M. N. NAGARAJ: At the
outset I would like to say on behalf 
of the Association that we are in full 
agreement in so far as the objectives 
of the Bill which relate to that part 
which mentions about the function
ing of the Library, modern scientific 
line and its efficient functioning are 
concerned. But as far as the latter 
part is concerned which says about 
the board to manage the institution 
we have certain observations to make. 
Sir, it is a point to be considered 
whether the Library can be managed 
as envisaged in the objectives of the 
Bill by the Government itself or by 
a board controlled by the Govern
ment. The Jha Committee has speci
fically gone into the question of ad
ministration of the National Library 
by a statutory body. This is evident 
from the fact that the Jha Committee, 
when they issued a questionnaire to a 
number of people specifically included 
the specific question that ‘whether you 
want the National Libray to be ad
ministered by a statutory body or 
not and, if so, give reasons’? That is 
the indication that the Jha Committee 
specifically touched on this question 
and after getting the evidence tender-' 
ed by different persons and members 

/  the Jha Committee considered the 
whole question and struck at a happy 
compromise by mentioning a new 
terminology,—as far as we are con
cerned—i.e. delegated autonomy. Pos
sibly for some vaild reasons the Gov
ernment cannot and has not accepted 
and implemented this part of the re
commendations even though a large 
number of the recommendations have 
been accepted by the Government of 
India. In the meantime a new situa
tion has arisen. Long after the re
commendation of delegated autonomy 
and before its consideration by the 
Joint Committee, the Central Pay

Commission recommended a pay 
Rs. 2,30$| - per month for the head 
of the National Library which the 
Government had accepted. The per* 
son who heads the National Library 
will enjoy same powers and previleges 
and status as enjoyed by the heads of 
Government Departments in the same 
scale* The autonomy of power has 
already been given to the heads of 
the Department, to an individual but 
not to the body corporate as envisa
ged in the Jha Committee. At this 
juncture our appeal would be to give 
a fair trial to this individual who 
heads the Department so that he can 
normalise the existing situation. 1̂ 
specifically use the word ‘normalise* 
because the three committees* the 
Jha Committee, the Khosla 
Committee and the Report of the 
Chief Labour Commissioner recom
mended various things because of the 
ills which had temporarily crept into 
the library can be removed when the 
situation become* normal. The other 
aspect of management can be looked 
into and then beoause of the large 
problems that the Library has faced 
in the last 10 years so many problems 
have crept in and actually have snow
balled in a very big-looking problem. 
In this situation, we feel that intro
duction of an autonomous board might 
not be a safe solution where delega
ted autonomy has already been accep
ted in so far as the individual is con
cerned. A fair trial can be given so 
that he can normalise the situation 
when the library is functioning in a 
healthy and normal fashion. Change 
of management can be thought of in 
so far as the Board itself is concerned 
once the library gets normal. Fears 
have been expressed mostly in news
papers and things like that that the 
receipts under the Delivery of Books 
Act would be less. It is a fact which 
can be cleared by figures. The national 
library being the Government of 
India Library has been receiving most 
of the books! It might be that because 
of various reasons in the past few 
years the receipt of books has been 
reduced but still then the number, of 
books in two other receipient libraries, 
one at Madras and the other at Bom
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bay, is far below the numbers of 
books received in theNational Libra
ry. Moreover* the books received in 
Madras and Bombay are only conse
quential to the reminded sent to the 
publishers from the National Library. 
After the National Library receives 
the books, at the time of acknowledg
ing the receipts they write to the 
publishers requesting them to send the 
copies to Bombay and Madras and 
very rightly so. Now, how we came 
to the conclusion that it is consequen
tial in nature is because the three 
libraries are co-operating in one sense 
that at the end of the month or quar
ter the titles received by each library 
are sent on to other libraries. When 
checking and cross checking of mate
rials are done it is found that a large 
number of titles received by Madras 
and Bombay have already been re
ceived by the National Library 2|3 
months earlier. It gives the feeling 
that after the books were received in 
the National Library the National Li
brary requested the publishers to 
send those books to these libraries. 
Now, as far as the individual gifts 
are concerned when the Library 
was moved to Belvedere, the donors 
were sure that their books would be 
housed in a better fashion. Now, 
there is fear that the number of gifts 
will decreased if it is run by an auto
nomous bodv and the apprehension in 
the minds of the donors that once the 
library is administered by a board 
such gifts will not be looked after 
well by them, has some real basis. 
Sir, if there be an Indian LiBrary 
^Service being established in the 
country then the persons working in 
this Library will be completely shut 
off from that organisation.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: I
would like to know as to what is the 
basis of this observation made by the 
honourable witness that there is any 
proposal of an Indian Library Service.
At least I am not aware of any such 
proposal.

SHRI M. N. NAGARAJ: I said in 
ease *uch a Library service is set up. 
The apprehension is that in case such *

a service is set up then the National 
liibrtrjr will be shut off from its ad
visory capacity about the functioning 
of ahnost. all the institutions in the 
country. This happened because in 
1937 the Estimates Committee of the 
Parliament vifctted the National Li
brary and they made specific recom
mendation saying that the other li
braries of the country should take a 
lead from the way the National Li
brary is being run. The persons 
from other Libraries should be sent 
for training to National Library. As a 
consequential measure the library 
authorities have to do the advisory 
work so far as the planning and other 
library matters are concerned.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: You mention at the beginning 
that in the Pay Commission Report it is 
recommended that the salary of the 
Librarian should be Rs. 2500 and it 
should be run as a department of the 
Government. We have our Chief 
Engineers who also draw the same 
salary of Rs. 2500 and they are also 
the heads of large departments. If 
you opine that the Librarian should 
have a salary of Rs. 2500 as he acts 
as the head of a department, then is 
there any need of any Advisory Com
mittee for it because no Chief Engi
neer needs any Advisory Committee 
to guide him. Now I read a few lines 
from an editorial of a newspaper— 
“bad staff relations  ̂ personal back
biting, agitation and other challenges 
to the authority subsequently led to 
neglect and pilfering the poor service 
to the readers.. ” What is your opi
nion on this editorial item?

SHRI M. N. NAGARAJ: It is true 
that there are various problems in the 
National Library. The Committees 
already have gone into its problems 
and suggested some remedial mea
sures.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Do you feel that by simply 
appointing the Head of the Institution 
in tfie form of a Librarian or Director, 
and keeping it under the direct con
trol of the Central Government, as it 
is nbvfr, these ills can be removed? Or
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du you feel that if î  made an auto
nomous body like University where 
there is a Governing Body to guide 
the Vice-Chancellor—where the Vice
Chancellor is the sole authority it 
will function better?

SHRI M. N. NAGARAJ: When a
Head of the Department is appointed 
he does not work in isolation. In the 
case of this Library, the Head of the 
Department is assisted by his staff 
who function like an Advisory Com
mittee, but at the same time it is not 
possible bn the part of the Head of 
the Department that he will cure all 
the ills. Wfe could only want that 
the Advisory Board function 
properly towards the selection and 
acquisition of books etc.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZALPUR
KAR: I want to know specifically
whether you are in favour of Statu
tory autonomy or not as it se°ms that 
you have got a fear about Clause 15 
of this Bill regarding transfer of 
service of existing employees to the 
Board? Suppose it is modified and 

, your services will be considered as 
Government service, then'what you 
have got to say? And the second 
point is, why the number of readers 
have been reducing now-a-days?

SHRI M. N. NAGARAJ: In the
first place we are not opposed to 
autonomy in the true sense of the 
term. But the autonomy as envis
aged in the Bill this is not the right 
time to introduce because the library 
is undergoing a difficult period. 
Once the whole system of the library 
is normalised then we can think of 
changes. But at present we are 
against such autonomy as proposed 
in the Bill. 'As regards the number 
of readers, I do not think that the 
number of readers has reduced in the 
last few years because of the fact 
that it is a growing organisation.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: I
want to prut a simple question. The 
honourable witness has expressed a 
lot of fear and misapprehension for 
trarsferring the National Library to 
autonomous administration, but he

wants an Advisory Committee when 
it is under the Government control. 
May I suppose that the Hon’ble Edu
cation. Minieter should be stationed in 
Calcutta with the additional powers 
of Director of the National Library 
to manage the day to day affairs of 
the Library? I cannot understand what 
is exactly acceptable to him. Per
haps nothing is acceptable to him.

SHRI SAROJ MUKHERJEE: Mr.
Chairman, the hon. witness is quite 
clear in his statement, but putting 
him this sort of questions is nothing 
but ridiculing him. This should be 
stopped.

SHRI M. N. NAGARAJ: I have
never mentioned that nothing is ac
ceptable—may be I am not clear in 
my expression. Perhaps the Govern
ment has accepted the appointment 
of an officer in the rank of a Joint 
Secretary. If that be the case the 
power that will be enjoyed by the 
Librarian will be equivalent to the 
persons drawing the same salary and 
holding identical post in the Govern
ment machinery.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI; You have mentioned that 
there is a fear psychosis amongst the 
employees. Do you think that the 
fear psychosis persists because in our 
public eyes Class I and Class II Gazet
ted Officers hold more prestige than 
people, working in the Banks, Schools 
and Colleges?

SHRI M. N. NAGARAJ: It is partly 
true. In the present social condition 
of the country, the people who are 
already in Government service hold 
some more prestige than the em
ployees of the other institutions.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: Keeping 
in view that in 1047-48 the budgeted 
amount for the National Library 
(Imperial Library) was Rs. 1,47*300/-, 
but in 1972-73 the amount was 
Rs. 39,95,700/-. jn 1970-71, the num
ber of out station scholars was 134, 
but in 1972-73, it was only 117—why 
the figures have gone down inspite
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of the fact that the budgetary allot
ment went upto more than Re. 39 
lakhs?

SHRI M. N. NAGARAJ: I would 
like to mention that in 1947-48, this 
library was housed in a Government 
building and there was no considera
ble expenditure towards its accom
modation. But at pre^nt we have to 
spend a very large amount for its 
new building, for the maintenance of 
gardens and various ancilliary works 
pertaining to our library. So far as 
the number of out station scholars, I 
admit that there is a reduction of 
number from 134 to 117.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: In 1947
48, the book budget of the Library 
was not a sizeable one. but now in 
1972-73, it is Rs. 4 lakhs.

SHRI M. N. NAGARAJ; The correct 
figures are not with me at present.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Perhaps there is 
soma difficulty to supply us correct 
figure. I suggest that the correct 
figures can be supplied to us later on 
by you.

SHRI SAN AT KUMAR RAH A: You 
represent the gazetted officers and 
you have got difficulty in functioning 
your duties in the National Library. 
My simple question is this, If the 
Government come forward to take 
the responsibility of finance for the 
National Library then there will be 
no difficulty regarding finance. My 
second point is this that Government 
gave an assurance that all privileges 
will be safeguarded by the Govern
ment, if the National Library is hand
ed over to an autonomous body. In 
this regard what are your concrete 
suggestions?

SHRI M. N. NAGARAJ: As far as 
the finance is concerned, I may cay 
that if the Government completely 
take tare of it even then the accoun
tability will be there. We are getting 
large collection of documents from 
Government to Government exchange 
system and from other libraries also.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: I would 
like to clarify the point. I do not

see any justification for this appre
hension which has been expressed 
by the witnesses. Once the Govern
ment enter into a cultural agreement 
or any other type of agreement with 
another government, then they 
specify as to which is the autho
rity to operate which particular part 
of that agreement. For example, Sir,
X may state for the information of 
hon. members of the Committee as 
well as for the witnesses that if the 
government enters into a cultural 
agreement with another government 
and there is a component of acade
mic exchange, generally the authority 
to operate that component would be 
the University Grants Commission 
which is also a statutory autonomous 
body. In the same manner some parts 
of the agreement are operated upon 
by the Council of Scientific and Indus
trial Research which is a registered 
society under the authority of 'the 
Government. Therefore, to say if 
Parliament decides to set up a gov
erning body or an autonomous gov
erning body then the particular func
tion which the National Library has 
been performing won’t be able to 
perform is conceived.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: The honoura
ble witnesses know that we have got 
the Indian Council of Agricultural 
Research, Indian Council of Medical 
Research and then the Council of Sci
entific and Industrial Research and 
five IITs. Almost all of these bodies 
have been statutorily composed. Now. 
take the case of the Indian Council of 
Agricultural Research. Mr. Swamina- 
than is the Director General cum its 
office Secretary to the Government 
but the employees of the Indian Coun
cil of Agricultural Research have 
never apprehended that their status 
and whatever privileges they have got 
are lessened than those of anybody in 
the Government. What has made you 
apprehensive that this body which we 
envisage will be lowering down your 
status or emoluments and other pri
vileges you are enjoying? Why are 
you so apprehensive of a body made 
by the Parliament? Do you think
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that a small body—a body made up of 
Professors Nurul Hasan and D. P. 
Yadav will be more effective?

SHRI M. N. NAGRAJ: From our 
side it is only an apprehension. This 
autonomy is being thought of at a time 
when we are passing through ^  num
ber of problems.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: That is our 
look-out to rectify those problems. We 
are the financing authority, we shall 
look into the problems but may I 
know what apprehension you have in 
your mind?

SHRI PATIL PUTAPPA: Sir, let
him spell out what are those problems. 
What he requires for consolidating the 
library; whether it is the question of 
money allotment or staff or staffing 
pattern. There are now 700 people 
working on the National Library. Is 
that staff enough and what is actually 
being done there and how long would 
he take to consolidate the functioning 
of the National Library, the arrears 
of the work to be brought up to date— 
what he would require so that he can 
put matters right.

SHRI M. N. NAGRAJ: The present 
sanctioned staff of the library is 700 
persons but the number of persons 
actually on the pay roll is nearly 600. 
Of this 600 persons, at least 150 came 
in position only in the last few months,
i.e in the recent past and their effec
tiveness has not been felt yet.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAK^RA- 
BARTI: Do you mean to say that up 
to the end of the last year you work
ed with only three hundred people 
against the sanctioned strength o* 700?

SHRI M. N. NAGRAJ: The present 
sanctioned staff is 700. The number 
of persons on the pay roll is nearly 
600. In August 1962 our sanctioned 
staff was 505.

DR RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: How many persons you had 
last year at the beginning of 1972?

SHRI >M. N< NAGRAJ: In the b a n 
ning of 1970-71 we had only 529 per
sons 6f Which lefts than 500 or near

about 450 were in the pay roll in the 
beginning of 1971*72. The effectiveneos 
of these individuals who joined alter 
that has not yet been felt in the work 
of the National Library.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I do not see why 
we are discussing these things. This 
is in relation to the internal adminis
tration of the National Library.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: But these points should be 
hammered out. We were under the 
impression that so long all the 700 
people were there and they are not 
capable of managing the library. Now 
this statement has_come from the wit
ness and if there are 450 men work
ing there up to the t>eginning of 1972, 
how can we expect that the Library 
would be working well?

MR. CHAIRMAN: The sphere of
work of this Committee is strictly 
limited to the Bill itself. I know the 
members of the Committee might be 
agitated over certain difficulties of the 
employees but I do not see how we 
in this Committee can go into those 
matters. I know this matter ought to 
be clarified. The administration of the 
Library and the Minister and Deputy 
Minister are here and they can be told 
to give us a very clear idea as to what 
exactly is the position.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BAllTI: My appeal to you, Sir, is to 
get the information from the authori
ties of the Library. What was the 
number of actual staff during the 
period of 1971-72? If the Committe€ 
wishes to „do so. after we have dis
posed of the evidence We can ask for 
explanation.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: I think it is 
relevant in the sense that we are dis
cussing that the work of the National 
Library has deteriorated. So, an auto
nomous status might improve things. 
That is what the Bill is for. Now, we 
would naturally like to know the diffi
culties about the indexing, cataloging, 
keeping of books, etc. Are they be
cause Librarian is not there, or funds
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or staff are not there? Or, is it the 
position that everything is there. If 
it is made autonomous things will im
prove? It is now stated that 700 men 
arc not there. We should have the 
details. Why should we discuss auto
nomy at all unless it improves 
matters?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Ghosh, you 
have had your say. I wish to remind 
the members again that this is not the 
forum, at this moment, particularly 
for finding out facts which may very 
well be relevant to the Committee be
fore it makes up its mind in any way 
and. nobody including the witness, as 
far as I could make out, is authorita
tively in a position to answer. The 
Committee has every right to find 
facts which are necessary before we 
make up our mind. The Committee 
is at liberty to ask .the department to 
give materials. If the Committee so 
chooses, we can even before we dis
perse make another visit to the Na- 
tinoal Library and find out so many 
other things about which questions 
and doubts have accumulated in the 
minds of the members. But this is 
not a forum where polemic discussion 
can be brought in the picture. In so 
far as witnesses are concerned, if they 
were in full possession of all the facts 
authoritatively attested, I think that 
would not help. There will be ques
tions and counter-questions. I would 
suggest in all humility that the Com
mittee, if it so chooses, may ask the 
Secretariat to arrange for another 
visit to the National Library after the 
evidence is disposed of. If there are 
questions in regard to the Bill and in 
regard to the views of the witness 
about the Bill, then they may be asked.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: Sir, the
issue is whether it should have an 
autonomous status or not. I say, auto
nomous status would improve thing. 
We have the witness in the box who 
is trying to project his argument that 
autonomy will not improve tfeings.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Though I am a 
tentative Chairman, I have given a 
ruling. The honourable members will

please remember that there would be 
many occasions for the committee to 
sit down and there will be occasions 
when from Government and other 
sources we shall find out more mate
rials to check and counter-check 
things. This is a stage where we are 
collecting evidence. This is not a 
stage where we can enter into a dis
cussion. Later we will have plenty of 
opportunities. Since we are in Cal
cutta, the venue o.f the National Lib
rary, we have already paid a hurried 
visit to the National Library. Since 
many questions and doubts have ac
cumulated in the minds of the mem
bers, if it is possible, Government may 
arrange another visit for authoritative 
information being collected. We nave 
to proceed according to the schedule.
If the honourable members have any ' 
very relevant question to ask, they 
may do so.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: In all 
fairness to the witness the feeling 
should not go home that for all the 
acts of commission and omission over 
the year^ these persons are responsi
ble.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let us draw i  
veil over this matter.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: May 
we know the reaction of the witness 
to the recommendations made by the 
Jha Committee?

SHRI M. N. NAGARAJ: It was very 
welL received by the library and in 
early 1970 when the Ministry sanction
ed money for a number of projects, we 
were very happy that Government had 
taken action, but unfortunately, for 
various reasons from 1970 onwards we 
did not have a Librarian. The Minis
try sanctioned a certain amount of 
money, but the recommendations that 
were included in Jha Committee re
port could not be processed and sent 
on to Delhi. But at some stage when 
we had a Librarian temporarily some 
of the projects got through. From 
1962 till the time the Jha Committee 
recommendations were actually imple
mented—-during the Third Plan most 
of the Government departments ex
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panded but we could not do so. There 
was ban on recruitment of staff. I 
want to mention, though it is not di
rectly relevant, that few posts were 
sanctioned after 1964 when the Deli
very of Books Act came into effect. 
At that time Library appointed a 
few persons knowing the Indian lan
guages. As collections grew, activi
ties of the division had to grow. In 
1962 Government sanctioned a few 
posts but for various reasons we 
could not fill them up. A person 
knowing Malayalam had to be rec
ruited on a scale of Rs. 160/- and 
Government rules are that we have 
to recruit them from local employ
ment exchanges which could not sup
ply such a person. If the Librarian 
is given full powers he can appeal 
to Government that Recruitment of 
people knowing Malayalam is not 
possible from the Calcutta market.
SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: What 
is your reaction to the recommenda
tions made by Government so far as 
autonomy is concerned?

SHRj M. N. NAGARAJ: We are in 
favour of that. For some valid rea
sons it is not possible for Govern
ment to accept or implement recom
mendation of Jha Committee in so 
faT as delegated autonomy is concern
ed. It is perhaps for this reason the 
question of statutory autonomy comes 
in.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: There
was a Library Council comprising 12 
members and Committee
knew it full well. In spite of that it 
recommended for governing body 
having full powers of autonomy. 
What is your opinion in regard to 
that?

SHRI M. N. NAGARAJ: Till 1962 
we had a Governing Council. When 
the Library was declared as Head 
of a Department and delegation of 
powers came to the Librarian, powers 
of the Governing Council were taken 
over by the Librarian and then Ad
visory Council continued to function. 
Even then Advisory Council could 
not meet for various reaeons from 
1969 to 1973. Very rightly-Advi- 
sory Council deposed before the 
Jha Committee that their functions 
were superfluous. In the earlier 
years even staff sanction and budget 
grants had to be approved by Gov
erning Council till 1962. It is only 
after 1962 that this Advisory Council 
came in.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you. If 
you want to say anything more or 
if you# want to supplement your 
statement further, you can send this 
to us.

(The witnesses then withdrew)
J

m. Bengal Library Association, Calcutta

Spokesmen:
1. Shri B. P. Mookerjee.
2. Shri P. Roychaudhury.
3. Shri S. Banerjee.

. i
4. Shri B. Banerjee.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You may please 
note that your evidence shall be 
treated as public and is liable to be 

published, unless you specifically de
sire ; that all or any part of the evi
dence given by you is to be treated as 
confidential. Even > though your 
evidence is to be treated as 
confidential such evidence is liable to

be mad$ available to the Members of 
Parliament.

SHR| , P .., ROYdHAyDHURY:' We 
have already submit^d pur memo
randum but we would like to a£d a 
few words. National Library is an 
organisation of national importance
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and such an organisation of national 
importance should remain under the 
control of Government. The main 
objective is to find national literary 
wealth. This is also a national centre 
for bibliographic activities. It is a 
centre which organises different inter
national cooperative activities. It 
conducts research, Eurvey on 
the library activities of our 
country. Such an organisation of 
national importance should be under 
the control of Government. We 
cannot think of national treasury 
under an autonomous board. So also 
we cannot think of national cultural 
treasury in the hands of an autono
mous organisation. It should be under 
the direct control of the Government. 
This Bill also contradicts the social 
policy of the Government. We can 
say that this de-nationalisation of 
Government-controlled institution is 
definitely against the policy of na
tionalisation of many private organi
sations and institutions which are 
suffering from various maladies. Hero 
we find that an organisation which is 
running for the last twenty-five years 
under the control of our National 
Government and which was also 
running under the control of th® 
British Government since its incep
tion in 1923 is now going to be in the 
hands of an autonomous body. Gov
ernment is now thinking of changing 
the administrative set up. Further, it 
is stated in the Objects and Reasons 
of the Bill that it has been drafted in 
accordance with the recommendation 
of the Jha Committee. The Report 
of the Jha Committee is not a public 
document, but as a professional body 
we have gone through the recommen
dations and we find that they have 
clearly stated that they did not prefer 
statutory autonomy. They prefer 
delegated autonom.. Of course there 
i$ lot of controversy about delegated 
autonomy. At the same time we like 
to tell you that there are two more 
important recommendations and 
while drafting this Bill Government 
had never taken consideration to those 
recommendations. In- 1057 Govern
ment of India appointed an Advisory

■ f t ! .  ’ . . . . ' ' ’ ' I * ' • f . ' '

Committee for Library. Again ttiere 
is a working Group of Libraries 
appointed by the Planning Commis

sion. These two Groups categorically 
recommended that the public library 
services of our country should be 
under the control of the Government. 
When this is the recommendation we 
find that the top most library of our 
country, the most important library 
which preserves nation’s cultural 
wealth, Government is changing its 
policy regarding that librsify, they 
are trying to hand over it to an auto
nomous Board. At the same time, we 
like to tell you what actually we 
mean by delegated autonomy. We 
have to take the spirit of the Jlia 
Comjnittee!s Recommendation in this 
connection. According to' that Com
mittee there is no actual P&yer with 
the Jocal administration ana, they 
have to depend upon the recommend*, 
tion and approval of the Central Gov
ernment. They wanted that there 
should be som* autonomy for local 
administration. We also like to tell 
you that the status of the national 
library may be improved. At present 
the status is that it is subordinate'to 
the department of Culture and as a 
result whenever a decision is taken by 
the local administration it has to be 
forwarded to the. Ministry of Educa- , 
tion and it takes lot of . time for 
receiving approval of the Ministry; If . 
the status is improved, if it is attached \ 
to Government of India or if it is 
put directly under a newly created 
department then we will be able to 
overcome all the problems. Sir, the 
real roots of present maladies and ills 
are not properly understood. Actually 
the National Library which is now 
functioning in Calcutta, we should say . 
that is the National Library of the 
entire country, is functioning as a 
super library and it is not a National 
Library. If we have a proper pers-

• pective, if. we consider that, we want 
to develop the National Library  ̂ that 
can be xlone within Government pet 
up. . I would like to give some facts. . 
The National Library spent during the 

. last 6/7 years . rupees 4; tq <4,5 JaJche * 
for ;purchase o.f docuwentfi^j.vE^'^t^
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are attached to some university and 
we know that even a university, 
library spends more than Rs. 4|5 lakhs 
for purchase of documents. Is it not 
lack of, proper understanding on the 
part of the Government about the rple, 
aboyt the importance of the National 
Library? This attitude has also been 
reflected by another point. The Na
tional Library has been treated as a 
subordinate office under the depart
ment of Culture. It has also been re
flected by lack of proper management 
policy—it has not been , properly 
managed on scientific lines. I give 
some examples. Some years back the 
National Library took a project of 
bibliographic activities, the first 
volume was published but then Gov
ernment dew^d that this bibliogra
phic activity should be handed ov«r 
to , scholars. After &/10 years 
nothing bas been done and I think 
Government is now thinking that the 
project should be given to the Lib
rary staff. So, Sir, we find that Gov
ernment is very inconsistent in their 
policy about the National Library. 
Then I quote something about the 
working of different countries in the 
world. In almost all the countries of 
the world except Great Britain 
where British Museum has a separate 
tradition these are administered and 
controlled by the Government. Even 
in the developing countries, even in 
the non^sociajist countries where pri
vate entrepreneurship is not en
couraged, these are unde  ̂ the Gov
ernment. If they can rather better 
service within the administrative set 
up of Government, we fail to under
stand why it is not possible here. At 
the same time we find that the 
functioning of the autonomous Bodies 
in our country is not at all satisfactory 
and as I don’t know why Government 
is thinking that by making it autono
mous functioning will be speedy and 
smooth. At the same time there will 
be red-tapism. What is the real 

picture of the autonomous Boards. 
Are we satisfied with the CSIR? Are 
we satisfied with the functioning of
I.C.A.R. Are we satisfied with our 
different universities? No, Sir, Even

in some cases we can say the working 
of the autonomous Boards is worse 
than Government organisation. At the 
same time, we say that autonomy 
suggested here in not a real one. Gov
ernment is shirking the responsibili
ties. After 25 years of maladise for 
which Government is responsible all 
on a sudden Government has come to 
shirk its responsibility and trying to 
shift it to the autonomous Board. At 
the same time if w* go through the 
Bill we find that it is an attempt to 
control the Library indirectly. So, 
the autonomy is not real. I say, 
Government is not serious about 
autonomy also. They are suffering 
from a confused thinking because we 
can say it is not consistent. Then by 
autonomy some other problems also 
will be created. I would tell you 
what those problems are.

MR. CHAIRMAN: May I suggest 
that the hon. witness may submit a 
supplementary note and give some 
time to Members to put questions to 
him? Could you submit a written 
memorandum by to-morrow when you 
can come again and when we will ask 
you questions? If you supply a written 
memorandum it will be helpful. 
Suppose I would ask you whether 
have you been in a position to read 
fairly carefully the Review Com
mittee’s report or the Jha Commit
tee's Report?

SHRI P. ROYCHAUDHURY: Yes, 
Sir

MR. CHAIRMAN: Have you
noticed there that the Jha Commit
tee’s intention has been to see that 
the National Library is administered 
under the over-all supervision of the 
Government and Parliament as an 
autonomous body so that self-respect
ing and imaginative scholars < and 

people of that sort could be repre
sented on that kind of body?

SHRI P. ROYCHAUDHURY: Yes, 
Sir.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I do not think you 
will be opposed to the principle of 
better organisation by the participa
tion in administration of representa
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tives ot intellectual* and such 
persons?

SHRI P. ROYCHAUDHURY: No, 
not at all.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I have heard you 
saying that you do not like the idea 
of the Government treating the Na
tional Library as a subordinate orga
nisation of the Education Ministry. 
That is, you would like to maintain 
its high level character so that con
tact with the government could be 
made at that high level.

SHRI P. ROYCHAUDHURY: Yes, 
Sir. -

MR. CHAIRMAN: Even then you 
have said that the Bill subverts the 
intention of the Jha Committee. Per
haps you have not noticed that 
properly. I am speaking from the 
record. The Government has indi
cated the Jha Committee's concept of 
autonomy. If it is to be given legal 
shape it requires several alternative 
propositions one is the registration of 
National Library as a separate society 
as the Council of Scientific and Indus
trial Research is, or by a statute 
which is the intention of the present 
government or by another commission. 
It is from that angle that the Govern
ment has proposed this Bill and it is 
under the consideration of Parliament. 
Now, we can improve upon the provi
sions of the Bill to satisfy the recom
mendations of the Jha Committee. 
Now, if the basic recommendation of 
the Jha Committee regarding the 
direction of the Library is something 
which meets with your approval then 
would it not be appropriate for the 
Parliament to accept that and come 
forward, with a system in order that 
we can improve the formulation of 
this Bill and objectives of the Jha 
Committee? On that could we count 
upon your co-operation?

SHRI P. ROYCHAUDHURY- Yes, 
Sir.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Then I would
like you to send us whatever sugges
tions you have to improve upon this 
Bill to make it a genuine operative 
orovision.

SHRI P. ROYCHAUDHURY: Sir, 
if we are asked to improve upon the 
provisions of this Bill then we have 
to accept the problems in regard to 
the administration of the Library by 
an autonomous board. We are also 
interested in the improvement of the 

National Library.

MR. CHAIRMAN: For what do you 
object to an autonomous organisation? 
Is it due to the fact that you fear that 
the terms and conditions of the 
employees will be changed or is it 
because of your fear which you have 
indicated that an autonomous body 
will not bs able to work efficiently?

SHRI P. ROYCHAUDHURY: We 
are not much 'concerned with the 
problems of the employees because 
they have got National Library Em

ployees Association. We are 
interested in the improvement of 
service of the Natitmal Library 
because the National Library is the 
property of the entire nation. It 
should serve the entire country. We 
want that improvement may be made 
definitely by the Government admin
istrators. How that can be done? Let 
there be a Department of libraries 
under the Government of India. The 
status of the National Library should 
be raised to that of an Department of 
the Government. Let there be proper 
financial provisions for the improve

ment of the National Library. Let 
there be some such schemes by which 
the National Library can go on with 
its different activities within country 
and also can establish relations with 
other libraries and co-operate with the 
other libraries of ther countries of the 
world. So, if you ask me to suggest 
and improve upon the Bill I regret it 
is not possible for us as the Bill sug
gest statutory autonomy and that 

actual improvement will not be possi
ble within the jurisdiction of the 
Parliament because if it is an autono
mous body then the annual report will 
not be placed in the Pariament.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: No. 
the report can be placed.
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SHRI ^ROYCHAUDHURY; Only 
audited report will be placed not the 
annual report. We want that the 
National Library should be under the 
direct control of the Government so 
that the efitire members of the Par
liament can watch the activities of 
the National Library and if there is 
any mistake and anything wrong they 
can easily raise a question in the 
Parliament.

MR.. CHAIRMAN: You see, the 
University Grants Commission is an 
autonomous body of a very high dis
tinction and the Government loofcs on 
it with great respect. The reports of 
the U.G.C. also are always discussed 
in Parliament. So there cannot be 
any misapprehension about the posi
tion of the National Library. The 
Government has indicated, and the 
Education Minister is here also, that 
the National Library would obviously 
be under the eyes of Parliament. If 
the U.G.C. which is an autonomous 
l * !y  directly connected with the Gov- 
Afcfment function with a high level of 
operating efficiency then the National 
Library might conceivably do so. So 
far as report to Parliament is con
cerned there is a clause in the Bill 
which deals with that viz., clause 24.

SHRI S. A. SHAMIM: I would like 
to know from the honourable witness 
as to why they are objecting to this 
autonomous character being granted 
to the National Library. Your state
ment appears to be self-contradictory 
in as much as that you said that the 
workings of . the National Library 
deteriorated under the Government 
control and at the same time unlike 
me your faith in the Government has 
not been completely exhausted be-̂  
cause you do not want an autonomous 
body. We want to kntSto precisely the 
e^act reasons why the' autonomous 
body wiff not be an i4deal ohe?

National Library should be a na
tional asset. . How do you say that 
once It becomes an autonomous body, 
it is completely devoid of Government

control. This autonomous body should 
naturally be within the framework of 
the autonomous character giveir by 
the Parliament and the Government.

SHRI P. ROYCHAUDfiURY: We 
have to take first whit is the objec
tive of the National Library. The ob
jective of the National Library is to 
collect and preserve the nation’s 
culture and literature which are the 
most precious wealth of the country. 
So, in such an organisation, definitely 
the security of the docifment is an 
important factor. The documents 
should be preserved not only for the 
present generation, but also for the 
posterity. Government is the most 
comprehensive and lasting social insti
tution—so far as in the history of 
mankind is concerned—for taking the 
responsibility of this wealth. So, if 
this responsibility is handed over to 
an organisation other than the Gov

ernment then people’s mind would be 
more suspicious about its future. Let 
us take the National Archive. Na
tional Archives is an important orga
nisation because they preserve 
important archial materials of the 
country and that is why Government 

did not consider it to be handed over 
to an autonomous body. We know 
that different Government organisa
tions are not functioning well—as in 
the case of National Library—we know 
there are mqjadies and ills. Still I 
think, it would be appropriate that 
Government should come forward to 
rectify these ills instead of handing 
them over to autonomous body. *

i*
-  * MR. CHAIRMAN: Prom your state

ment it is evident that you are not in 
favour of autonomous ajdministration 
for the National Library because you 
fear that national assets in the shape 
of books will not be secured at the 
hands of autonomous administration. 
You have greater faith in Government 
for its supervision and control. As I 
have already sa}d, you may please 
submit your supplementary memoran
dum today if you have got substantial , 
ideas. *
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PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: If you 

can submit your supplementary 
memorandum by this evening then 
there will be a chance for the 
honourable members to meet you 
again tomorrow and ask further clari
fications on any point they like. ^

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI; As an academician I would 
like—because you are also in the 
teaching profession—to seek your 
opinion in the academic field, in the 
sense that when we are talking about 
the nationalisation of coal and steel 
industry instead of thinking the na
tionalisation of academies, whether 
a national council may be formed by 
the eminent personalities and techni
cal persons. When the required funds 
will be provided by the Central 
Government then what is your actual 
opposition against autonomy?

SHRI P. ROYCHAUDHURY: You 
have raised a very important point. It 
is true that in the case of selection 
of reading materials, definitely, there 
should be an autonomy, but in the 
administration side there should be 
Government control.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Do you suggest that all the 
universities in the country are to be 
taken over by the Government.

SHRI P. ROYCHAUDHURY: Sure
ly. • i

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Are you not asking for any 
syndicate or Governing Body?

SHRI P. ROYCHAUDHURY: Yes, I 
do. There should be some liberty. Al
ready there are four universities 
functioning under the Central Gov
ernment.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: But there are I.I.Ts. and 
some other big institutions which are 
run by the statutory bodies.

SHRI P. ROYCHOUDHURY: Though 
they are run by the statutory bodies 
still Government have some control 
over them in respect of the financial 
matters. I want that all the univer-t 
sities should be taken over by the 
Government of India, but at the same 
time, in the academic matters there 
should be some liberties in the hands 
of the Syndicate.

SHRI S. A. SHAMIM; You cannot ‘ 
get things both ways.

SHRI P. ROYCHAUDHURY: I mean 
to say that there should be some li
berty in the hands of the Syndicate 
or something like that. It depend 
upon the attitude.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let the witnes
ses come tomorrow. The members 
will also have the opportunity of ask
ing questions for further clarifica
tion. In the meantime, the witnesses 
are giving us a supplementary memo
randum. Since the witnesses are giv
ing us an opportunity of hearing them 
again tomorrow We can postpone our 
discussion with them today. Thank 
you very much Mr. Roychoudhury.

(The witnesses then withdrew)

IV. Shri Nihar Ranjan Roy, Calcutta.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Ray, your 
evidence shall be treated as public 
and is liable to be published, unless 
y&u specifically desire that all or any 
part of the evidence given by you 
is tQ be treated as confidential. It 
£iall, however, be explained to the 
witness that even though you might 
deaire your evidence tp be treated as 
confidential such evidence is liable to 

^ b *  maria available to the Members

of Parliament.

Now we would like very much .to 
hear you a few words in regard to 

( the Bill and the objectives of the 
implementation in the manner as en
visaged in the Bill. After you have 
made initial statement, the Members 
of the Committee they desire 16 
ask you Questions for vnur raply.



SHRI NIHARRANJAN RAY: Mr. 
Chairman, Sir, before I come to the 
Bill itself, may I say a few words in 
general. Many words of criticism 
about the management of the Na
tional Library, are being written in 
the newspapers and voiced in public 
meetings. I would not go into this 
question at all, but I would like to 
point out one thing namely, 
whatever the faults and 
failures in the management and 
administration of the National Library, 
the main crux of the situation lies in 
being able to provide the kind of 
leadership that this National Library 
calls for. So long as Mr. Kesavan was 
there he built up this Library and 
gave it an image. It is from the time 
of his successors Mr. Muley, that the 
disintegration of the Library really 
started. Mr. Muley, unfortunately, 
could not look after the administration 
as carefully as necessary, since he was 
ill most of the time. Mr. Kesavan was 
not a scholar in the technical sense of 
the term; what he perhaps #lacked in 
scholarship, he made up in personality. 
The last Librarian was Mr. Kalia. 
There was another gentleman, one Mr. 
C* R. Banerjee, a knowledgeable man 
who could also look after the Library. 
Now the Government policy in regard 
rary, where technical librarianship is 
governed by the rules of the U.P.S.C. 
A national library is not a public lib
rary, where technical librariamtiip is 
a must. The main thing tfiat is neces- 
rary, where technical librarianship is 
larship and an image of high persona
lity. Now, the Government is so limit
ed in its powers that it cannot groom 
a national librarian. They cannot ask 
the U.P.S.C., say, five o** six years 
ahead, to build one up for national lib
rarian^ ip, and this is one of the main 
reasons why the National Library 
should be an autonomous body which 
can, whenever it wants, select a man 
three Or four years ahead, groom him 
up far four or five years, if neessary 
by sending him abroad for at least 
one or two years in a library like the 
British Museum so that when he

comes back he can take charge of It. 
But the very nature of government ad
ministration cannot do it, but an 
autonomous body can. That is the 
point I wanted to make. There is an
other thing. I have been told there 
is provision for a Director but not for 
a Librarian. My point is that the Di
rector himself may not be a technical 
man. But immediately below him 
there should be a technical man who 
should be the librarian with profes
sional qualification and experience. As 
proposed in the Bill, there would be 
a very wide gap so that if we do not 
have a librarian it would be rather 
diffiiilt. I have seen criticisms in 
papers that the Government did not 
take any notice of what is happening 
in the library. This is not true. The 
Government was quite aware of it. In 
1968 they appointed the Jha Com
mittee which was followed a year later 
by the Khosla Committee. What was 
not done was that the recommendations 
made by the Jha Committee were not 
given effect to, and the Khosla Com
mittee report was not a constructive 
report, to my mind. It was a critical 
report no doubt but not constructive. 
Kesavan was recalled for a second 

‘ term, but for a very short time, und 
he was doing very well, but accord
ing to government rules again, his 
term could not be extended. The 
Government could not do it but if it 
were an autonomous body, they could 
go on keeping Keiavan for another 
three or four years so that he could 
effect the kind of reorganisation which 
h? was making so successfully. If 
Kesavan can still be kept in service, 
by the Unesco, there is no reason why 
an autonomous body should not have 
been able to do it. But Government 
could not do it, as I said, the Gov
ernment is bound down by their own 
rule-5. This is one of the reasons why 
I am all in favour 0f autonomy of the 
National Library. I cannot help say
ing that all our lives we have argued 
in this regard for one objective, 
namely, that no cultural organisatibn 
should be a wing of government. I 

' do not see any reason why institu-/ ^



tions like the National Library or 
the National Museum should not be 
made into autonomous institutions. 
That was the policy of Maulana 
Azad. When I went through his 
speeches in Parliament on the 
National Akademic he made this point 
that no cultural organisation should 
be a wing of Government, they should 
all be autonomous and really autono
mous. But at the moment the need 
of the hour is a competent head with 
full powers. But where are you going 
to get that kind of man unless it is 
an autonomous body which can select 
a man, groom him up slowly and 
steadily to make a national librarian 
of the stature that he should have.

So far I have tried to impress upon 
you, Sir, why we need an autonomous 
National Library. In the present Bill 
which I have just cursorily glanced 
through, the objects of the National 
Library have not been made mani
festly clear. What i9 this National 
Library for? What is the nature of 
clientele this National Library is 
going to cater for? What is the posi
tion of this National Library in the 
hierarchy of libraries in India. We 
know that this library is included as 
a Book Delivery Act library and we 
hav(» two or three other Delivery Act 
libraries. But a Delivery Act library 
is not a copyright library. We have 
not stated in the Bill whether we want 
this National Library to be a copy
right library or not; we must make 
it clear whether we want it to be a 
copyright library. The Delivery Act 
does not necessarily make it a copy
right library and thi9 library possesses 
books and manuscripts which are not 
available anywhere else in India and 
I know of titles in this library which 
are not available even in the British 
Museum, Therefpre, this National 
Library must be treated as the peak 
of the library system in this country 
and it has to be declared as a copy
right libra^r,

The Bill says that the appointment 
of the Director will be made by Gov
ernment. So far as I-am concerned, I 
should think that the appointment

should be made by the Board subject 
to the approval by Government, if it 
is to be autonomous then the Board 
should be given the power of selec
tion, but, as I have said, subject to 
the approval by Government. So far 
Ert the three-tier system recommended 
in the Bill is concerned, I a*m some
what critical. According to the Bill 
there should be a Governing Council 
consisting of nine persons, 2 secretar
ies, U.G.C's one representative and all 
others are to be nominated. Then 
there should be an Executive Council. 
The function of the Executive Council, 
and the composition of the Council 
have not been spelt out. What are 
the powers of the Executive Council 
and what is the position of the Direc
tor in the Governing Council or in the 
Executive Council? These have not 
been made clear. Personally I should 
think a Governing Council of nine is 
a very small council. India is a vast 
country and in this National Library 
many more interests should be repre
sented. If it is to be autonomous the 
weight of ex-officio members and 
nominated members should be less 
than the members sent by represen
tative bodieG. In a vast country like 
India—even in the British Museum 
there is a Governing Council consist
ing of 25 members—in a tiny little 
country; in this sub-continental coun
try of which this is the National Lib
rary, a Council of "9 is a very small 
Council. To my mind—I can not give 
you the exact number, but the num
ber should be such as to be able to 
accommodate certain other important 
interests. For instance, a reprsenta- 
tive of the Indian Library Associa
tions, representatives from, at least, a 
few other States. If w* cannot repre
sent all the States, which is imposible, 
there must be representatives from, 
at least, ha&ift'^bzen or more States 
including of West Bengal, by
rotatlM? if necessary. A doubt has 
Mfefcfr fexpreroed that once it is auto- 

the Natidr\al Library may 
sfdftr from lack oT fiittmce. I believe 
it should be made statutory—there 
should be a statutory minimum grant 
stated in the Bill itself. Whenever
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necessary it can be enlarged, but there 
should be a minimum Statutory grant. 
About the book acquisition budget, I 
can tell you—that it is very low. It 
is only 5 lakhs. For a National Library 
a book budget of 5 lakhs is a very, 
very low figure. I can tell you that 
this Library which once used to 
subscribe to a very large number of 
foreign journals, these journals are 
no longer being subscribed because of 
lack of fund and the files are lacking 
in recent years. Not only that, Mr. 
Chairman, you must be knowing that 
of many journals reprints are now 
being issued, not only in the United 
States, but also in Great Britain and 
West Germany. It is very necessary 
to acquire those reprinta % There, 
whole series are being reprinted—all 
journals which are no longer avail
able-—and this National Library 
should be, at least, a place where all 
these reprints should be made avail
able. For this a 5 lakh budget is a 
ridiculously low figure. The book 
budget should be at least 15 lakhs, 
the book budget alone.

There has been some criticism, I 
have read in the papers, about the 
existing employees. They are afraid 
they may not have the same promo
tion opportunities as they are enjoy
ing today. On this point, I am not 
giving out any secret; I have it on 
public record that promotion should 
not be automatic. Because a man has 
put in service for a certain number of 
years, he should not have a claim to 
automatic promotion and I adhere to 
that principle. Therefore, I am not 
prepared to accept this criticism. They 
are also afraid, that there services in 
an autonomous body may be termi
nated at any time. This word ‘termi
nation’ mentioned in the Bill has 
created certain misgivings I have 
read that portion very carefully. What 
is intended is not actually termina
tion. The intention is something eiae,, 
but it ig not just the right word that 
ha9 been used. This fear can be taken 
away from the employees by only a 
sliffht twtot of the word or the phrase. 
They are also afraid that once it is

autonomous the Parliament will have 
no right to discuss what is being done 
in the National Library. This is not 
just true. There are academies and 
other autonomous bodies. Since the 
Government pays the money the 
Government or any Member of Par
liament will always have the right to 
bring the matter before the Parlia
ment and if it is made explicit in the 
will have every opportunity to discuss 
months of any given period the* 
National Library muit publish its 
report and the report must be placed 
before the Parliament, the Parliament 
will have every opportunity to discus? 
the report and go into the details of 
the administration. Therefore, this 
fear is also not justified. There has 
been so*mewhere some lack of public 
relations and these things have not 
been sufficiently explained to the local 
public here. Excus* my saying no. 
Mr. Chairman, this is a question of 
public relations which can easily be 
done.

Then there is another point in the 
Bill itself namely that the Govern
ment will have the right of vetoing 
any decision made by the Governing 
Council. Now, the vetoing power 
should rest with the Government, I 
believe but there must be limitations 
to this vetoing. These limitations 
have not been spelt out. If the budget 
for this year ii X, the Governing 
Council may increase it 10 times. 
Certainly, the Government shall have 
the power of vetoing. But if it is a 
general clause of vetoing any decision, 
then public will have a point of criti
cism.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Which clause do 
you refer to?

SHRI NIHAR RANJAN RAY: I
have not got a copy of the Bill. There 
is a clause—veto clause.

I have another suggestion to make. 
This is about the Chairman of the 
Governing Council. Certainly, 4W 
Government shall have the right to 
appoint the Chairman of the Govern-
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Ing Council. There ifl no doubt about 
it But there are other autonomous 
bodiee in this city of Calcutta where 
Government gives the entire money, 
but in such bodies the Governor of 
the State is the ex-officio Chairman. 
He is also the ex-officio Chancellor of 
almost all the universities in the 
State. I do not gee any reason why 
the Governor should not be made the 
Chairman of the Governing Council. 
These are the general remarks that I 
wanted to make.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: I would like 
to know if it is a fact that almost all 
the national libraries of other coun
tries are directly controlled by Gov
ernment. If it is »30, what is there to 
prevent this National Library from 
being a Government institution. 
Secondly, if it becomes an autonomous 
body then why Government have the 
right to appoint the Chairman of the 
Council or to nominate anybody. 
Governing Council can be formed by 
representatives from different cultural 
institutions. Seminar representatives 
are there. Government’s obligation 
should be to provide finance. If it is 
done then'the minimum autonomy can 
be understood. Otherwise it seems 
to be quite contradictory and self- 
defeating. If you say Governor is to 
be ex-officio Chairman of the National 
Library then why not the President 
of India be made ex-officio Chairman 
of the Governing Body since this is a 
National Library. Government 
should have no say in the matter of 
administration excepting providing 
finance and describing the general 
policy of the National Lixbrary. Or, 
Government should run it fully— 
administratively, financially and 
otherwise; some sort of Advisor^ 
Body might be there to serve diffetftftt 
cultural and research interests, to 
time and again bring this matter 
before the Parliament no that the 
country is given the benefit of know
ing its activities. *

SHRI NIHAR RANJAN RAY: The 
question is too long. If I cannot reply 
to ' them an ad seriatim I hope to be 
excused-

I have same first-hand knowledge 
of Natiorlal Libraries almost all over 
the world. It is not a fact that all 
National Libraries are administered 
directly by Government. British 
Museum is the National Library of 
the British people. It is an autono
mous institution, not run by  Govern
ment. But Library of the Congress (of 
USA) is a Government library because 
it is the Library of their Congress, 
and as the Library of the Congress it 
is a National Library. Its National 
Library status is thus a secondary 
status— its primary status being that 
of a Library of the Congress. In West 
European countries most National 
Libraries are autonomous bodies. In 
East European countries, for obvious 
reasons these are all National institu
tions run by Government themselves. 
I have no knowledge of National 
Libraries in Latin American countries. 
But majority of the National Libraries 
in Europe are autonomous. They are 
not wings of the Ministry of Educa
tion and Culture or of any other 
Ministry.

Secondly, the reason for suggesting 
ex-officio chairman is that if he is an 
ex-officio chairman he is not appoint
ed by Government, it may be built 
in the Statute that Governor will 
be the ex-officio Chairman, just as he 
is ex-officio Chancellor of universi
ties. The President of India should 
not be dragged in; he is only a 
visitor in the universities. 
We should not drag in the exalted 
position of the President in this man
ner. As regard nomination by Govt. 
I am afraid I cannot agree with him 
that there should be no nomination 
by Govt. Govt, will be providing the 
funds and it is only logical that they 
must have their watch dogs—Finan
cial Adviser of the Ministry of Fin
ance or the Secretary of the Ministry 
of Culture or the Ministry of Edu
cation. These nominations must be 
there. Where Govt. pays rate-payers 
money to any institutions, Govt, must 
retain certain powers to look into the 
affairs of the organisation, but I.must 
repeat tbat th* welghtage ex-officio
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members must be less than that of 
the members from the public,

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: According to your proposal if 
the Governor—by which I hope you 
mean the Governor of West Bengal— 
is made ex-officio chairman of the 
Governing Council^ then it will lose 
its national character. Other States 
may raise serious objection by saying 
that their Governors also are equally 
entitled to be the Chairman by rota
tion. What have you got to say with 
regard to this?

SHRI NIHAR RANJAN RAY: I 
think I did not exactly say Governor 
of West Bengal. I said, the Governor 
should be the ex-officio Chairman; 
which Governor I did not mention. 
Let me make myself clear. I kept 
this open for you to judge which 
Governor should be appointed ex

officio Chairman or whether it should 
be by rotation or whether he should 
be from the eastern region—I leave 
these to you. But I want to make it 
clear that the Chairman should be ex
officio and for the sake of convenience 
who can have the ex-officio status? 
Naturally the Governor. And if it is 
done by rotation I have not the sligh
test objection. For the sake of con
venience you may confine it to the 
eastern states so that he can come 
and attend the meetings. We must 
take into account that the Governing 
Council must meet at least once a 
month if it has to be an active Body 
and therefore the question of con
venience is there. Ex-officio Chairman 
should be such a Governor who can 
come to Calcutta as often as neces
sary.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI; The honourable witness men
tioned that proper publicity wa* not 
given to allay the fears of the em
ployees. What is his opinion regard
ing the fear if the employees and 
gazetted officers enjoying higher sta
tus in our social life come under the 
service of the Board? And my second

point is, as the witness has mentioned 
that a statutory Body or an autono
mous Body will function properly if 
it is given statutory grant. I think he 
it is given statutory grant. I think he 
grant for universities, but due to price 
index jumping like anything it is 
happening that in almost all the uni
versities the professors and teachers 
do not know whether they will get 
their salary on the first day of the 
month. So, what is your opnion re
garding statutory grant and the func
tions between autonomous E^dy and 
Govt, so far as fihance is concerned?

SHRI NIHAR RANJAN RAY; I 
welcome both the questions. Answer 
to the first question will be a subjec
tive one-----

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BATI: It is not subjective but it is 
objective. In the marriage market if 
a person holds a class II post under 
Govt, and draws a salary of Rs. 350/
he is looked to be a prospective groom 
compared to a person working in a 
bank drawing thousand rupees. This 
has also to be taken into account.

SHRI NIHAR RANJAN RAY; Per
sonally I am not prepared to make 
concession of that kind, that Govern
ment servants hold a higher social 
status than others. That is why I 
said that my answer would be sub
jective. I do not accept that position, 
I have never accepted that position in 
my life and if our society has this 
kind of value it should be attacked 
from right, left, front and back. Then 
the second question is about finance. 
I £m slightly critical of what is hap
pening in the universities of West 
Bengal. I have been away for about
9 years but I spent 38 years at the 
Calcutta University and I am not sure 
that money is not mis-spent. In many 
of our universities I have direct 
knowledge that funds provided by the 
U. G. C. for instance is being misspent. 
I b*ve a feeling that if I have pleaded 
for an increase, 3 or 4 times increase 
in the book budget, there shall cer
tainly be inferease in other heads too.
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and this w ill be takon into account 
u lien  a statutory grant is built into 
The statute itself.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: The
experience of some of the universities 
is the main point to be clarified by the 
honourable witness. The experience 
in many of the universities has been 
that when statutory grant is fixed it 
is considered adequate by all people 
but then within a few y^ars that 
rrant instead of being an advantage 
to that institution becomes the maxi
mum which the Govt, does not ordi

narily give. Whereas, if no statu
tory grant is fixed and the responsi
bility remains with the Govt, that 
certain objectives have to be fulfilled 
then the grant keeps on increasing— 
that is the main fear. We would be 
grateful if you give example. In Patna 
university statutory grant was fixed. 
After that no further increase in the 
grant was made. Expenditure went 
op increasing and the university went 
into debt. Govt, officers said, ‘we 
won't give you more money’, UGC. 
gave them grant and they Bfted that 
grant and ran into debts. Now this 
fear has been voiced that if there J3 
a statutory grant it may look nice at 
the moment but Parliament will not 
bp revising that figure regularly—it 
may become the maximum rather than 
the minimum.

i
SHRI NIHAR RANJAN RAY: I 

rp?nt 9 years in Parliament and I 
still retain my admiration for our 
parliamentary system. Our parlia
mentary system is not so unresponsive
10 popular demand. But a strong case 
must be made out. You mentioned 
the case of Patna University. As 
VP mater of Education you must be 
knowing that how our Universities 
play with their money, and who does 
not know that in every annual budget 
of every university there are hidden 
moneys. But I am not going into all 
that.

Sir. the prices of books and jour
n a l have gone up six times or eight 
times and prices have gone up in

tvery sphere of life and, therefore, 
while making minimum statutory 
grant it should be fixed vevy very 
liberally taking at least a perspective 
Pxin for 10 years.

SHRI S. A. SHAM1M; Going thr'Higb 
a hi*mber of memoranda ^nd during 
our stay here in Calcutta we have 
felt that in Bengal, the people have 
shown great resistance against an 
autonomous board. I would li&a to 
W jw from you as to what could be 
the reasons for this apar* ftom tne 
lack of the publicity by Education 
Ministry?

SHRI NIHAR RANJAN RAY: I do 
net think that it is the business of the 
.Education Ministry; it is somebody 
else’b business.

SI1RI S. A. SHAMIM: We find that 
tiiere is a strong determination on the 
part of everybody who appeared be- 
fere this Committee that they must 
ve îst thig autonomous character of 
the Library. What can be the .rea
sons? Somebody said that lowering 
of status is the reason. But th-2 cor
rect thing would be the sense of secu
rity. The Government employees) 
might feel insecure if th® National - 
Library is given an autonon'ous sta
tus. I think you will agree with me 
that in the present social set up in 
which we are living a person who 
get* two square meals a day is con
sidered to be more respectable than 
ihofe intellectuals who do not get two 
square meals a day. For this reason 
the question of security of service 
comet in this case. How are you 
going to allay that /fear?

SHRI NIHAR RANJAN RAY: So far 
as the question of security is concern
ed, I believe that the kind of security 
In Government Service which obtains 
today is a very unhealthy one. Nobody 
should feel secured for the rest of 
one’s life. This kind of security is an 
evil, but please leave out my personal 
social philosophy. In the world that 
we live today, even in th* private 
sector it is not easy today to fire one
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at will. It /cannot be done 10 or 15 
years ago, perhaps it could be. It is 
almost impossible to-day. In the pub
lic undertakings you cannot touch 
any officer. Even in the private under
takings it is not so easy unless is 
a daily-wage labour, ffettfefore, the 
question of security z&o&b not come 
into the picture at all. ' Hie Educa
tion Minister is here and tie itnws, I 
have also been connected with many 
academic institutions. I do not know 
of any single individual who if he 
was found guilty he could just be got 
rid of at one’s will. You have to go 
to the court and you have to prove it 
there and to prove something is not 
very easy. Therefore, this question of 
security is not just there.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: May I know your opinion on 
the business of the Indian Statisfical 
Institute as to why the Government 
went ahead and took over a part of 
the organisation which has been so 
laboriously built by one individual 
Mr. Mahalanobis and made half of its 
employees Government Employees?

SHRI NIHAR RANJAN RAY: Mr. 
Chairman. Siry I must seek your per
mission before I answer this question. 
I know perhaps a little more about 
the Indian Statistical Institute than 
the Member does. As I have signed 
the oath paper I cannot say things 
which will be made public.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: A sug
gestion was made by the honourable 
member Shri Niren Ghosh about 
associating the President. How would 
you react to the proposal of making 
the. President the visitor of the Natio
nal Library?

SHRI NIHAR RANJAN RAY: Most 
welcome.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Ray, we
thank you very much for your ex
tremely significant evidence.

SHRI NIHAR RANJAN RAY: I am 
also thankful to Mr. Chairman and 
the Members of the Joint Committee 
for giving me a patient hearing.

(The witness then withdrew.)

V. Shri Karuna Krishna Brahmachari, Calcutta

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Brahmachari, 
your evidence shall be treated as pub
lic and is liable to be published unless 
you specifically desire that all or any 
part of the evidence given by you is 
to be treated as confidential. It shall, 
however, be explained to the witness 
that even though you might desire 
that your evidence to be treated as 
confidential such evidence is liable to 
be made available to the members of 
Parliament.

.Do you want to say anything in re
gard to the proposed Bill on the Na
tional Library?

SHRI KARUNA KRISHNA BRAH- 
MACHARI: I have set forth my views 

issue in my memorandum*

MR. CHAIRMAN: Then you do not 
like to say anything. Now the mem
bers will put questions to you for 
getting further clarification.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: For how many years you are 
using the National Library as a rea
der?

SHRI KARUNA KRISHNA BRAII- 
MACHARI: I have been using the help 
of the National Library, as a reader, 
for the last five years. :

* '
DR. RAJAT KUMAR CIIAKRA- 

BARTI; What are the main difficul
ties in regard to the requisition of 
books or what is the time taken bet
ween the requisition and actual get
ting of books or whether it, is com
fortable or uncomfortable t6 sit and 
re&4 other things there or whether
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you do other works between that 
period—can you give us your views?

SHRI KARUNA KRISHNA BRAH- 
M A CHARI: I have experienced no 
such difficulties. Every time I receiv
ed help from different officers and em
ployees in various ways.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: How much time it takes for 
having a book after placing the re
quisition?

SHRI KARUNA KRISHNA BRAH- 
MACHARI: With half an hour's time 
I generally get my books.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: What do you feel about the 
condition of the reading room—where 
dc you generally take your seat?

SHRI KARUNA KRISHNA BRAH- 
MACHARI: I sit in the balcony of the 
reading room of the Library.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What is vour sub
ject of research?

SHRI KARUNA KRISHNA BRAH- 
MACHARI: Indian Philosophy.

MR. CHAIRMAN; Are you a regu
lar reader of the National Library?

SHRI KARUNA KRISHNA BRAH- 
MACHARI: Yes Sir. I have complet
ed my Ph.D. thesis.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Did you have any 
oi p̂titî n to go to the Librarian or some 
other high officials of the Library to 
secure assistance in regard to the 
kind of books which you had to con
sult or similar other things? Did you 
have any reason to secure advice of 
the officers of the Library to help you 
in the context of your research you 
generally need?

SHRI KARUNA KRISHNA BRAH- 
MACHARI: Yes, Sir.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very 
much.

(The Committee adjourned at 13-00 
hours to meet again at 15.00 hours).

(The Committee re-assembled ot 
1500 hours).

VI. Shri Gajendra Kumar Mitra, Editor, Katha Sahitya, Calcutta

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Mitra. before 
the members of the Committee ask 
you questions, you may please note 
that the evidence you give would be 
treated as public and is liable to be 
publishesd unless you specifically 
desire that all or any part of your 
evidence is to be treated as confiden
tial. Even though you might desire 
your evidence to be treated as confi
dential,, such evidence is liable to be 
made available to the members of 
Parliament. This is an information 
whkJh you have to remember.

Now, you have sent 6 memoran
dum. If you like.you can say a few 
words to explain your attitude to
wards the Sill before members ask 
you questions. If you do not wiih to 
make any statement then metr.bers

would ask you questions.

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
I do not wish to make any statement.

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI: 
Mr. Mitra, you certainly know that 
there is a Bill before the House that 
the National Library is going to be an 
autonomous institution. At present it 
is directly under the Government. 
What do you think about making this 
institution which is under the govern
ment an autonomous institutions?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
I cannot understand why this- ques
tion arises at all because we are going 
headlong for a socialistic State and 
we ar  ̂ njationalising one industry 
after another, one institution after 
another and theref6re, wliy should we 
denatibnetlise a national institiltibn?
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SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI: 
Then you think that it is agau>st the 
present tendency?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
Yes. I do not think that it will bring 
any good to anybody, particularly to 
the National Library.

SHRI PATIL PUTAPPA:. In what 
way is it going to affect the func
tioning of the National Library?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
We have had enough experience of 
autonomous bodies. Is not the Calcutta 
Corporation enough?

SHRI PATIL PUTAPPA: You had 
the National Library under the Gov
ernment all these years and what is 
your experience?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA:
It may be half as bad btit not fully 
bad. I want to keep it at least half 
bad.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Mr. Mitra, so far after study-  ̂
ing the situation of the National Lib
rary we find that its working and 
everything have deteriorated. If we 
believe that all the academic lields 
like the Universities or the National 
Laboratories and other scientific or
ganisations function better undfcr sta
tutory condition or autonomous condi
tion, may I seek your opinion as to 
what are your specific objections if the 
Library becomes an autonomous body 
with a proper governing council like 
the University Senate or Syndicate so 
that decisions can be taken very 
quickly and promptly and the admi
nistration may be made efficient ins
tead of putting all the files and deci
sions to the mercy of Delhi, to the 
mercy of bureaucracy and red tapism?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
You have mentioned the Calcutta 
University but is the Calcutta Univer
sity functioning properly?

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Do you plead that aU our

universities should be taken under the 
Government so that these will become 
wings of the Government?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAfc MITRA: 
It is not necessary. Take for instance, 
the Benaras Hindu University and the 
Viswa Bharati University.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: But they are not the winga of 
the Central Government. They are 
statutory bodies and autonomous 
bodies. Their connection with the 
Central Government is that the Cen
tral Government is simply to place an 
annual report before the Parliament 
and to take financial grants. Other
wise the Central Government don’t 
have to do anything with regard to 
those Universities.

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
I have already mentioned the Cal
cutta Corporation. It ts an autono
mous body, but is it functioning pro
perly? Why don’t you appoint an 
administrator on an efficient Librarian 
who can work as an administrator?

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Administrator on the National 
Library?

SI1RI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
Yes. under the direct Government 
control.

SHRI SHYAM PHAR MISRA: Do 
you believe that if the Calcutta Cor
poration is taken over by the jQovern- 
ment it will run better?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
Yes.

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: Why 
don’t you plead that the Calcutta Cor
poration should be taken over by the 
Government of India?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
It has already been taken over.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SKAR: Mr. Mitra, I think there is a 
feeling throughout the country that
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the National Library belongs to the 
country and therefore a parallel of 
the Calcutta Corporation would not 
be suitable. Nowf in the very begin
ning you made a remark that the 
Government is going towards socia
lism and all that Now there seems 
to be a lot of confusion over this 
point because when we in the Parlia
ment or in the administration of tfie 
government think of giving an auto
nomous shape to the National Library, 
they do not mean to transfer it to pri
vate handg. You sfee, there is very 
palpable difference between the trani- 
port being nationalised and the trans
port being left to private hands and 
the parallel of the Calcutta Corpora
tion is not suitable to these cases. Now, 
when we create an autonomous body, 
we are not going to dissociate oursel
ves from the responsibility of running 
the National Library. On the other 
hand, there is better awareness of the 
solut ons to the problems with which 
the Library is faced at present. Where
ver we have gone, the D.M.K. and 
Kerala, they have said that people 
who have high hopes of the National 
LiVarv think 4hat persons of emi
nence should run this for the benefit 
of the entire country and therefore 
just paying some attention to this that 
making an autonomous board is not 
just de-nationalisation, It is not 
throwing the whole thing into private 
hands, we have been listening to 
thes* arguments that the prestige of 
the National Library would be going 
down and all that. "You must be 
knowing that pres‘ ige of the British 
Museum Is higher than any of the 
other libraries in England and yet it 
Is an autonomous body. Autonmous 
‘bodies are better run in the sense that 
thev can frame their own statutes and 
regulation* extend the term and 
«mpiov a person beyond certain age. 
So, this is the key. Keeping these 
points in view I hope you will try to 
recons’der the stand that this making 
o f  autonomous body for the National 
Library wouM be a step in he right 
direction of denationalisation which Ji 
againtt the current process.

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
You have mentioned about the British 
Museum, but this is not England 
and we are not Englishmen. Can you 
cite one instance in India where 
the autonomous body is doing 
better work than what is did under 
the Government?

MR, CHAIRMAN: I may inform 
the witness that there are autonomous 
organisations under the Government 
of India like the Council of Scientific 
and Industrial Research which is a 
very powerful body, or there is, for 
example, the University Grants Com
mission, which is a most Ihighly re
garded institution. They operate 
without any detriment and that there 
is no idea that if an autonomous body 
is set up under the control of Par
liament, its activities being answera
ble to Parliament through Govern
ment, there is denationalisation. These 
two institutions show how autono
mous bodies under Government con
trol function efficiently.

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
But there is no such treasure to 
squander in those bodies. So, you 
must think in the context of the Na
tional Library.

MR. CHAIRMAN: As far as we can 
see from the statements made in the 
Parliament by Government and by 
the Minister here repeating what he 
had said in Parliament, there is no 
intention of Government ever hang
ing designation, character, impor
tance, etc., of the Nationl Library. It 
is going to be the National library 
of the country. As far as that goes 
there Should not be any misgiving. 
What happens in future is uncertain. 
There is no intention of bringing 
down the importance of the National 
Library. What I would ask is, have 
you read the Jha Committee report?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
No.

ME. CHAIRMAN: I do not fafezne 
you because copies are not easily 
availible. If you have read the report
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you would have got a different idea 
of the National Library* Questions 
of some of the honourable members 
suggest that under the Bill there 
may be some deficiencies which we 
have to correct with your advice and 
advice of other friends, but under the 
Bill it is to make National Library a 
more genuine and effective instru
ment of the national task which the 
National Library is going to perform.

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI: 
Mr. Mitra, are you under the appre
hension that some how or other this 
National Library is going to be Shift
ed to some other place outside Cal
cutta

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN I am sorry, I 
have to interrupt only this morning 
the Minister here made a definite 
statement and, if you have read the 
text of the Bill, in clause 16 it is 
stated categorically, the Library 
shall continue to be located at Cal
cutta. The Library means the Natio
nal Library. So, as far as that goes, 
there is positive assurance that there 
is no intention of removing the Natio
nal Library to anywfiere else.

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI: 
Have you got any apprehension that 
they may Dot shift a single copy of 
the books. Everything will be here, 
but the name which is an abstraction 
may be shifted?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA:
I do not have that apprehension.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You m ay  give 
expression to your concept, but we 
are here to collect concrtte and sub
stantial information. You may, of 
course, say that you have some ***- 
soa» to suspect tbat 4he .removal of 
ihe library or a change m nomen
clature of the library is in the offing, 
but that will be only a subjective 
statement, as you can w r y w ife l lw  
ietttaad.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: Do you apprehend that by 
making it autonomous, gradually, 
over the years this will be converted 
into a regional library and there is a 
possibility or chance that the autono
mous body at their own will may 
change the name as the Calcutta Cor
poration is dhanging the names of 
the streets?

MIL CHAIRMAN: I have to add a 
few words. If this Bill 'becomes a 
law, then the autonomous body under 
its terms will have legal sanction. If 
the name is changed in some future 
date by this or any other future Gov
ernment, it will have to be done by 
an Act of Parliament. Therefore, let 
us not spend out time speculating 
in this manner. Let us proceed on the 
basis of what we have before us.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Just now 
you have expressed your apprehen
sion that if it becomes autonomous, 
the administration may deteriorate. 
You have cited the example of Cal
cutta Corporation. On the contrary, 
it is almost the unanimous opinion, 
not only of the readers of the Natio
nal Library, but also of the Govern
ment as also the Chairman that it 
lias deteriorated in all its aspects* 
So Long it was under the Central 
’Government. The reasons may be 
attributed to the beaucratic control, 
as you said just now. You mentioned 
that If capable men wore there thing* 
would have been managed efficiently. 
You can attribute the whole respon
sibility to the direct control o f Gov- 
naent, which means beaucratic con
trol. And this beaucratic control has 
Jed to this situation, therefore, in the 
4ba Committee a suggestion wap 
made that it should be converted in- 
*o an autonomous body. A# yousay* 
you have not gone through the 
Report of the Jha Committee but £  
think you have gone through clause 
4  the BilL Now did it strike you 
that aUhoutfi in name it has beapt 
converted in o an autonomous bo4r 

-the main control of the body ie . thfr 
composition of the Board will be ***-
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tirely lett with the Central Govern
ment?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
Bureaucracy will be there in the auto
nomous board also. A  good librarian 
or an efficient administrator should be 
there.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You say that 
whatever may be the Committee or 
the Board running the Institution, a 
good librarian is tlhe greatest neces
sity.

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
Yes.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH; I want to 
ask you a question. Government has 
allowed—though they say that It is 
a National Library—this Institution 
to come to such a ridiculous position 
that only Rs. 5 lakhs have been 
allowed as book grant. No sensible 
Government will do so. So, in that 
view of the matter Government can 
further shift way its responsibility 
and it 'will just like this Institution 
die a natural death. Do you have 
sudn. apprehension?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
Yes.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZALPUR- 
KAR: You have stated you ar« aga
inst autonomous body and, at the 
same time, you say you are not 
happy with the present administra
tion and you want to bring certain 
changes so that the people may get 
the benefit Now I want to know 
what is your concrete suggestion to 
improve the administration and all 
other matters so that readere may go 
and get books and read them com
fortably.

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
A  >goed administrator or a good libra
rian with the power of a -Governor 
tftrectly under control of the Govern- 
j&cnt will serve the pttspose.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: You are con
cerned with the administration of 
the National Library. I want to 
know what should be the nature o f 
administration of the National Lib
rary. Have you have any positive 
suggestion with regard to this or 
that should be the scheme for the 
administration of the National Library 
which can be flt into the body of the 
Bill?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
The point you have raised cannot be 
answered off-hand. It’s a question of 
detail. If you ask me I will send the 
answer later on.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If you want to 
supplement your statement or if you 
Want to say anything in detail about 
your ideas, please send us the same.

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR 
MITRA: Thank you. I am the
Editor of a magzine “Katha Sahitya** 
and generally I write the editorials 
of that paper and I have written an 
editorial and I have sent that. How
ever, I will send later on another 
statement

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA; Mr. 
Mitra, you have stated that our 
social philosophy is there, socialism 
is there. Do you think that socialism 
does not require popular participation 
of intellectuals, scholars and techno
logists in academic matters?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
Why under the autonomous Body 
when it is • socialist state. Govern
ment can see to that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dp you really 
tfrinV that the National Library which 
you know very well as a reader can 
improve if  it is to be run in a routine 
manner by administrative order from
QHU?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
No, that is w hy I suggested an admi
nistrator or a G ow aor.

ItiL CHAIRMAN; Wo*M you like 
appointment of him  capftMo admin#-
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trator at the top whatever be the 
designation?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR MITRA: 
Yea, with more powers than a beau- 
rocrat.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You want dele
gation of authority from Delhi— 
authority should devolve on some 
powerful administrator operating in 
Calcutta in the library itself?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR 
MITRA: Yes, that is my view.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In the Bill, how
ever, what Government has proposed 
and Parliament will decide later on i* 
that there should be an autonomous 
Board. Now, have you any special 
recommendation in that regard or you 
would suggest that one administrator 
would be enough?

SHRI GAJENDRA KUMAR 
MITRA: Yes, one will be enough.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Mitra, thank 
you very much. You please send 
your supplementary memorandum.

(The witness then withdrew).

VOL Shri Am&lendu Kishore Chakraborty, Calcutta

MR. CHAIRMAN: Please note that 
the evidence you give will be treated 
as public and is liable to be published 
unless you specifically desire that all 
or any part of your evidence is to be 
treated as confidential. Even though 
you might desire your evidence or 
part of it to be treated as confidential 
such evidence is liable to be made 
available to the Members of Parlia
ment. This is what you should note. 
How, have you any special ideas 
about this Bill? Please make a state
ment in short if you wish.

SHRI RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: In what special subject do 
you research?

SHRI AMALENU KISHORE
CHAKRABORTY: In History. I am 
researching from 1961.

SHRI RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: During this period what type 
of difficulties you have faced? After 
requisition how much time it takes to 
get a book and how many times ytfu 
got refusal? And do you think ser
vice 1* flo°4?

SHRI AMALENU KISHORE
CHAKRABORTY: Generally I requi
sition books of old typia. Sometimes if
2 requisition ft books I get one or two.

Generally within half an hour to one 
hour I get book. I do not think that 
service is good.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: How 
do you think that service can be im
proved?

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORE 
CHAKRABORTY: I think employees 
should be more active in supplying 
books.

SHRI RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: In the Bill it has been
mentioned that the desire of the Gov
ernment is to make it an autono
mous Body. Now this is a depart
ment of the Government, but Gov
ernment want to convert it to an 
autonomous Body like universities. 
What is your opinion regarding that? 
Do you feel that by making it auto
nomous service efficiency of the LiB
rary will be improved or by keeping 
it under the Government as it is 
efficiency can be improved. What is 
your categorical opinion?

SHRI AMALENDU KISHOR® 
CHAKRABORTY: Thi* means an ad
ministrative change on it. I do not 
think that this will improve matters 
connected with the National Library* 
What the National Library, requires 
is a man with bright imagination and 
planning who can infuse efficiency and 
spirit of work among its employees* 1
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wonder that In spite of having about
700 employees, the National Libraiy 
baa not been able to produce a print
ed catalogue for over a decade. There 
are five Assistant Librarians and a 
number of Deputy Librarians In the 
Library but still things are not im
proving. If it is changed into an auto
nomous body then the same staff will 
be there.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA; Whether 
you believe in a system where you are 
allowed to manage your own affairs 
Or you believe in a system where 
somebody would do your business?

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORI 
CHAKRABORTY: I believe in a sys
tem where I am allowed to plan my 
own things.

SHRI RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BORTY: Whether it is government
institution or autonomous body you 
believe in its working.

SHRI AMALKNDU KISHORE 
CHAKRABORTY: I do not think that 
even if an autonomous body is creat
ed then I shall be given sufficient 
materials to work on my own things.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: But the 
autonomous body would afford great
er opportunity to you to manage your 
own affairs.

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORI 
CHAKRABORTY: I do not think that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are you content 
with the administration of the Na
tional Library as at present? Are you 
happy with the way the Library is 
run today?

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORU 
CHAKRABORTY: I am not happy, I 
want some improvement. <

MR. CHAIRMAN; Ar« you a regu
lar user of th« Library?

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORI 
CHAKRABORTY: Tea, Sir. l  am 
using it over • decade. ' -

MR. CHAIRMAN; Do you go there 
for research work or for general 
studies? Do you go there every day?

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORI 
CHAKRABORTY: I go there for re
search work almost every week and 
sometimes I go every day.

MR. CHAIRMAN; You have said 
that the Library is not being run as 
satisfactorily as you wish it ohould be.

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORB 
CHAKRABORTY: Yes, Sir.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Have you read 
the Review Committee's report or the 
Jha Committee’s report on the Na
tional Library?

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORI 
CHAKRABORTY: I have not read it.

MR. CHAIRMAN; Have you had the 
adequate opportunity to Judge as to 
whether the Library should be ad
ministered directly by the Govern
ment as a subordinate office or It 
should be administered by a true 
autonomous body.

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORB 
CHAKRABORTY; I did not consider 
it. I thought that the Government can 
run the Library as it is being run at 
present and things can still be im
proved.

Mil. CHAIRMAN: Your suggestion 
is that instead of autonomous body 
the Government should run it proper
ly?

SHRI AMALENDU KISHOR*
CHAKRABORTY: Yes, Sir.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: HaVe you
suggested any amendments to the 
Bill?

SHRI AMALENDU XISHOBB
CHAKRABORTY: Yes, I did.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Have you
sent those amendments?

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORI
CHAKRABORTY: Yet

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: What are
the broad aspects of your atoeai- 
ment?



78

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORE 
CHAKRABORTY: I read the recom
mendations of the Jha Committee as 
It came out in the Press a year back 
and I thought that the provisions of 
the Bill fell far short of the recom
mendations of the Jha Committee. For 
example the Committee suggested 
that a man of recognised scholarship 
should be the Director of the National 
Library.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: It should 
have comparable status with the Vice
Chancellor.

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORE 
CHAKRABORTY: Yes. I do not think 
liiat any scholar will agree to accept 
this post because police report will 

be necessary The Bill imposes 
certain conditions.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: If you do 
not want it to be ran by ah autono
mous body then how would you fit 
into it the comparable status of the 
Vice-Chancellor?

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORE 
CHAKRABORTY: If the Library is 
run by the Central Government then 
the question of Director getting the 
status of a Vice-Chancellor does not 
arise.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: In the re
port of the Jha Committee there are 
rome ideas by which some autono
my is to be given to the administrator. 
Bpt. you consider that statutory auto  ̂
Jifijmy will not be right. Will it be 
delegated authority?

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORE 
CHAKRABORTY: Delegated autho
rity may be right

SHRI PAUL FUTTAPPA: You
have told us that you have read the 
Bill. What improvement wtould you 
Dtp to suggest on the Bill tt the

VUL Start M ac*

HR' CHAIRMAN1: Hr. M ofanj, 
yonr evidence shin be treated as pub- 
%  andis IMtye to be published, un.-

Naiional Library is to function pro
perly?

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORE 
CHAKRABORTY: I want that the
Bill should be dropped because I do 
not think that autonomous body will, 
improve matters much. There are 
many autonomous bodies in Calcutta 
viz., the Board of Secondary Educa
tion. But they are not functioning 
well.

SHRI PATIL FUTTAPPA: That
means you have no faith on the 
management by the Indian people.

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORE 
CHAKRABORTY: No, the Govern
ment i« also Indian.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You think that 
the Library should be improved to 
perform the orders which come from 
Delhi rather than through an autono
mous body working under the super
vision of a responsible Government 
Department.

SHRI AMALENDU KISHORE 
CHAKRABORTY: I want that a cell 
be there in the Education Ministry 
which will deal with the library aff
airs and that there will be a very 
capable Director here and efficient 
staff. The Director’s scholarship and 
personality should be such that he can 
infuse efficiency among the workers. 
That is what is necessary.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: But
there are not many men fa the' 
Government who can energise those 
cells. .........

MR, CHAIRMAN: Mr. Chakraborty, 
thank you very much for your evi
dence.

The witness then withdrew 

MoharaJ, Calcutta

any part of the evidence given by you 
is to b*.treated aa oontirtnptiaL Itefaall, 
however, 1* • q p fM ?  fa.-ifcfe Witness,
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that even though you might desire 
yo u r evidence to be treated as confi
den tial such evidence is liable to be 
made available to the members of 
Parliament.

SHRI SONCU MOHARAJ: I may
c la r ify  my views, which I have ex
pressed in my memorandum dated the 
24th A p ril 1973. I do not like to add 
an yth in g  beyond what I have said in 
m y memorandum.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes, you may
clarify your views.

SHRI SONCU MOHARAJ: Regard
ing the para 3 of my Memorandum I 
would say that the proposed Bill does 
not say specifically about the ways 
and means towards the development 
of the Library. Even it does not say 
anything about the Librarian. The 
duties and function of the National 
Library have not been clearly spelled 
out in the BilL Red-tapism and cor
ruption will be increased. The emplo
yees will be further dissatisfied, the 
efficiency will be further deteriorated. 
The status of the National Library 
will be lowered. The autonomy will 
add new problems. Membership may 
be restricted Receipts, (Gifts, Ex
change and Delivery of Book Act,) 
will be diminished. Lending facilities, 
may be curtailed.

In a poor' country like India, educa
tion through Free Public Library is 
essential. As such libraries ih every 
vUlajrw etoty Blocks rihd etrfcry State 
capital may be established. The village 
Libraries Will be controlled by tSe 
Blodt Libraries, the Blocks b f the 
State Libraries and the State by the 
Natiopal Library. Af sqc  ̂ th$ present 
Bill may kindly be withdrawn andthe 
Government of litdia may kindly in
troduce * fM h  Wraiprehenajve Uriton 
Librifryfcfll the *ol* of tib
Natlbnal Librifry In the librairy sy*« 

of U 0 *.

the administration as proposed in the 
Bill will be practically a four-tier one. 
Instead of 3-tier, as has been stated 
therein i.e., Director Executive Coun
cil and the National Library Board. 
The fourth tier will be the Govern
ment who will noipinate 9 members 
out of 10 members of the Board and 
they will be the final authority for 
financial sanction. So, it will be seem 
that the proposed Bill will only in
crease the administrative complicacy 
and will further deteriorate the effi
ciency of the Natipnal Library.

Regarding para 5 of my memoran
dum, I like to give my personal views 
that Para 2 of the ‘Statement of Ob
jects and Reasons' of the Bill is clearly 
against the recommendations of the 
Jha Committee. The Committee re
commended that the nature of the au
tonomy invested in the Governing 
Council should be a delegated autono
my and not a statutory one. Thus the 
Committee practically warned against 
the statutory autonomy.

Hie proposed National Library BiU 
also violates all the principal recom
mendations of the Jha Committee se , 
far as the administrative set up of the . 
Library is concerned. Of theBQ the im
portant ones are—

The BUI provides for a 4-tier systems 
of administration, i.e. National Lib
rary Board, Executive Council, Direc
tor, and the Government in placc of 
the two-tier system as recommended 
by the Jha Committee.

Constitution of the Board* a* per 
Jha Itartmittee’s Governing Council, 
the Bill provides for almost full rep
resentation of the Government and its; 
nominees i.e. 9 out of lt> member# 
wfekh is contrary to the Jha Com
mittee’*  suggestion. Before bringing 
this Bill the Government should h m  
pifblished ^hf Jh* Committee's Report 
and obtaiaed pi^bUe opinion in the , 
matter, asreeommended by the Jha 
Committee.

, git i jftSBd liira to say that
my meriaoran* the4 wUSbtf of thii aufehdthotis1

diim; f  flke tb statSe thsf fa? my vie# nistration in i&ft*. u not
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lt\. fact it ha* failed in many cases 
and in all cases it is inferior to Gov
ernment administration. Sarkar Com
mittee’s Report will support my views. 
It is really surprising that the Gov
ernment is refusing to patronise li
braries and library profession, and 
thus stands in the way of the library 
movement in India.

Regarding para 7, it is not under- 
rtood that when the Government is 
taking over management of different 
organisations which are mal-adminis- 
tered, but showing indifferent atti
tude to the National Library. Gov
ernment cannot give up responsibility 
of management and control of edu
cation and educational institutions.

National Sample Survey which was 
tinder an autonomous body has been 
recently taken over by the Govern
ment. I have already stated that 
Aifting the administration of Nation
al Library to an autonomous board 
will stop the donars to gift btoks to 
National Library in future will be 
like that of Bangiya Sahita Parishad.

I understand that excepting British 
Museum and a few othre very old 
organisations, the National Libraries 
of almost all the countries are under 
the direct control of their Govern
ments. None of the Governments 
are thinking to hand over the adminis
tration to any Autonomous Board as 
has been suggested in the present 
Bill. Now I would submit some of my 
suggestions.

The National Library may kindly 
be kept under the direct administra
tive control of Government of India. 
More care and attention be devoted 
by the Government of India to the 
National Library.

A scholar in Library Science should 
be appointed as the Librarian of Na
tional Library*

National Library may kindly be 
ntade a separate Department directly 
■under the Ministry of Education, So* 
dal Welfare and Culture. It should 
te  an attached office of the Govern
ment of India instead of a subordinate 
4«parimflpt as at prenmt

National Library should be as the 
head of all libraries in the library sys
tem in India.

More powers may kindly be delegat
ed to the Librarian of the National 
Library.

The book budget may kindly be in
creased as per recommendation o f 
the Jha Committee.

Arrangement may kindly be made 
to implement the Delivery of Book 
Act more effectively. The publisher* 
must consider the said supply of books 
as their statutory obligation.

The present reading and lending 
facilities may kindly be extended ac
cording to the need of the nation.

The strength of the Binding Section 
and the Newspapers and periodical 
sections may kindly be increased.

The present Bill may kindly be 
withdrawn.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: You have said many things in 
your suggestions that the National 
Libraries in all over the world are 
maintained by the Government of the 
respective country, about red-tapism 
in the Government machinery in our 
country and the staff working in the 
National Library are not efficient to 
the exent that the people want their 
services, and about the mismanage
ment in the National Library, Cal
cutta. But it seems that you oppose 
the autonomous system of administra
tion In the National Library. While 
Government will provide requisite 
finance, will nominate 9 members out 
of 10, then may I ask why are you 
opposing the BUI.

SHRI SONCU MOHARAJ: As Z
have already said that *> far my 
knowledge goes the autonomous admi
nistration in India has not proved it* 
success to the desired level. I can
not understand when the Government 
is taking all the responsibilities such 
as providing finance, nominating all 
the member# excepting one, then wbjr
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It la proposed in the Bill that the Na
tional Library would go into hands 
of an autonomous board.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: You have said that in the 
Jha Committee’s recommendation, 
the red-tapism and mal-administra- 
tion are the main defects in the 
National Library, then why do you 
like to suggest against autonomy?

SHRI SONCU MOHARAJ: Because 
1 know that an autonomous body 
cannot rectify those defects. More
over Jha Committee recommended 
delegated autonomy not a statutory 
one. I am referring to the Jha Com
mittee* report as we are told that this 
bill has been brought as per recom
mendation of the Jha Committee. But 
this does not mean that I am support
ing the said recommendations. I would 
only say, that if the Jha Committee 
recommended delegation of power then 
why that power cannot be given to the 
Librarian? What is the use of 
bringing this Bill?

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: Can you suggest in that way 
more power can be given to the 
Librarian. In West Bengal there is a 
Chief Engineer and under him there 
are a thousand subordinate officers. 
He draws a salary more than the Vice
Chancellor of the Calcutta University 
but he does not have the same status 
as tha* of the Vice-Chancellor. Any 
pro'ject that he has to pass has to 
come to him through the lowest clerk 
to the highest officer and then he has 
to go to the Minister for final decision.

Do you prefer with your ideas or an. 
administrator over the library and the 
the library still remaining under the

Government, the maladies can be 
removed?

SHRI SONCU MOHARAJ: I think
so.

AIR. CHAIRMAN: So you believe 
that the National Library can improve 
only by having a better administra
tor at the top?

SHRI SONCU MOHARAJ: Yes, and 
under the direct control of the Gov
ernment of India.

MR. CHAIRMAN: And in spite of
certain things you are against the idea 
of autonomy on principle in regard* 
to an organisation like the National 
Library?

SHRI SONCU MOHARAJ: Yes.
MR. CHAIRMAN: That fs t0 say, 

even if autonomy can be amplified and 
substance can be given to autonomy 
as explained by Professor Guha, au
tonomy different from that indicated 
in the Bill, you are against autonomy 
in any case and you want a strong, 
strident and tough administrator.

SHRI SONCU MOHARAJ: Yes, 
under a defined Policy Resolution.

MR. CHAIRMAN: And that admi
nistrator operating under the orders 
of Delhi or Timbue too?

SHRI SONCU MOHARAJ: Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very* 
much for your evidence.

(The witness then withdrew)

IX Shri Gnrapada Sen Gupta,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Sen Gupta, 
I find no description in regard to the 
work you do. However, before you 
give evidence I have to make clear 
tp you that your evidence shall be 
tfeated as public and is liable to be 
published unless you specifically

desire that all or any part of your 
evidence is to be treated as confidential. 
Even though you might desire your 
evidence to be treated as confi
dential, such evidence is liable to be 
made available to the Members o f  
Parliament.
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Now to begin with, please tell us 
■what do you do and what is your 
interest in the National Library, whe
ther you have studied the Bill and if 
you wish to make any 6tatement. 
Please give us an idea about yourself 
first and then you can make any 
statement.

SHRI SEN GUPTA: I w c k  as a 
medical representative in a private 
firm, i.e. Ciba (India) Ltd. I am a re
gular reader in the National Library. 
I have seen something of the National 
Library Bill in the newspapers. I 
have not gone through the Bill very 
minutely.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Have you submit
ted any memorandum?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: No. But j  have 
submitted a letter in which I have 
written that a comprehensive union 
library Bill should be introduced 
through which free public library 
fystem should be introduced by the 
Government for the whole country 
instead of bringing one National 
Library Bill.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You had convey
ed to the Secretary that you wished 
to give evidence before this Com
mittee?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Would you say. a 
few v/ords to begin with or would 
you answer questions?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: You may ask 
questions which I will answer.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CH^XRA- 
BARTl: Mr. Sen Gupta, for tiow'
many years you have been gong in 
this library?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: For the Hwt ooe 
year.

DR. BAJAT KUM AA. CH^KRA^ 
BARTI: Is it in connection wttjisflcp*. 
of your work or just for your inte
rest?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: For my inte
rest.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CI1AKRA- 
BARTI: Once you make B requisition, 
how long does it take to supply the
book?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: Generally i*
takes 30 to 45 minutes but often I get 
it quicker than that.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR C11AKRA- 
BARTI; And how many rejections 
you get often?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: I have not yet 
received any rejection.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: So during the last year yo* 
are happy with the institution?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: Yes.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Have you gone through the
Bill?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: No.
DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 

BARTI: Have you any idea about 
what is a statutory body and what 1* 
a body working under a Government 
system—the difference between the 
two types of institution!?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: I have some 
general idea;

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CtfAKRA- 
BARTI-. Mr, Sen Gupta, we are facr 
ing a problem. You see, some peopJ* 
think that because of the bureaucracy 
and red. tapism the efficiency in the 
running of the National Library If 
going down day after day and the 
whole thing is going from bad to 
worst and they think that if we make 
it an autonomous body so that , wt do 
not have to go through all tkts red* 
tapism and other procedures, then all 
ttys, decisions can be taken quickly at 
Calcutta .at the headquarters unde^ 
the guidance pf a goyprnj$gr couaojlf 
just , like the SyndicateJjuad theSeoai* 
of the Calcutta University with the' 
help of an administrator or librarian
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or director equivalent to the Vice
Chancellor of a University. Do you 
prefer that system of work provided, 
oX covrse, there is enough financial 
guarantee from the Government os 
you prefer that the National Library 
shouid be under the direct control of 
the Government? You may also sug
gest some of the ways of improving 
the conditions in the Library?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: I personally
think that it should be under the 
direct control of the Government.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: What are the reasons for
your thinking so?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: I have some 
experience of the autonomous bodies 
like Hie l i fe  Insurance Corporation.
I am a policy holder but I seldom get 
a premium Notice.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZAL- 
PURKAR: I would like to know the
subjects in which you are interested 
and, secondly, you have said in your 
letter, instead of handing over the 
administration and control o f the 
National Library to the autonomous 
body the Union Government should 
retain the Institution in its own hands. 
If you have not gone through the Bill, 
how do you know that autonomous 
body will not do any good to thfr 
library?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: In regard to
your first question, I am interested la 
history and mountaineering. I am 
satisfied with the reception I get there 
and with the conditions prevailng 
there. An autonomous body, as I have 
said earlier, I am not satisfied with 
the working of many of the auto
nomous bodies.

SHRI DHARAMRAO A R A L - 
PURKAR: In your opinion the
present set up ittd thtf '■ present 
administration is quite sufficient and 
there tft xteetf M  & & & . '

SHRI SEN GUPTA: There Is need
for changes. We should get "bodkt 
quickly. There should be mon|, hpek* 
and more facilities for reading

j s -
Interested in mountaineering. Do you

feel satisfied with mountaiaeeriay  
books?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: Yes. there b
quite large .number of books.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Are there some books cm.
mountaineering in India also?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: Yes.
SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 

SHAR: Do you feel all the published 
of mountaineering send their books to 
the Library?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: Yes.
SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA.

SHAR: Do you think if it is am 
autonomous body controlling the 
Library, there will be any decrease to 
the sending of books?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: Yes, under the 
autonomous body they ar« not com
pelled to send their books.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: If it is an obligatory duty om. 
the part o f publishers to send the 
books, whehter it is under th« Ministry 
of autonomous body, what' does It 
matter to him?

SHRI SEN GUPTA: I am sorry, Sir, 
I have no answer to that.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: In your
letter you have mentioned two reasons 
why you do not like that this BUI 
should be. passed. You have stated 
that if this Bill is parsed &S it is, it 
wiil create administrative compli
cations. Sec6ndly, you have mentioned 
that it will deteriorate the efficiency 
of the National Liberty. Would yon 
kindly explain the administrative 
complications1 that will be &etfted if  
the Bill is p u i ld  and heir *U1 It 
deteriorate the efficiency of the

SHRI SJW GUPTA: It will be nia 
by an autonomous board, Le. by the
* Vllrfŝ l Alii iMT TMhlV/t1- ------memoen ox wit poira, xvemom n t f  

haVe" dflKfrences among themselves 
which may lead, to condttipna^th^t will 
deteriorate tte  efficiency— wfB 
b# lM’ ing bfl& e board.

MR. CHABUilAN: Thank you tw y  
much, H i? Sin Gopti.

(The Committee then adjourned)



Friday, the 8th June, 1978, in Council Chamber, Assembly House, Calcutta from
09.00 to 13.00 hour* and again from 15.00 to 17.45 hours.

PRESENT
Shri H. N. Mukerjee— (In the Chair)

Unraui 
Lofc Sabha

2. Shri Achal Singh
*. Shri Dharamrao Sharanappa Afzalpurkar
4. Shri Virendra Agarwal 
6. Shri S. C. Beara
6. Shri Samar Guha
7. Shri B. R. Kavade 
<L Shri E. R. Kriihnan
9. Shri Kumar Majhi 

10. Shri Saroj Mukherjee
. 11. Shri Narain Chand Paraahar

12. Shri Natwarlal Patel 
IS. Shri P. Antony Beddi 
14. Shri S. A. Shamim

Rajya Sabha

10. Shri Pramatha Nath Biai
lft Dr. Bajat Kumar Chakrabarti
17. Shri Mahabir Dai*
18. Shri Niren Ghoah
19. Shri Rattan Lai Jain
20. Shri. Patil Puttappa

• 21. Shri Sanat Kumar Raha

LxaiaLATIVB ComtaBL

’ Shri S. Harihara Iyer—Joint Secretary and Legislates Counsel.
RvnwwTAnw OF TBB Menirkt or Uw jcatiow  Soctaj. Wbvam 

(D»a*tm*mt or Cttltum)

. 1, fU'ri Mohan Mukerji—Additional Secretary.
2. ffM  P. Somaaakharan—Deputy Secretary,
i. Shri A. S. Talwar—Under Secretary.

• 4. Shri A. B. Sen Gupta—Acting Librarian, Nattonal Library, Calcutta*

RECORD OF EVIDENCE TENDERED BEFORE THE JOINT COMMITTEE O ff
THE NATIONAL LIBRARY BILL, 1972.

84



85
> SSCRXTARIAX

Shri H. G. Paranjpe—Deputy Secretary.

W itn e sse s  E xam in ed  

X. Indian Association of Special Libraries and Information Centres, Calcutta n
Spoketmen: ~ .

1. Dr. B. Mukerji
2. Shri P. B. Roy
S. Shri C. V. Subba Rao
4. Shri Souren Ganguli

n. Shri B. K . Daw, Advocate, Calcutta.
m . Shri Biman Basu, Students’ Federation of India, Calcutta.
TV. Shri N. K. Sinha. Retd. Professor of History, Calcutta.
V . Shri S. K . Gupta, LC.S. (Retdh), Calcutta.
VI. Shri Chinmohan Sehanavis, Calcutta.
VII. Shri Narahari Kaviraj, Calcutta.
V in . Shri Nirmalaya Bagchi, Calcutta.
DC Shri Satyapriya Roy. President, All Bengal Teacher? Association, Calcutta.
X. Prof. Jyoti Bhattacharya, Calcutta.
XI. Bengal Library Association, Calcutta (Further evidence).

Spokesmen: '
1. Shri B. P. Mookerjeo
2. Shri P. Roychaudhury
5. Shri S. Banerjee 
4. Shri B. Banerjee.



86

1. Indian Association of Special Lib nuiea and Information cW trea, -
r»i«.Wp

Spokesmen:
1. Dr. B. Mukerji.
2. Shri P. B. Roy.
3. Shri C. V. Subba Rmo.
4. Shri Sonren GangulL

MR. CHAIRMAN: Witnesses may
please note that their evidence shall 
be treated as public and is liable to 
be published, unless they specifically 
desire that all or any part of their 
evidence is to be treated as confiden
tial, though such evidence is liable 
to be made available to the Members 
o f Parliament.

DR. B. MUKERJEE: I do not like
to add further, I only like to empha
sise on one point i.e. with regard to 
hem 3 of our memorandum we 
strongly feel that the steps that are 
being anticipated by Government is 
a retrogate step, and it is not likely 
to improve matters. We have dis
cussed this in the Council and this la 
our consensus of opinion. .

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: Are 
you in favour of a delegated auto
nomy or not?

DR. B. MUKERJI: I had been a 
member of Government departments 
for • long time. I am a retired scien
tist I have also served under differ
ent autonomous organisations and I 
feel that this not going to solve the 
problems. Our suggestion is to main
ta in  the status q u o .

SHRI P. B. ROY: I want to add that 
the problem of the National Library 
should be looked into in a proper 
perspective. As the top library it i* 
expected to give leadership to the 
library system of our country. Sim
ply a piecemeal solution won't do. 
The Advisory Committee on Libraries 
under the chairmanship o f Mr. Sing, 
ex-DPI, Bihar, submitted a report in 
which it is stated that the entirt

responsibility of the National Library 
and the public library system in the 
country should rest on the Govern
ment Planning Commission's working 
Group also suggested that the entire 
library system should remain under 
the control of the Government. I d »  
not know how the problem will be 
solved if the entire library system 
remains under- the control of the 
Government and the appex library 
goes out o f Government's control. It 
should be solved by looking into the 
problems more intensively. Causes 
of dissatisfaction should be looked 
into, pnd dissatisfaction arises in 
many ways e.g. there was dissatis
faction when the lending system of 
the National Library was very much 
restricted. Of course, we do not
agree that National Library should 
lend books to other people. >It is 
only meant for the preservation of 
books, documents, for research and
for the future generation. But the
causes o f dissatisfaction can be re
medied by looking into them more 
intensively. If we look into them in 
the proper perspective there is a pos
sibility o f making a solution. We
think autonomy will not solve this 
problem. If we have to run to Delhi 
for getting sanction of something, 
naturally the problem will become 
complicated. People will be dissatis
fied and for this National Library 
cannot be blamed.

It will be wiser to delegate more 
power at the local level to that they 
can quickly decide things and imple
ment them and in that case imme
diately some causes of complaints 
will go away. Besides, experts and 
specialists should be encouraged for 
looking into other problems, there-
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should be more involvment of staff 
and professional experts for looking 
into the problems and then we can 
tt>lve the problems to a large extent.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: 
What ar© your suggestion lor improv
ing the administration of the National 
Library?

SHRI P. B. ROY: I have already 
stated that more power should be 
given at the local level to enable 
them to decide things and implement 
their decisions.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: You 
are opposed to any kind of autono
my, either delegated or statutory. 
And if you are opposed then why do 
you want more power at the local 
level?

SHRI P. B. ROY: I think there has 
been some confusion about delegated 
autonomy and statutory autonomy. 
Jha Committee recommended dele
gated autonomy.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Autonomy as
envisaged in the Bill does not mean 
diffuse control. There are autono
mous organisation under the Govern
ment of India, e.g.r Council of Scien
tific and Industrial Research which 
conducts their work more or less 
adequately. Now, autonomy, as you 
fear, excludes Government control 
altogether and whatever technical 
difference is there between delegated 
autonomy and statutory autonomy, 
from what you have told us, can I 
conclude that you are not against 
autonomy as such but you are in 
iavour of .giving more power to local 
admioistratipn and you are only 
Apprehexulve that Government 
supervision and control might be taken 
away which you do not like.

SHRI P. B. HOY: Hot only super
vision and control but tffrect tittpoft- 
albility of tile Government for the 
%hole thing should exist. Government 
tfhouffd be fully responsible for Its 
ftmfctidniitg,i.eM preservation i f  tfoeu-

ments, making better use of docu
ments, finance and everything.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: Are 
you in favour of delegated autonomy 
or not? Delegated autonomy pre
supposes Government control, advi
sory control, it presupposes total res
ponsibility of the Government.

SHRI P. B. ROY: Then we do not 
have much to object. ,

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: In the Bill
although statutory autonomy is envi
saged but in effect the control will be 
practically in the hands of the Govern
ment. This will be evident from the 
manner of composition of the Board 
where 9 out of 10 members will be 
nominated by Government and one 
will be by the UGC. So, what are the 
difficulties that you visualise if the Bill 
in its present form is adopted?

SHRI P. B. ROY: The entire res
ponsibility is shifted on the Board and 
Government’s responsibility will be 
indirect. So from that angle we 
cannot agree to such autonomy.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Not only the 
Board but with regard to the Execu
tive Council it will be seen that the 
Council will have the control. Do 
you think here also Government con
trol will be indirect? Don’t you think 
that the provisions of this Executive 
Council may obviate this complication?

SHRI P. B. ROY: We feel that here 
also Government will not directly 
come into the picture particularly 
when the treasury is concerned, na
tional wealth is concerned, and so we 
do not like to take such risk.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: National
Libittry should be national in cha
racter and So benefit* from the na
tional scholars and readers should be 
equal. So, don’t you think that in 
the administration of the Library re
presentatives from different parts of 
the country, advice of university 
jtcholfers Should be that* and that gom* 
jjtfovisfotisfor that shbuld be there lieu 
the ftttlf
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SHRI P. B. ROY: It is necessary. 
We also feel that one National Lib
rary for the entire country is too 
inadequate. This problem was look
ed into by the Advisory Committee 
on the Libraries and they recom
mended more libraries. There has
been some professional opinion ex
pressed, in the Seminar held at Banga
lore in 1972 and they recommended 
some subject specialist libraries as in 
the case of U.S.A. where Agricultural 
National Library and other such Lib
raries function. From that angle in 
the National Library representatives 
from experts Or from different Bodies 
will be surely helpful and that is 
very much desirable.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: So, you have 
said that there should be four 
National Library. Now if there are 
four National Libraries what your 
idea would be fpr the governance of 
those libraries. Would the units oi 
it should be centrally administered 
or would those libraries be absolutely 
independent or co-related bodies?

SHRi P. B. ROY: One should be 
the National Library at Calcutta and 
the other three libraries would 'be 
under the control of the National Lib
rary. They would be termed as Na
tional Library in different regions.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: But don't
you find that the scope, privileges and 
facilities for  the scholars for research 
works in the different parts o f the 
country are very inadequate here. 

"There 16 no accommodation, there Is 
no rent-free facilities etc. etc. Don’t 
you think that there should be some 
provisions in this Bill, if it is adopted, 
so that the scholars, readers and re
searcher from other parts of the 
country may get equal advantages as 
the local scholars, readers and re
searchers get?

SHRI P. B. ROY: Our opinion would 
be tp develop the public Hbfary sys
tem so scientifically throughout the 
country as it caters to the needs of

everybody throughout the country. 
If there is an inter-library lending 
procedure then even a reader from a 
remote village of Maharashtra will 
get the same facility and same books 
as are enjoyed by the local readers, 
and he need not take the trouble ot  
coming over to Calcutta. But so far 
as increase of facilities for the rea
ders of other parts of the country is 
concerned we always agree to that

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: In one part of your statement 
you have mentioned that even to-day 
for a little piece work one is to go to 
the Central Secretariat in New Delhi 
and hence everything is delayed. Now, 
if you look into the figures you will 
find that so many posts are lying va
cant there. It includes 43 posts which 
have lapsed a6 they remained vacant 
for more than six months. Now, if 
you are going to recruit the Class III 
staff or Gazetted officers you know 
what the usual procedure is. The 
process of recruitment is dialotory 
and sometimes it takes long long 
time, one year or even two years to 
get the etaff recruited through the 
U.P.S.C. in contrast to the time taken 
for such recruitment in the autono
mous bodies. In the autonomous 
bodies all these things viz., recruit
ment, running of the organisation and 
other administrative matters are done 
in a better and efficient way. So, 
what would be your exact objection 
to make the organisation an autono
mous body like the Universities? 
Now, so far as the Universities are 
concerned, in the matter of recruit
ment of staff, posting, purchasing and 
everything so to say, these are done 
very quickly unlike the government 
Departments where there are reiU 
tapism and beatfcratism. So, what are 
your specific objections to make the 
National library a statutory autono
mous body? What are the advantages 
if the Library is kept under the Cm * 
tral Government and what are the 
disadvantage? \t it become* a statur 
tory autonomous body?
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SJr, I would like t0 answer the ques
tion myself. I have served many 
autonomous organisations, of repute 
for long yeans. For more than 13 
yea:s I was the Director of the Cen
tral Research Institute, at Lucknow. 
I was also the president of the Asia
tic Society. I feel the advantage you 
claim in the matter of recruitment of 
staff does not exist in practice. Even 
sometimes it takes longer period to 
make recruitment than that taken in 
the Government Departments. I am 
speaking from my own experience 
and on the basis of that experience I 
say that etatug quo should be main
tained in the case of the National 
Library. You are nationalising a 
number of autonomous bodies but 
how is it that you are going back 
from this policy in regard to the 
National Library.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Then do you, as an aca
demician, want that the academic 
institutions like National Library and 
other institutions should be directly 
under the Government control where 
the Director or the Vice-Chancellor 
will simply be at the mercy of a few 
clerks of the Central Secretariat in 
New Delhi?

SHRI P. B. ROY: I have not stated 
anything like that.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: We are a little bit confused 
by your statement. You want to 
keep it under, the Government con
trol and at the same time you are 
saying it is not functioning properly 
under the Government control. You 
want that it should be a Government 
Department on the other hand you 
want that more powers should be 
given to the Librarian or the Advisory 
Council so that it can be run pro
perly.

DR. B. MUKERJI: I was in the 
Government in the Ministry of Health 
as a Deputy Director. I have also 
served in the autonomous body my

self. So far as the Government De- 
oartment is concerned it is somewhat 
a satisfactory system. But in auto
nomous bodies the power of delega
tion actually comes through the vari
ous committees and consequently it 
takes much longer time. This is my 
own experience. I have served the 
Government for 20 years and I have 
served various autonomous bodies 
for 22 years. So I am of definite 
opinion that the Government Depart
ment should remain and defects 
should be rectified by the Govern
ment.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: I think you are aware of the 
fact that in a large organisation like 
the G.S.I. the Director is as power
less as he cannot do a single thing for 
the improvement of his department 
so far as purchase or recruitment of 
staff are concerned. There they are 
claiming for more powers. How the 
Director could be given these powere? 
Under w h at article of the Constitu
tion or under what system these 
Directors could be given the rank 
and power of the Secretaries or Joint 
Secretaries of the Government?

DR. B. MUKERJEE: I will give you 
few examples. While I was the 
Director of the Central Drug Labora
tories, Ministry of Health from 1941 
to 1951, there was n0 difficulty in 
discharging my duties. We h^d ade
quate powers. Now the powers have 
reduced. 500 scientists were working 
under an autonomous organisation in 
Lucknow in Central Drug Research, i 
was there for 13 years. I was the 
General 'Secretary in the Indian 
Science Congress. In my personal 
city I could spent Rs. 1 lakh.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: The honourable witnesses 
have said that the Government has 
recently nationalised a number of 
autonomous bodies. May I have a 
few instances from them?

SHRI P. B. ROY: Actually we
meant to say the autonomous bodies
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which were created by the Act of 
Parliament are being taken over by 
Government. The Indian statistical 
Institute which was created by an 
Act of Parliament because of so many 
maladies were there the Government 
took it over. So our contention is 
this, the sick organisations like M/s. 
Fessop, which was not functioning 
properly and ultimate was taken over 
by Government is a good example, 
(n this case the National Library is 
claimed to be a sick organisation so 
it should remain under the Govern
ment control.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: I understand from your ans
wer that the Government should rec
tify some of the maladies that have 
cropped up in the workings of few
organisations. There was a big up
roar recently in the Parliament about 
the Fertilizer Corporation of India. 
Now the F.C.I. is a statutory autono
mous body created by an Act of Par
liament. Dq you mean to say that the 
direct control of Government is 
better than that what it is now? Or do 
you subscribe the idea that more
power should be delegated to the
local administrator or the persons who 
manage these affairs?

SHRI P. B. ROY: One of the mem
bers of the Jha Committee, Shri Sai- 
bal Gupta said in a public meeting 
that there was scope for delegating 
more powers without giving them 
directly to the statutory body. The 
honourable member expressed his 
thinking on the workings of the F.C.I. 
I would say that if some 5 or 6 tons 
of materials are stolen from the F.C.I., 
that would not cause a great harm to 
the nation, but if some 5 or 6 of rare 
books are stolen or mislaid that inci- 
lent would be a great loss to the 
nation. Rare books are treated as 
national wealth, so it should be pre
served carefully. For instance, we 
have seen in the paper that the ‘Nata- 
rajan murti’ has been stolen from 
India and has since been sold in 
America. This is a great loss for our

country. Government are taking 
steps to get that 'murti9 back. There 
are also some valuable manuscripts 
that are going out of the country. So, 
in that angle I can say that if the 
National Library is handed over'to an 
autonomous body then the chances of 
such missing would increase and 
there will be no or very little chance 
of getting them back.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: You have said that books or 
valuable manuscripts may be lost. I 
think, you might have read a day be
fore an article in the *Statesman' 
‘‘National Library should remain as 
national.” It has referred to the 
workings of the National Library 
which is under strict Government 
control as you would like to continue. 
In that article as it is mentioned, I 
hope it is correct, that the books were 
taken away from the Library and 
were sold in the open market. Then 
the Librarian ordered that the bags 
of every employee, specially the lady 
employees, should be searched. At 
this, there was a big demonstration. 
Do you not feel that had it been un
der the autonomous administration 
such demonstration could not have 
taken place?

SHRI P. B. ROY: Generally when 
4 books are stolen, it becomes 400 in 
the publicity. From that angle I do 
not want to support the autonomous 
administration.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZALPUR- 
KAR: The honourable witness stated 
about the establishment of three re
gional libraries by converting the Na
tional Library because in their opinion 
three regional libraries are essential. 
Why do you want three more libra
ries in other parts of the country? My 
second point is that why you are 
deadly against the word autonomous 
where there is no apprehension of 
shifting the library at some other 
place in India and where—as you have 
said—about 619 employees are work
ing efficiently without any complaint 
of missing?



91
SHRI P, B . ROY: We d0 not have 

any apprehension in that point. We 
are 9*raid that if it goes out of the 
hand of Government then the Gov
ernment will have no control over 
the national assets that are kept in 
the Library.

DR. B. MUKERJI: Mr. Chair
man, Sir, if you permit me 1 can say 
that this is a recent problem. When 
Mr. Keshavan was in charge of the 
Library there was no problem. When 
Mr. Muley was there, there was no 
problem. This is a recent problem. 
So, the whole structure need not be 
changed. This Library, at the time 
of Lord Curzon, was under autono
mous body. It was brought under the 
Government control and again it was 
changed into an autonomous body. I 
do not understand, while under Gov
ernment for long years it functioned 
efficiently, only for some minor diffi
culties why it should go again under 
an autonomous board.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZALPUR- 
XAR: Books are stolen fvom the 
National Library and there is mis
management. Readers are not getting 
bookg properly. The strength of atten
dance it reducing. So the Government 
wants to improve it by converting it 
into an autonomous body—why do you 
oppose to it?

SHRI C. V. SUBBA RAO: I like to 
stress on three National Libraries in 
India of which one is already existing 
in Calcutta. This Calcutta Library 
will work as a central library. Three 
Libraries should be under the control 
of the Education Ministry so that in 
case of national emergency like war, 
etc. all books and manuscripts will not 
be destroyed. As regards autonomy, 
the Jha Committee has gone into this 
problem. To remedy the ills how can 
the autonomous body function at this 
stage. There is some apprehension in 
the minds of the Calcutta people that 
the Central Secretariat Library is be
ing uplifted. There was no promotion 
for the last 10 years if not more. The 
staff have got frustrated.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Rao, if you 
like to give a broad picture, you may 
please submit your supplementary 
memorandum. This will help this 
Committee to have a clear idea.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: There are 
certain posts which are lying vacant. 
Autonomy would help in filling up 
these posts. My question is whether 
it depends upon the attitude of the 
Government that the institution should 
be developed in the institutional line?
I have heard that the previous libra
rian Mr. |£alia was an incompetent 
person. Through nepotism he came 
in the Library from high circle. He 
could not discharge his responsibility 
efficiently. Shri C. R  Chatterjee, as 
per National Professor, Dr. Suniti 
Kumar Chatterjee, was an efficient 
person to perform the duties as a 
Librarian. But he was deliberately 
kept out of the functioning of the 
National Library. Since you are an 
expert in this aspect I would like to 
point out two things—one is that in 
West European countries barring 
British Museum all other National 
Libraries are under Government con
trol, the another information as we 
have been told by some person whose 
name I do not like to mention, that 
except the Library Congress in Ame
rica the other libraries are under 
autonomous administration. Can you 
give some idea about it?

SHRI P. B. ROY: First of all, I do 
not like to say that Government atti
tude is different. Actually, the red 
tapism is there which is creating the 
problems. Government’s mere sympa
thy will not set the matter in the 
right path. I suggest that some 
powers should be delegated to the 
person who is in charge of the National 
Library. Autonomy, at present, is not 
the solution.

DR. B. MUKERJI: I am not malt
ing any remark against Mr. Kalia or 
Mr. Banerjee. I would like to empha
sise on the point in our country Gov
ernment is trying to convert several 
organisations into autonomous ones. 
I think, 'this is not necessary. If the
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efficiency at the Secretariat level can 
be improved then the functioning of 
Government controlled institutions can 
be developed as it has been run lor a 
long time.

SHRI P. B. HOY: Another Question 
has been asked about other National 
Libraries of the world. On that sub
ject I have here a book entitled 
“National Libraries of the World” 
written by Esdale who was formerly 
the Secretary of the British Museum. 
From this book I find that in Austria 
there is a national library which is 
under Government control. I fnay 
restricted only to West European 
countries. I find that in Greece, Italy, 
Luxumburg, Sweden, Scotland, Ireland 
and Belgium all the National Libra
ries are under Government coritî rl. 
This book published in 1957 and I 
don’t think the situation since then 
has changed much.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: la 
there any country in the world where 
the National Library is an autonomous 
body?

SHRI P. B. ROY: Only the British
Museum. Perhaps in Ceylon I think 
they are going to develop the National 
Library on an autonomous basis. But 
I am not sure,

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is a matter 
of detail which we shall find out. 
This matter would be investigated and 
we need not bother our witness with 
that. Luckily the witness had some 
information and he has quoted from 
a book.

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI: Sir, 
the witness may be requested to give 
us the name of the book in writing.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The name of the 
book as well as what the witness has 
said and you have said have been 
recorded. We shall investigate the 
matter to the extent of our powers 
and possibilities and so you need not 
have any apprehension on that score.

SHW MAHABIR DASS: Sir, the 
witness has said that the present 
system of Government control should

be continued. Perhaps he knows that 
there was an advisory council for this 
National Library and alio he must be 
knowing that in the years 1972-73 the 
total attendance of readers was on the 
average 17 to 16 per cent and the total 
figure was 6441. Keeping in view all 
these things and also the present num
ber of employees at present, i.e. 621, 
dc you think that all the employees 
arc incompetent to run the National 
Library efficiently except only for ohe 
librarian? Will you clarify this point?

DR. B. MUKERJI: I am jxot quite 
clear on the point but I would like to 
say that the difficulties that have been 
observed in 1972 are purely temporary 
because of factors which are probably 
much better known to yourselves than 
to mê  and these temporary difficulties 
can be rectified by keeping the same 
machinery continuing with better 
management under Government con
trol. Merely for the reason of a tem
porary difficulty I don’t think we have 
to pass over from Government control 
to an autonomous institution.

SHRI PATIL PUTAPPA: Sir, it
seems there is an apprehension in the 
minds,of the witnesses that Govern
ment institutions are run better and 
not autonomous institutions. You see . 
the Government itself ig creating more 
holding companies. Thinking that cen
tralisation is not the only solution and 
that decentralisation is the solution, the 
current thinking is to give more ope
rational freedom to public institutions. 
Whereas it is very strange to hear 
from the witnesses that under govern
ment control system an institution can 
function better. This is rather a tra
vesty. I would like to know how 
under government control an institu
tion can be run better rather under 
conditions of more freedom.

DR. B< MUKERJI: It is a case 
which you know better than myself. 
We feel that the government need not 
go in for an autonomous board for <tn 
institution which is already under gov
ernment control. We feel very strong
ly that the National Library is a 
national asset and in my opinion there
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is no reason whatsoever, administra
tive or otherwise, to change the pre
sent programme. The Library was 
being quite efficiently managed from 
the time of Keshavan and also Muley 
but if now certain temporary difficul
ties have arisen, those need not make 
you worried so as to shift the library 
from government control to autonomo
us control.

SHRI PATIL PUTAPPA: So you
have lost faith on the innate ability 
o° people to run an institution?

DR. B. MUKBRJI: i have given 
my own opinion. I have served in 
Government for ten years, in automo- 
mous bodies for ten years, in govern
ing councils and other bodies for ano
ther 20 years and with my forty years’ 
experience which is perhaps longer 
than that of yours I can say and I am 
strongly of the opinion that Govern
ment control is always better than 
autonomous control.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: I think you 
have gone through the report of the 
Review Committee that was set up by 
the Government of India. They have 
made certain suggestions about the 
functions and working of the National 
Library. Do you more or less in gene
ral agree with the recommendations 
of the Review Committee?

SHRI P. B. ROY: We have gone
through the Review Committee's re
port. Previously it was a confidential 
document. We wrote to the Educa
tion Minister also for this, intimately 

 ̂ when the question of submitting a 
memorandum came up, we had to 
secure one copy but we have not 
thoroughly gone through it. However, 
we agree more or less with many 
of the recommendations but not With 
all.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Would yott 
Please after having gone through the 
reeommedations of the Committee give 
us your considered views?

DR. B. MUKERJI: We shall give 
ft^piir views in a supplymentary note.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Now, about 
the administrative structure the Re
view Committee says this, and I 
quote: “The Advisory Council of the 
National Library should be replaced 
by a governing council. Eminent per
sons from universities, that is, educa
tionists, administrators of good work 
and academic bfent of mind, scientists 
of repute and achievement should be 
the members. The Council should be 
instituted by a resolution of the Gov
ernment and not by a statute.'* Do 
you consider that this Bill is either 
a complete repudiation or at least it is 
completely contrary to the recommen
dation that wa8 made by the Review 
Committee which was set up by the 
Government itself and yet the Gov
ernment itself ignoring the recom
mendation that has been made by the 
Committee set up by itself?

SHRI P. B. ROY; We think it is 
contradictory and going against the 
recommendations of the Committee.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are you satis
fied with the working of the National 
Library, at least in recent years?

SHRI P. B. ROY: There have been 
complaints.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You are not
satisfied.

SHRI P. B. ROY: We are not fully 
satisfied.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you think that 
merely by a tightening of the present 
administrative pattern improvements 
which are adequate can be made?

SHRI P. B. ROY: Yes, and the
local authority should also take opi
nions of specialists and experts and 
involve them into the work both in
side and outside the organisation. If 
they can do that we do think that 
there is ample scope of improvement.

MR. CHAIRMAN: So, by improv
ing the composition of the personnel 
who run the Library, by including re
presentatives of different cultural in
terests as well as by vesting the local 
authority with more administrative
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powers you hope to improve the situa
tion.

SHRI P. B. ROY: Yes

MR. CHAIRMAN: The problem,
therefore, according to you is to vest 
the local authority, the administration 
of the National Library with more 
powers and to extend the represen
tative character of the personnel who 
run it.

SHRI P. B. ROY: Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In that case you 
substantially agree with the opinion 
that the National Library should be 
run not as a routine department of 
the Government of India, but is a 
special fashion because special inte
rests have to be represented and 
special rights have to vest in the local 
administration . If that is so, it would 
require some kind of structural change 
in the National Library. Therefore, 
you would certainly expect Govern
ment to come forward with a legisla
tion. In view of your desire to im
prove the operation of the National 
Library, in view of your desire that 
the local administration of the Nation
al Library should be invested with 
more authority, in view of your de
sire that it should not be run as a 
mere department of the Government 
of India, you want a fresh look at 
the National Library, you wilh the 
Parliament to give a law. In that 
light you would like to invest the 
National Library with more powers. 
Perhaps you wish this because the 
National Library is a cultural insti
tution where learned people can carry 
on their work in the manner that 
would be helpful. Do you not think, 
tince you have some acquaintance 
with the Review Committee’s report— 
the Review Committee suggested an 
autonomous organisatiorv—without an 
autonomous, self-respecting organisa
tion of people who could be associated 
with the National Library we cannot 
Improve it? The Review Committee 
suggested it. You agree with me 
there.

SHRI p . B. ROY.* We do not agree 
with autonomy in that sense because 
Review Committee’s recommendation 
was that for everything one has to go 
to Delhi for sanction. For this reason 
they suggested autonomy for local 
authority, so that they can take quick 
decision.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Main fear i* that 
the word autonomy' raises a number 
of spectres of ghosts. We either wel
come it or reject it. Let us forget 
that for the time being. Substantially 
we want improvement. For that 
purpose the administration has to be 
vested with more authority and there 
should be better, wider representa
tion of interests, in so far ag the 
National Library is concerned. For 
that it is necessary to have a changed 
pattern in the operation of the Library. 
Your objection is on account of your 
thought that Government may give 
up responsibilty for the promotion of 
the Library and that Parliament may 
not be able to look after the work of 
the National Library.

SHRI P. B. ROY: We are getting
a little confused. We feel that it is 
possible within the structure already 
existing, . by changing and modifying 
it, without going in for autonomy. The 
word ‘autonomy’ is a kind of parlia
mentary word which we do not under
stand easily. We want to improve 
things. It can be done by changing 
the infra-structure instead of created 
another body.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are interest
ed in eliciting your opinion, whatever 
it is. Whether it is in favour of my 
opinion or not is , a different matter. 
We have got your memorandum. 
Strict attention will be paid to youi 
views. What I want to make 3ure, 
is the fear of the very word ‘autono
my’, the fear of the experience of 
what is autonomy, is uppermost in 
your mind, or, you do not want any 
kind of change in the organisation
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which is run as a subordinate depart
ment of Government?

SHRI P, B. ROY: We want change 
within the Government control, so that 
our interest are looked into properly.
We feel that with some change in the 
infrastructure it is possible to improve 
things.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very 
much.

(The witnesses

SHRI P. B. ROY: I would like to 
thank you. Sir, for giving was this 
opportunity to place our view pointi 
before the Committee Before leaving 
I would like to emphasise that we 
feel, all the improvements can be 
made within the Government control 
by improving the infra-structure and 
we need not going in for an autono
mous body. 

then withdrew.)
II. Shri B. K. Daw, Advocate, Calcutta

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Daw, before 
you give your evidence I would like 
to tell you that your evidence shall 
be treated as public and is liable to 
be published, unless you specifically 
desire that all or any part of the 
evidence that you give should be trea
ted as confidential. Even though you 
may desire the evidence to be treated 
as confidential such evidence is liable 
to be made available to the Members 
of Parliament.

I expect that you have sent a memo
randum, but if you would like to say 
a very few words, either in clarifica
tion or amplification, you may do so.

SHRI B. K. DAW: First of all, the 
Bill is mentioned as the National 
Library Bill and not as the Indian 
National Library. In the Statement of 
Objects and Reasons, in paragraph 2. 
it is written: “Having regard to the 
importance and value of the collection 
in the Library and to the need for 
reorganising and developing the Lib
rary on modern scientific lines on the 
basis of the recommendations of the 
Jha Committee which was appointed 
by the Government of India in 1868 
to suggest measures for the improved 
functioning and future development 
of this Library, it is considered neces
sary that it should be run and admi
nistered by an autonomous Board 
under an Act of Parliament. The Bill 
seeks to give effect to this proposal 
and makes provision inter alia for the 
following:—

Now, the Jha Committee recom
mendations, which were made in 1968 
and are long over due, which should

have been published in the meantime, 
were never published. We have been 
kept in the dark. Regarding the crea
tion of an autonomous board, I do not 
think it can be called as such; it is 
a puppet board. “Autonomy*' is deriv
ed from the Greek word “autonomos” 
meaning an independent body having 
the right and power of self-governa
nce, but this is a puppet board of the 
Central Government. Most of the 
Members i.e. 9 of them will be 
nominated by Government and only 
one by the UGC which is also under 
the control of Government of India. 
So this cannot be called an autonomous 
board but a puppet board of the 
Government of India. By constituting 
this puppet board Government of 
India is only shirking its responsibility 
to impart education in the country. 
But the control is Detained by them. 
This reminds me of the position of the 
East India Company which invested all 
the Kingdom to the Nawab Mirkasim 
but all the powers remained with the 
East India Company Nawab was 
made responsible for the governance 
of the Kingdom but the full power 
was with the East India Company. So 
also this Bill is drafted on the same 
lines. The full control lies with the 
Government of India—only the Board 
is made responsible for the governance 
of the administration without full 
autonomy, without any autonomy at 
all. It is a puppet board controlled 
by the Government of India. No 
responsibility lies with the Govern
ment in case of inefficiency and mis
m anagem ent. As we are criticising 
for mismanagement of the Library 
that is why to shirk the responsibility



96

they have created this board—a puppet 
board. Education is the birth-right of, 
the Indian people which should have 
been included in the fundamental 
rights of the Constitution under Arti
cle 19, Government is nationalising 
coal, steel, banks, wheat, etc. on the 
ground of mismanagement but Gov
ernment in this case is shirking its 
responsibility. It can be expected that 
education matter should be nationali
sed. This should not be given to a 
board, wrongly named as autonomous 
board. This must remain under the 
control of Government. In my opinion 
in order to shirk its responsbility Gov
ernment has brought worward tills 
Bill.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: If the Government feel that
all the necessary changes as you have 
suggested should made in the Bill to 
make it perfectly autonomous with 
minimum Government nominees, what 
will be your opinion then. If all these 
points are taken care of, what are of 
the specific objections for not making 
it statutory autonomy and leaving it 
under the direct control of the Gov
ernment?

SHRI B. K. DAW: There should
have been a para in the Bill re. role 
and responsibilities of the National 
Library. We do *not think it as a 
depository library. We expect it 
should guide and coordinate all biblio- 
grasphical and documentation activi
ties of the country and the total lib
rary system by sitting at its appex. 
That has been clearly avoided in the 
Bill. What are the functions have 
not been stated. So how can I express 
my opinion on that point. Regarding 
public libraries I can express my 
opinion but regarding the National 
Library I cannot express any opinion 
unless the functions of the National 
Library are not clearly defined in the 
Bill.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZALPUR- 
KAR: You have referred to the Board 
as a puppet Board. Suposing that 
puppet is removed what objection you 
have on the Bill.

SHRI B. K. DAW: There should be 
Government control because it is a 
•matter of education. Education and 
health cannot but be managed by 
Government. Education and health 
are the primary functions of the Gov
ernment of India and these should 
not be left to any autonomous Board.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZALPUR. 
KAR: You are opposing the Bill
because certain lacunae are there, 
because of the autonomy, and so I 
want to know from you what is the 
difference between statutory autonomy 
and delegated autonomy.

SHRI B. K. DAW; There cannot be 
any autonomy without statutory. But 
in this matter of education there 
should not be any autonomy because 
it is the primary function of the Gov
ernment of India. It is the birth 
right of the people, it is the funda
mental right of the people and go 
here there should not be any auto
nomy.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: You have 
stated that this Board is a puppet 
Board of the Government. Can you 
suggest how this Board can be a strong 
Board. You have not suggested any
thing about that in your memoran
dum. Secondly, you are always say
ing that health and education should 
be central responsibility. You know 
very well that local Bodies are look
ing after health and education. So, 
you will agree that local Bodies are 
working for the education and health 
and they are running efficiently. Then 
why are you disagreeing with the 
autocttious Board for the National 
Library? -

SHRI B. K. DAW: Because thn* is
a part of the Government, I say it is 
the responsibility of the Government 
of the country. Government of West 
Bengal is also a part and parcel of the 
Government of India. When I say it 
is the responsibility of the Govern
ment of the country it does not mean 
that Government of West Bengal will 
not be responsible in the matter of 
education or health.
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SHRI SAMAR GUHA: But Govern

ment cpn discharge their responsibility 
in the matter of proper functioning 
through a powerful Body sponsored 
by Government.

SHRI B. K. DAW: Government can 
form any Advisory Committee or 
Council or take representation from 
different sections of the people but 
responsibility should not be given to 
any other Board or authority, respon
sibility must be with the Government 
because it is an all-India matter.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: So, instead 
of an autonomous Body you want that 
authority should be- with the Govern
ment and you do not like any change.

SHRI B. K. DAW: I do not like 
any change. Government can take 
fiteps to improve the working of the 
library on scientific ’methods. No 
Board can substitute the Government 
in this respect.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I quite under
stand your disapproval of the clauses 
of the Bill where the composition of 
the Board has been envisaged and the 
suggested composition appears to you 
to be very bad for which you say that 
it is a puppet Board. But at the 
present moment you are aware that 
National Library i6 directly under 
the control of the Central Govern
ment operated as a subordinate office 
and you might al«o know that what
ever Advisory Council may be there 
in the National Library has not shown 
any improvement in the working of 
the Library in recent years and I 
think it is your view also that the 
working has gone from bad to worse.

SHRI B. K. DAW: Yes, that ia alao 
my opinion.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Would you, 
therefore, prefer direct government 
control immediately and directly 
through their own usual accustomed 
method or would you like the Admi
nistration of National Library on a 
different basil in which case what

would be that basis? You need not 
answer it ii you have not given 
thought to this matter.

SHRI B. K. DAW: Sir, on this point 
I say that the responsibility of the 
Government must be there. Regard
ing controlling and administration 
there may be delegated powers i.e. 
the Government may delegate their 
powers and control but rgarding the 
control and management the respon
sibility must be with the Central Gov
ernment and that should not be 
divested in any case. •

MR. CHAIRMAN: Therefore, in 
regard to over-all control of the 
Government and the ro3ponsibility of 
the Government and the Parliament 
for running the National Library you 
want to have some assurance.

SHRI B. K. DAW: Yes, Sir.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Now, in Parlia

ment tfte Ministers have assured that 
the responsibility of the Government 
continues, the answerability of the 
Government in so far g* the adminis
tration of the National Library is 
concerned, the answerability to the 
Parliament continues. It is only a 
matter of adminintrative re-arrange
ment by vesting some authority in the 
jurisdiction of the National Library 
by introducing people who can serve 
the Library more efficiently. Now, 1 
can understand your objection to the 
composition of the board as suggested 
which you called a puppet board. 
Would you like the Bill to be so 
drastically changed that a properly 
representative autonomous organisa
tion can be set up provided at the 
same time Government control and 
parliamentary responsibility continue?

SHRI 6. K. DAW: Yes, I would like 
that.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Mr. Daw, thtak 
you very much for your evidence.

(The witness then withdraw).
III. Shri Bim aA Basu, Students' Federation of India, Calcutta

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Basu, before liable to be published, unless you
you proceed I would live to intimate specifically desire that.all, or any part
to you that the evidence that you give of the evidence givea by you is to be
shall be treated as public and is treated as confidential. Even if you
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might desire that your evidence to be 
treated an confidential such evidence 
is liable to be made available to the 
Members of Parliament,

Now would you like to make a 
brief statement about your views in 
regard to the Bill?

SHRI BIMAN BASU: Mr. Chair
man, Sir, I submitted a memorandum 
opposing the introduction of the BiU 
that National Library should not be 
governed by an autonomous body and 
I have noted this thing in my obser
vation that the National Library 
should be governed toy the Govern
ment and not by any autonomous body 
for the development of the library. 
There are some lacunae in the Library 
services and that is due to the absence 
of a librarian who is absent for a 
pretty long time and it is my view 
that if the National Library gets an 
effective Librarian to look after the 
day to day administration of the 
library then the development of the 
library could be made. Moreover my 
proposition is to develop the library 
services in the country maintaining 
the National Library under whose 
control there would be so many 
regional libraries in Orissa, in Assam, 
in Bihar, in Tamil Nadu, in Uttar 
Pradesh etc. etc. That is in every 
corner of this country there should 
be a library controlled by the Gov
ernment and for that a comprehensive 
Library Bill can be enacted for the 
development of library service in the 
country. That *my first contention. 
My second point is that the library 
should be controlled by the Govern
ment because in that case the students, 
scholars, the research workers and the 
reading public and all those who use 
the library can think that this is a 
national property. I would like to 
mention in this connection that Sir 
Ashutosh Mukerjee donated more 
than 75,000 books but he did not 
know that thii would be turned into 
an autonomous body. So many indi
viduals have donated books and 
collections to the National Library 
and are still donating because the

Library i» being run by the Govern
ment. If it is turned into an autono
mous body then this will not be a 
national property and the students, 
the scholars and the research workers 
would seriously object to it. My 
third point is regarding the grants to 
the National Library. But if the 
Library becomes an autonomous body 
then the monetary grants which are 
received for over-all development of 
this Library ’might be seriously neg
lected. So these are the three con
tentions which I have to make and I 
think that the Library should be con
trolled by the Government instead of 
an autonomous body.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR; You have said that a compre
hensive library legislation should be 
enacted by the Government for gov
erning libraries in Tamil Nadu and 
other states. I would like to remind 
you that under the Constitution the 
maintenance of libraries set up in the 
States are the responsibilities of the 
State Governments whereas the 
National Library, Library of India is 
the responsibility of the Central Gov
ernment of India. It is accepted in 
the Constitution of India. So how 
does he envisage to overcome this 
difficulty? Secondly,' regarding the 
donation of books and collection by 
Sir Ashutosh Mukherjee, if yoji read 
the original letter written by the sons 
of Sir Ashutosh Mukherjee, the four 
brothers, to Shri Maulana Azad and 
Maulana Azad’s reply to them you 
would And that no reference is made 
about either Government controlled 
National Library or an autonomous 
National Library. What is written 
there is if at any time the National 
Library is sought to be shifted to 
Calcutta to. any other place outside 
West Bengal then collection that has 
been made by them may be handed 
over to the Calcutta University and if 
the Calcutta University for some 
reasons doea not take that th^n the 
collection will be handed over to the 
West Bengal Government. So, no
where did the fcons of Sir Aihutosh 
Mukherjee viz., Shri Rama Prasad



99

Mookerjee and others did mention
about the Government controlled 
National Library or an autonomous
National Library. So, under these 
two conditions, may I come to the 
conclusion that for the sake of the 
National Library it is to be managed 
under an autonomous body?

SHRI BJMAN BASU: Unless the
letter of Maulana Abul Kalam Azad 
visualize? the eventuality that some 
day the* National Library may be 
shifted outside Calcutta, the question 
of converting the administrative
system may not perhaps arise.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: 
This ’matter is quite clear. Simply it 
was in the letter of the four sons of 
Sir Asutosh Mukherjee, addressed to 
the then Education Minister, Maulana 
Abul Kalam Azad that if there was 
any likelihood of transferring the 
books, which were donated by Shri 
Ramaprosad Mukherjee and his 
brothers, or in other words if there 
was any likelihood of transferring the 
National Library in other part of 
India then the books should be 
retained in Calcutta. In rep^r to 
that letter late Maulana Abul Kalam 
Azad stated that there was no likeli
hood of transferring the National 
Library.

SHRI BIMAN BASU; Mr. Chair
man, Sir, I am fully conscious about 
the special position of the National 
Library, i  know that the Natiartal 
Library is included in the Seventh 
Schedule of the Constitution of India; 
My proposition is that there may 00  ̂
many regional libraries be opened 
under the Government control in 
various parts of the country and the 
library services can be developed to 
cater to the needs of the reading people 
and for the purpose the Government 
of India can enact a comprehensive 
Library Bill to to make co-ordination 
and to go further for the development 
of library service in the country. My 
second point is that I do not know 
the details of the letter written b y  
Shri Ramaprosada Mukherjee *nd his 
brothers to late Maulana Abul Kalam 
Azad, but I know the sentiment of

not only the reading people but also 
the observation of the students com
munity, research scholars and workers 
and those who are getting facilities 
from the National Library that the 
National Library, in future, would not 
get collections and donations from 
the individuals.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI; How many years you are 
using the facilities of the National 
Library?

SHRI BIMAN BASU: I am using 
the National Library for more than 
three years.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI : During this 3 years have you 
faced any difficulty? If so, I want to 
know that in order to alliviate the 
difficulties do you think this is to be 
handed over to a statutory autono
mous body for better performance. 
Or do you feel that the status quo 
should be maintained by delegating 
scone more power to the authorities?

SHRI BIMAN BASU: About the 
first question I have not faced with 
such troubles, but I have heard from 
my frjends that sometimes they do 
not get proper response from the 
authorities. As regards the second 
point, I suggest that one separate 
department should be attached with 
the Ministry of Education & Culture 
to look after the development of the 
library services in the country and 
•more particularly to look after the 
administration of the National Library. 
So my contention is, National Library 
should remain under Government 
control.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA; The 
students community in India are 
demanding their participation in the 
autonomous body such as Senate and 
University Body which are already 
autonomous. Now, it seems rather 
strange that you are opposing that the 
National Library should not go under 
autonomous administration. In that 
case how the students9 representatives 
would enter into its Board. Is it not
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better to run the administration of 
National Library by some 10, 15 or 20 
people where the students’ represen
tative can take part when it would 
come under autonomous body?

SHRI BIMAN BASU: I do not
consider that these two things are 
similar. In the Universities or in any 
educational institutions the students 
demand to participate in the body to 
fill up the gap between the students 
and teachers.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA*. 50.8 per cent 
of the students are benefitted by the 
lending section of the National Libr
ary and 55.8 per cent are benefitted 
by the reading room section. I want 
to know from my friend whether the 
students have experienced any difficul
ties in using the National Library? If 
so, what are your suggestion to remove 
these difficulties? Whether you have 
got any id*a that the largest quantum 
of the benificiaries of the National 
Library can have any effective say in 
the control and administration of the 
Library?

SHRI BIMAN BASU: In the read
ing room the sutdents face little pro
blem, but in respect of the lending 
section they face some problems. I 
have seen that some copies have be
come rare. If publications and 
pamphlets from other Governments 
i.e. Soviet Government or Chinese 
Government, are required by the 
students, sometimes the students are 
informed that only five copies are 
lying with the Library. But, after 
searching thet inform the students 
that only one COfPy *s lying with them, 
so the authorities refuse to issue these 
publications. So, my suggestion is 
this, while the teachers take books 
tor their reference work and at the 
same time the students also require 
a copv of the same books, Mr. Chair
man Sir, you were also a teacher at 
one time, you know better about thi  ̂
problem—more money should be 
allotted for having more copies of 
th<? rare and costly books In every 
library.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you think that 
the rare and valuable books should

remain in the Library premises and 
should not be lent out. This is not 
i i relation to this Bill. Have you 
thought about this point?

SHRI BIMAN BASU: I am florry to 
state that how will you determine the 
barometer that which book is very 
valuable. Sometimes the books which 
are available in the market, the autho
rities give notification that these 
books are very valuable and rare. 
Sometimes they punched? one copy 
and sometimes they purchase two 
copies of the costly books but these 
are not made available to the research 
workers.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Mr. Ba»iu, I am referring to 
Regional Seminar on Library Deve
lopment of National Libraries held at 
Manila in which Mr. Keshavan parti
cipated who is also the Chief Librarian 
here for many years. Mr. Keshavan 
suggested a very interesting thing, 
stating his own experience that one 
of the causes of frustration and failure 
in these National Libraries are that 
they combined the functidning of 
both the National Library and Public 
Library. Would you think that this 
possibility of delinking this process of 
National Library and Public library 
so that it can become truly a National 
Library and the depositor of national 
culture?

SHRI BIMAN BASU: I do not like 
to gmphasise on the side of public 
library but on the side of the National 
Library. I would like to emphasise
oil the first but not on the second 
point. I think that there should be 
more and more lending facilities.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR; So you think that delinking 
would be one suggestion?

SHRI BIMAN BASU: Yes.
SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 

SHAR: That National Library and 
puWic libraries fthould be delinked in 
the h ea lth y  growth of the institution?

SHRi BIMAN BASU: That can be 
settled. This is related to the mecha



nisation as to how the library can be
* controlled by Government effectively. 

But maintaining the character mecha
nisation should be looked after 
accordingly.

'MR. CHAIRMAN: Br. Basu, you 
and your co-Workers have though 
over the problems of a national system 
of libraries in our country and the 
place of the National Library in Cal
cutta. In the Bill unfortunately there 
is nothing to indicate anything in 
regard to the role of the National 
Library. Have you thought over this 
matter and are you in a position later 
on.

IV. Shri N. K~ Sinha, Retired
MR. CHIRM AN: You are very wel

come Professor Sinha. I have to make 
it clear to you that your evidence 
shall be treated as public and is liable 
to be published unless you specifically 
desire that all or any part of your 
evidence is to be treated as confiden
tial. Even though you might desire 
your evidence to be treated as confi
dential, such evidence is liable to be 
made available to the Members of 
Parliament.

As I was saying, you are very wel
come not only as one of the oldest 
users of th* National Library but also 
as one whom I know very well as one 
of our leading historian. That'is why 
we are happy to have you here. Now, 
members would be asking you some 
questions. But if you prefer, you may 
say a few words either in amplifica
tion or clarification of the points that 
you have made. If you wish you can 
make a statement firot.

SHRI N. K. SINHA: I can make a 
statement if necessary at the end.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Very well, mem
' bers might ask questions.

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI: 
Professor Sinha, you have read the 
Bill. There will be a committee of
10 of whom. 9 will be appointed by the

to send uo a sort of supplementary 
memorandum. Your ideas in regard 
to how the library system in India 
should be organised can be at the dis
posal of the Committee and then if 
possible, the committee might try to 
Incorporate some provisions in that 
regard in the Bill. If you do that 
later, it would be helpful.

SHRI BIMAN BASU: I shall do that 
later on.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very 
much for your evidence.

(The witness then withdrew).

Profeasor of History, Calcutta.
Government. For these 9 persons, 
there are no Qualifications written and 
there is no ago limit as in the case of 
government - servants. So we can 
rsurmise that ,a ^superannuated man 
can be appointed. We a e superan
nuated and so we have just a ray of 
hope that we can be appointed. So 
with these qualifications of these 
persons I want to ascertain from you 
whether the future goverance of the 
library will be better than at present?

. SHRI N. K. SINHA: I would first 
froint out to you that if you do not 
have any objection to my using the 
word—so many nominations make the 

, entire organisation a benami govern
ment organisations. Then I would 
also liki to point out that I would 
like elections in place of nominationr, 
but who would elect? There are 
universities, cultural organisations, 
scientific bodies, library associations.
I would like that these associations 
should elect. Nomination from my 
long experience is a highly person
alised affair and I would therefore 
suggest that no far as qualifications 
are concerned, the best thing would be 
that at least six persons instead of 
being nominated by the Government 
should be elected by these bodies.

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI: 
Do you prefer any age limit, say, not 
above 70?

I c i
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SHRI N. K. SINHA: i am not going 
to prefer any age limit.

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI; So 
you have got a chance to go there.

SHRI N. K. SINHA: I *m just 70 
minus. I do not want to be there and 
I am at my best as a user of the 
library, not as an administrator.

•
SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWALA: 

Are you happy with the working of 
the library aft it is governed today? 
What are the problems you feel, what 
difficulties are being faced by the 
readers?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: So far as I am 
concerned, I have personally no com
plaint because \ am well looked after. 
But my students, my old students say 
that they have to wait for, say, three 
hours after which they are told that 
the book is not in its place, or it is 
brittle or it is missing. Thw means 
that service has to a large extent 
deteriorated. Moreover, I should say 
there has been a greater demand for 
text books. It has become practically 
to a certain extent text book library. 
Students flock to this library in such 
larga numbers that it has become 
difficult for the people to cope with 
the increased demand. What I feel 
is that it should not be a text book 
library.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWALA: 
Do you mean to say that there should 
be a separate text book section alto
gether from the National Library or 
that it should be a part of it?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: The colleges 
and the universities should have 
libraries of their o\̂ n. I can just 
point out to you that in the Presidency 
College Library Professor Tarak Nath 
Sen was placed in charge of the 
library and it has become a model 
college library—the best reference 
media I could find out, and he was 
such a devoted worker that when I 
go to the Presidency college library, 
there fc no difficulty in spotting out 
the reference at once,

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI; Is 
not the Presidency College a govern
ment institution?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: It is but gov
ernment is so niggardly in its grants 
that students do not find books there. 
But then Professor Sen was respon
sible for making the library as upto 
date as possible. So it will be better 
if the college and university libraries 
specialise in text books. Of course, 
for rare books, the students should go 
to the National Library but they 
should go there with chits from their 
professors that these books are neces
sary. That would to a certain extent 
minimise pressure.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWALA: 
Prof. Sinha, do you think, if the 
financial grant to the National Library 
is raised, then all the problems will 
be solved automatically?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: Provided the 
money is well spent. The book grant 
must be increased.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWALA: 
To what level?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: T0 what level 
is difficult for me to say, but with 
the riiie in prices of books, I think it 
is necessary to double the amount. 
Otherwise, it is difficult to make it a 
National Library.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWALA: 
What are your suggestions for the 
improvement of the Library?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: I would suggest 
that there should be no Director for 
the Library. The Librarian is at the 
top of the Library, of the profession. 
Why should he be called a Director? 
It has a bureaucratic connotation and, 
it seems, he will be doing only admi
nistrative work. He should take 
loving care of books.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Librarian of a
National Library is an important 
enough designation.

SHRI N. K. SINHA: Yes, it should 
not be changed. I have stated this
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in my memorandum. You have said 
in the Bill—he should have academic 
qualification or librarianship quali
fication. I should prefer both. I 
would even say that even if a good 
scholar has not the qualification of a 
librarian, he may do the work.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL A: 
This Bill is being opposed by a large 
section of people here. What are the
regions, according to you?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: I think the
’main reason is that it would perhaps 
sink to the position of a regional 
library. They may be right or wrong, 
but they have a feeling that it will be 
sinking to that position.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Prof tSinha, if I 
may say so, because you are a very 
distinguished man, you meet many 
other people in this region, so four as 
the status of the National Library is 
concerned, there have been repeated 
Government assurances and the assu
rances have been repeated in the 
Committee by the Minister himself 
that this will remain the National 
Library of India and will continue to 
be located at Calcutta, at least, in so 
far as the present envisagement of 
the Government is concerned

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWALA: 
Prof Sinha, Government has given 
repeated assurances in Parliament 
and it has been said that the national 
character of the Library will never 
be disturbed. Still there are certain 
misapprehensions in the minds of the 
people in Calcutta. What would you 
suggest to do, so that this misap
prehension may be removed?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: There was a 
growing feeling of neglect and the 
ground was that such a small grant 
was made and so few books were 
purchased that we felt that the 
Library ceased to be up to date. 
Sufficient grant was not received—it 
must be an up to date library, collec
tion of books must be up to date. 
Moreover, certain appointments were 
made in recent years and we felt that 
the Secretariat was negligent. That 
is the main thing.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWALA: 
On the one hand there is a charge 
that the Secretariat is neglecting and, 
on the other hand, there is a demand 
that the Government should control 
the Library directly. How do you ex
pect us to resolve it?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: I have sug
gested that the Librarian of the Na
tional Library should have the status 
of a Joint Secretary and he should 
have the direct access to the Minister 
so that secretariat mal-function does 
not affect the National Library.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWALA: 
You do not think that the provisions 
made in the Bill will solve the prob
lem.

SHRI N. K. SINHA: I do not think 
they can solve the problem.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Tracing the 
history of the birth of the National 
Library—it is almost one and half a 
century now—could you kindly tell 
us what is the justification for the 
location of the Library in Calcutta. 
People from Trivandrum, Tamil Nadu 
complain that it should be located at 
some central place. So what are the 
historical and other justification you 
can put forth in favour of its loca
tion in Calcutta?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: I have seen 
students coming from all parts of 
India. National Archives (previously 
named Imperial Archives) was once 
located in Calcutta. It has since been 
transferred to Delhi. Many persons 
in Calcutta have made gifts of books 
to National Library. I have seen Sir 
Ashutosh Library where 77 thousand 
books were collected so carefully and 
so meaningfully. Dr. Radha Binode 
Pal made over the entire proceedings 
of the Tokyo Trial. All those files 
are there, Ve(ry few people could 
do this. Any body who wants to as
sess the part played by Japan during 
the last war can go to that place and 
collect all the evidence I have seen 
many rare books. I have seen the 
colections in the India Office but at 
least four-fifth collection is here in 
the National Library. So many per
sons. composed to a large extent of 
the collections from the citizens of



104
Calcutta, have presented their gifts 
to the National Library and their 
condition was that the National Li
brary should remain in Calcutta.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: How you 
can disabuse the mind of others that 
the benefits, privileges, scopes, etc. 
should be equally extended to other 
scholars also?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: By making 
scholarship grant, meeting travelling 
expenses, making reservation of 
accommodation for them in the 
premises of National Library.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: As regards 
control, out of 10, 9 members will be 
nominated by Govt, in the General 
Council and there will be a small 
executive body. It will be a Govt, 
controlled bodV but in legal shape it 
will be a statutory body. Govt, have 
full control without any responsi
bility. What is your opinion with 
regard to that.

SHRI N. K. SINHA: Power divorced 
from responsibility is always bad. 
A s I suggested, six persons can 
be elected by library associations, 
scientific instutions, universities and 
by different cultural associations. In 
that ca£e it will be really a democra
tic body and at the same time Govt, 
can play a beneficient role.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: But if it 
becomes an autonomous body by sta
tute, in meeting the necessary funds 
whether you feel that for the auto
nomous body it will be difficult to 
get funds from the Central Govern
ment. After all, as you see, it is not 
a productive body. It is an institu
tion of intellectuals. So, do you feel 
that in that case National Library 
will find any difficulty in getting 
necessary financial grants from Govt.

SHRI N. K. SINHA: Of course, I 
do not know the ways of Govt. I 
cannot say how this happen but my 
opinion is that it is neglected.

SHRI DHARAM RAO AFZALPUR- 
KAR: You want an elected repre
sentative Body on the one hand to 
govern the library but on the other 
hand you want it to remain under 
the Govt, control. .

SHRI N. K. SINHA: In place of
nomination I suggest election. I have 
already said that the status of Libra
rian should be that of a joint Secre
tary who should have direct access to 
Minister. In that way I meant de
partmental control. In that sense it 
is not contradictory, I think.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR:What would you consider ab
out suitable fund for the Library to 
come from? We find that in the year 
1958 the budget of the National Li
brary of USA was 10 million dollars 
with a strength of staff of 2,500. In 
view of that, what is your estimate 
for our Library here?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: It should be 
consistent with our resources.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: There is a great resistance 
coming from every corner about the 
question whether the status of the 
National Library will be statutory 
autonomous Body like the universi
ties or it should function as a 
department of the Government. If 
you think that it should function as a 
department of Government with a good 
and efficient librarian then what would 
be the purpose of the elected govern
ing council because they will have no 
power—librarian himself will be 
directly responsible to Government. 
Then what would be the role of the 
elected governing Council which you 
propose if the Library remains under 
the control of the Government? The 
main purpose of the Bill is to make 
it a statutory autonomous Body. What 
is your view about this?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: I do not
approve of the word ‘statutory*. All 
that I can say that it should be 
delegated autonomy.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Then how do you reconcile 
the function of the governing Coun
cil vis-a-vis the Librarian and the 
Government?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: Librarian can
not be subjanta, he must take advice 
of other persons, viz., the representa
tives of the cultural associations, of 
librarians, representatives of univer
sities. Besides, instead of this Body  ̂
meeting once a year as now it should
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meet 3/4 times a year. ' So, it should 
be an advisory Body.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: You suggest that Advisory 
Body may be reconstituted in such a 
manner that they should meet fre
quently and advise the Librarian. 
But should they frame any rules and 
regulations for running of the library?

SHRI N. K. SINHA: If necessary 
they can. I agree to delegated auto
nomy. Rules and regulations framed 
by them are to be approved by 
Government.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZALPUR- 
KAR: I welcome your idea that Na
tional Library should be located in 
Calcutta. But India is a very big 
country—it is a sub-continent—and it 
is not also a rich country, rather it 
is a poor country, and so the financial 
aspect must also be considered at all 
levels. So, what is your idea that 
instead of having one National Li
brary located in Calcutta, in the eas
tern India, if we have 3 more, one 
in the west, one in the south and 
the third must be in the north be
cause almost all the scholars and 
students must get the benefits out of 
the National Library. Otherwise, 
scholars of south might not be so rich 
as to come to Calcutta and stay here 
to study. What is your opinion about 
this.

SHRI N. K SINHA: My opinion is 
that if you want to improve the sta
tus of the regional library to Na
tional Library I have no objection 
but don’t demote the status of the 
present one because the present Na
tional Library has got a collection 
which other libraries have not got. 
Those rare things you cannot find 
anywhere else and at the same time 
you cannot transfer them.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Sinha, I per-
V. Shri S. K. Gupta

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Gupta, be
fore you proceed I would like to in
timate to you that the evidence you 
give here shall be treated as public 
and is liable to be published, unless

sonally feel your memorandum to be 
very useful and there are a number 
of suggestions in it which, to my mind 
are extremely valuable. Now, I would 
only ask you that in view of the diffi
culty of finding an ideal librarian 
who can satisfy all the requirements 
viz., intellectual, administrative, per
sonal and other, is it not desirable 
that there should be a body of people, 
the majority of whom, would be intel
lectuals, self-respecting scholars who 
are not accustomed to deal with Gov
ernment Departments but who will be 
very effective* for the administration 
of the National Library to look after 
the management of the National Li
brary? Is it not better if the Library 
is run by them?

ISHRI N. K. SINHA: That would be 
ideal from my point of view but ideals 
are not always attainable.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is it desirable to 
run the library with the assistance of 
other people who are intellectually 
eminent and administratively capable 
so that they can form a good team? I 
ask this question because the Advisory 
Committee of the National Library 
has not met even once since 1967 and 
being an Advisory Committee its 
powers are extremely limited. So in 
order to have a better administration 
of the Library we should have some 
sort of a body of people with the Li
brarian or ‘Director’ or whatever you 
call him, and that body should be 
vested with some real authority so that 
they are not called upon to wait for 
orders from Delhi. They will carry on 
their own business make their own pro
jects, recruit staff and to some extent 
they will have the independent autho
rity. Would it not be an experiment 
which you would like.

SHRI N. K. SINHA: Yes, with dele
gated authority.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. 
Sinha.

[The witness then withdrew]
I.C.S (Rtd. Calcutta)

you specifically desire that all or any 
part of the evidence given by you is 
to be treated as confidential. Even 
if you might desire that your evidence 
to be treated as confidential such evi
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dence is liable to be made available 
to the Members of Parliament.

Now, Mr. Gupta, we have got your 
memorandum which is fairly explana
tory and I hope the Members would 
have had time to go through it. If 
you want to make a short statement 
on it you can do so. If you do not 
want to make any statement then the 
Members will put questions to you.

SHRI S. K. GUPTA: Mr. Chair
man, Sir. I am not going to make any 
statement on the note that I have 
already submitted. There I have 
stated that the Bill does not represent 
the recommendations of the Review 
Committee and suggested that the Bill 
be dropped. But in case it is decided 
that the Bill should be proceeded 
with, I have got certain further ob
servations to make because in the Bill 
I find that certain inconsistencies and 
blemishes which have got to be cor
rected before it goes to Parliament. I 
have not dealt with these matters in 
my note for the simple reason that 
I argued that there was no need for a 
Statutory Board. Now, I am prepar
ed to answer any question which the 
Honourable Members may be pleased 
to ask.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Mr. Chair
man, Sir, I rise on point of clarifica
tion. The honourable witness has put 
a very difficult question. He had 
said if the Bill is not withdrawn and 
if there is the provision for a statu
tory board then he will make certain 
observations. We do not know whe
ther the Bill would be withdrawn or 
it would be passed by the Parliament. 
We do not konw whether we have the 
right to ask such question. We are 
here in a Joint Committee and we 
should discuss on the merits and de
merits of Bill and on the fundamental 
principles of the Bill as it has been 
introduced in the Parliament. We can 
improve upon the Bill. So, we want 
to know as to what are the necessary 
changes that the honourable witness 
visualises, should be enlightened so 
that we can put questions to him.

SHRI S. K. GUPTA: In my note I 
have already dealt with that. If the 
honourable Members want I can re
read that. But it would be superflu
ous. '

SHRI SAROJ MUKHERJEE: He
is referring to the Jha Committee, As 
he was one of the members of that 
Committee and he has got some defi
nite conclusion and opinion regarding 
the Bill, his evidence is very impor
tant. Henee he may state in brief his 
main points.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Gupta has 
stated in a public meeting that he was 
ready to do whatever he could do 
help in this matter. He has now come 
here to help us. We have now to find 
out the deficiencies in the structure 
of the Bill, if any. Necessary improve
ment may be made so that it can 
accommodate the Jha Committee’s 
recommendation. I think, we should 
not put any kind of complicated and 
legalistic question as to how it is to be 
formulated.

SHRI S. K. GUPTA: I have drawn 
up my points iji summary from last 
night. I am prepared to read it out. 
I do not like you to bother you with 
a detailed scrutiny of the Bill. First, 
I would deal with the administrative 
machinery.

In clauses 4, 5, 6, 8 and 13 of the 
Bill there are references to the com
position of the Board of the National 
Library. My first objection is to the 
appointment of two Secretaries of the 
Gentral Government Ministry as ex
officio members of the Board. I have 
bo objection to the other members 
being nominated or hand picked by 
the Government because in this matter 
there is no scope for election. More
over election is not always the best 
method of setting up such specialised 
and learned bodies.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Then do you mean to say
that we should dissolve the Parlia
ment? You know Parliament is an 
elected body of members then how do 
you apprehend that fair election: will 
not be done in the Board?
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SHHI S. K. GUPTA: I mean to
Bay that 0 members out of 10 may be 
nominated by the Government be
cause there are no conceivable con
stituencies from which they may be 
elected.

As regards Clause 4(1) (C) I sug
gest that it may be considered whe
ther the word ‘Educationist’ should 
be retained or be substituted by some 
other word. Surely ‘educationist’ is 
something more than mere ‘educated’. 
Does it mean one who is or was en
gaged in teaching? If so, should you 
exclude scholars who enrich our stock 
of knowledge but do not do any tea
ching themselves men like John Stu
art Mill, for example? As regards 
Clause 5, I have already said that it 
should be deleted. The Director sho
uld be Chairman ex-officio and his 
salary fixed by statute instead of by 
rules. There is some embiguity about 
the tenure of the Chairman and the 
nominated member. Clause 6(1), says 
that their tenures will be 3 years from 
the date on which they assume office 
but clause 4(2) says that a nomination 
take effect as soon as it is notified on 
the official gazette. Similarly a clause 
13(2) says that the Director’s tenure 
will be for 5 years from the date on • 
which he assumes office, which is in 
flat contradiction to what had been 
stated in clause 6(1) if my suggestion 
that the Director should be Chairman 
is accepted. The ambiguity between 
the date of publication in the official 
gazette and the date of actual assump
tion of office should be cleared in res
pect of all nominated members. My 
suggestion is that the Director should 
be the Chairman and therefore, the 
word ‘Chairman* should be deleted 
from Clause 6(1) because the Chair
man’s tenure has been later fixed by 
clause 13(2). Clause 6(3) provides 
for filling up casual vacancies due to 
resignation or any other reason9. 
‘Other reasons’ can only be death or 
removal. There is no substantive pro
vision for ‘removal9 in the main body 
of the Bill though clause 29(2) (c) em
powers Government to frame rules for 
prescribing disqualifications and lay

ing down the procedure for ‘removal* 
of a member. Since rules can be 
made only to give effect to the provi
sions of the Act [See clause 29(1)]. 
This seems somewhat, anomolous.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Gupta, the
suggestions are very important. If 
you place your suggestions Clause by 
Clause, with due regard to you I may 
say it will be only wastage of time. 
If you be very kind enough to send 
us your valued suggestion in a sup
plementary memorandum then it will 
be a valuable asset to our Committee. 
I think you will not.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: I think 
this clause by clause discussion will 
take much time. So, if the honourable 
witness so desires he may kindly 
place his supplementary memorandum 
and that will be very helpful to us.

SHRI S. K. GUPTA: If you will
accept my supplementary note I will 
do that. May I know when it can be 
placed.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You can place 
it by the middle of July.

SHRI S. K. GUPTA: As regards the 
staff, while retaining their status and 
staff, while retaining thflir status «and 
right as Central Government employ
ees, may be deemed to be on deputa
tion to the National library because it 
is one of their grievances that their 
status is being reduced overnight from 
that of a Central Government employ
ees to a local Authority emloyees. As 
regards finance, I have already given 
my suggestions at the end of my me
morandum. There are certain words 
in different parts of the Bill which 
emphasise the strict control which 
Central Government wants to keep 
over the apparently autonomous 
Library. They should be softened. My 
specific suggestion, in addition to 
giving greater liberty to tlib National 
Library is that if you really want to 
have a statutory National Library, 
there should be a provision in the Act 
so that in time it may develop into a 
something like a constellation with the
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present National library being the 
Centre and with branches in different 
parts of India working under the 
general supervision. That is, if the 
apex library is in Calcutta, there 
might be branch libraries in Bombay, 
Delhi, Madras and other places. No 
rival national library should be set up.

I was initially in favour of a statu
tory body but in course of discussion 
among members of the Review Com
mittee, I perceived that a statutory 
body would be worse than a body set 
up by Government resolution. The 
moment you set up a statutory body it 
will stand apart from the main stream 
of governmental activity and lose 
direct touch with government. It will 
receive step-motherly treatment in 
matters of finance. Now that can be 
partly remedied if by statute a mini
mum grant is set apart for it every 
year, say 20 or 30 lakhs^vhich must 
not be reduced in any case. It may 
be increased if more work is taken in 
hand but a minimum sum must be 
guaranteed by statute.

The bill provides that Government 
may, during the financial year. pro
vide funds for the National Library 
by way of grant or loan or ‘otherwise’.
I do not understand how the National 
Library will repay a loan when it has 
no independent source of income. Why 
introduce the word loan at all? And 
What is the meaning of ‘otherwise* even 
if we overlook the grammatical sole
cism.

*

Elaborate provisions have been made 
as regards disposal of funds and their 
investments, which, I think rather 
disregards the actual conditions of the 
Board will have to face in the course 
of its administration. There will hardly 
be any scope for such investments as 
have been envisaged in this Bill as 
after tneeting its book budget and the 
recurring and capital costs there will 
hardly be any surplus left which can 
be used for short or long term in
vestment.

Clause 24 provides for an annual re
port which is a very good thing. But 
the annual report, it says should not 
only cover the work of the year under 
report but also deal with the work to 
be covered next year. This seems to 
me to be rather funny if not absurd.
A report always deals with, a parti
cular year but it does not foreshadow 
the work of the next year which is 
generally reflected only in the Budget 
My suggestion is that the last portion 
of clause 24 (2) should be deleted.

Now i come to the last part of my 
evidence which deals broadly with 
certain legal points that I want to 
raise. It seems to me that clause 28 
is misconceived. It says that no suit or 
prosecution or other legal proceedings 
jaoHjo jo Jaquiaui Xub jsutbSb 9ii HBqs 
of the Board for acts done in ‘good 
faith*. What is ‘good faith* has not 
been defined in the Bill. Now there 
are generally two definitions of good 
faith which lawyers refer to. One is 
in the Indian Penal Code and the 
other is in the General Clauses Act. 
(Here the witness quotes the definition 
as far as possible from memory). My 
contention is this that ‘good faith* may 
protect you from punishment in a 
criminal proceeding but does not save 
you from damages against any person 
in a civil suit. Yet, the words ‘suit 
or legal proceedings, are wide enough 
to cover both civil suits and criminal 
proceedings. This point has to be 
looked into.

Clause 17(2) says that from the date 
the Act comes into operation all liabili
ties of the Central Government due on 
account of the National Library will 
be shifted to the statutory Board of 
the National Library and the Central 
Government will no longer be liable 
for them. My point is that what is a 
liability to the Central Government is 
‘alright’ of some part or parties to 
whom such liability is owed such a 
right is a right to ‘property’ and can
not under the Constitution be unilater* 
ally extinguished by a mere Parlia
mentary enactment without payment 
of compensation. This will have to 
be looked into.
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These are all my points. I am sorry 
I have taken too much of your time.

MR. CHAIRMAN Mr. Gupta, we 
will consider your suggestions and try 
to make tl\e Act as good as possible.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Mr. Gupta
you have suggested that the present 
employees of the Library may be 
treated as on deputation to the Board 
while retaining their status as 
employees of the Central Government. 
That solves the problem of the 
existing employees. But that does not 
solve the problem of future recruit
ment or rather future recruitees.

SHRI S. K. GUPTA. Assuming that 
the National Library will in future be 
under a statutory Board, the future 
recruitees will be employees only of 
the Board and will not enjoy the same 
status as are enjoyed now by the exis
ting employees. That contingency has 
to be faced.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: What will
be the constitutional position of the 
government? Whether the Government 
will not be able to force any employee 
of the National Library to be in 
service of the new body which will 
be under statutory provision?

SHRI S. K. GUPTA: That is a cons
titutional point and you should ask a 
Constitutional lawyers? According to 
English law, a Government employee 
used to hold office during the pleasure 
of the Crown and had no remedy but 
I think it is changed now. Here, in 
India the right is based on a sort of 
contract between the Government and 
the. employee and, therefore, as long 
as he is not doing anything which 
makes him liable to removal or other 
punishment, he is entitled as long as 
his term does not express to continue 
to be in the Government service and, 
Government cannot j*ust show him on 
to another body without his consent. 
An employee can be deputed but he 
retains the right of an employee of the 
Central Government.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA; Mr. Gupta, 
the provision to clause 15 appears to 
me to be a little contradictory. It
has been stated that the tenure re
muneration and terms and conditions 
of service of any such person shall not 
be altered. Second it creates further 
apprehension—it says, shall not be 
altered to his disadvantage without 
the previous approval of the Central 
Government.

SHRI S. K. GUPTA. You are giving 
by one hand what you are taking away 
by another. Once you say, these things 
cannot be done and, then, you add you 
can do it with the approval of the Gov
ernment.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: I would like 
to know whether this provision would 
create a genuine apprehension in the 
minds of the employees of the National 
Library that they may be deprived of 
the benefits they are enjoying now, if 
the Bill is passed.

SHRI S. K. GUPTA: The thing is 
perfectly clear Change in service 
conditions cannot be done without the 
previous approval of the Central 
Government, but if the Government 
approves it can be done. In such 
circumstances, a genuine apprehension 
can reasonably be entertained.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: This Bill 
deals only with skeleton structure of 
the administrative machinery, but 
functioning and working of different 
branches and day to day activities, 
financial control, everything will be 
done by the rules framed under the 
Act—99.9 per cent of functionings
and workings will be done by the 
rules framed under the Act. They 
want to make it a statutory, auto
nomous Board, but according to the 
clause, the Central Government may 
by notification in official gazette make 
rules to give effect to the provisions 
of the Act. Even though they give 
power to the Board that they visualise 
to constitute a Board, the Board will 
not frame the rules. The Board
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is constituted as an autonomous Body, 
but all the rules, 99.9 per cent of 
them, will be framed by the Govern
ment. Do you think it will negate the 
whole concept?

SHRI S. K. GUPTA: In my written 
memorandum I have given point by 
point replies to what you are suggest
ing by referring to the different clause 
of the Bill. While proposing to give 
autonomy the government retains its 
stranglehold at every stage. I have 
also made it clear that the function of 
the National Library has nowwhere 
been defined. All that it says is that 
it should be run on modern, scientific 
lines and the blessed word scientific 
is a cover for loose thinking. Whether 
a question is one policy or not will 
be decided by the Government. Even 
if it is not really a question of policy, 
the decision of the Central Govern
ment that it is so according to sub
section (2) of clause 25,—shall be 
final.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Gupta, there 
is a provision in clause 25(2). “The 
decision of the Central Government 
shall be final/’ So, the Board is being 
vested with certain powers within 
the ambit of the rules made by the 
Central Government which are laid 
before the Parliament. So, we shall 
go into this and. I do not think there 
is any purpose in going into it now.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: You have 
said, certain minimum fund or a mini
mum limit to expenditure should be 
fixed somewhere in this Bill. As you 
know, this kind of institutions will 
not be productive type of institutions 
and in the intellectual sphere there is 
no optimum limit of expenditure. If 
we increase expenditure, it. will in
crease national talents and national 
power. If it is converted into a statu
tory body and a minimum limit is set, 
do you think that it will cripple 
future growth of the nation?

SHRI S. K. GUPTA: We may give 
credit to Government for good inten
tions. Xf the Government does not 
Realise tto importance of the National 
Library it will only limit the growth

of the nation’* intellectual advance 
ment.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: Clause 4 relates to the com
position of the Board. Government is 
getting control of it and at the same 
time neglecting the responsibilities. 
That means by the backdoor Govern
ment is keeping control with the help 
of nominated members. If today we 
provide a statutory grant of Rs. 40 
lakhs do you not think that after 10 
years when the price will rise with 
the help of a committed body Gov
ernment may not try to throttle this 
Institution and make it a regional 
library?

SHRI S. K. GUPTA: As regards
the composition of the Board; all will 
depend on the type of nomination. 
If Government nominates people of 
the right sort who do not want pro
motions or other jobs, men who are 
real scholars, and interested in the 
advancement of learning you may 
have a very good board even by 
nomination. You can pick people 
from different spheres—from univer
sities and academies from scholars of 
repute even from among good ad
ministrators.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: Nomination is generally done 
by bureaucrats. Even from educa
tionists they will try to pick up such 
persons who will follow their dictum. 
On the other hand if you ask the 
universities, associations to nominate 
persons, the control will not be en
tirely left in the hands of Government.

SHRI S. K. GUPTA: It is toot un
likely that nominations will in the 
first instance come from the bureau
cracy but it is also possible that 
Ministers and others for example even 
the chairman of today may make a 
suggestion that such and such person 
is a very fit person and this should 
receive respectful consideration. In 
the case of the National Library I 
think that suggestions from the aca
demic world to the Minister directly 
should carry greater weight than 
suggestions from the bureaucracy—I 
do not accept your suggestion that
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nomination is always made by the 
bureaucracy. It is made partly by the 
Minister. It is also made in con
sultation with the Minister’s own 
partymen.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: please look at page 3# item 5 
of your memorandum regarding selec
tion of staff etc. would you like to 
subscribe to this?

SHRI S. K. GUPTA: Yes, this is
the recommendation of tihe Jha Com
mittee, not mine.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Would you also like to suggest 
that this principle should be adhered 
to in the case of staff representation?

SHRI S. K. GUPTA: No staff ap
pointment should be made on merit, 
on the basis of the quantities neces
sary for the job. For a vacancy in 
the Tamil section you cannot appoint 
a n<m-Tamil-knowing Maharastrian. 
There are certainly many different 
branches in the Library where auto
matically people of linguistic regions 
have got to be appointed but in the 
matter of general administration I do

VI. Shri Chinmohan

MR. CHAIRMAN: Please note that 
the evidence you give here would be 
treated as public and would be liable 
to be punished unless you specifically 
desire that all or any part of your 
evidence should be treated as confiden
tial. But even though you may de
sire that all or part of your evidence 
is to be treated as confidential such 
evidence is liable to be made avail
able to Members of Parliament. This 
is an intimation which I have to give.

Now, we have got your memoran
dum and personnally have found it 
very helpful. Before Members ask 
you questions to which you are to 
answer I would like you to say, if 
you think it neessary, in a few words 
your ideas about the functions of the 
National Library and also about the

not advocate tihe doctrine of different 
linguistic representation.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: What
would you suggest to make the Na
tional Library broadbased.

SHRI S. K. GUPTA: I have already 
given two suggestions. First, the 
Jha Committee suggested that the 
Board should, as far as possible, have 
members coming from different re
gions and they may retire by rotation. 
And my own suggestion that the 
National Library should be an appex 
round which there should grow a 
number of regional libraries in diffe
rent parts of India. We are in fact 
very far belhind the western and other 
countries in the matter of learning 
and therefore a lot of leeway has to 
be made for its expansion. That can 
be done by setting a large number of 
regional libraries in different parts of 
India under the aegis of the National 
Library in Calcutta at the top.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you.
(The Committee adjourned at 13.00 
hours to meet again at 15.00 hours)

(The Committee re-assembled at
15.00 hours)

Sehan&vis, Calcutta
pattern of the Library administra
tion.

SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS:
I have already tried to make a few 
points in my previous letter to the 
Lok Sabha Secretariat and what I 
submit now would be in addition to 
that. Any attempt to regularise and 
improve the work of the National 
Library and to set it on a firm foun
dation is welcome. However, since 
the Bill has been brought after so 
many years it was expected tfiat it 
would be a comprehensive Bill co
vering at least th© basic aspects of 
the question involved consequent up
on the recognition of the National 
Library as the apex of the library 
system in this country. At the mo
ment it is not such a Bill as it itself 
says that its aim is ‘to provide for
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an administration of the # National 
Library and certain other* connected 
matters'. A really comprehensive Bill 
of course will require a previous sur
vey undertaken with the aim of work
ing out a proper working model in 
place of the present system, and 
naturally it will take some time be
fore sudh a Bill can be brought be
fore the Parliament. If, however, the 
Government feel that things are so 
bad that something has to be done 
right now, it must be ensured sub
sequently a really comprehensive Bill 
based on the recognition of the 
National Library as the apex of the 
library system in our country will be 
brougt before the Parliament. The 
Bill as it stands today needs modifi
cation in some important respects. 
Over and abo>re, the ones I lhad sug
gested in my previous letter, it must 
be clearly mentioned in Section 2(a) 
of Chapter I that Library means the 
National Library located at Calcutta 
including the Central Reference Lib
rary because the task of compiling 
the national bibliography at present 
being handled by the latter, actually 
in the fitness of the things, it belongs 
to the National Library as such and 
this thing thas now to be regularised. 
Under Section 5 of Chapter 2, the 
Chairman of the Board is to be 
appointed by the Central Government. 
This may be done for the first year 
but subsequently he should be eleted 
by the Board itself from amongst its 
members. Section 9(3) of Chapter II 
should be deleted. Section 10 of 
Chapter II Should also be deleted and 
the Board itself should be built up 
as the real authority enjoying wide 
powers. After Section 14(2) it should 
be added, “provided that the condi
tion of service of officers and emplo
yees in service prior to the commen
cement of the Act shall not be len 
advantageous or favourable than the 
existing ones”. Much of the misap
prehension on the part of the emplo
yees about the autonomous Board is 
on that score and a clear assurance in 
this regard will go a long way to re
move such misgivings. A provision in 
the Bill itself of the ultimate account

ability of the Board to the Parlia
ment both in regard to its work, its 
performance as also its handling of 
finance will be helpful. Clause 26 
under Chapter V should be delected 
as it provides for the abdication of 
power by the Board. This is all that 
I have got to submit before you 
now.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND FARAS- 
HAR: It seems that you are in favour 
of an Autonomous Board. Do you 
think that the Board in order to be 
truly representative must have repre
sentation from all over India and the 
States being represented simultane
ously at least by rotation and that 
major societies or Universities should 
represent in the Board?

SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS: 
I think it can be helpful if we use 
the system of rotation periodically. 
And naturally the learned societies, 
the universities or such Bodies should 
find a place in the Board periodically 
by rotation.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARAS- 
HAR: You have suggested that the
Chairman in the first instance should 
be appointed by Government but sub
sequently he should be elected by the 
Board. Don’t you think that the 
proces of election does not always 
favour the right type of person to be 
at the right place and for that pur
pose would it not be better keeping 
in view the high status it enjoys, if 
the Vice-President of India or some 
such dignitary should be ex-fficio 
Chairman of this Board? Yesterday 
some one suggested that the Governor 
should be the Chairman of the Board 
as is the case with the Salarejung 
Museum.

SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS: I 
feel that the composition of the Board 
is the basic thing. If we can ensure 
that then the proper chairman would 
be elected. I do not like the idea of 
the Governor or any other dignitary 
being put at the head of the Board.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: 
When you support the idea of elected » ’
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board does it mean that you support 
the idea of statutory autonomy?

SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS: 
What actually I have said in my pre
vious letter about the board is that the 
Governing Council of the Board, ex
ercising real authority, shall consist 
of say 21 distinguished educationists, 
eminent professors, men of letters and 
science and a few administrators with 
an academic bent of mind. The 
selection has to be made in such a 
manner that various regions and in
terests are represented, as far as pos
sible, in the Council.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: But 
who will appoint the Board? Will it 
be by an Act of Parliament?

SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS: 
It should be by an Act of Parliament.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: That 
means you support the idea of statu
tory autonomy. Is it correct?

SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS: 
Yes.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Your idea is 
that there should be a comprehensive 
Bill. Before that you suggested cer
tain steps. May I know what is your 
idea about the comprehensive Bill as 
stated by you? Would you give some 
of the points?

SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS: 
This is bound up with the question 
of the spread of education in this coun
try and actually what I feel is that in 
this regard the libraries of this coun
try have a great role to play, and at 
the apex of such libraries the National 
Library should function. This is what 
I find both in the socialist and in the 
capitalist countries of the world. This 
National Library should be feeding the 
other libraries and provide materials 
for scholars in regard to the spread of 
education, and culture. There are some 
provisions in this Bill defining its func
tions but I have pointed out in my 
previous letter that they are very very 
inadequate and there must be clearer 
statement in that regard in the Bill

itself. I have tried to elaborate there 
what I feel about the future status of 
the National Library as the apex of 
the library system in our country.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: The Jha 
Committee suggested that instead of 
making it an autonomous body on 
statutory basis it should be done by 
adopting a resolution that it should 
not be an statutory autonomous body 
but with an autonomous body with 
delegated power. What are your views 
in this regard?

SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS; I 
am not a lawyer and am not compe
tent to go into the intricacies of this 
matter. I have read about this only 
during the debate in the Parliament. 
Besides the report of the Jha Commit
tee has not been published and we 
have not been able to see as to what 
actually it recommended. But what I 
want is that the final authority 
because of that the ultimate account
ability of the National Library to 
Parliament ifor itd performance 
and handling of finance must reside 
in the Parliament itself. But except 
for that it should be guided by 
a board which is supreme in the 
own sphere. It should therefore, be 
composed from amongst the right 
people for this job, that is, the 
intellectual luminaries of the country.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Some appre
hensions have been expressed by some 
witnesses that if it becomes autono
mous body by a statute then there 
would be some administrative difficul
ties particularly in the matter of get
ting financial grants etc. What is your 
opinion?

SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS:
I have not thought on this point. 
Anyway I feel that there should not 
be a sort of diarchy in this regard but 
a proper partnership arrangement 
between the National Library Board’ 
and the Government. I want that the 
Board should consist of the right 
people and enjoy wide powers and at. 
the same time is final accountability 
to the Parliament must be there.
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SHRI SAMAR GUHA: But accord

ing to your statement they will be 
part-time personnel and for proper 
functioning of the National Library it 
would require whole-timers.

SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS: 
"We will have to have a whole-time 
Director.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Yoru have 
said that there would be some 
misgivings and apprehensions in the 
minds of the employees if the Library 
is run by an autonomous body. Do 
rou think that just by mere stating 

At in the body of the Bill, if it becomes 
an Act, it will provide the necessary 
security, benefits, privileges to the 
employees of the National Library as 
they are now enjoying as the employ
ees of the Central Government?

SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS: 
"No but a provision to that effect 
should be there in the Bill itself.

SHRI* SAROJ MUKHERJEE: May I 
take it that in your opinion an auto
nomous board would function better 
than any Government Board in the 
case of National Library?

SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS: 
“For a National Library, unlike in 
•other spheres, we should even risk an 
experiment. We should have autono
mous body guiding the Library consis
ting of proper people as I said earlier. 
But if it is ultimate accountability to 
the Parliament remains, we can well 
afford to make an experiment with 
such autonomy.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: In your 
note you have suggested that there 
should be a board of 21 members ins
tead of 10, as in view of the fact that 
this, going to be a national institution 
there should be a larger board. We 
would like to know whether there 
tfhould be represented from the ins- 
'titutions like Universities or from 
State Governments, etc.?

SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS: 
I think, there must be some nomina
tion of persons by the Government 
-but the learned societies may be ask

ed to suggest names of their repre
sentatives.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have worked 
for your research purposes in the 
National Library here. Has your ex
perience been satisfactory in relation 
to whatever rare materials you wan
ted to find? What is your experience 
as regards the National Archives in 
Delhi?

SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS: 
I have got some experience of similar 
bodies abroad, and also in Delhi. I 
think, the servicing here is not upto 
the mark. However the comparison, I 
feel, is not fair, as there is also some 
lack of system in our case. I would 
like to give two examples. At the 
Esplanade wing of the National Li
brary, one day I wanted a copy of the 
Times of India* of 1890 Actually they 
gave me a file which on opening was 
found to be absolutely reduced to dust 
so much that it cannot be microfilmed 
even. Another instance; one my 
friends from Tamilnadu wrote to me 
saying that he wanted to get, in 
connection with his Research, some 
material on Sumbramanya Bharati 
which are in the National Library. 
He asked me whether there is any 
system of accommodating outside 
scholars working at the National 
Library. I do not think there is any. 
In this connection, I feel, that since it 
is the privilege of our city to house 
the National Library and enjoy its 
facilities, the State Government here 
must also bear a corresponding res
ponsibility towards it, for instance, in 
regard to proper accommodation for 
the scholars or students who wish to 
stay here for their research work say 
for 10 or 15 days, of course on pay
ment of reasonable charges.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Do you think 
that the text book section and child
ren section of the National Library 
should be separated because of the 
reason—-they do not serve the purpose 
of the objective of the Natiinal 
Library as far as the scholars work is 
concerned?



SHRI CHINMOHAN SEHANAVIS: 
The difficulty in this country is that 
there is a great dearth of text book 
libraries. That is why I hesitate to 
suggest that measure right now thnngh 
I feel inclined towards the idea.

115
CHAIRMAN! Thank you very

much.

(The witness then withdrew)

MR. CHAIRMAN; Shri Kaviraj
ITZnT-‘ !nCe ShaU be treated «S Puli'and 13 ^ b le  to be published, unless

Sp*c“ cally desire that all or any 
Part of the evidence given by you is
o e treated as confidential, it  shall, 

however, be explained to the witness 
that even though you might desiress-"2rj&Mas st

have,.sent your first memo
randum dealing with only on the 
Point <rf autonomy, if you wish to cla-

s h S ty°Ur POintS, y°U may d0 !t in

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ- I 
would like to develop some of my 
points. The Bill ia just before us and 
I am not opposed to BUI, but I am
™ J T T  °f °ertain very “ Portantmodifications. I fee l that there should 
be no relaxation o f  the responsibility 
o f  the Governm ent in the matter o f  the 
administration of the Library. At the 
sim e tim e I do not like that there 
should be a large bureaucratic cont
rol over the administration. I am in  
favour of the recommendation made 
by the Jha Committee i.e. delegated 
autonomy. Now as for the composi
tion of the board, it is not sufficiently 
broad based nor is it sufficiently de
mocratic. There is too much of the 
representation of the Government re
presentatives in the Committee. And 
I think there is no necessity of an exe* 
cutiye council in the Board. The func
tioning o f the board and the function
ing of the council would be overlap
ping to same extent. Finally I wish 
that the status of the National Library 
should be raised. It should be in the 
nature of an apex library having its 
branches in different States.

VII. Shri Narahari Kaviraj, Calcutta
DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 

BARTI: You have said that you pre
fer delegated autonomy. Can you give 
us an idea what do you mean by the 
delegated autonomy and the statutory 
autonomy?

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: The
Government should pay its due at
tention to the affairs of the institu
tion, If it remains a department of the 
Government and at the same time if 
the Government empowers a board or 
council consisting of the representa
tives of different walks of life parti
cularly consisting of educationists 
then this sort of provision can meet 
the requirement of the situation.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: At present there are 76 Na
tional Libraries in the whole world, 
but the concept of all these libra
ries is one, i.e. these Libraries are 
regarded as the repository of the his
torical heritage of the country. There 
are 26 National Libraries in Asia. Two 
international. seminars were held-one 
at Manila in 1964 and the other at 
Vienna in 1958. This concept of the 
National Libraries that it should be 
regarded as a single unit was accept
ed there. Do you think that this will 
be a healthy idea?

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: I 
think, if you can establish few bran
ches or regional libraries it will ra
ther solve our problems.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: As regular 
user of the National Library do you 
feel that the three-tire functioning
i.e. one for reference library for the 
scholars and research workers and the 
workers for higher studies, one type 
of books to be kept in that library, 
and for the other one i.e. for the 
children books, there should be an
other Library and thirdly for the text 
books, there should be a Library also?
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Do you think that the Libraries should 
be separated in the above way from 
the main library?

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: Yes
I think so. I also think that the an
nexe of the National Library which is 
meant mainly for the scholars should 
be kept open till 8 p.m. on each 
working day and on all Sundays 
particularly between 9 a.m. and 6 p.m. 
as is the practice in the National 
Archives of India. We scholars find it 
very difficult to work in the annexe 
because of our preoccupations with 
other work during the period 10 a.m. 
and 5 a.m.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: As a histo
rian I want to know from you from 
the historical perspective as well as 
from the standpoint of utility why the 
National Library should continue to 
be located in Calcutta which is the 
easternmost side of the country and 
why also the central or national 
character of the Library should be 
maintained instead of dividing it into 
regional libraries?

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: So 
far as the site is concerned, I think 
the library should be located in Cal
cutta because Calcutta has certain 
traditions and the library here is do
ing a very good service at least for the 
last 25 years, and I think there is one 
readers’ hostel and the scholars from 
other States come and reside in the 
hostel. So I don’t think there is any 
ground for shifting the site of library 
from Calcutta to any other place.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Just now 
you have mentioned that scholars 
from other parts of . the country are 
also taking advantage of this library 
but there have been complaints that 
scholars coming from, say, as far as 
Kerala or Tamil Nadu or Mysore or 
Kashmir find it difficult in regard to 
accommodation. Now, suppose the 
scholars are getting Rs. 250 or Rs. 300 
as government scholarships all over 
the country. One who is resident of 
West Bengal or Calcutta has certain 
advantages, he may manage with 
that amount of money but others who 
"stay out of the State may find it very 
difficult to stay in the hostel for the

purposes of his research and study. 
Can you suggest some measures so 
that the facilities can be equally given 
to all the scholars of other parts of 
the country? .

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: I do 
agree that facilities should be equal 
but I have not thought over the de
tails of this proposal.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: You have 
said that you want delegated auto
nomy and not statutory autonomy. 
Now, if there has to be delegated 
autonomy, there is no necessity of a 
Bill, it can be done by a resolution 
of the government as has been sug
gested by the Jha Committee. Now, 
if you feel that delegated autonomy 
is enough to improve the condition 
of the functioning and working of the 
National Library, then is it your 
conclusion that this Bill should be 
withdrawn or should be kept in abey
ance?

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: No,
I want that the Bill which has certain 
good and positive features should 
have some very important modifica
tions in the provisions so that we can 
accommodate as far as possible the 
principle of delegated autonomy as 
suggested by the Jha Committee.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: The princi
ple of delegated autonomy does not 
require any Act of the Parliament. It 
can be done by an executive resolu
tion. This Bill more or less deals 
with the administrative structure of 
the National Library. Can you give 
us your ideas of modifications so that 
instead of a resolution in the form of 
an Act, those modifications should be 
embodied. If they are very vital 
modifications they cannot be intro
duced through resolutions. Can you 
give us an idea as to what are the 
modifications that you have in mind?

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: In 
the first place I would suggest that 
the composition of the Board should 
be changed—I mean that just at pre
sent the composition of the Board has 
a big weightage in favour of the 
representations of the government. I
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am in favour of democratising the 
composition of the Board in the sense 
that more ^representation should be 
given to the representatives of the 
universities, academic bodies and 
scholars’ organisations or something 
like that. Further democratisation of 
the Board-—that is my first suggestion. 
My second suggestion is this that in 
the Bill there is a provision for one 
Board and another Executive Coun
cil. As for myself, I do not find any 
necessity of having an executive 
council separate from the Board. The 
Board can also function as the exe
cutive council. 1 think if there is one 
Board and another executive council, 
there would be much overlapping of* 
functions and it would obstruct the 
smooth functioning of administration. 
These are the two main suggestions 
that I have to make towards changing 
the composition of the Board.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: There is a
body of opinion that an institution 
like the National Library should be 
the direct responsibility of the Gov
ernment of India so that it can be 
developed, nourished, grown and 
made to fulfil the role for which it is 
intended. Now, if statutory autonomy 
is there, they apprehend that it will 
suffer—suffer in prestige, suffer in re
sources, and suffer from various other 
angles. But there is another body of 
opinion that if a statutory autono
mous body is there, in whatever form 
it might be, in that case it will not 
grow and properly administer. These 
are two definite sets of views for 
various reasons. What is your opi
nion about it?

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: In
my opinion the National Library has 
remained in charge of the govern
ment for such a long time and so far 
as I could gather it was under the 
care of a subordinate department of 
Government or something like that—
I do not know exactly the terms—and 
because of that the library has suffer
ed and the ills of the library aTe so 
many that some sort of a change is 
necessary. A change means a change

from the direct control of the govern
ment. This is what I mean to say 
and that is why j suggest that on the 
one hand the government should re
tain its responsibility particularly the 
financial responsibility, on the other 
the better administration of the lib
rary can be ensured only if it is con
trolled by some sort of an autono
mous body, particularly a body in 
which the educationists will have a 
say. In the present 6et up the educa
tionists have little to say, or very 
little to suggest. I, therefore, think 
that a status quo should not be main
tained. The present position should 
be changed and changed by all means. 
I think the best type of autonomy 
would be to combine the two things, 
just now I said, retention of Govern
ment responsibility and, at the same 
time, the exercise of the administra
tion of the library by an autonomous 
body representative of educationists.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: Instead 
of two tiers, the executive council 
and the Board, you would like to have 
both combined in one. I would like 
to ask you, in the University there 
is a Senate and also a Syndicate. 
Senate is a large body and the Syndi
cate is smaller body. So, would it not 
be better to have a smaller body in
stead of a bigger council?

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: The
Board is not a big body. The Board 
has, I think, a membership of only
10. In that case, at least, I do not 
think that a comparison with the 
Senate and the Syndicate is valid.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: Since
this is a National Library, an all India 
institution, and in view of the fact 
that it must maintain all India cha
racter, occasion may arise when the 
composition of the Council may be 
enlarged. So, instead of a bigger 
body, don’t you think that a smaller 
body will be better?

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: I am 
discussing just on the basis of the Bill 
and in the Bill there is no provision
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for a future thing in that direction, I 
would suggest just now.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: You
were contemplating changes. Iff in 
future any such modification is made 
and the Council is enlarged—suppose, 
the membership is raised to 25 or 30— 
persons of the universities and other 
bodies in the country are to be 
brought in—don’t you think that a 
small executive board would be bet
ter for proper functioning?

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: j  do 
not think 90.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In case the num
ber is increased substantially and in 
view of the possibility that many of 
the members would be from outside 
West Bengal, would you agree to this 
idea that a small body may be bran
ched off?

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: jf it 
becomes unwieldy, I would agree. My 
suggestion is that the composition of 
the Board should not be unwieldy. I 
think 10 or 12 will be sufficient.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Since it is a Na
tional Library, it should quite adequ
ately represent the different interests 
all over the country who have an in
terest in the National Library.

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: If 
it is taken for granted that the Board 
will be enlarged to a size of, say, 40 
or 51, in that case we must have a 
smaller body.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZALPUR- 
KAR: When we are speaking of a 
National Library we must have a 
broader outlook. We must give re
presentation to all the States so that 
no one should have any grievance 
because it is a wealth of the nation. 
So, if the number is increased and, 
then, there is an executive council, 
what is the harm?

SHRI NARHARI KAVIRAJ: If it 
is increased I am not opposed to it*

MR. CHAIRMAN: My impression is 
that perhaps you prefer that without 
resorting to legislation Government 
might by internal arrangement secure 
a kind of improvement in the ad
ministration of the National Library 
which will be adequate for its re
quirements. Is that correct?

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: Yes, 
broadly it is correct.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Since the Govern

ment has already come forward with 
this Bill and it is under consideration 
in the Parliament and we are visiting 
different places in the country elicit
ing information, do you consider that 
this Bill is such that it can be suffi
ciently improved upon, so that what 
you want can be achieved more or 
less, or is it such that it had better 
be put away and a more comprehen
sive Bill, if possible, in future may 
be brought up. Is that your impres
sion?

SHRI NARAHARI KAVIRAJ: I am 
not at the present stage opposed to 
the moving of the Bill. I think it 
would help us as it would focus the 
attention of the public upon the state 
of affairs existing in the National 
Library.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It seems you 
have more ideas in your mind which 
you have not included in your memo
randum. It is a very short memoran
dum. So, if you have any other sug
gestions to make on the subject, re
lating to reformation of the Bill, you 
can send them to our Secretariat in 
Delhi in a supplementary memoran
dum. It will be very helpful.

Thank you very much.
(The toitne88 then withdrew)

V m  Shri Nirmalya, Calcutta.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Shri Bagchi, be treated as public and is liable to
before you give evidene you should be published, unless you specifically
note that the evidence you give would desire that all or any part of your
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evidence Is to be treated as confiden
tial. Even though you may desire such 
evidence to be treated as confidential 
it is liable to be made available to the 
Members of Parliament. This is what 
I have to tell you in the first place.

We have had no memorandum from 
you, but if you like, you can make a 
very short statement in regard to 
your views on the Bill and suggest 
amendments.

SHRI NIRMALYA BAGCH1: At the 
very outset I should tell you that I 
am not regular visitor, regular user of 
the National Library. The difficulty 

is the distance of its location which 
is experienced by a large number of 
scholars and students of this city. So, 
first thing should be put first and my 
submission is that the National Lib
rary should be housed in the present 
Raj Bhavan and Raj Bhavan should 
be shifted to Belvedre because the 
original Imperial Library, as it was 
called then, was situated at Espla
nade. It is very near to the educatio
nal institutions in Calcutta. In your 
younger days you must have visited 
the Library very often. It is very 
difficult for a serious student or a 
scholar to travel to such a long dis
tance and when the rush hour comes 
they have to try their utmost to come 
to their residence. Raj Bhavan is ideal
ly suited for the purpose. Secondly, 
I do not know much of the Jha Com
mittee report except the one relating 
to Central Reference Library. They 
recommended that CRL should be in
cluded in, should be part and parcel 
of, the National Library. That is a 
very good suggestion and I think 
while submitting its report the Joint 
Select Committee will make a refe
rence to this. Thirdly, the status of 
the National Library should elevated 
to the status Of The National Library 
of India. An institution like this 
should be placed on a statutory,basis. 
Fourthly, I am not very happy with 
the phrasing and wording of the Bill.
I am in favour of a Bill which shall 
govern the activities of the National 
Library but I am not in favour of

the present Bill. I hope the Select 
Committee will draft a better Bill 
incorporating the ideas they gather 
from different parts of the country. 
First, the administration should be a 
one-tier system. I find there is provi
sion for a two-tier system in the Bill. 
But the wording is so bad that you 
never get as to know to what are the 
functions of the executive or of the 
board, what are the lines of demarca
tion between the two. ,

MR. CHAIRMAN: In regard to-
details if you send detailed statement 
clause by clause that will be very 
good.

SHRI NIRMALYA BAGCHI: I take 
note of your suggestion. Now, with 
regard to sub-section (3) of section 9' 
re. proxy, there will be never-ending 
system of such proxy. I had been a 
member of West Bengal Legislative 
Council for 9 years and I had to go 
through many draft legislations but 
I never found such an astounding 
piece of legislation in my life time. 
More astounding is section 26 re. 
delegation of power. There you will 
find that the board itself can delega
te power. The idea is board will sur
render all powers. The board will 
issue a death warrant. Section 26 
negates all the principles enunciated 
in the Statement of Objects and Rea
sons of the Bill. Again, if you go 
through the composition of the board 
and the executive committee you will 
find there are many nominated mem
bers and officers of the Ministry con
cerned. There is a clause saying that' 
meeting of the board may be held at 
any place in India. The idea is that' 
those officers belong to Indian Minis
tries and they will not find any time 
to come,down to Calcutta and to see 
things with their own eyes. This 
they have recognised from the very 
beginning and that is why in certain 
sections they have laid it down that 
the meeting can be held anywhere in 
India.

The result is they have no ample 
time or leizure or opportunity to 
come frequently to Calcutta to see
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with their own eyes the affairs of the 
Library. So, I feel the Board should 
be democratised. But how? My idea 
is, why should not the Members of 
Parliament find a place in the Board.
I find there is no mention about them. 
Similarly, so far as I know, West 
Bengal Government also allocate 
some fund for the maintenance of the 
Library. So why should not the Mem
bers of the West Bengal Legislative 
Assembly find a place in the Board 
or in the Council whatever you might 
call it? Then representatives of Cal
cutta University or Bangiya Sahitya 
Parished may also be taken. The 
Board, in order to function pioperly, 
must be less officialised and must be 
democratised with popular representa
tion. My next idea is about the quali
fication of tha Director about which 
there is nothing in the Bill. My per
sonal idea is that the Director should 
be a man of wide culture, must be 
familiar with the working of class 
I libraries all over the world and 
above all he should be a technical 
person. He must be familiar with the 
latest scientific methods about pre
servation I have heard that computor 
system is going to be introduced in 
the Library. If that be so then. the 
Director must be familiar with the 
use of computor system. My next 
submission is that the Director or the 
Chariman of the Board should not be 
made an autocrat. But how? I have 
With me a piece of legislation called 
“The Bengal (Rural) Primary Educa
tion Act, 1930. There it has been spe- 
ciflcaly laid down in Section 18(2) — 
“The President shall not exercise any 
power which by this Act is expressly 
declared to be exercisable by the 
Board.” This was in the hoary days 
of the British rule. Even then they 
felt that President should not be made 
an autocrat. So the Chairman or the 
Director should be responsible for all 
their actions to the Board and they 
should not have any emergency power 
by which they can over-ride the 
Board itself. I have experience about 
the Calcutta University being a Mem
ber of its Academic Council and we 

*cried hoarse about the autonomy of

the University and against Govern
ment interference. Now the Vice
Chancellor has been given so much 
power that he can over-ride the entire 
Act and can do things himself. And 
that is, we feel, not at all desirable 
for the functioning of the National 
Library. Then, my last submission 
is about the service condition of the 
existing staff. They have an apprehen* 
sion in their mind about this that 
after passing of this Act they will 
loss the prestigious character of their 
service. I hope their service condition 
must not be in any way diminished 
from that of the Government service.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Since you are very anxious 
to preserve the status of the National 
Library you suggest that the Library 
should be characterised as the Natio
nal Library of India and not of Cal
cutta. May I ask you whether there 
are other ways of preserving this 
national character as also of enhan
cing the status one of them beng that 
the Board may be so enlarged as to 
have the representation from all the 
States of India at least by rotation 
and secondly by the fact that the 
Chairman of the Board may be a man 
of eminence as for example the Vice
President is the Chancellor of all the 
Central Universities wherever they 
might be located. Here I may quote 
the comments of Mr. Kalia, a Mem
ber of the Jha Committee, which was 
incorporated in the Report also. He 
suggested that immediately Govern
ment should come forward with a 
legislation for setting up of regional 
national libraries ih the rest of the 
country, otherwise various languages 
of India cannot be adequately catered 
to by the National Library alone and 
therefore to do justice to the 
people of India as well as to all the 
languages and all the literatures of 
India these libraries should be spread 
over to the country and therefore a 
legislation for a regional national lib
rary should be immediately brought 
in the Parliament.

SHRI NIRMALYA BAGCHI: I
agree with the view-a comprehensive
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4eg^ation for bringing in other libra
ries located in 'Ma/drM, Bombay or 
Delhi. I alfip feel that there should be 
representation from eminent intellec
tuals from all over India. But about 
Vice-President becoming the Chair
man I apprehend whether he will 
have sufficient time to preside over 
meetings.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Would you suggest Gover
nor?

SHRI NIRMALYA BAGCHI: I am 
not sure—I prefer non-offlciaL

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: In Salarejung Museum the 
Governor of the State is the Chair
man nf the autonomous Board.

SHRI NIRMALYA BAGCHI: There 
is no dearth of non-officials of emi
nence. They should become Chair

man.^
SHRI RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA

BARTI: We heard you saying about 
decline in the readership of the Na
tional Library and also about diffi
culties of the scholars of other parts 
of the country to come over here and 
do research work. Regarding the first 
ooint you have suggested that so 
long it was in the Esplanade East the 
number of readers was very large but 
"by shifting it to the present site the 
number has declined. What is your 
opinion do you feel that because it is 
an out of the way place and because 
there is so much of transport difficul
ty the number of readers has dec
lined? And secondly because there is 
■no provision for the people from other 
-states to come over here and stay 
comfortably at cheaper price the 
scholars cannot come from other 
states to utilise the National Library?

SHRI NIRMALYA BAGCHI: I told
you that I am not a regular user of 
the National Library. I rarely go to 
the National Library. We have the 
Calcutta University Library the* 

Secretariat Library in the Writers' 
Buildings and the Assembly Library. 
If T set the materials from these lib
raries ttati I do not go to the Natio

nal Library. So far as the statistics 
are coW m ed regarding the decline in 
the number of leaders I have no idea 
about tlhat and you can ascertain 
those from the authorities. Generally 
speaking, I feel that it may be due to 
the inconvenient place where the 
Library is located. After the inde
pendence the scholars are coming over 
from different parts of India and 
certainly there is a gulf of difference 
between the old Imperial Library and 
the present National Library. Had the 
National Library been situated in the 
present Raj Bhavan then it would 
have been a real centre of learning 
which may attract a large number of 
scholar.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA. MR 
Bagchi, you said just now that the 
Library is situated at such a plaoe 
that it would be difficult for the 
scholars to go to that place and conse
quently the number of readers had 
fallen down. If I say that Calcutta 
being at a corner of the country and 
the National Library being situated 
there it would be difficult for the 
scholars from the other parts of the 
country to come to Calcutta, then 
what would you say?

SHRI NIRMALYA BAGCHI: If 
National Libraries are set up in other 
parts of the country I would never 
be jealous but rather I would wel
come that.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: Fifty
per cent of those who go to the Na
tional Library are students, mostly 
under-graduate students. But the Na
tional Library should be a place for 
eminent scholars. Would it not be bet
ter if the text book section for the 
students is taken away from the 
National Library and the National 
Library is allowed to function only 
for serious studies?

SHRI NIRMALYA BAGCHI: Sir,
I am not a big scholar as you think 
me to be. I think, there is a restric
tion in the National Library for the 
admission of our young scholar?. This 
age bar of J is an anchronism in my 
opinion. ,
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MR. CHAIRMAN: Would it not be 
better if a separate text book library 
is «et up for the students considering 
the large number of the student
population in Calcutta. It can be set
up under the auspices of the Gov
ernment. Would not that be better
for the scholars and research workers 
to have a more congenial atmosphere?

SHRI NIRMALYA BAGCHI: May 
be. But an annexe of the National 
Library may be used as the text 
book library.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The National
Library having its national character 
must cater to the national require
ment. That is why it should be 

.placed predominantly for the use of 
scholars and research workers and 
not be crowded by the undergraduate 
students. It is no reflection on any
body else. So if text book libraries 
are set up in different parts o£ the 
State then the National Library can 
remain in its congenial atmosphere 
and can cater to the requirements of 
the research scholars.

SHRI NIRMALYA BAGCHI: I
agree with you.

SHRI RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Sir, the question has arisen 
as the National Library has got no 
easy access from any part of the 
city. The place where it is situated 
is so inaccessible from any residen
tial quarters that many persons do 
not feel like going to the National 
Library. Our main difficulty is the 
location of the building. The National 
Library should be located at such 
part of the city that there should be 
access from any corner of the city.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: If the
Library is, good person  ̂ will go there 
even from a distance of 10 miles.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZALPUR- 
KAR: Mr. Professor, I welcome the

IX. Shri Satyapriya Roy, President,

idea which you have stated regarding 
the statutory body that it must be 
one tier. But suppose if the National 
Library is to get represented from the 
Library Association, from the Uni
versities and from the Legislators 
then what will be the number of 
members of the body or the Govern
ing Council or the Board whatever 
you may call it. If it is one tier it 
will be unwieldy and it will not be 
possible for them to meet monthly 

or quarterly. Another thing you have 
suggested that the Central Reference 
Library should be merged with the 
National Library. But I say that the 
Central Reference Library as it is to
day should be located in Delhi

SHRI NIRMALYA BAGCHI: If you 
make the number of members of 
the Committee 25 or 30 I do not think 
that it will be unwieldy because in 
that case you will have to make some 
proportional representation from the 
officers, the Universities, the general 
public, legislators. This will satisfy all 
and one tier system will 6erve our
purpose. Though I could not go 
through all the dstaik of the Jha 
Committee on the activities of the 
National Library, I have it from 
Annual Report placed in the Lok 

'Sabha that the Government accepted, 
all their recommendations, excepting 
one that this Central Reference 
Library which is preparing the 
National Bibliography, should re
main a part of the National Library. 
They can do that job only with the 
help of the National Library and so 
the C.R.L. should be ’merged with 
the Wational Library.

MR. CHAIRMAN; Thank you 
very much Prof. Bagchi. Your evi
dence will be very helpful to the 
Committee. ~

(The witness then withdrew)
An mate Teachers' Association 

Calcutta

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Roy, your you apfccUteally desire that all or
evidense shall be treated as public any part,of th® evidence given by you

. and is liable to be published, unless : is to be treated as coirtdeptiaL It



It shall, however, be1 explained to the 
witness that even though you might 
desire your evidence to be treated 
as confidential such evidence is 
liable to be made available to the 
Members of Parliament.

SHRI SATYAPRIYA ROY: Mr.
Chairman, Sir, I do not like to say 
anything more beyond the memo
randum which I have submitted. I 
further assert that there is nothing 
confidential in my statement.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Mr. Roy, »3ince you were in
charge of Education Department of 
your State Ministry and you are 
also the Vrerident of the All India 
Teachers’ Association, we would be 
very much benefited by your advice. 
May I ask a particular question? In 
one of thg regional seminars for the 
development of National Libraries 
in Asia held in Manila in 1964, Mr. 
Keshavan who was in-charge of tihis 
Library made observation that most 
of the problems and frustration at 
the National Library, Calcutta 
where because of the fact that it 
was functioning as a combind public 
library. Now the concept of the 
National Library in India and all 
over the world should be one of re
pository of national heritage of the 
country.—what is your opinion?

SHRI SATYAPRIYA ROY: My
opinion of this question definitely is 
the National Library should be 
controlled by the Government. It 
should not be transferred to an 
autonomous body. Under the Cen
tral Government it can possess the 
national character and so there 
should be no transfer of control 
from the Central Government to the 
autonomous board as envisaged in 
the Bill because the board which is 
likely to be formed under this Act 
will not be a national body at all. 
While 9 members out of 10 will be 
nominated by the Government itself 
then why ' should the Government 
wash its responsibility of manage
ment of this Library id autonomous

body? government may frame rules 
for it>3 efficient administration. It is 
not by transferring the adminstra- 
tion to autonomous body the ills be 
cured.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: I think, you have not
answered the question as put forward 
by my friend Mr. Parashar. What 
is your suggestion—is it possible to 
divide the National Library into 
different sections or regional lib
raries for catering the undergradu
ate students the other one with a 
pure character of National Library 
as repository of national heritage?

SHRI SATYAPRIYA ROY: I have
not really thought over this issue. 
If you could inform us about this 
point beforehand, then I might have 
given my opinion.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZAL
PURKAR: What is your opinion i.e.
whether the present management of 
National Library is functioning and 
efficiently and whether it requires 
any improvement?

SHRI SATYAPRIYA ROY: Our
experience all over India particularly 
in West Bengal is that these auto
nomous bodies are really mismanag
ing all educational institutions. So 
I want improvement. The best way 
of removing the mismanagement, 
in my opinion, is framing the edu
cated rules for the efficient adminis
tration of the National Library.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZAL
PURKAR: The present administra
tion of the National Library is under 
the direct control of the Central 
Government, but lyou have already 
that there are mismanagement in it 
Do you mean to say that in such an 
abnormal situation as at present the 
present statusquo should be main
tained. ‘

SHRI SATYAPRIYA ROY. The 
dfentral Government have not bfeen 
giving due importance and atten
tion to this Library since a long 
time past. It has neglected it alto
gether. That is why there has been



mismanagement and inefficiency— 
there is no doubt about it. I want to 
press the Central Government should 
take greater care on the National 
Library whigh is a proud asset all 
over India.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: You have 
said that if it becomes a statutory 
autonomous body, it will lose its 
national character. What do you 
mean by it? What would be the 
difficulties if it becomes a statutory 
autonomous body?

SHRI SATYAPRIYA ROY: I want 
to make it clear. If it is under the 
Central Ministry, it will be under the 
direct responsibility of the Parlia
ment. The Parliament is the sup
reme authority in our country. If it 
is transferred from the control of the 
Central Government, the Parliament 
will have very little to do over the 
management of the National Library. 
That is why it will lose national cha
racter.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: The scholars 
and research workers fTom different 
parts of the country who want to 
effectively utilise the National Lib
rary may put different criticisms that 
the National Library is situated in 
one corner of the country and that 
although it is National Library it 
cannot adequately serve the national 
purpose and national utility. Can 
you suggest any measure that how 
the national objective and national 
purpose of the purposes of the scho
lars at different parts of the country 
can be served or how the national 
utility can be extended to all over 
the country?

SHRI SATYAPRIYA ROY: Unfor
tunately, in the Bill as I have read, 
but there is no mention about how

the National Library can serve of 
these purposes. Only a statutory 
board i$ to be set up in a very res
tricted way. They will have to take 
all their directions from the Central 
Government. First of all, the National 
Library will have to take their deci
sion and then they will refer it to the 
Central Government.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: The objec
tive of the National Library is mostly 
for the scholars and research workers 
and other persons who want to have 
their higher studies. But now the 
National Library services three pur
poses. Do you think that the text 
book section and the children section 
should be separated?

SHRI SATYAPRIYA ROY: As I 
have already said, we like to think 
over the question and then give our 
opinion on it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you think 
that this Bill as formulated might be 
sufficiently and suitably amended so 
that the substantial objectives that 
you have might be achieved?

SHRI SATYAPRIYA ROY: Our
definite objection is that basically and 
fundamentally it is wrong and so this 
Bill should be withdrawn and scrap
ped

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very 
much for your assistance.

SHRI SATYAPRIYA ROY: If the 
Chairman permits me I may hand 
over to the Committee a written 
statement which is not (confidential 
and which may be made public. We 
have every confidence in public 
opinion.

(The witness then withdrew)

X. Shri Jyotl Bhattacharya, Calcutta

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Bhattacharya, 
before you give your evidence I have 
to teH 7 **1 thatr the evidence that 
you give shall be treated as public

and is liable to be published unless 
you specifically desire that all or any 
part of your evidence is to be treated 
as confidential. Evcto, though you



might desire that your evidence is to 
be treated as confidential, such evi
dence is liable to be made available 
to the Members oi Parliament.

Now, we have had no memorandum 
from you but we are expecting a good 
deal of assistance from you though 
I am afraid the time is very short. So 
if you like you can give a short state
ment on the Bill and suggest mea
sures for the improvement of the 
National Library and thereafter mem
bers ask you certain questions.

SHRI JYOTI BHATTACHARYA: 
Sir, as I understand it, this Bill is a 
propcsal to denationalise the National 
Library here in Calcutta. I think 
this is a very dangerous proposal and 
is likely to cause very serious harm 
to education and the pursuit of know
ledge in this part of the country. I 
also find in the statement of objects 
and reaions to the Bill that the idea 
behind this is to set up an autono
mous board under an Act of Parlia
ment and so on. The little experi
ence that I have with autonomous 
boards is positively repulsive. Auto
nomous boards running college lib
raries or public libraries or public 
institutions in Calcutta, institutions 
such as polytechnics and technical 
institutions and so on, have fared very 
badly here in West Bengal at least 
and there is a continuous clamour in 
these autonomous boards that the 
Government should take them over. 
Now her® is a proposal which is ex
actly in a contrary direction. I also 
think that we should keep in mind 
the question of the convenience of the 
readers. Quite a large number of 
readers go to the National Library. 
There is some difficulty about trans
port here and that is one of the rea
sons why matiy readers who want to 
make use of the National Library 
carinot do so. But still a great deal 
of inconvenience will be caused to 
the large number of readers in Cal
cutta and ^elsewhere In Dfcftt Bfengal. 
Lastly, I think that whenever1 Gov
ernment proposes to hstoB over ttift 
institution to an autonomous board

the idea is certainly that the govern
ment will also pay at least a part of 
the money needed for running it. 
Now, this money will come from the 
public exchequer and j believe that 
the people have a definite right to 
know everything regarding how this 
money is spent. The idea of an auto
nomous board, as I see it, is merely 
to shirk Government’s responsibility 
of answering questions on these mat
ters to the people. For all these rea
sons, Sir, I am very firmly opposed 
to the proposal to denationalise the 
National Library. Thank you, Sir.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Professor Bhattacharya, as an 
educationist you are aware that in 
many States people are clamouring 
for more autonomy for educational 
system. As a matter of fact, all the 
States are crying to get more auto
nomy for the educational institutions 
so that they can function better than 
under Government control. What 
prompted you to say that an educa
tional institution like the National 
Library is going to function better 
under Government control than un
der the control of an autonomous 
board?

SHRI JYOTI BHATTACHARYA: If 
you would permit me to say so, Sir, 
this honourable member of the Com
mittee is, I believe, a little confused 
Qn the question of autonomy of vari
ous kinds. Here is a question of an 
autonomous board for a National lib
rary. But the question of an autono
mous board for an educational insti
tution like the University is altoge
ther different, because in the univer
sity there are the teachers who are 
to be represented. Now, if ther? is 
a proposal to provide that it is the 
people who should have freedom to 
run the National Library then that 
is a different thing. But the proposal 
here simply is to hand over the Lib
rary to an autonomous board—which 
autonomy will largely be for mem
ber* nominated by Government—that 
!s Hie way of Government—and that 
government will thereafter say that
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this is not our responsibility. This 
is simply shirking the responsibility 
of the Government. That is what I 
feel, i think the question of autono
my should be put in concrete instan
ces and not in vague terms.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BART1: Suppose the Committee after 
going through all shades of opinion 
made certain changes in the Bill that 
there should be no Government nomi
nee or there should be minimum 
number of government nominee and 
that the board should include people 
who are working in the library and 
who are educationists, then what will 
be your objection?

SHRI JYOTI BHATTACHARYA: 
Sir, you are thinking of a hypotheti
cal question which is not before us. 
This Bill definite terms provides the 
setting up of an autonomous board 
and how this autonomous board can 
be improved a little more here and 
there is altogether a matter of detail. 
I am objecting to the very object of 
the Bill and I firmly say that the 
government should take full responsi
bility for this treasure of the nation. 
I consider the National Library as a 
treasure, as a property of the nation 
and the government should take full 
responsibility for the representation 
of the people in it and the Govern
ment should be answerable to the 
people who make enquiries into the 
running of this institution through 
their elected representatives.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is it your point 
Mr. Bhattacharji that it is not auto
nomy as such to which you object 
because substantial autonomy in ade
quate manner would be satisfactory 
but in the name of autonomy Some
thing other than real autonomy has 
been incorporated in the Bill and 
therefore you oppose it?

S H R j J Y O T I B H A T T A C H A R Y A : 
Sir, you are very near to what I was 
saying. My question is—an autono
mous board has been proposed here— 
whode autonomy, for wfcat purpose?

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is what I 
want to get clear from you. You 
might consider and you may have 
your reasons for so considering that 
autonomy as explained in this Bill is 
a fake autonomy, it is not real auto
nomy. But if there was real auto
nomy, if that provision can be alter
ed in the Bill by some definite terms, 
then you are not against autonomy 
as such but you are against the auto
nomy as envisaged by the formula- 
tors of this Bill? My point is that the 
term ‘autonomy’ is irrelevant here. 
It does not apply to an institution 
like the National Library. Whose 
autonomy, who is being autonomous? 
In the University we know who are 
being autonomous—an academic com
munity is being autonomous.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: Since 
this institution should occupy a pro
minent position in the country and 
should continue to be so and that all 
the States in the Indian Union should 
continue to associate with this body— 
the National Library—don’t you think 
that it would be better to have re
presentation composed of members 
promient in their own fields, educa
tionists and others? Don’t you think 
that these people should be pooled 
together to manage this institution?

SHRI JYOTI BHATTACHARYA: 
If the proposal is to have a sort of a 
supervisory committee on which edu
cationists all over the country are to 
be represented, students who are 
likely to use the library, the teachers 
and men of public importance are to 
be represented, that is a separate 
thing altogether. You don't call it 
autonomy. It is better arrangement 
for management—an advisory body 
with large powers. That is a separate 
thing altogether. But the point here 
is to set up an autonomous board. I 
do not see any other point and, I 
should say, Government is practical
ly disowning its responsibility to run 
the institution. Quits clearly, the 
present Central Government employees 
will be transferred and will become
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employees of the Board. This shows 
that the Government is disowning the 
financial responsibility. The larger 
part of the expenditure which is like
ly to increase, or to increase manifold, 
that is being shirked by Government. 
That is how I understand the whole 
thing. What the honourable member 
is suggesting fa a different thing. 
Everybody would agree that there 
-should be representatives of the peo
ple <who use the library, better repre
sentation of the people—some sort of 
<an advisory committee—I fully agree, 
but it is Jiot under the Act.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: In 
that case the advisory committee 
•would be under the direct control of 
the Government.

S H R j J Y O T I B H  A T T A C H  A R Y A : 
Advisory Committee give advice if 
that is sought for.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: Is it
your apprehension that if it becomes 
an autonomous body the Government 
will wash its hands?

SHRI JYOTI BHATTACHARYA: It 
•depends upon the Government. You 
may very well have a Government— 
the position is that whenever you 
raise a question—I have a little ex
perience ctf legislature—whenever a 
question is raised about certain auto
nomous Board the Government al
ways have a certain -way of escape— 
this is an autonomous body, we can
not say much. That is, at least, my 
^experience.

SHRI NCREN GHOSH: I would
like to know whether the purpose of 
this institution—the National Library 
—ncan be served if there is an effec
tive Librarian which the institution 
lacks—there is no Librarian at all for 
a year or two, or three years—I do 
Tiot know—and 'Government delegates 
“by executive resolution sufficient 
power for local management and the 
^Librarian has the status of a Joint 
Secretary with direct access to th<? 
Minister and the ihstitution i4 proper
ty .'financed. It is called National Lib

rary but it is being treated just like 
any other library. If it is the inten
tion of Government to develop it., 
whether by toning up the local ad
ministration the purpose can be 
served.

SHRI JYOTI BHATTACHARYA: If 
you do not have a Librarian it can
not be run. You ought to have more 
money to buy books. An autonomous 
Botird may not have a Librarian at 
all.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: j find from 
your statement that you object to 
assign any autonomous authority to 
National Library for the basic rea
son, as you have stated, that the ob
jective and function of a National 
Library or any other library of simi
lar dimension is completely different 
even from that of a university library.
I can understand this. But we find 
that for the present state of affairs 
in the National Library, one of the 
reasons is too much beaurocratic in
terference from the Centre. As it has 
been rightly pointed out, their is no 
Librarian. There should have been 
many officers who are not there. You 
have said that it should be under di
rect control of Government. Would 
you suggest, whether for adequate ini
tiative and freedom certain powers 
should be delegated to the administra
tion of the National Library?

SHRI JYOTI BHATTACHARYA: 
The problem of bureaucracy is a very 
large problem and I do not think it is 
the remedy—to denationalise the Na
tional Library. You can have even 
worse bureaucracy in a so-called auto
nomous Board. Nothing prevents it. 
The remedy is to improve the ad
ministration, to change the beaucratic 
atmosphere all over the country. "

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: I used the 
words 'delegated powers’. You may 
call it delegated autonomy. It can be 
done by a resoluton. As recommended 
in the Jha Committee retort, for pro
per functioning of tha National1 Lib

rary certain powers as at the present



moment are being executed by the 
Central bureaucracy—instead of re
taining those powers, for prdpsr work 
certain powers may be delegated.

It seems certain powers would be 
delegated without actually making 
delegation of powers as envisaged 
under the Statute.

SHRI JYOTI BHATTACHARYA: I 
fully agree that that ought to have 
been done. The man on the rpot 
should, have power to act.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: The basic 
purpose of the National Librry is to 
meet the needs of research worker's, 
scholars, etc. But we find from record 
tha t more than 50 per cent of the users 
arc students who come to take notes 
from the text books. Do you think 
thfit for improving the working as also 
to meet the basic purpose of the 
National Library, these text book 
flection as also the children section 
should be separated from the National 
library, and that * certain provision 
should be made so that it cannot be 
converted into a regional library?

SHRI JYOTI BHATTACHARYA: I 
do not quite agree that the text book 
section and the children section should 
be separated from it. I would like to 
have more liberal arrangement for 
making use of th£ lending section, 
which is at present causing great diffi
culty. Text book section and the 
children’s section should be enlarged. 
Regarding the second question, I think 
we: will agree that there should be 
much bigger arrangements for having 
national representation in the book 
shelves.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Instead of 
extending the circulation facilities of 
the text books is it not more effective 
and proper if there are regional text 
book libraries because lending of 
books to J. & K. or to Kerala creates

, lot.of difficulties,
SHRI JJOTI BHATTACHARYA: 

Yju. can always have regional text 
. boek banks and so. on in addition to

hat you haveu at present, in the

National Library. I would request you 
not to say that the present arrange
ment in the National Library should 
be disturbed. ..........

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: I feel
that you have not yet lost faith in the 
intellectuals of the country to run the 
institutions. For instance, Museum is 
an autonomous body. So. why can't 
you have such thing for the National 
Library? As you know, we have 
copied many things from Britain.

SHRI JYOTI BHATTACHARYA: 
There are many things in Britain 
which have not been copied in this 
country. I think this is not the place 
where I should start a discusison on 
that. Byt I have not lost faith in the 
intellectuals of the country. I have 
great, regards for and great expecta
tions of them.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have told us 
that we have to change the bureau* 
cracy but the trouble is that one has 
to take concrete steps, whatever the 
difficulties, when one is in the Gov
ernment as you had been. Now, with 
regard to the administration of the 
National Library what has come into 
the picture is that to run it purely as 
an administrative unit, as a subordi
nate office of the Government of India 
by officers who are dependent upon 
the good pleasure of under-secretariesr 
and other people is a proposition 
which makes no satisfactory impact on 
the cultural life either of Calcutta or 
of the rest of the country which the 
National Library is supposed to do. 
The idea is very definitely promulgat
ed that we should have an autonomous 
body consisting largely o f scholars,, 
intellectuals, not all of whom assow 
ciated with the Government but who 
can function in a very organised man
ner. Therefore if the Bill . contains 
such a provision that autonomy means 
that it should contain all the rightful 
ingredients, would yon  agree to that?*

SftRI JYOTI BHATTACHARYA r 
My difficulty is that yod are asking 
me to give an opinion on a hypothe
tical Bfti which Is not there. I can 
<iv« wy opinion only On the Will an
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it has com* before us. Of course, I 
would heartily agree that there should 
be some arrangement by which the
intellectuals can play a better role in
running the administration o* the

National Library. If the officers are 
so poor that they cannot do anything, 
well, they ought to be improved.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you.
(The witness then withdrew).

XI. Bengal L ibrary Association, Calcutta
/

(Further evidence)

Spokesmen:

1. Shri B. P. Mookerjee
2. Shri P. Roychaudhury
3. Shri S. Banerjee
4. Shri B. Banerjee

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have sup
plied a supplementary memorandum 
copies of which have been circulated 
to our Members. Members will now 
ask you certain questions.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: What are the 
basic objections you feel you will find 
if it is converted into a statutory 
body?

SHRI P. ROYCHOUDHURY: This is 
a library of national importance the 
purpose of which is to acquire and 
preserve all printed materials not only 
for the present generation but for the 
posterity. The purpose Of the National 
Archives is a'so the same. So, we 
feel that security of documents will 
be much assured if they are run by 
Government. We do not find any 
reason why it should be transferred 
to an autonomous board. Those who 
support this say that if it is converted 
into an autonomous board efficiency 
will increase and, secondly, there is 
greater amount of academic and intel
lectual freedom. So far as the first 
point is concerned, if we survey the 
activities of different autonomous 
boards and bodies we see that they 
never attain the standard of efficiency 
like Government institutions. Only 
we can say that in cast oft non- Gov
ernment organisations Which ate - 
vfttely 'mtadgeH fitting |>rOfft motive

they have efficiency compared to Gov
ernment organisations Take the case 
of CSI, Indian Council of Agricultural 
Research or our Universities. Are 
they efficiently run than Government? 
We don’t think Another point is, some 
of the honourable Members raised 
objection yesterday that in autono
mous organisation we get more intel
lectuals because academic freedom is 
more. Here the position of the 
National Library is different—it is not 
understood properly. In the case of 
academic institutions i.e., schools, col
leges o; universities the main objec
tive is to impart education, organising 
research activity etc. and so definitely 
some sort of autonomy is required 
there. But the National Library is not 
an academic institution in that sense 
of university or colleges. Here we 
are storing informations not only for 
this generation but also for future 
generation. If we do not preserve or 
conserve documents here even the 
future generation will not get any 
documents and they will not be satis
fied. Here security of documents is 
an important factor and that security 
is assured in Government organisa
tion and not in the case of non-Gov
ernment or autonomous organisations.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: As at present 
it is not autonomous, it is directly 
controlled by the Government but y^t 
it is the 'result of investigation by all 
the committees that the present state 
of affairs of the National Library is 
not at all commendable. What are the 
reasons?

SIJRI P. ROYCHAUDHURY: If you 
kindly go through our memorandum 
you will find that w.» have mentioned
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categorically that there are 2/3 reasons 
lo r  that. Firstly we think that there 
is no proper perspective on the part of 
the Government about the National 
Library. We know, National Library 
is an important organisation but un
fortunately for the last 25 years there 
is no proper ^respective about the 

‘National Library. It has been treated 
just like a super Public Library. 
National Library of a country has to 

v organise so many activities viz.. biblio
graphy, documentation activity, ser
vice to the scholars but it has not been 
treated in that manner by the Govern
ment. Another factor which I men
tioned yesterday is that those are 
reflected by different Government 
decisions and activities. In the case 
of National Library Government give 
poor financial assistance. Annually 

'they get Hs. 4.5 lakhs for purchase of 
documents, much less .than which a 
university gejts. Again we say that 
it has been treated as a subordinate 
office under the Ministry of Education. 

There is also a department of Culture 
and the Library is subordinate to that 
department. When the authorities 
want to take a decision it has to go 
through so many paraphernalia and as 
a result lot of red tapism stands on 

-the way and decisions are not taken 
quickly. As a result the Library has 
not progressed to the extent desirable. 
These are the reasons.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Now for im
provement of the functioning of the 
National Library what are your con
crete suggestions? What should be 
done? Should certain powers be 
delegated so that local initiative and 
freedoms of the library can be ex
panded?

SHRI P. ROYCHAUDHURY; With 
your permission I would like to read 
some of the points from our memo
randum.

(i) Uplift the status of the National 
Library and arrange for delegation of 
greater power to enable taking of 

'•quick decisions and their immediate 
implementation at the local level.

(ii) Provide more fund for more 
comprehensive acquisition of docu
ments and for adopting more efficient 
preservation methods and for render
ing efficient services on modern scien
tific lines.

(iii) Make subject specialists inside 
and outside the organisation involved 
with the policy of acquisition of docu
ments for betterment of the stock.

(iv) Similarly utilise the services of 
the professional experts inside and 
outside the organisation for improve
ment and expansion of services to 
meet modern needs.

(v) Implement important recom
mendations of the Jha Committee after 
publishing the document and after 
obtaining professional opinion on the 
recommendations.

These are the five points that we 
have suggested. We want that more 
power should be given to local autho
rities, status should be enhanced, 
more financial assistance should be 
given and subject specialists, scholars 
should be associated with it who will 
help in acquisition work of the Li
brary.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: You said that 
in West European countries barring 
U.K. all the National Libraries are 
Government institutions. Is it so? Are 
they under the direct responsibility 
of the Govermnent or under autono
mous Board, Government having In
direct responsibility, that is, whether 
the staff of the Library are civil ser
vants and whether Government ren
ders help to develop the National 
Library in the matter of management, 
resources etc. that is to say. how Gov
ernment discharge the functions. 
Please enlighten us if you know.

SHRI P. ROYCHAUDHURY: If you 
permit, we have prepared a < list of 
National Libraries and, we quote the 
documents from where We have pre
pared it. You know there is a com
prehensive Book by Shri EscUdl. Then
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i.here are Encyclopaedia Britanica, 
Encyclopaedia Americana, and differ
ent hand-books of European countries. 
We can say that Sweden, Norway, 
Denmark, Italy, France—in all those 

.countries you will find Library ser
vices are under the control of the 
Government as also the National Li
brary. In England—there is a little 
exception—and in Scotland the 

'N&tional Library is controlled by 
Government. Only exception is in 
England where the British Museum 
has got a long tradition. For your in
formation I would like to tell you that 
even they are bringing it within the 
integrated system—recently Govern
ment has enacted a law and have 
<drawn all the Libraries under one 
uniform law i.e., the British Libraries 
Act. It is not a fact that some Libra
ries in ihe Western Europe are run 
by autonomous Board. If you like 
we will handover the documents 
which we have collected in this re
gard.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Just now you have suggested 
some names of countries and you 
have also said in those countries the 
national libraries are run by the 
•Government.

SHRI P. ROYCHOUDHURY: Yes.
DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 

BARTI: But are you about the fact that 
they are actually government control
led libraries and whether their em
ployees are employees of the civil 
government there? Are the staff of 
those libraries treated as civil 
ŝervants?

SHRI P. ROYCHOUDHURY: In
-some cases it is mentioned there that 
"these libraries are state libraries, then 
it is stated that these librarr* are 
under the Ministry of Education or 
Ministry of Science or Ministry of 
•Culture. Sometimes also it is written 
*that they are under the direct control 
rof the Government.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The point really 
is what exactly is the method of 
•control by the Government. For 
cexattiple institutions like the C.S.I.R.,

the U.G.C. are all government con
trolled bodies their performances are 
discussed in the Parliament. Your 
proposition may be true. But so far 
as the government control of the insti
tutions like the National Library is 
concerned that should be gone into in 
depth. One has to examine the 
method of control of the Government. 
1 say this because a Bill is necessary 
to regularise the constitution of the 
National Library since the National 
Library continues to be subsidised b'r 
the Government and the constitution 
of whatever agencies are proposed 
here they are also dependent on the 
Government with parliamentary con- 
control. Even after the legislation the 
National Library would remain under 
the Government control. I would 
take it that you do not want any 
relaxation so far as Government con
trol on the National Library is con
cerned and that you want that that 
control should continue.

SHRI P. ROYCHOUDHURY: Yes,
Sir.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: How they 
finanee the National Libraries. They 
are big countries but ours is a far 
bigger countr*. What is amount of 
finance that is spent on the National 
Library there annually?

SHRI P. ROYCHOUDHURY: We
are just not ready at the present 
moment with those figurea If neces
sary we can collect those figures and 
send that to the Committee.

SHftI NIREN GHOSH: Yes, Please 
do that.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: There are 
other government controlled libraries 
like the C.S.I.R. library etc. Whether 
these libraries are run by the govern
ment or by the autonomous bodies 
the scope, privileges and functions of 
these libraries are totally different 
from the objective of the National 
Library which is to function as a 
nublic library for the whole of the 
country.

P. ROYCHOUDHURY: Yes,
th* National Library is and has to be 
different from other libraries. Sir,
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there is another point. Let there not 
be any misunderstanding among the 
Members of Parliament that we are 
raising all these points simply because 
of an parochial outlook. We are 
raiding these points as we belong to 
the profession. We have suggested 
that the problem of the libraries of 
the entire country has to be taken 
into consideration. This was also 
envisaged by the Advisory pouncil 
for Libraries in 1957. It was also 
recommended by the Working Group 
of Libraries of the Planning Commis
sion. The system of integrated libr
ary system was in the mind of the 
Ex-Education Minister Maulana Abul 
Kalam Azad and he expressed his 
feeling at the UNESCO Conference in 
1955. We want that there should be 
4/5 National Libraries in a vast 
country like India. In U.K. there are 
four or flve National Libraries. We 
recommend that library in other 
regions of the country should also be 
developed. There should be more 
libraries of national status.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are you suggest^ 
ing at the same time—Members from 
outside West Bengal would like to 
know it—that It is time to re-open 
the issue whether the venue of the 
National Library would be in Cal
cutta?

SHRI P. ROYCHOUDHURY: No,
no. We suggested that National libr
aries should be situated in other 
regions also with the Central National 
Library at Calcutta.

MR. CHAIRMAN; Please give us a 
cal-eful statement on this point and 
do not complicate matters. Please 
send a note to us as to whether you 
want the National Library a;te to be 
transferred to any other pan of India.

SHRI P. ROYCHOUDHURY: No,
the National Library should be to 
Calcutta as the Central Library. We 
would send a separate note on this.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very  
much.

(The Committee then adjourned).
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III. Shri Hakam Singh, Librarian,

I. Dr. S. N. Prasad, Director of
Janpath

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Prasad, I 
welcome you. We have received your 
note and before proceeding, I would 
like to tell you one thing. You may 
please note that the evidence you 
give would be treated as public and is 
liable to be published unless you 
specifically desire that all or any part 
of your evidence tendered should be 
treated as confidential. Even though 
you might desire your evidence to be 
treated as confidential such evidence 
is liable to be made available to the 
Members of Parliament. You have the 
experience of Government Archives.
S would like you to express your 
views on this Bill. Then, Members 
would put questions to you. You are 
working since.........?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: I am working 
as Director of National Archives since 
September, 1969.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You may just 
briefly present your views and there
after Members will be given an 
opportunity to put questions and you 
may a isvrer the questions then.

DR. S. N, ^RASAD: I have only a 
small submission to make. I feel( that 
that in 71,any respects, the duties of 
function* of the National Library

i University, Patiala.

A rchive*—Governm ent of India,
New Delhi

would be common to the National 
Archives also. For example, the 
National Library and the National 
Archives, both, are interested in the 
acquisition, survey and preservation 
of valuable manuscripts, old' news
papers records of historical interest 
etc. We are engaged for many years 
in micro-filming such records. The 
National Library is als0 engaged in 
this same sort of task. It might, 
therefore, be desirable to have some 
institutional links or coordination 
between these two national institu
tions. This is the main submission 
that I had made in my written note 
on this matter, in the National 
Archives, we have been engaged in 
surveying, listing, acquiring and 
micro-filming and preserving these 
records for the last several decades. 
We have a very well developed labo
ratory and facilities for micro-filming, 
and we have men who are considered 
highly prdficient in India and abroad 
in these fields. In the 5th Plan, we 
have proposals for micro-filming, for 
example, old newspapers and for 
intensifying our efforts in listing and 
surveying records which are in private 
custody throughout the country. It 
was tny humble opinion that due to 
these reasons, ytqu may like to have 
some coordination; between these two 
institutions. • r . f
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MB. CHAIRMAN: For this kind of 

coordination that you have suggested, 
would you like sqmething to be inser
ted in the Bill itself? Or, this is just 
a suggestion that some way should be 
found out to coordinate the activities 
of these two institutions? Would you 
suggest any amendment or anything 
to be inserted in the Bill?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: Sir, my own 
feeling is that in the Executive Coun
cil oi the Board, you may like to 
mention specifically that the Director 
of National Archives shall be an ex
officio Member. He may be a member 
either of the- board or of the executive 
council, which is there in Section 10. 
Perhaps it should be inserted in Sec
tion 10, which talks about the execu
tive council and the board, may be 
as a separate sub-section, so that this 
remains a fixed policy and is statu
torily provided.

MR. CHAIRMAN: S0 far as the 
working of your institution is con
cerned, Hon. Member  ̂ would like to 
visit it and get more information as 
to how you select, get and preserve 
things.

SHRI ’NIREN GHOSH: I want to 
know whether the National Archives 
is being administered as an autono
mous body, or it is directly under the 
Government. Secondly, what is the 
total annual budget of the National 
Archives? I agree that there should 
be some liaison between the National 
Library and the National Archives.

DR. S. N. PRASAD: Our Archives 
is directly under Government. The 
annual budget of the National Archi- 
vec on the non-Plan side, is roughly 
of the order of Rs. 17 lakhs. On the 
Plan side, during the IV Plan, we 
had a total allocation of Rs. 139 lakhs 
which included the construction o f  an 
Annexe building also. As regards the 
questic© of how Much money I would 
like to have for ill this work of 
collection of private records and 
acquiring them oh payment • where 
necessary, I feel that the amount 
which I would require to do the job

really efficiently, would appear astro
nomical or unreasonable to some 
People. We want to cover the four 
corners of our huge country. Our 
history and cultural heritage are go 
rich that there is a vast amount of 
material which needs to be collected 
and preserved. From that point of 
view, several crores of rupees per 
year may be required to do this job 
well. This might appear fantastic 
frc*m the view-point of what we have 
been spending so far; but it is equal 
only to the cost of a single major 
bridge over one of our big rivers, or 
of a passenger-aeroplane; and for that 
order of expenditure, if our country 
can ersure the preservation and pro
per utilization of our unique cultural 
heritage, in my opinion, it would be 
money well spent.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: What would 
you like the budget of your National 
Library to be, not only on the estab
lishment side, but also on books pre
servation, micro-filming etc.?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: It is difficult 
for me to answer for the National 
Library. My submission is that you 
might like to do this work, not sepa
rately in different institutions, but in 
a coordinated manner covering the 
whole country; and from this overall 
requirement of expenditure, which I 
just indicated, allotment between 
different institutions will depend on 
various matters, e.g. how much each 
institution has, what facilities they 
already have, how much they can 
absorb simultaneously or immediately, 
etc.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: The National 
Archives is being administered direct
ly by the Government. We would 
like to know whether you wish that 
an autonomous board should be con
stituted.

DR. S. N. PRASAD: Now, it is not 
under:, any autonomous body; tut is a 
subordinate office of tFie Ministry of 
Education and Social Welfare. I have 
not. given much thought to the ques
tion, whether it should be made or
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placed under an autonomous board. I 
ieel that it would b* very difficult to 
do so, and may not be Quite proper 
.as well; because, the fimaterial we 
Tieep irv the National Archives is 
Government of India’s property.
It is the records of all the 

. Ministries and subordinate and attach
ed offices of the Government of India 
throughout the country; and I would 
not like to adept any procedure or 
pattern which would reduce the 
confidence which the Ministries now 
place in the National Archives and 
which might make anybody hesitant 
to transfer his confidential or very 
valuable files and papers to the 
National Archives.

MR. CHAIRMAN; It has b«ten repre
sented to us in this connection that 
sin ce it functions under the Depart
ment, various difficulties arise in its 
day-to-day functioning. Have you felt 
any difficulties in regard to the admi
nistrative control by the Government, 
as a result of which you might feel 
that Government control should be 
loosened or removed, or that there 
should be an autonomous body to 
c o r 'r o l  your unit?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: I would be 
less than truthful if I said that we 
hav» nm difficulties or p rob lem s I 
would only submit that these difficul
ties and problems are a matter of 

• every-day dealings between any two 
closely-associated bodies of men; and 
we have not felt at any stage that the 
case is so hopeless that we must sever 
the connection. We feel that we are 
receiving the attention. But, there is 
scope for being more receptive.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You mean that 
there is scope of improvement and not 
for despair.

DR. S. N. PRASAD: There is scope 
for some degree of autonomy—for 
devolution of some powers and func
tions. Certainly, it is not necessary 
to have an autonomous board. As an 
Institution, I feel that some degree 
of autonomy would certainly facilitate 
4*ur work.

MR. CHAIRMAN; That you already 
possess; There is some degree of 
autonomy.

DR. S. N. PRASAD: Yes, Sir. I 
mean, vnore than what we have 
already possessed. In this connection,
I may mention one thing. As I said, 
the National Archives to-day is a 
subordinate office of the Ministry. It 
is already under consideration that it 
should be rai9ed to the status of an 
attached office. *

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI: 
You &ay that there is some sort of 
coordination between the National 
Archiven and National Library—one is 
now in Calcutta and the other is in 
Delhi. How is that coordination being 
maintained? Do you mean to say that 
both should com? to Delhi or both 
should go to Calcutta?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: I do not think 
that I have anything of this sort in 
mind. I do not mean either bringing 
in the National Library to Delhi or 
taking the National Archives to 
Calcutta.

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI: 
W^at you mean is only theoretical 
coordination.

DR. S. N. PRASAD: There should 
be coordination in policies—not in the 
day-to-day working. But, all this, to 
my '.nind, is possible even without 
physically moving these two institu
tions.

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI: 
What do you mean by policies?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: For exam
ple, both these institutions are en
gaged in preserving and micro-film
ing the old newspapers. Let us say 
that there rfiould be a coordination 
so % at both of them do not micro
film the same newspapers for the 
s&sng year simultaneously. We may 
decide as to what may be the news
papers that may be covered by the 
National Library and what may be 
the newspapers which niay be taken 
up by the National Archives.
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SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI:
Are they doing it now?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: The National
Archives has done some very small 
micro-filming of newspapers. This 
was not because of any lack of 
awareness of the value of it but it 
was because of lack of resources. In 
the Fifth Plan, we have proposed to 
do this work on a much bigger 9cale.

SHRI N. G. GORAY: I would like 
to ask one question. You must have 
read this Bill. The scheme envisag
ed under this Bill is that the National 
Library should be made into an auto
nomous organisation. When this 
Committee went to Calcutta, we 
found that there was a 1°* of resis
tance to this idea. They insisted that 
the National Library should continue 
to be directly under Government.

Now, have you given any thought 
to it? The resistance was because 
they feared that once it was made 
autonimous, Government will lose 
interest and it will suffer financially 
and it will become one of the many 
libraries in the country and it will 
lose this sort of status.

Do you think that giving an auto
nomous status to an institution like 
the National Library will necessarily 
detract from its status or do you 
think that it will have a freer scope 
and more autonomy to manage i*s 
own affairs and it will gain in status?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: My opinion,
for whatever its worth may be, is 
that an institution of the stature of 
the National Library would not suf
fer in dimunition or from lack of 
resources if we make it an autono** 
mous body. My feeling is that by 
putting it under an autonomous board 
it would be easier to get things done 
quickly than it is or it would per- ♦ 
haps be possible to do.

SHRI N. G. GORAY: You suggest
ed that the National Ardhives and 
the National Library should be in 
same way or the other coordinated. 
You suggested, for example, that the

Director of the National Archives 
should be on the Board or on the 
Executive Council. I do not think 
that by simply putting him on the 
board of the National Library or 
Executive Council, it will be possi
ble to coordinate these two works. 
But, don’t you think that some thing 
in these matters should be done so 
that the same thing may not be dupli
cated. Let there not be micro-film
ing of the same subject in* Calcutta 
as is done in Delhi. Is that your 
idea? Should there be a division of 
labour so that whatever you are do
ing in your sphere need not be re
peated there and whatever they are 
doing in Calcutta should not be re
peated here. Is that the sole idea 
of what you mean by coordination 
and all that?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: Yes, Sir.
That should not be repeated or dupli
cated. Also the two efforts should be 
coordinated so as to be more effec
tive. If the National Library is able 
to do something and the National 
Archives has done something which 
is parallel and which is not exactly 
the same and if the coordination is 
there, then it would be possible to 
achieve better results instead of each 
one pursuing a separate pa*h so that 
they do not tread on each other’s 
toes.

Shri Y. S. MAHAJAN: What is the 
extent to whidh there is duplication 
between the work done by you and 
the National Library at the moment?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: I did not say
that there was any duplication at the 
moment. There is a possibility of 
duplication of the work all the time. 
The sort of work which is done both in 
the National Archives and in the Na
tional Library is such that it—would 
not come under the heading of pri
vate papers but, in a broad sense, 
non-Government papers. That would 
include even the newspapers. We 
now collect in the National Archives 
private papers of eminent Indians in
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thirtythree major collections of very 
eminent Indians. We lhave also the 
micro-film of the papers of Mahatma 
Gandhi. Also we have acquired Dr. 
Rajendra Prasad’s private papers for 
this purpose. We have a long list of 
such things. We have the papers of 
Sir Tej Bahadur Sapru in the Na
tional Library. Here is something 
which both of us are doing. Simi
larly, in micro-filming of these 
tilings, both of Us are engaged in this 
effort. So far, to my mind, there has 
not been much duplication or waste 
of our effort simply because the field 
to be covered is so vast that there 
is plenty of scope for a number of 
agencies’ wqrking to do this and each 
one doing its best. But, the possibi
lity of duplication is always there. 
Because of lack of any coordination 
machi-nery to coordinate these things 
jr because of lack of any institutional 
links. My feeling is that we are not 
deriving as such benefit as we would 
like to or could if there was a co
ordination.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: In the par
ticular instance wfiich you have given 
I think we will be increasing the re
sources available for scholars. As 
regards the co-ordination which you 
havp been emphasizing, do you think 
it will ensure better working?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: My feeling is 
it will be more efficient to co-ordi
nate in the sense as I said. At the 
moment it is very much a matter of 
chance.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: We can
divide the area.

DR. S. N. PRASAD: That would
be one way of co-ordinating it, al
though I, personally, would prefer 
another way. It ' may be that the 
papers o f people—who are of na
tional staturtf, of all India impor- 
tanc?~are collected by one institution 
and the papers of people of re
gional importance, which again is 
very valuable for history, are collect
ed by another institution. The divi
sion does not imply any reduction in

the importance of their work but it is 
only a working formula. Something 
like that could be done. W e 
have to ultimately think of 15 other 
agencies engaged in similar work- 
private institutions, some universities, 
some State Record Officers, are also 
doing the same thing. It would be 
more advantageous from the national 
point of view if an over-all policy is 
decided upon and clear guidlines 
issued and the institutions engaged in 
this important activity in a coordi
nated manner and there may be well 
chalked out programme and progress.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: Do you not 
think, it will be better to povide in 
the Act itself? Or do you think the 
instructions may be got issued by the 
Education Ministry?

MR. CHAIRMAN: He has already 
answered this question.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: You 
have a varied experience as an Ad
ministrator. Do your apprehend, if 
your Archives are put under an auto
nomous body, that wil] lower the 
prestige?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: My own feel
ing is the prestige of the Institution 
cannot be lowered by keeping it as an 
autonomous body. Possibly, it can be 
lowered if the instiution does not 
function If I do my job well and am 
able to convince my country-men, that 
I am doing my job, my institutions will 
have more prestige. My feeling, 
therefore, is that this matter is not 
tied up with the question of its orga
nisational set up so much as it is tied 
up with the performance of the insti
tution.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: Do 
you think that the Institution should 

% be run by an autonomous body which 
may be made by the Government com
prising of eminent persons of Research, 
knowledge and experience?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: This is not a 
subject on which I can say with any 
degree of authority or expertise. In
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my opinion it would be good to have 
an au^nomous body.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA; Aa a 
Director do wou feel that the auto
nomous body should be there as per 
recommendations of the Jha Com
mittee? Do you think the Director 
should necessarily be the Chaiiman 
of the Board?

MR. CHAIRMAN: I think it might be 
rather unfair to put this- question as 
he has hot asked for the autonomy of 
his Institution.

Dr. Prasad, if you want to express 
your opinion, you may express your 
views, otherwise i*Qt.

DR. S. N. PRASAD: 1 <io not claim 
any expertise in this. My initial reac
tion to this would be that the direc
tor of the National Library should 
not be the Chairman of the Board. He 
should certainly be one of the impor
tant members and, perhaps, the Mem
ber Secretary of the Board.

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BISI: 
You said just now that the autonomous 
bodies are more effective and are run 
smoothly. Looking at our universi
ties which are all autonomous bodies, 
do you still hold that view?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: I shall be 
thankful if you permit me not to ans
wer.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: You 
have made only one point in your 
memorandum and that is about coor
dination between the various institu
tions. If these national institutions are 
located  at one particular point, this 
coordination could be achieved In a 
better way as against if they are lo
cated at different points.

DR. S. N. PRASAD: Sir, my sin
cere opinion is that it would not make 
any difference to the coordination in 
terms of policies as to where these 
institutions are located and on several 
other grounds, which will be fairly 
obvious, my feeling would be not to 
concentrate, all our national institu
tions at one place.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: 
There is other type of coordination as 
you just mentioned about certain ma
chines which will be used by various 
institutions. That sort of coordination 
could be achieved in a better way. In 
that respect, the Government can save 
some finances also. If they are locat
ed at one point.

DR. S. N. PRASAD: I have doubts 
about saving in finances. Take for 
example repair facilities. We have a 
laminating press which will repair a 
page which is crumbling to dust and 
make it indestructible for many de
cades. If you do not want to dupli
cate that facility elsewhere in the 
country and you put fifty machines 
here, you will have to bring tons and 
tons of documents to Delhi to be la
minated and sent back to their respec
tive places. In case you locate the 
machines in different regions and parts 
of the country, you do not have to 
’snove the documents. Therefore, this 
might be cheaper.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: On 
the one ha'n<. you said that duplica
tion of work shuild be avoided. Now 
you argue that if ifeere is duplication 
of this nature, there would be no 
harm.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What he is say
ing is decentralization, he is not say
ing about duplication.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: The 
same thing can be put in different 
words.

DR. S. N. PRASAD: What I had in 
mind w*hen I used the word duplica
tion’ was that Ikoth of us or several 
of the institutionjnay be filming the 
same thing; that vould be duplica
tion You have a micro film in one 
place, if you want to place it in other 
places, you can make copies of the 
micro film and distribute them. That 
would be duplication, if you have ma
chines at various places. The provi
sion of setting up repairing facilities 
in a number of places is, to my mind,
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no duplication because they are not 
repairing something which has al
ready been done by somebody else or 
wfoich can better be done or more 
cheaply be done by some other ins
titutions. They are repairing things, 
which they have to do individually. 
On the other hand, it is cheaper and 
better. What I would like is that these 
facilities should be within the reach 
of each document in our vast coun
try, should be available in each corner 
of the country so that all the docu
ments can be given treatment.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: I 
am interested to know, if both the 
institutions are located at one point, to 
what extent, the Government can 
save the fianances. That is the basic 
question. I really feel that a num
ber odf departments are doing the same 
type of work in these institutions.

DR. S. N. PRASAD: As I submitted, 
the centralising of facilities like mic
ro-filming and repairing in eithter ins
titution, to my mind, would not be tfoe 
cheaper solution. It would be a more 
expensive solution. This is because the 
material will have to be transported to 
and back. The avoiding of duplica
tion w h ich  I had mind was only 
in respect of acquisition and policies 
for microfilm*^ rather than for set
ting up o* facilities which have to be 
multiped manifold throughout the 
vas+ country.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PRA- 
SHAR: Coming to the point of ma
nagement and administration of the 
National Library, as you know, what 
is envisaged in the Bill, is some sort 
of an autonomous body. Have you 
checked up, what is the practice in 
other countries with regard to Na
tional Libraries? Many country have 
National Libraries; wbat is the prac
tice there? Do th*y have autono
mous bodies to administer them, or 
are they under Governmental control?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: I would be
unable to answer this question, as I 
am not sufficiently familiar with th* 
facts.

SHRT NARAIN CHAND PRA- 
SHAR: We interviewed a number of 
people in Calcutta. Somehow they

felt that it would bring some sort of 
deterioiation if we have an autono
mous board for the National Library, 
Since yours as a national institution, 
though it is a subordinate office, what 
if your experience and what would be 
your consideration about this. If 
both these bodies are autonomous 
with a coordination? Would it help, 
or if both these bodies are govern
mental bodies, coordination is implied, 
because they are under the same Mi
nistry. that would be better?

MR . CHAIRMAN: He has already 
answered that question.

DR. S. N. PRASAD: I have nothing 
else to add.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PRA- 
SHAR: Yo“ are of the view tuat au- 
tonomo body would be belter. Are 
you satisfied with the present repre
sentation of various types of interests 
as in the Bill, or you would suggest 
some change like, one body at the 
apex and the other at the base.

DR. S. N. PRASAD: I have an im
pression that there are already two 
different bodies visualised, one is th* 
Board at the apex and the other is 
executive committee This, to my 
mind, is right. That is what is re
quired.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PRASHAR- 
The number of members envisaged is 
something like ten. Is that right? 
Some witnesses were of the view that 
it should be fairly representative and 
therefore the number should be en
larged. What is your opinion about 
this?

DR. S. N. PRASAD: Again, this is 
not my special sphere but .. .

MR. CHAIRMAN: He may not Ue 
able to answer in detail. You may seek 
his general view but in regard to de
tails. it will be difficult for him to ans
wer.

iSHRI NARAIN CHAND PRA
SHAR: I do not envisage any difficul
ty in this because, when we talk of 
the representative character of a 
Board, I think even a layman’s opi
nion should be broad-based as to whe
ther there should be an apex body
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and Executive Council, etc. Therefore, 
there is no point in evading this; you 
can say straightway whether you 
would like this to be enlarged or not.

DR. S. N. PRASAD: As a layman,
I can give a perfect layman’s opinion 
without any competence or knowledge 
about it. My own reaction would be 
not to have an Advisory Board which 
is substantially larger because it 
would become unwieldy and it would 
not be able to take decisions which 
affect the day to day working of the 
Institution as efficiently as it would 
be able to if it were smaller in size.

'  II. Indian Library

Spokesmen:

1. Shri B. L. Bhardwaja
2. Shri Gurnam Singh
3. SHRI O. P. Trikha

MR. CHAIRMAN: Before we pro
ceed, I would like to inform you that 
the evidence that you give here will 
be treated as public and is liable to be 
published unless you specifically de
sire that all or any parr of the eviden 
ce tendered by you is to be treated as 
confidential. Even if you might da*tre 
that your evidence be treated as con
fidential. such evidence is liable to be 
made available to Members of Parlia
ment. This is for your information.

Now, your memorandum has been 
received and it has been circulated to 
the Members. You may state briefly 
your views and thereafter Members 
may like to put certain question in 
order to elucidate certain points.

SHRI O. P. TRIKHA: As it has been 
National Library Bill has been limited 
just to the National Library as such. 
There should be a well-knit develop
ment of Libraries to be proposed in 
the country.

At the same time, in order to give re* 
presentation to the various categories 
of persons or groups of persons in
terested in the National Library. I 
might like to have some advisory 
body where everybody would be 
given representation and we can have 
a purely advisory body as against an 
executive one.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very 
much; we are very thankful to you; 
you have enlightened us to a great 
extent.

(The witness then withdrew) 

Association, Delhi.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Will you flra: en
lighten us regarding your Association 
in a few words?

SHRI O. P. TRIKHA: The Indian 
Library Association was established in 
1933 as an All India Library body and 
it is a national organisation comprising 
about 1200 Members all over the 
country. In addition to individual 
Members, there are institutions and 
other bodies who #re also our Mem
bers and who are inter ssted in tbi? Li
brary development. The State Libra
ry Association and also our mem
bers. Recently, we had a meeting at 
Hyderabad where representatives 
from all the corners were present.

PROF. 'S. NURUL HASAN: Who are 
the office bearers of the All India 
body?

SHRI O. P. TRIKHA: I am the Sec
retary of the All Lndia body; Shri 
Bashiruddin is our President and Shri 
Gurnam Singh is the Assistant Sec
retory. We have nn executive body 
of about 11 Memberi.

PROF. S NURUL HASAN: You are 
representing, the Indian Library Asso
ciation or a Branch of it?
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SHRI O. P. TRIKHA: Our head

quarters are in Delhi; there is no 
branch as such.

PROF. S. NURUo HA3ANT: Then 
you are representiiig the Ali India 
body?

SHRI O. P. TRIKHA: That’s right.
MR. CHAIRMAN: You may pro

ceed.
SHRI O. P. TRIKHA: As I have 

said, the proposed Bill is of a very 
limited scope dealing; with orly the 
National Library presently at Calrut- 
ta; we would request th*at a well- 
knit development plan for the whole 
country should be U.k-n into account 
in the Bill.

Then, coming to *ho Board, it should 
be autonomous and should enjoy all 
the privilege of autonomous Boards 
because it is clear that always the 
autonomous bodies conduct their work 
in a much better way in day to day 
routine matters of the institution and 
their decisions are al90 very quick. I 
would suggest that the autonomy 
should be there in the National Lib
rary Board. For example, in the 
Delhi Public Library, we have got the 
experience that it has been working 
very efficiently and there has been, I 
think, an enromous development to 
extend its services to the citizens of 
Delhi. ‘Similarly, once the Board is 
there and it enjoys full autonomy, it 
will be the easy for the members of 
the Board and the institution itself to 
flourish.

When we come to the constitution 
of the Board. It is said that the 
vacancies should be filled up for the 
remaining period of tenure of the out
going person. In that case, I would say 
that it would not be in the interest of 
the Board to have a person for six 
months or three months or two
months. We should fill up the va
cancy for a longer period and the
incoming person should be for the
next tenure.

As far os Director’s qualification is 
concerned, we would request that the 
main lualification for the Director

should be that he should have worked 
as a Librarian and then the academic 
qualification should come in. Pre
ference should be given to the Lib
rarian rather than to the educationist.

MR. CHAIRMAN: These are two
contradictory things.

SHRI B. L. BHARDWAJA: Just
as an economist or a philosopher is an 
educationist, in the same way, a Lib
rarian can also claim to be an educa
tionist and he should not be excluded 
from the category of the education.

PROF S. NURUL HASAN: I am 
trying to elaborate what the Chair
man said. The distinguished Librarian 
is one who is not only a distinguished 
scholar but he should also be a 
distinguished librarian.

SHRI B. L. BHARDWAJA: But, 
situated as we are, if you want that 
the Librarianship should be a growing 
profession, then we think Librarian 
should be in that category.

"  PROF S. NURUL HASAN: A
Librarian should be a scholar.

SHRI B. L. BHARDAWAJA: Yes, 
Sir.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: And a 
man of wide learning.

SHRI B. L. BHARDAWAJA: Our
Ex-Presidents include Prof. Keshavan, 
Mr. Nihar Ranjan and Dr. Ranga- 
nathan.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: These
are well-known scholars.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In addition to
that, they 9hould have that qualifica
tion also.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: At the 
same time, I am sure, you are not 
meaning that a person who is merely 
an academician should be selected 
even though he mdy not have dis
tinguished himself as a man of
learning.

SHRI B. L. BHARDAWAJA: A
person who has the knowledge of
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books is a scnolarly person and at the 
same time knoWs the art of managing.

SHRI O. P. TRIKHA: As far as
appointment of a person is concerned, 
it should be for a longer period, sup
posing, a person is therefor five years, 
how can he plan for a longer period 
if it is based into different pro
grammes. If we have to reach at such 
and such place in Delhi and put our 
Library in each nook and corner of 
Delhi, then it cannot be done in five 
years. For this, at least, 15 or 20 
years’ planning should be there. 
Secondly, if a person comes on depu
tation, he will b? towards the end of 
his career. I would suggest that he 
should be on a regular basis. With 
regard to the employees, we have 
suggested in our memorandum that the 
existing employees of the National 
Library, Calcutta, should be given an 
option other to retain their status as 
Govt, employees, if they so desire, 
or, if they like, to come under the 
new regulations as they would be in 
autonomous bodies. All the librarians 
who are working, in that way should 
be given the option to do so. Others 
may come under the new administra
tion. And then in the Board, there 
was no representation of the National 
Library Association which I request 
should be there for proper planning 
and development.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: I appreciate this point of view. 
I am aware of two international con
ferences—one in Manila and the other 
in Paris—regarding the development 
of national Library movement in the 
underdeveloped countries. I also see 
the point that a mere scholar Is not 
the Librarian and he need not be a 
Librarian, but for a Library, it is the 
librarianship-cum-scholarship that 
should matter rather than scholarship- 
cum librarian. What would you think 
if it is decided to have a representative 
of the library profession in the Board 
of Management, or whatever it is for 
the national library? How such per

son  should be selected? I am not 
talking of the person who heads the 
Board, but the person who represents

a library as such in the Board of 
Management.

SHRI B. L. BHARDAWAJA: You
give representation to the national 
association. The President of the 
Indian Library Association will be a 
member of the Board! Since our 
President is elected every two years, 
according to the Constitution, the 
association as such has got the repre
sentation. The other method is that 
you nominate some leading librarian 
from such and such University by 
rotation. There may be a panel of 
five or six Universities and out of 
that panel, one may serve for a fixed 
term. Election is not a very sure and 
suitable method of finding a suitable 
man for such type of assignment. 
They should be sent either by 
nomination or be ear-ojjlcio.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Since it concerns your pro
fession for which you will agree with 
me that there are, at present, more 
than 90 Universities in the country 
and all of them are having libraries. 
Then there are other State Govern
ment Libraries; then there are 
libraries which are being run by 
trusts and so on and so forth. If 
there is a question of rotation. I don’t 
think there will bs a chance for 
anybody.

SHRI B. L. BHARDAWAJA: The
intention is not that each one of them 
should get a chance to serve on the 
University Board. The intention is 
that professional people should get 
representation so that they may ade
quately put the professional point of 
view in the Board. We can have one 
from amongst the distinguished per
sons of the senior most among them 
should be nominated.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: You have said that there
should be some sort of scope for the 
library movement in the country and 
this should be incorporated in this 
Bill itself. Have you any concrete 
suggestions to make in this regard?
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SHRI B. L. BHARAD WAJA: Ac

tually. I do nit want to take much of 
your time. As far as the National 
Library, Calcutta, is concerned, the 
word 'national', here, has a historical 
background. Previously, it was called 
Imperial Library. Soon after Indepen
dence, the word Imperial’ had to be 
given a go-by and the word ‘National’ 
had been substituted. At that time, 
it was a National Library in the real 
sense of the term. Later on, since the 
word ‘National Library* was given, an 
attempt was made to give it a national 
character. But, over the last 25 years, 
this has not met with much success. 
The Library, in its selection and in 
its personnel, still has not got a 
national outlook. What we have sug
gested in our memorandum is that, 
like other National Libraries in various 
countries, the National Library, besides 
being a library in itself, should be 
the nerve-centre of the entire library 
movement in the country, so that new 
ideas and new experiences shoot off 
from that centre and pervade through
out the length and breadth of the 
country. It is in that sense that we 
have said that the National Library 
Bill, as drafted, restricts itself only 
to institutions. But, it does not say 
anything as to how the idea of library 
development should be pursued by 
the National Library. Our submission 
was that suitable clauses should be 
added in the Bill to see that the 
functions of spreading the library
movement and improving library
science are also included in the
functions of the National Library. 
This is our idea.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA-
SHAR: I would like to ask a very 
specific question. Mr. Kesavan who 
was a National Librarian some time 
back, read a paper at the Manila 
Seminar and referring to this National 
Library, Calcutta, he made a specific 
statement in the general context. He 
said that the time has come when the 
public aspect or the public service as
pect of the library should be de-linked 
from the national aspect of the 
National Library, because, it has to be

a repository of the cultural heritage 
of the nation. The Public Library 
may be a big library or something 
like that because of its service aspect. 
For this purpose, there may be some 
other libraries. But, this particular 
library should be preserved as such 
as a monument which can embrace 
the rich cultural heritage of the coun
try and save it from annihilation.

SHRI B. L. BHARADAWAJA: I 
would like to say here one thing. 
The Baroda Central Library was 
established l?y Shri Fatesinh Rao 
Gaikewad. He had a curator of lib
rary, who was> also the Librarian of 
the Central Library, Baroda. In his 
capacity as curator, he was in-charge 
of so many library department. This 
Library extended its services to 
various provincial towns and rural 
areas. Mr. Kesavan is welcome to 
have his views. There can be differ
ent views on this subject. But, the 
Association, for the purpose of this 
particular situation, is still of the opi
nion that the Library if it also takes 
upon itself the duty to see that lib
rary development takes place in the 
country and it plays a very important 
role therein, then, our. .

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: I would 
like to raise one point before you. 
Libraries are in the State in our 
Constitution, and therefore, Parlia
ment does not have the competence 
to legiplate on a national library 
movement. It can legislate in respect 
of those institutions which have been 
declared as institutions of national 
importance and National Library, i* 
one of those, which has been declared 
as an institution of national impor
tance. Therefore, Parliament has the 
legislative competence to legislate in 
respect of the National Library. Now, 
you have made a suggestion and I was 
wondering, whether you have given 
any thought to this matter that lib-j 
raries fall squarely within the State 
list and they are beyond Parliament^ 
competence to legislate.
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SHRI B. L. BHARADWAJA: My

jubmission is this. I know that libra
ries are in the State list and they are 
not on the Concurrent list. But, by 
consensus, a lot of things can be 
achieved, and I will appeal to the 
Minister to evolve a sort of consen
sus, because, it is a question in which 
all sections of the community are in
terested and it is closely related to 
our national development. Your pre
decessor, Dr. Rao happened to preside 
over one of our Conferences in My
sore and there, he said that although 
it was a State subject and the Central 
Government had no authority legally 
to interfere, he would consult the 
Education Ministers and he will try 
to bring home the point to them that 
there should be some sort of uniform 
legislation in the States as well as 
guidance from the Centre in respect 
of library development. Legally, it is 
perfectly clear that the Central Gov
ernment cannot interfere. But, at 
your level, you can have a word with 
your counter-parts in the State and 
if possible, some sort of consensus 
can be brought about so that there is 
uniform development of library move
ment in the country.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: Even
that does not give Parliament the 
authority to legislate. It is possible 
that the various State Government 
may have similar policy and similar 
legislations, if you so desire. But, how 
does Parliament get the authority to 
legislate?

SHRI B. L. BHARDWAJA: In
cultural matters, we cannot work in 
watertight compartments and those 
who hold the strings of the purse, can 
get things done.

PROF. N. G. GORAY: We have 
understood the spirit behind your 
remarks. But, the point is that, as far 
as legislation is concerned, Parlia
ment cannot pass any law. That is the 
point.

SHRI B. L. BHARADWAJA: I per
fectly agree with the view. But, if the 
functions... .

MR. CHAIRMAN: He has express
ed his views So far as the constitu
tional position is concerned, he says 
that some way should be found out.

SHRI PRAMATHA NATH BASI: 
You just said that the National Lib
rary at Calcutta has no national out
look. Which library in India has got 
national outlook? You also said that 
the Imperial library automatically 
became the National Library. Simi
larly, British Empire in India became 
the National Government of India. 
So, do you mean to say that we are 
not a nation?

SHRI B. L. BHARADWAJA: I only 
submitted that the National Library 
has not developed on national lines. 
I never said that it has no national 
outlook. Whatever development has 
taken place, is not enough, in my 
view.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: I take it that you use it in the 
historical sense.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Actually, the
proposed bill is altogether silent on 
the functions of the library. If those 
are taken into account, you will defi
nitely see that it has a national out
look. It has maintained it so far and 
will continue to maintain it.

SHRI SAN AT KUMAR RAHA: In
the memo, submitted by the National 
Library Association, there are some 
observations. One proposes that the 
3-tier administrative set-up in the 
proposed bill should be simplified, to 
avoid uninteded difficulties. Do you 
want it to be a broad-based body re
presenting all regions? Will this be 
a small body? If it is to be a small 
body, how can expect that it can 
serve national purposes? If you think 
that it should be broad-based, how 
can you suggest that there should 
not be any executive committee? So,
I think yiu should clarify your pro
position regarding the structure of 
the National Library Authority.

SHRI GURNAM SINGH: There
should be one post. Thqi Secretary 

will be the executive officer of the
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board. He will first go to the execu
tive council. Then the council will put 
it up before the board. If we keep 
an one-tier board, it will be easy to 
conduct business.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR AAHA:
How?

SHRI GURNAM SINGH: We have 
it in the Delhi Public Library. The 
Secretary puts up the difficulties be
fore the board and then he works 
according to their decision. It was 
initiated as an UNESCO pilot project. 
Now, it has been taken up by the 
Ministry and it is working very well.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA:
There is a provision in the bill that
there should be a 12-member council. 
Do you suggest that there should be 
no council?

SHRI GURNAM SINGH: The Exe
cutive Council shall have the director
nf the National Library as its ex
officio Secretary,

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA:
What should be the size necessary 
for the representation of so many re
gions?

SHRI GURNAM SINGH: We have 
given the size of the board; and we 
have included two members therein, 
who should be professional libra
rians. We do not object to the re
gional composition of the board

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: Mr. Bha- 
radwaja, you have talked about the 
development of library movement in 
India. It is a State subject. I believe 
some States have passed Library Acte; 
and tried to develop the library 
movement. Do you think that it will 
be sufficient and will meet the re
quirements of the people in this 
respect?

SHRI B. L. BHARADWAJA: The
library has two facts. One is the 
public library for encouraging adult 
litoracy and the general level of 
education among masses. The other 
aspect of the library movement is to 
collect material for research scholars 
r*tc. The concept of national library is

to cater both to the public library 
movement as well as collecting mate
rial for these who want to make scho
larly use of it.

PROF. S. NURUL HAlSAN: Here a 
difficulty arisas, i.e. of parliamentary 
competence. I am sorry I am coming 
back to it. Parliament's competence 
over the national library exists be
cause it has been declared to be of 
national importance. A public library 
is not an institution of national 
importance. I am not saying that the 
public library is less important; it is 
extremely important. It has a diffe
rent function. Here, the National 
library is an institution of national 
importance and, therefore, it has to 
be rather different even from the bast 
of public libraries.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: We have, 
in India, a number of general public 
libraries and we have a large num
ber of specialized libraries like those 
in the national science laboratories. 
They are a very important part of the 
chain. Don’t you think that those 
spacialized libraries should have re
presentation in the board?

SHRI O. P. TRIKHA: In our memo, 
we have requested that the member
ship of the board be increased so as 
to include one representative each of 
Indian Association of Special Librarier 
and Information Centre.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: We have 
a large numer of universities in 
India; and as pointed out by Mr. Para
sha r, their number will go up fur
ther. Do you think it would be 
sufficent to have one representative 
from all of them, because the idea 
of representation ig to have different 
types of experience pooled together?

SHRI B. L. BHARADWAJA: The 
idea w not to give representation to 
the librarians, but to make available 
the best talent, in the matter of 
running the national library.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: We have, 
for example, agricultural and other 
technical universities. It would be 
difficult for one man to represent 
different specified universities.
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SHRI B. L. BHARDWAJA: So 

for as the librarian is concerned, he 
has love for all branches of know
ledge. He will look after and do 
justice to all branches of science.
The librarian of an agricultural 
university will not necessarily lofyk 
after the interest's *of such universi
ties alone.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: I want 
to make a correction. According to 
my Secretary, the Association of 
Delhi Public Libraries is adminis
tered by a board which has set 
up a small committee, called the 
executive committee.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: I would 
like to know how many associations 
there are. Are there several of them?

SHRI B. L. BHARADWAJA: There 
are only two bodies. The Indian 
Library Association was set up in 1933 
and it was the spokesman of the 
library movement in India. In 1956, the 
Indian Association of Special Libra
ries and Information Centres, with its 
headquarters at Calcutta, was estab
lished, to take stock of what is hap
pening in the field of special libraries. 
These are the two all-India bodies; 
others are State organisations.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: It is being 
aaierted that except the British Mu
seum, all national libraries all over 
the world are directly under the Gov
ernment and administered by the 
Government at the 'national level. Are 
you content with having it at the state 
level? At the same time, what bene
fits, do you think, would accrue to 
the library by having it under an 
autonomous board?

III. Shri Hakam Singh, Librarian

MR. CHAIRMAN: I welcome you,
Mr. Hakam Singh, on behalf of the 
Committee. Before we proceed fur
ther, I would like to inform you that 
the evidence that you will give'here 
will be treated as public and is liable

SHRI B. L. BHARADWAJA : What 
you say is correct; but we have our 
own particular problems in this 
country, and the way we are func
tioning. An autonomous body has a 
little more autonomy and freedom to 
lunction than a body functioning like 
a government department. Secondly 
we feel that all educational institu
tions should be a little away from 
the day-to-day control of the Gov
ernment and if an autonomous body 
takes charge of the national library, 
we will be having some freedom. In 
its day-to-day working, it will not be 
tied down by the rigidity of funcion- 
ing of various Government depart
ments. As it happens, there are cer
tain matters on which in order to 
fulfil the strict requirements of ac
counts, audit and other procedural 
matters, it takes a very long time to 
decide on a particular question. But 
if the body is autonomous, it has a 
little more freedom and the work is 
done speedily. There are occasions 
when even the Minister is helpless 
because of the procedural difficulties.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: But certain 
conditions can be waived specially 
and still it can remain as a Govern
mental organisation.

SHRI B. L. BHARADWAJA: I know 
that the conditions can be modified in 
the public interest. What we mean is 
that it should be given sufficient auto
nomy so that it can function smoothly 
and in the interest of the library 
development.

MR. CHAIRMAN: On behalf of the 
Committee, I thank you for enligh
tening the Committee with your 
views. Thank you very much.

(The witnesses then withdrew)

Punjabi Univereity, Patiala

to be published, unless you specifically 
desire that all or any part of the 
evidence tendered by you is to be 
treated as confidential. Even though 
you might desire your evidence to be 
treated as confidential, such evidence
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is liable to be made available to the 
Members of Parliament.

We have received your Memoran
dum and it has already been circulat
ed to the Members. You may, how
ever, briefly explain your views and 
thereafter the Members might like to 
put some questions in order to enligh
ten them with your views.

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: Thapk you, 
Sir. I have suggested certain modi
fications in the Bill. That part of 
the suggestions, I have given in the 
first part of my letter. In the second 
part, I have suggested thpt the Bill 
should have been more comprehen
sive and the present Bill does not 
really tackl: the entire problem of 
the national Library in the country. 
In my view, the second part, that is, 
comprehensive legislation is more 
important. I would first proceed with 
the amendments that I have sugges
ted in the draft Bill.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: I would 
request you to kindly enlighten the 
Committee on the constitutional diffi
culty with which this Committee is 
faced. It is a Cocmmittee of Parlia
ment. Parliament does not have the 
competence to legislate on Library 
which in in the State List and is not 
in the Union List. Therefore, what 
is that you mean when you say that 
you want a comprehensive national 
Library Bill.

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: I shall
elaborate the point.

The Library Service Is a State 
subject but the National Library 
Service has to be provided by the 
Union Government.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: Under 
which entry of the Union List?

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: Kindly see 
Sec. 12 Seventh Schedule List I of 
the Constitution of India. It says— 
‘those declared by Parliament by law 
to be of national importance’.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: Please 
be very clear.

MR. CHAIRMAN; Unless they are 
declared ‘institution of national im
portance*.

SHRI HAKA&l SINGH: National
Library will have to be declared as 
an institution of national importance. 
Take the case of United States USSR, 
U.K., European Continental countries. 
It will be appropriate to take the 
United States which is federal in 
structure, there the National Library 
Services are provided by the Federal 
or the Union Government.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: Is it
your suggestion that the Constitution 
be amended? As it is to-day the Na
tional Library Service cannot be legis
lated upon by Parliament.

MR. CHAIRMAN: His idea is that 
it should be declared an institution of 
national importance. That will re
quire another Bill. At present we are 
discussing National Library Bill and 
not any other Bill which you might 
be having in mind.

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: National
Library Service constitute:

1. Copy right work
2. Bringing put national biblio

graphy . r
3. Co-ordination of Library ser

vice in the country
4. Providing Library services out

side the country; and
5. Services to special groups of

people within the country, 
e.g. blind people or seaman, 
for whom services cannot be 
provided by State Govern
ments.

Those types of services can only be 
provided by the National Library sys
tems. In the United States, the Cons
titution provides that Library Ser
vice is a State service. State Gov
ernments there are very particular 
that their rights are not taken away 
by the Union or the Central Govern
ment. But here, we have a permis
sive provision in our Constitution, 
and National Service means service of 
national importance.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: You have made 

your point clear. You proceed fur
ther.

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: In this re
gard I shall like to say something 
more and then proceed further. I feel 
that the National Library is a very 
important institution of the nation 
and for the type of functions that it 
is required to perform its Administra
tion has to be strong, and for that 
reason the H«od of the Administra
tion must have enough power to exer
cise in view of the enormous respon
sibility that he will have to discharge 
I feel it will be very difficult for him 
to discharge his responsibilities if he 
is not having full authority. In the 
draft Bill it ha? been suggested that 
there will be two bodies—one will be 
the Board. Policy making and direc
tion will be in the hands of the Board 
where the Goverpment will have its 
voice. The others body will be an 
Executive Council of which Director 
of the National Library will be the 
Chairman. The Executive Council 
wiU also have members who may not 
be Members of the Board. There 
will also be Members who will be 
subordinates—for instance Finance 
Secretary may send his Deputy, Edu
cation Secretary may send his Deputy 
and from the Cultural Ministry a 
Deputy may be sent. The Executive 
Council is there in a way to assist or 
help the Director in discharge his 
responsibility.

It means, as far as I can see, that 
somehow there is leas trust being 
placed in the capacity of the Director 
to discharge his responsibility which 
the Board has decided upon or which 
the Board hars framed, as its policy 
for the Director to carry out. And 
yet, there is an Executive Council to 
assist him in this type of work. I 
feel that the Executive Council can 
only obstruct his work and it can 
only weaken him and not help him at 
all in the discharge of his responsibi
lity effectively. For that matter, I 
would even go to the length of saying 
that just as in the university the 
Vice-Chancellor is Chairman of the

Senate or the Vice-Chancellor is.the 
Chairman of the Syndicate or the 
Executive Council and the Vice-Chan
cellor is the overall authority, simi
larly, either the Director should have 
been the Chairman of the Board or 
if that is not possible, at least his 
power should not have been curtailed 
by bringing in another body whose 
functions are not actually defined very 
well.

My second point which I have sug
gested in my note is this. It is a small 
point. There is a provision in the 
draft Bill saying that an officer of 
the Government may send hig deputy 
t0 sit in the Board. It is all right, if 
he is an ex-officio, Member. But, 
there would be other nominated 
members who may be officers of the 
Government. Since they would be 
nominated in their personal capacity, 
they may be very great educationists 
or they may be officers of the 
Government. They may be nominated 
but they must not be required to send 
their deputies because they are 
required to sit in the board to give 
advice of a nature which is personal 
to them which their subordinates 
cannot give. So, I feel that in this 
provision it should have been specially 
mentioned that only ex-offlcio 
nominated members may send their 
subordinates and not others.

My other point is this. The Direc
tor should not only be strong enough 
but his hands must not also be wea
kened. He should essentially be a 
professional librarian. The assump
tion behind that, as far as I can see 
from the draft Bill, is this that hand
ling or managing a library is a job 
which no one can possibly do. 
Therefore, I very hvrmbly request that 
this view point is contrary to what we 
Librarians throughout the world have 
been saying and believing. Library, 
from the viewpoint of the librarians, 
is a technical institution—a speciali
sed one—and it has certain skills 
which only librarians learn either by 
training or by experience. They may 
be very good educationists or adminis
trators and yet they are not libra
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rians. Librarian is something more 
and something less than an adminis
trator and on educationist. So, the 
technical nature of a librarian’s work 
has to be recognised. The National 
Library should be termed a»i the only 
professional library.

The other point that I have sugges
ted is this. There is a small provi
sion which says that the National 
Library may undertake instruction 
and do research in Library Science. 
This work is very adequately and 
efficiently being done by our univer
sities and it is done properly and so 
this work should not be duplicated 
at the National Library as it has no 
means nor the necessary equipment 
to carry out such a responsibility. So, 
it should restrict itself to those tasks 
which really belong to the National 
Library.

The other point that I have made is 
that the National Library Bill should 
be more comprehensive in its scope. 
There are actually four or five things 
which I feel the National Library set
up or the National Library system 
should do. One is that it should be the 
repository for the cultural welfare of 
the nation. We are at present not 
having an y such institution.

PROF. S. NURUL HASAN: May I
know what sort of cultural heritage 
does the hon. Member have in mind?

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: Cultural
heritage is needed in graphic record— 
printed and other kinds of records. 
These are not alone within the pro
vince of the National Library. Let us 
come to the provision. Firstly, under 
the Deliveries of Books. Act. the 
National Library is getting all the 
printed material that is available in 
the country which is unregistered and 
which is unknown but which has much 
value. This is the sort of cultural heri
tage which no institution presently 
possesses although a little bit of effort 
is being made by the Archaeological 
Department and probably also by 
Archives. Also such material is either 
net deposited in the National Library

or National Library should have access 
to it and it should have a record of 
it. Throughout the country a lot of 
material is produced relating to our 
own country and relating to social 
sciences. But, there is no agency which 
to-day coordinates and tries to see 
that important materials for our Na
tional Library are being received pro
perly. Some agency must be there. 
Some university or some research ins
titutions should order these '.things be
cause they go in for research—specific 
research-^programme. But, there is rio 
organised effort that is being made to 
equip our country with all the know
ledge that our country may need either 
to-day or tomorrow. I feel that this 
one agency should be entrusted with 
that type of responsibility. There is 
Deliveries of Books Act but that Act 
is not functioning in the sense that all 
publishers see to it that whatever 
books are printed by them are made 
available to the Library. There is a 
provision in that Act which says that 
an officer may go and make a com
plaint in this regard. Then, the case 
will go to the court. Then that man 
is fined. As far as I can see this pro
vision is inadequate. There must be 
some effective method of at least 
getting one copy of the publication for 
the National Library under the said 
Act. That work can only be done by 
the National Library if that is properly 
organised to do this type of work.

My other suggestion is that the 
National Library has to inform the 
whole country as to what is being pro
duced in the country as also possibly 
of what is the value of it that is being 
received from ou*side. That means it 
should provide an adequate bibliogra
phical service so that the country 
knows what is the wealth of printed 
material we receive in our country pre
sently and for whom is it useful.

As you know, Sir, in the past four or 
five years, we have not been able to 
bring out the Indian National Biblio
graphy. This is a very sad state of 
affairs. I am not in the know of 
actual things. Alt that I can say is 
that in the whole country.. We the
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Librarians, are being put to series of 
losses because of non-availability of 
material that is being produced in our 
country. This service must be provided 
for by the National Library. Of course, 
the National Library is the only agency 
whidh can do it and it should do it. 
The other type of work which the 
National Library can do is this. There 
are books available in the country in 
one Library and they may be required 
in another Library; and not only this, 
but there are documents outside the 
country which the country has not 
purchased...

MR. CHAIRMAN: All these points 
are included in the memorandum 
which the Members have read. You 
need not mention all the points but 
only those which you think are 
important, because Members would 
like to put questions later and there 
uay not be enough of time.

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: The most
important thing which I should like to 
say is that the National Library ser
vices which our Union Government can 
provide can be provided through these 
two structures. I feel there should be 
at the Central level a Union Library 
Advisory Committee and it should be 
the responsibility of that committee to 
look after the National Library ser
vices and to suggest programmes for 
the development of Libraries. On this 
Committee there should be represen
tatives of Parliament, representatives 
of the Administration—particularly the 
Finance Secretary and the Education 
Secretary—and also Librarians, Edu
cationists etc., and I feel that the Union 
Minister for Education and Culture 
must be the Chairman of this Com
mittee.

The National Library in our country 
should be of two types. One is a copy
right holding library wfiich should get 
all the copy-right books and the second 
National Library should be in particu
lar areas lik© a National Library of 
Technology, National Library of Medi
cine National Library of Agriculture. 
Social Sciences and other subjects. All

these Libraries should be headed by 
a National Librarian and there should 
be a Department of Library in the 
Department of Education which would 
be headed by a Director.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: If you want 
subject-wise National Libraries it will 
run into hundreds. There are so many 
subjects—Humanities, Agriculture,
Science, Chemistry, Physics etc. How 
will it be possible to have one National 
Library for each subject.

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: In our
Libraries—particularly the academic 
libraries—and also in the academic 
libraries throughout the world, there 
is a system. The system is that each 
Library is divided into three; and the 
three parts of the Library are a Lib
rary collection in Science, a Library 
collection in Social Sciences and a 
Library collection in Humanities 
The qualifications required for work
ing as Reference Librarians for each- 
section are different. One is an ex
pert in Humanities to look after the 
Humanities collection one is an 
expert in Social Sciences and one is 
an expert in Science. You will kindly 
concede that natural scientists are 
not social scientists and social scien
tists are not men of humanities. 
There are distinctions to be made 
Medicine and Agriculture foi^n part 
of Science but I have made a sugges
tion that they should be separate be
cause of the number of volumes and 
the professional nature of the mate
rial.

MR CHAIRMAN: Don’t you think 
that the various University Libraries 
and other Libraries affiliated to 
various specialised institutions perform 
these specialised functions?

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: It is true 
that the Academic Libraries and other 
professional Libraries are doing this 
kind of job, but their functions are a
sort of specific and limited ones, For 
instance, a Medical Library will cater
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only to doctors. There is no institu
tion which looks after the interests 
of the public, both general and 
specific.

SHRI P. ANTONY REDDI: In
your memorandum you have sugges
ted two methods of constructing the 
National Library authority. One is 
with the Director as Chairman of the 
Board as well as an Executive Coun
cil and the other is that the Secretary 
should be responsible to the Chairman 
of the Board and there should be no 
Executive Council. I would like to 
draw on your valued experience as to 
what method you would suggest for 
constructing the authority of the 
National Library, Calcutta under the 
present circumstances.

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: I have al
ready pointed out that I have no first
hand knowledge about Hie National 
Library. But from whatever little 
experience I have in the management 
of a Library I have suggested my view 
point that the best method will be to 
have only a Board—and not an Exe
cutive Council—with the Director as 

■■ Secretary and the Director will be 
directly responsible to the Chairman 
of the Board for the efficient discharge 
of his responsibilities. But since I 
felt that there may be different views, 
I have suggested that in case this is 
not possible then let there be an Exe
cutive Council with the membership 
of the Executive Council being entire
ly drawn from the Board.

SHRI P. ANTONY REDDI: My
question is this: in the absence of the 
Executive Coucil, what should be the 
size of the Board? Will a Board of 
12 or 20 members be unwidely?

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: The present 
Board consists of about 12 to 13 people. 
Normally, a Syndicate of the Univer
sity consists of 15 to 20 members. When 
15 to 20 men can meet every month 
and decide about the management of 
the University, I think it should be 
possible to have a Board of about 15 
members without it being unwieldy. 
In USSR they have a Board of 70

people and they say lhat 130 scientists 
and other educationists are also in
vited. They feel very much honoured 
to be invited. So, there, about 200 
people meet every year. The Board 
here is a very small body consisting 
of 12 people. It should be possible for 
the Board to meet regularly and 
conduct the affairs of the National 
Library.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Do you think that this sort of 
institution should be run under the 
control of the Government direct or it 
should be run by an autonomous body 
fully delegated with the powers?

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: As far as I 
am concerned, I feel, an autonomous 
body is not a fit agency to govern the 
affairs of the National library for the 
simple reason that they want an en
vironment of freedom. Now, that free
dom is granted by the Act. But the 
National Library does not need any 
such thing. A National Library is 
purely a functional body; it has to 
perform certain specific functions. 
There is no freedom to have this way 
or that way. It is only the University 
which requires that type of freedom. 
Why should we not go in for the con
stitution of a Board for managing a 
type of institution which can be very 
effectively handled directly by the De
partment of Library in the Ministry 
of Education with a Director as the 
Head? I think this is the best method 
of administering the library.

As far as budget is concerned, this 
is no* sufficient for a National Library. 
Even a University’s Library has a bud
get of 30—50 lakhs. For instance, the 
Delhi University’s Library has a bud
get of somewhere near 90 lakhs to 
build up its collection. As far as 
National Libraries are concerned, they 
have Sot a budget of Rs. 30 lakhs— 
both for books as well as staff—and it 
is very very difficult for them to man
age with this budget. If we have to 
discharge our responsibility efficiently, 
it is necessary that adequate provision 
should be made in the budget
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SHRI P. ANTONY REDDI: Accord

ing to the Draft Bill, you said that 
usually the Chairman of the National 
Library Board or the Council should 
bte a man of high academic qualifica
tion. You said that the Minister of 
Education Should be the Chairman of 
the Board. What special advantages 
will be there by having an Education 
Minister cm the Board?

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: I used to
read in the National Library, USSR. 
They used to say that whenever the , 
National Library Committee used to 
meet and whatever decisions they 
used to take, although they were ad
visory in nature, they were considered 
as laws, because the Minister used to 
sit over there and he was as big as the 
Chairman. There is no person greater 
than the Education Minister in the 
country to head the biggest institution. 
So, if the biggest man in the nation 
heads an institution, it is the biggest 
institution. I must say that our Natio
nal Libraries are as a matter of fact 
a matter of our prestige outside and 
we will be judged best by the out
siders only if they are headed by the 
Union Minister of Education. There is 
another difficulty, if it is headed by a 
person other than the Education Min
ister, then he may have his own view 
point; he may not be a man of the 
masses and so on and so forth.

SHRI P. ANTONY REDDI: You also 
suggested that there should be a Na
tional Library for all the important 
subjects and so on and so forth. In 
that case, the Minister of Education, 
for that matter should be the Chair
man of all the National Libraries?

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: Actually, 
there should be a department of lib
rary and then there should be a 
National Library Committee or Coun
cil which should have the representa
tives of the various libraries, National 
Libraries and other interests whose 
Chairman will be the Minister. So, 
this Coimcil will be the highest policy 
framing body in this particular func
tion.

SHRI P. ANTONY REDDI: Do you 
think that in a vast country like ours,
one National Library in the country 
would be enough?

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: I don’t think 
so. Recently, in one of the seminars, 
it was suggested that we should have 
two regional centres for each region 
which will be directly under the cont
rol of the National Libraries. So. that 
type of organisation will have to be 
worked out and it is a difficult matter 
to say that later on we will have two 
regional library centres which will be 
part of the National Library system. 
At present our problem is to set up 
National Libraries themselves. But 
later on, we may, feel the need of 
setting up regional centres also.

SHRI RAJA RAM SHASTRI: It 
seems that you are coming near the 
point that a National Library should 
not be a language library, but it should 
be an organisation of libraries or a 
system of libraries of a chain of libra
ries, whatever it is called. Now, we 
are just coming to the idea and you 
are suggesting on the threshold of the 
idea that these regional libraries should 
concern themselves more with regional 
languages and regional privileges. 
For instance, I happened to know 
certain Hindi Libraries and certain 
Urdu Libraries which have been or
ganised on the same pattern as the 
National Libraries are. They are 
legally recognised and are receiving 
almost all the publications in that 
particular regional languages. Such 
libraries have been functioning in 
Urdu as well as in Hindi, may be some 
other languages also. These libraries 
have developed to a very high level 
and they are functioning very com
prehensively. Why not make these 
libraries part of the national system, 
because we have already recognised 
the national languages and national 
literature of the regional languages 
and all the regional literature as na
tional language and national litera
ture. In this way, we can get over 
the problems of States also, as the 
Education Minister seems to be very 
much troubled about the problems
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obtaining in the states. Theafe Ufjffc- 
ries that have developed iri cfcrtaih 
regions and that may be developing 
in certain other regions, are not 
State libraries at all. They are just 
ptiblic libraries functioning by public 
will. Why not shkpe them as libra
ries or institutions of public impor- 
tahde and thereby bring them under 
your ourview. This way. I think the 
syStafm of National library will be 
perfect arid will serve the needs of our 
culture at this juncture? I wbuld like 
to know the views of the learned wit
ness On this point.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In the very be
ginning, he has expressed his views.
If he wants to say anything more, he 
can do so.

SHRI HAKAM SINGH: Well, from
the professional librarians* point of 
view in this country, we have been 
having discussions on this problem as 
to what should be the structure and 
system of National Library, Regional 
Library and the State Libraries. Pro
fessional librarians in the country 
have been discussing about this and 
we agree that after the National Lib
rary system comes into being, there 
should be a Regional Library system. 
There is a third system which is in the 
States. Each State will have a pub
lic library system and at the apex of 
the public library system, we have 
sviggested State Central Libraries. 
Most of the States are having State 
Central Libraries. They are intended 
to function like the National Central 
Library as a repository of the culture 
of the region and also to provide 
documentation and lother technical 
advice. If and when these State 
Central Libraries begin to function 
adequately, we will feel the need for 
grouping the Central and Regional 
Libraries. The whole of the Hindi 
region will require a library which 
should be able to meet the require
ments of all the Hindi speaking areas. 
That system will be required. But, at 
this stage.........

SHRI RAJA RAM SHASTRI: I am
cpncentrating on the regional langua-r

sjittoa.

am mates &mii: i !m
atfetra? $ e  *fes£ifo?h JnStttHtftriiff 
or 'HBfeeV a sp39-
fit df a Sffitip df
pSBplie: Mtui&lft; tfr&r activities 
m m i  titd ftifttiS arid 'tb t /lk M '  
are also limited tb' 'tfte &ict£Kt of 
functions they will be performing. 
They dmtat ^ f J ^ I ^ t .  TMy 
c&thot adifttfMtfeiy all ;th<*
lfciftidfts miOh <if vilfue tb Mir 
etruriWy. Tfrtlt «fti t̂i<fii Wttl hSfte 'to 
bfe^rf<5Mrt&11# ttaTNdttottallttbrllf-y;
wftfctftM'It is bhe \  'g fo i# .! afn un 
tR%'tJfeg sayihi m i  it 5i« cbrt êiiWttt 
f6V ni«ha|^fnSm tb tffltt it
itttci tft&e ifcrtfctilW gttnitft. Wfe hffe 

hiiftffife'the ISOfcifi IWtftMHil 
Silfentiflfc DottfiitentBtiifti V&ittH. WIs 
atk *!& tiyinfctb &  a NMttffltt 
Littff&f-y ffchr ScieHiSfe i M  & ttatibnil 

for SfefficittT IfclS ig Wittg 
doh£ This h^s to W ’feiveti le*tsK>- 
ttt£ siifcJtfrt ahdht* tbT>e"W«<S'Aate 
e!88of*te tfiid 'w«ffe'cdW M ^nt'« ffls- 
eliijfge tKe rtffoSHSfcitttlW tfhieH 
riWtletti d ^  reqiiftre.

PROF. N. d  GpkAV:, i wouid like 
to ask one question. This is again 
and again, ..coming lip. It has been 
said that this Bfll, is sesTtricted in its 
scope and it should really cover a son 
of a syBtem ol library movement. Is 
the' Government ready to modify this 
Bill?

lilt. <JHAIRM*N: 96 fair ag’Wie tort 
cOhCemed. otir scopfe is limited: As 
for wttetKer thfc-Ctovem-
ment would like to bring in a new 

Is forW toiA fcfcT tb  a«M»r. 
Tttfe sfcotffc <jf : ttte Q6nVifiittfcfe te vwy 
lim its bHftfe wipWit.

if. t». We afe "dfij-
c u m t  thw i i i i . . . .

ME. CHAIRMAN:;%turally, Mem
bers may cfosire that the scope of tne 
Bill should be made more wide anil a 
comprehensive BjU covering »11 as



155
pects of library movement should be 
brought forward. But, that is beyond 
the scope of our functioning. The 
Minister may take up that question 
separtely also.

Mr. Hakam Singh, the Committee is 
grateful to you for enlightening us 
with your ideas. Thank you very 
much*

(The Committee then adjourned).
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S e c r et ar ia t  *

I. Shri Sadhan Mukherji, C /o New Age Printing Press, New Delhi

MR. CHAIRMAN: We welcome you, 
Mr. Sadhan Mukherji. Before you 
proceed further, I would like tp in
form you that the evidence that you 
give, would be treated as public and 
is liable to be published, unless you 
specifically desire that all or any part 
of the evidence tenderd by you is to 
be treated as confidential. Even though 
you might desire your evidence to be 
treated as confidential, such evidence 
is liable to be made available to the 
Members of Parliament. I think that 
you have not sent any memo. Are 
you the Editor of the “New Age” , 
Mr. Sadhan Mukherji?

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI; No, 
Sir; I am working in that Weekly; I 
am looking after its foreign desk.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I would request 
you to enlighten us with your views; 
thereafter, Hon. Members would like 
to put certain questions. You can 
briefly state your views.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: Sir,
I would just like to point, out here 
that the Bill, as I have seen it, re
quires to be extended a little more 
in scope because, this is perhaps, the 
first Bill of its nature concerning the 
National Library. In this Bill, the 
scope of the National Library has not 
been properly defined. That ia how 
the National Library should function; 
what will be its model; what will be 
its system? Should there be one Na
tional Library or should there be 
more? What will be the working 
procedure?

Another point ttiat I would like to 
add is this. The Jha Committee re

commended about the autonomous 
character of the Governing Council. 
The way the Bill has been drafted I 
feel that this purpose may not be 
served because it will, more or less, 
be another departmental functioning. 
In the Bill it is mentioned that , when 
certain decisions are to be taken or 
when certain rules etc. are to be fram
ed, prior approval of the Central Gov
ernment will be taken. That is, the 
Board as such really will not .function 
as an autonomous body. All that has 
to be defined clearly. .

MR. CHAIRMAN: You are not 
against the principle of giving auto
nomy to this. But, you want the 
autonomous status to be defined mere 
clearly.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI; That 
is correct. My feeling is that when it 
is an autonomous body, it should have 
every right and every authority jto 
decide what is good for the job en
trusted to it. If you are to run the 
National Library, then it should take 
the decision pertaining to all aspects 
of the National Library. Its connec
tion with Government is through 
Finance. And Government is respon
sible to Parliament. So, this organic 
link has to be clarified. That is my 
idea of an autonomous body. The 
persons, should really know the sub
ject and they should be competent to 
take decisions in all matters. And 
when they take a decision, that deci
sion should prevail. Otherwise there 
is no sense in making it autonomous. 
When we say that it is an autonomous



body, it should also have its a u ta n o-'""*  '" 'm r .*  C H A IR M A N : Will you kindlv 
n m u  functioning. elabor„ e lt ,  mor(/  o f ™ *

want any elaboration in regard to cer-MR CHAIRMAN: You say that
there should be a complete autonomy. 
Suppose the G w m rm nt onlyt finance* 
it. Should it not have any financial 
romrorr

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: It
should have the financial control.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Except for the 
BumkIU tontert yon mean there

■ dMrid’ be- no other control.

SHftt M©HA3T MUKHERJI: There 
•JheiM be-iK) other cowtrol -in the day- 

j 1 Sectioning o f this -autonomous 
b®dy. You have entrusted to this 

Hhe wsponrfbiltty o f running -this 
particular Library. So, it -should 
ewwM o f  people who reilty know the 
Ifcings. fffeen you have put in Afferent 

it* thft 13Mip0sil!lOll Of IhiS 
tody, -then it 4houS8 be competent to 
take broad decfatom.

Another thing I would like to men-
■ t i n  i ,  tbts. One « iR g  is not -very 
4kmx * *  «d *  BM. «R * t  «ea%  h*p- 
Tseng-*®. the employees" who- are now 
ewrMng %t 4he Wafienal literary? 
Will the continuity of their service be 
maintained? Will they be entitled to 
pension? These points have not been 
>ebtrifled. There iff «  jrattkm that the

‘ CMataat <k>?*r— an< *011 make the 
'mmmmry <Muages. Wane of Hie cen- 
ditieu* 4® eewiee should <be changed 
4e the Arttim iit^ flh e  employees. No 
<«tuMge should the ejected 'without the 
'ffrtor ̂ approval of the Centa-al Couern- 
VMMt. 'Chat Jb «he position which, I 

iMHk, tfiould fee lotavieA mo that the 
"Mniftnyeos do^ot fhave-any mlsafppve- 
ifeMMlon oniflutecQre.

- I*atly, I would like to point .out 
^another .thing. .Perhaps the aims and 
«afejMts oi the £ ill as mentioned by 
ih e^an . Minister in the JBW should 

. •he elaborated a little more. What 
•deee.be really want te achieve? What 

'retaeuUr-iNaittr be its functioning .and 
ihe*a.*hewa»kijng.oithe library system 
rlA-isttr .eouatvy can .be .developed 
better?

win specified matters? What are the 
points about which you want to have 
more elaboration that should come in 
the aim* end objects of the BUI?

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI; As 1 
understood from the Jha Committee’s 
Report, this National Library has 
developed its status to-day from the 
fin tish  period. E ven  afte r Indepen
dence,, -through collection of materials, 
this, that and the other this has 
frown, to, its present position. Then, 
th e Coiieraanent teak a certain step 
making it a receiving Library for all 
ifae memtsccipta and of the published 
boeks etc. What the National Library 
sh ou ld  d o  tfoe «he re ad ers and w h at it 
should do tor the collection of books 
from India end from abroad? What 
a r e  the ether thongs which it should 
fltaal -with? Should it cover all types 
o f books? These aims should be more 
clearly - defined in the Bill.

MR. CHAIRMAN; Any other point 
which you would tike to mention?

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: No,
Sir.

S H R I -NIREN GHOSH; He said that 
he -accepted Jha Committee’s rocom- 
jneadfltkms. I presume that it was 
gone through by him. Jha .Com
mittee’s recommendations dealt with 
delegated autonomy /md not statutory 
autonomy. Do you accept that point? 
The Bill is for the statutory autonomy. 
Shat is -one point. Secondly, what 
exactly do you mean to say with 
ftegwd te <autonemy? With regard to 
the .National Library, apart from the 
establishment aad other functions for 
whteh the National Libraries &re 
there, should the Bill make provision 
lev .finances also? Or should it limit 
itself to this institution only?

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: A* 
regards the first question, I do not 
think I will be competent to answer 
it. I personally feel that the Bill a9 
.prqpaxed now is by an Act of Parlia
ment. You are constituting an auto
nomous body. I think that is a Pro î
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p$r thing to do. In the Jha Committee 
Report what is mentioned ip about the 
delegated authority which I do not 
agree with. The second flue*tion is 
about the aims and objects of the 
Bill. For the first time, this Bill has 
come up before us. You must very 
clearly enunciate as to what is inten
ded to be done by this Bill. It is. not 
merely developing the Library from 
what is existing to-day. One should 
look a little ahead. What should be 
our pattern of library and what is 
the purpose that this National Lib
rary should serve so that the existing 
operation of the Calcutta Library can 
be extended further? I am not 
suggesting that this National 
Library should be entrusted with the 
collection of every single thing avail
able in various parte of the country 
or even abroad which some other lib
raries do. I know the example of 
(jrepman Democratic Republic. They 
Vave an institution. All the books, 
journals published in German Langu
age, wherever they may be, are col
lected and compiled by that. That is 
not tthe intention of our library. What 
fyflpks it should collect and what sub- 
ject£ it should gover, all this should 
be ' $ e*fly  seated. The publication 
and survey part should be there with 
the National Library.

SHRI &AKTI K-VMAR SARKAR: 
You expressed that there is no model 
of National Library.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: It is
not just developing the present lib
rary by additions and subtractions. 
Whether it should be just one library 
or it should be several libraries spread 
out in the country—tthat is a different 
matter, but the National Library ob- 
jec^ves have to be very clearly ex
plained.

&HRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR: 
What kind of autonomy do you sug
gest—delegated or statutory. Have 
y$\x aw  experience on.;the ba îs of 
whjch ^pu can say that the statutory 
^u^om y would be better than the

delegated autonomy or you &re for 
Relegated autonomy. Most of the 
witnesses in Calcutta opposed it and 
they apprehend and say that we will 
not improve the condition of the pre* 
sent National Library; rather it will 
deteriorate in various ways. Myself 
as a Member of the National Library,
I, to some extent share their view, 
though I am in support of the auto
nomy. Being a man with a reputed 
journal I think you can throw some 
light On this matter.

SHRI SADHAN JVTUKHERJI: The
question that you have asked me is 
really a debateable issue. The point 
is how do you really make this auto
nomous, through an Act of Parlia
ment or the Government delegates 
authority to run it independently in 
an autonomous manner. As I have 
explained earlier, I would personally 
prefer that by an Act of Parliament 
the authority may be assigned to a 
particular body. Even in a well con
stituted body, the result of this may 
be extremely bad. That depends 
upon the personnel chosen and how 
it operates, but on principle I would 
say that instead of delegated autho
rity, the authority established by an 
Act of Parliament is far superior.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: It 
is very obvious that you are for sta
tutory autonomy and opposed to dele
gated autonomy. But you wish auto
nomy to be defined and while defining 
it excepting financial matters, in all 
other respects the Board or the sta
tutory body should have full powers. 
Suppose a Director has to be appoint
ed in the Library. Of course, the 
Board will appoint him. It is an ad
ministrative matter and not the fin
ancial matter. Does the Board need 
sanction of the Ministry in this re
gard?

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: I 
want to distinguish it with tilings 
of this nature—whether at the first 
stage itself expert decision has been 
made. If so, that decision normally 
shpuld not be tempered with by lAe
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existing machinery in the Govern
ment. When the National Library 
has taken a decision to appoint some
body cm merit, a proper choice that 
has been made should not be question
ed by a Section Offiper.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: You 
mean to say that the total function 
of the Government wiil be just to 
finance the body according to the 
suggestions and proposals made by 
the autonomous Board and nothing 
else.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: It
will remain under the Government. 
It is Government property.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL; It 
is not a Government property. It 
will be autonomous Board completely 
independent, sovereign in rights and 
with no interference from anybody. 
This clause has been put in this Bill— 
that every decision of the Board will 
be ratified by the Government. Do 
you wish this to be deleted? Should 
it be left to financial matters? Havp 
you run any organisation so far?

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: No. 
Sir.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: 
Since you have no experience, you 
are saying so. If all this is left to 
the governing body and not got rati
fied by the Ministry, how will you 
make the Government responsible 
for financing it?

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: When 
you make an autonomous body as 
visualised here, my idea is it should 
be a little more broadened. You 
constitute a Board, entrust it with all 
the responsibility and allow it to run 
the Library. If it does not run the 
Library properly, the Ministry, the 
Parliament can always question it and 
it can dispense with Its services.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: In 
such a major question like the ap
pointment of a Director or personnel of 
National Library, it cannot be left to

the statutory body, if it is to be finan
ced by the Government.

I am happy, Mr. Chairman, he is 
not for delegated autonomy but id for 
statutory autonomy, as in such a way 
the decision of the Board needs to be 
confirmed and ratified by the Minis
try.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: In
the Jha Committee there is already a 
certain broad line suggested like the 
appointment of Librarian—what type 
of a person he should be. Similarly, 
these points are naturally to be gone 
into in detail These may be clari
fied when you extend the ambit of 
the Bill. It needs to be expanded 
and these questions can be clarified 
further. I do not consider myself to 
be competent to answer all these 
questions.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: 
This point of yours has no relevance 
to the whole question.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Mukherji,
Shri Agarwal wanted to point out the 
implications that come out of your 
views. He wants clarification on the 
points mentioned by him. Please do 
so, if you can.

SHRj SADHAN MUKHERJI: That 
is what I am trying to explain. As 
a very specific instance he has taken 
the appointment of a Director. I 
may say that in the Bill itself you 
may include a clause which will ex
plain what type of persons should be 
appointed as a Director. In that case, 
it will not be subject to further study, 
revision, decision etc. by the Govern
ment. It is unnecessary. What I am 
trying to say is that in making it 
autonomous, the process of duplica
tion should be avoided. Once you 
take a decision, you allow it to be 
operated in practice. If a wrong 
decision has been taken, you can 
mend it.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: 
Even if the decision of the Board en
tails certain financial implication*
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you hold this view. Suppose the 
Board may decide to purchase 500O 
books, that would mean a tremendous 
financial implications. Should it not 
be approved by the Ministry.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: In that 
case, we need not call it an autono
mous body.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: You have 
gone through the Bill. The provisions 
made in the Bill at page 9 indicate 
the power of the Board to make re
gulations. The various clauses, i. j, 
1» n etc. are quite clear about the 
functions how to make regulations, 
how to preserve the books, manu
scripts etc. The Board will in the re
gulations make more things clear. 
That is the power.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: That 
is precisely what I was trying to ex
plain, that here you have said that 
the Board may with the previous ap
proval of the Central Government by 
notification etc. may d0 these things, 
as part of its functions. The condi
tions have been laid down. The point 
is that this is not the whole thing. 
This deals only with part of the 
things. This has to be extended fur
ther.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: Regula
tions will explain all these things.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: I will 
have n0 objection to that.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: The State
ment of objects and Reasons is quite 
clear,

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: If the 
limited purpose of the Bill is only 
to improve the present conditions of 
the Calcutta Library, then it is a dif
ferent thing. But if you are aiming 
to cover the whole system of national 
library, then perhaps this Bill will 
serve its purpose better, if the whole 
thing is explained .fully, for example, 
what will be its main functions etc. 
This is for the first time that a Bill 
bn National Library has come.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: According 
to the provisions of the Bill, Section 
27, all officers and employees of the 
Board including Director of the Lib
rary will be public servants within 
the meaning of the Indian Penal 
Code. It is clear.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: That 
is the status of the officers. That is 
perfectly all right.

SHRi MAHABIR DASS: But will 
they appoint matriculates?

SHRI jSADHAN MUKHERJI: The 
point is that the aim of the National 
Library should be elaborated further 
in the sense___

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: it is clear 
in the Statement of Objects and Rea
sons.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: What 
I am suggesting is that this should be 
elaborated further.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS; Regulations 
will elaborate that. Rules will be 
there to take car  ̂ of these things.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: Rules 
will explain duties and other things. 
If it is done by regulations, that 
should be all right.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: Y0u have
certain types of institutions in your 
mind, when you think of autonomy. 
Can you give us an institution, where 
the Government, money is used and 
the Institution itself manages the 
wthole affair without any supervision.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: This 
has to my mind^tiot been fully ex
perimented, but I think, Steel Autho
rity of India is an experiment in that 
direction.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: Is that a 
sort of institution that you are advo
cating?

SHRi SADHAN MUKHERJI: What 
I am suggesting is that if you are ap
pointing a body of competent people 
to run an organization, they should
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be allowed to take decisions ctfcern- 
ing its various aspects.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: We have 
Universities which are autonomous. 
The Vice Chancellor is appointed by 
the Government. Sometimes, elec
tion is iilsp there, but the election is 
approved by the Government. The 
Education Minister has to issue 
sometimes statements of' policy also, 
and then the Ministry is also there. 
Even then, we consider Universities 
as autonomous. Similarly, it is a body 
Which has full freedom within the 
confines of the Act to develop the 
National Library. Government will 
reverse the decisions of the Board, 
only if it is against the Policy of the 
Qovernment.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: As I 
said earlier* if the decisions taken by 
competent people of the organization 
are not reversed and they are really 
&LV>wed to develop the organization 
to the best of their capacity, then 1 
wrould consider that to be the real 
autonomy.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: After all it 
is a social institution. As the social 
changes take place, Government has 
to issue instructions.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: For 
example, Section 10 says that there 
shall be an Executive Council and a 
provision is made that there will be 
representatives of the Ministry in 
both the Board and the Executive 
Qpuncil. I have got .U}e impression 
that -this will be subject to the appro
val of the Ministry. So, if that is so, 
the autonomous capacity is not there.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: The insti
tution wilt function in qonjjuction with 
the,Government.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: In
Section 15, for example, it is again 
mentioned ‘ ‘with the previous appro
val of the Central Government'’ . I 
have no quarrel with the Clause as

such, but it means that the Sd&rd 
will not be able to take final decisions

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: I
would like to refer to his memoran
dum on the last page of which it is 
stated “clause 30 of the Bill empowers 
the Board to make regulations npt 
inconsistent with the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules made there
under. The power of making regu
lations is confined to procedural mat
ters”. I would like to understand 
the implication of this. Is this not 
an enhancement of Government's 
own power in the Board under the 
specific authority of the Act?

Secondly, I would like to refer to 
Clauses 19 and 25. While he talks of 
autonomy, Clause 19 says “subject to 
the conditions and restrictions which 
the Central Government may deem 
fit to impose” and Clause; £5 says “in 
the performance of the functions 
under the Act, the Board shall be 
confined by such directions as the 
Central Government may give from 
time to time”. In view of these two 
qlausjes and many others, does he still 
feel that, as proposed in. this Bill, Jt 
is really an autonomous Board? Y ^ n  
he says that he would like to have 
an autonomous Board of the nature 
described, has he given fthQught to 
another aspect of the matter—that as 
per the composition of the Board it 
is nothing but a Government Board? 
Out of nine or ten people, one is the 
Secretary, Ministry of Education and 
another is the Secretary, Ministry 
of Finance one person from the 
IJGC etc. Does this not ohow th*t it 
is a complete negation of autonomy?

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI; I 
would agree with you. What is given 
out here as autonomy is not ,r*ally 
autonomy. That is preoiaely my point 
and that is what j  was trying to ex
plain. Autonomy means something, 
but under this Act it is not emerging. 
They call it autonomy but* actually, 
its operations are restricted by
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various clauses. That ia ppecj^ly p*y

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: Ano
ther point I would like to know is 
this. Mention was made of regional 
libraries and, at the apex of the re
gional libraries, a national library. 
Now, there is one National Library 
at Calcutta, one at Delhi and so on. 
W<wJ4 y&u like to have four or five 
National Libraries or would you like 
to have Regional Libraries of which 
the NstipnflJ Wteary vill be the apex
Jibuary?

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: This 
is what I was explaining when I star
ted. When you say “National Libra
ries” , what is it that the National 
Library wants to achieve? The whole 
system of National Libraries should 
be explained as to what they are try
ing to achieve. Now, we want to 
develop further our National Library 
system. Should this National Library 
•be at the apex of a whole chain, of 
National Libraries, Regional Libra
ries, Rural libraries and University 
Libraries, or not?

MR. CHAIRMAN: One thing you 
have to keep in mind is that the Na
tional Library has been given the 
status of national importance and 
(therefore the Central Government is 
competent to legislate in respect of 
this Library, in regard to other l ib 
raries like the Regional Libraries, 
State Libraries, etc. they cannot legis
late because, under the Constitution, 
they do not come under the purview 
of the Central Government; they 
come under the purview of th© State 
Governn*ent. So, naturally with res" 
psct to these libraries the .Ctatfroi 
Government is not competent ,to 
legislate. That distinction should .be 

in mind. ,
SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI; What 

I was trying to point out is that we 
should keep in mind what we are 
trying to achieve. From that angle, 
what h® a^ked me is, should this 
National Library be at the apex of 
a whole system of Libraries?

So what I wae only suggesting here 
was, that our aim far a national lib* 
rary should be to ‘have an apex lib
rary.

MB. When you
of th* of the National library,
you t&nk. in terms of combining dif
ferent libraries with this library. But 
it has gpt the QftpstitutioQpl limita
tions. That sbpjald be kept in. mMd.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI; Sir,
I would not consider myself compe
tent to go into the details of that. I 
will only give a rough idea of that. 
Perhaps it will be better if the na
tional library emerges at the top of 
the national library system.

MR. CHAIRMAN: At present we 
£Bn make' legislation in terms of the 
present constitutional provisions.

SHRi SANAT KUMAR RAHA: Mr. 
M9feiM>rji> .you have (supported that 
.the fGoyonung Council thould be 
aMde as an autonomous body. But 
so long as the national library .which 
is popularly known as the Calcutta 
National -Library which is at'present 
the apex libnany in India, which has 
been declared by the Parliament also 
that this library is the national lib
rary, don’t you apprehend that its 
prestige would be lowered or its 
popularity would get deteriorated if 
an autonomous body runs the ad
ministration of the national library?

SHRI SADHAN MUKHKWI: No, 
Sir. I do not think so.

SVS1 SANAT KUMAR £A$A: 3?ou 
have got expedience abroad regarding 
the working W tem of libra^e». I 
would iHke to know from you whether 
the librarian ,of the Rational library 
should (have sucb nowew Hke those of 
a Secretary ,ot a Joint Sewetary of a 
Ministry so that there may not be 
any bottleneck between the Ministry 
and the autonomous body.

SHRI SADHAN MUKHERJI: I was 
trying to explain this earlier that 1 
would not like to put it in this fo*n
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that a person whether he ii of the 
rank of Joint Secretary or Under Se
cretary can over-rule the orders. That 
is not at all in my mind. What I feel 
is that if a decision is taken by a 
competent group of people or a per
son entrusted with the specific task, 
somebody else, merely because he

n . Shri S. R. Bhaatya, Organising 
Memorial Library, A llahabad-3.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr Bharatya, you 
are welcome to appear before the 
Committee. You have already sent 
your memorandum which has been cir
culated to the Members of this Com- 
mi tee. Before you proceed, I would 
like to inform you that the evidence 
you give would be treated as public 
and is liable to be published, unless 
you specifically desire that all or any 
part of the evidence tenderd by you 
is to be treated as confidential. Even 
though you might desire your evidence 
to be treated as confidential, such evi
dence is liable to be made available 
to the Members of Parliament. Now, 
you may briefly state what are your 
ideas and after that Members might 
put to you certain questions.

SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: I am not a 
technical librarian. Our Library was 
founded in 1941 and since then it has 
been working. I, as a social worker, 
would like to look at the Library le
gislation from all points of view and 
taking those points of view into con
sideration, I would prefer that “there 
Should be a National Library Act which 
should cover all the libraries—State, 
district, city, urban, moving and spe
cial types of libraries. Since we are 
dealing with this particular Act which 
is to control and bring about a pro
vision in the Bill regarding the Natio
nal Library of Calcutta, I would con
fine my observations to it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There is one diffi
culty. This National Library which is 
a national institution is there by the 
Act of Parliament. A» far as other 
libraries are concerned, they come 
within Hie purview of the State Govt.,

happens to be in the Ministry, should 
not over-rule it or create conditions 
in which this decision is not fulfilled. 
I would like to put it like that.

MR. CHAIRMAN; Thank you very 
much Mr. Mukherji.

(The witness then withdrew)

Secretary & Director, Chintamanl

According to the present Constitu
tion. So, you will kindly keep in mind 
the limitations that are imposed on 
the Central Government.

SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: In the pro
posed Bill, I find that the powers of 
the Librarian are not clearly defined, 
he will have a subordinate position in 
the Board. According to these pro
visions, tie will not be able to work 
properly and therefore he should have 
more powers, to exercise full control. 
As far as staff is concerned, it will 
not be under the Librarian. It will 
be under the Board and there will 
always be some difficulties for the 
Librarian to deal with the staff, if 
the staff does not work properly. 

*i^-That is one great thing which, I feel 
should be tackled and provided for 
in the Bill.

As far as the name of the Bill is 
concerned, I would like to suggest that 
its name should be National library 
Autonomous Board Bill. Ag far as 
rule 30 is concerned, unless it is fram
ed properly, it is difficult to say whe
ther this Library Bill will be able to 
fulfil the conditions that are intended 
to be fulfilled.

As far as the appointment of the 
Librarian is concerned, I would like to 
state that his appointment should be 
made by the UGC after advertising 
through ttie Public Service Commis
sion and he should have a status of the 
Vice-Chancellor so that he may be 
able to control all persons placed *n 
his charge.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: I have gone through your
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memorandum. What do you precisely 
mean by anti-climax? This is a re
commendation which is reported to 
have been advocated by the Jha Com
mittee.

SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: It wa$
not published; its recommendations in 
brief were commented upon in the 
Press. After that another committee 
was appointed which was presided 
over by Mr. K. P. Sinha and Sardar 
Sohan Singh was its Secretary. I un
derstand that they intended to bring 
in the delegated autonomy rather than 
the autonomous system that you are 
now thinking of.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Have you gone through the
Report of the Jha Committee or do you 
depend upon the newspaper report 
which has been published?

SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: That re
port has not been published. Those 
persons who had seen the comments of 
Mr. Kalia and Mr. Keshavan, thought 
that the Report of the Jha Committee 
should have been published and the 
present recommendations should have 
been based on the Report.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: So far as I understand from
the views expressed in the press and 
thereafter the comments made by 
other persons, they recommended a 
delegated autonomy and the present 
Bill envisages an autonomous body to 
manage the affairs of this Library. It 
is not entirely, what you call, anti
climax. In the present Bill, we ^ave 
a provision for a full autonomy, spe
cific autonomy, as we might put it.

SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: Auto
nomy is quite all right. But the
powers of the Director-cum-Librarian
have to be defined, because he will be 
the man on the spot. If he is not en
trusted with the powers and facilities 
to control the entire library stafl, then 
it will be difficult for him to discharge 
his duties.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: I would like to be clear, in

precise terms, about what you want 
to say. For example, you are not 
against the statutory autonomy in 
principle.

SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: I am not 
against the autonomous body. We 
need autonomous bodies for many 
other things, eg. museum. Otherwise, 
it will not be possible to function. I 
know about the libraries which are in 
Calcutta, Bombay as well as in Alla
habad. There the books are not cate
gorised; they are piled up to the ceil
ing and most of them are not bound. 
Even at Allahabad Publiq Library 
which is over hundred years old, we 
have the Oriental Section where the 
books are piled up. The Library, I 
understand had written to Govern
ment that more fund as well as staff 
sfaould be provided, but its request 
has not been granted. Unless a Lib
rarian has powers and his functions are 
defied, he will not be able to work 
properly.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: In the course of your memo
randum, you have said “The powers 
and working of the Board and the 
Executive Council are vague? What 
is precisely the concrete shape of the 
powers of the Executive Council or 
the Board in addition to your concept 
of powerful Librarian or Librarian 
with many powers?

SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: Clause 30 
provides for framing of Rules. If you 
frame these rules, broadly and define 
powes of the Librarian, then he will 
be able to function better. Here, you 
are referring to two bodies, the Board 
and the Executive Council. You have 
said that the powers of these two 
bodies are vague. We would like to 
be enlightened by you as to what con
crete powers you want to be vested in 
these two bodies, so that the Com
mittee may benefit from your evi
dence? .

SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: The Board 
will consist of the Secretary, Ministry 
of Education and Culture, Secretary, 
Ministry of Finance, six nominees of 
the Central Government, a nominee
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of the UGC and the Director. Haw 
do you suppose that they Will all be 
conversant and interested in the lib
rary movement? They may be tech
nicians. But, so far as the working 
of the Board is ‘concerned, the Libra
rian Will have a subordinate position.

Sttfcl NARAtft CttANt) PARA- 
SHAH: You are saying that they do 
not TiaVe certain powers. We want to 
know precisely as to what powers you 
would like these two bodies to have. 
Hafre you any idea to offer?

SHRI S. ft. BHARA*TYA: I can
not explain thte at this tiihe. But, 
after all, these things devfelop by 
wCrkihg. Certain conventions have to 
be developed, but the basis should be 
there and the basife perhaps can be 
defined ahd tfiis can bfe iriadfc more 
elaborate under clause 30, which you 
have quoted and precise rul̂ fc will 
havfe to be framed under that. I would 
humbly suggest that special care 
has to be taken while framing tihe 
rules Which will imbibe all these 
things.

DR. V. B: SlNGfc: I WOuld like to 
know wfrethter you haVe any sugges- 
tibn's'to ttlfeke about the composition of 
the B6ard. The Board, as it is prb- 
ptiaeB, consists mbstly of official homi- 
hefefe. Th6y are ntttttinabed by the 
UGC and so on. Can a feoard of this 
type be autonomous? Have you any 
suggestions to make about the com
position of the Bo&rd?

SHftl S. R. BStARATYA: I do not 
ttiink t Can sttg^st anything abottt the 
composition ofthefeoard. 1^e Board, 
rthihk, should be adviiory in charac
ter rather thefi have efctectfiVe 
powers.

$ m i  g h irm  d h a r  m k r a : ®r,
tttirh the meiriorantJiflno* the wltftess. 
We uttderdtatfd that he H agiAWst 
Autonomous Boards. But, noW, he 
sayte that he is heft agiirifct atfWftfemy 
a$ itM i. I shall puttsde the question 
of my friend a little further. New, 
aiitemomy is defined h* the Bttiartd 
%h$ pswers are * * * * *  defltoed. The

composition of thfe Board is also de* 
fitted. Thfe Board, as he anight have 
•eeh, consists mostly of Government 
nbihineea. This consists of the Secre
tary, Ministry of Education and Cul
ture, Secretary, Ministry of Fincmce, a 
nominee of the UGC and sin nominees 
of the Government. Ifcat makes about 
9 to 10. Here, if he cannot suggest 
any other alternative, suppose, we 
suggest an alternative, that instead of 
Government non iiees, the Board 
should consist of persons drawn from 
different libraries/universities in the 
country through a system of election 
based on proportional representation, 
will be accept that type of autonomy? 
Ih that case, will he stick to hfa writ
ten opinion or will he stand by his 
view which he has now expressed 
orally?

SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: J think 
the suggestion made by him is much 
better. It will be better to get per
sons “tfho have the experience of hav
ing worked ih different libraries and 
who have the necessary training.

SHRI SHYAM DHAR M1BRA: 
Then, Sir, I would like to draw the 
attention of the witness to the second 
page of hte memorandum. Therein, 
he has talked of the Jha Committed,

He Mas said:
‘The Bill is said to be based on 

the recommendation of the Jha 
Committee (1958), which it is under
stood, envisaged the National Lib
rary to be the apex of a pyramid of 
regional libraries ”

Of course, pobably, thte Chairman has 
mentioned to the WttJheess that consti
tutionally, this is not : possible. I am 
wot surfe of that. But, I would like to 
know his view*. Sttf*>ose, this is 
legally possible, w o u ld  he accept this 
prbvision thattihere should be regional 
libraries and the National Library 
should ‘ be an apex Of tftfe regional lib
raries?.

SHRI S. R. BHARATYAi I accept 
that
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SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: I
would like'to ask one more question.
He has said:

Tfie satting up of a public libra
ries Grants Commission like UGC 
should be envisaged for the promo
tion of efficient public library ser
vice both at the National and State 
levels.”

What is this idea? What he wants to 
say? The idea of setting up a Na
tional library is to have a chain of 
libraries here. Here, we are talking 
of the National Library. If at all any 
small deviation is constitutionally pos
sible, we may have a chain of libra
ries or sister national libraries as you 
may call them, but, we cannot have 
many state level libraries,

SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: For that, 
you may lhave a separate Act. The 
present Bill is only for the National 
Library of Calcutta. That is why, I 
say that the Bill should be titled Na
tional Library (Autonomous Board) 
Bill, and not National Library Bill.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: The wit
ness has said that the Director of the 
National Library will not have suffi
cient powers to deal with the staff. 
He gave the instance of the Allaha
bad Library where he said that books 
were not entered and books were not 
being lent out to the readers. The 
efficiency of the staff depends on the 
terms and conditions of service and 
the maintenance of proper relations 
between the management and the staff. 
Do you mean to say, that if he is given 
additional powers, he will be able to 
deal with the staff? Take for exam
ple, the Government. It has all the 
power in the country. But, the Gov
ernment has any amount of trouble 
with the Government employees. Is 
it not? Do you mean to say that just 
by giving more powers to the Direc
tor, he will be able to secure the 
highest integrity and efficiency among 
the staff?

SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: I have al
ready said that the Director should 
be given more powers.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: It does not 
mean that if he is given more powers, 
he will be able to achieve efficiency 
among the staff. I have given one 
instance. Government has ail the 
power in this country. But, the Gov
ernment has any amount of trouble 
with the Government employees.

SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: I will
give you one example. Take for 
example the Allahabad University or 
the Lucknow University. There, 
even for small things, the Vice-Chan
cellor has to refer things to .the Com
mittee $ i  Referee and get the sanc
tion of the Finance Committee etc.

MR. CHAIRMAN; When you refer 
to powers, do you mean only financial 
powers or powers for appointment 
also?

SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: Appoint
ments can be made by the Board or 
by the UGC. But, the Director should 
have powers to control, to punish and 
to take all such steps as may be 
necessary to enforce discipline among 
the s'aff. If the Director has no 
powers, then, the staff will approach 
the Members of the Board an<* the 
Executive Council over the head of 
the Director and he will have no say 
and he will be nowhere.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: Clause 26 
says that the Board “may, be a gene
ral or special order in writing, direct 
that all or any of the powers or duties 
which may be exercised or discharged 
by it shall, in such circumstances and 
under such conditions, if any, as may 
be specified in the order, be exercis
ed or discharged also by any member, 
officer or employee of the Board spe
cified in this behalf in the order.” Ac
cording to this provision, it can be 
delegated.

SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: That pro
vision is one thing; but if No. 30 is 
followed by rules, then it should be all 
right.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you.
Mr. Bharatya. We have been very 
much enlightened by your views and 
answers. W$ all thank you.
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SHRI S. R. BHARATYA: In the end, 

I would suggest that a comprehensive 
National Library Bill should be draft
ed, which should cover all libraries 
and take steps to register all libraries 
in the States, viz. Sarasinh Library, 
the Manuscript Section of the Tiru- 
malai Naik Library of Tanjore, etc. 
The personnel may be trained and

seminai-s should be held and other 
steps may be taken so that the library 
movement in India is well established.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Committee
knows your view points. Thank you 
very much.

iThe Committee then adjourned)
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r IxtM ttsa Examined

I. Shri J. C. Mehta, Director, Delhi Public Library, Delhi.
II. Shri Asoke Chatterjee, Member, Delhi Metropolitan Council, Delhi.

L Shri J. C. Mehta, Director, Delhi Public Library, Delhi.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Mehta, be
fore we proceed further, I wanted to 
inform you that the evidence that 
you will be treated as public and will 
be liable to be published unless you 
specifically desire that all or any 
part of the evidence tendered by you 
is to be treated as confidential. Even 
though you may desire your evidence 
to be treated as confidential, such 
evidence is liable to be made avail
able to the Members of Parliament.

SH R I J. C. M E H T A : I agree.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Before the Mem
bers put to you questions on your 
Memorandum, I would like you to 
briefly state your views. Thereafter 
the Members might desire to get cer
tain points to be elucidated by you. 
You may first of all state your views 
briefly.

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: I shall hurried
ly go through the memorandum that 
I have submitted earlier. As stated in 
my memorandum, I find that there is 
nothing wrong in setting up an auto
nomous Board if the Govermnent has 
considered it all right and has drafted 
a Bill accordingly.

So far as the draft Bill goes, I have 
commented on clause 3(3) on Chapter
II. That is a minor point though, but 
it may sometimes create difficulties. In 
every library or office, there are some 
trifling articles that get together. It 
may be waste-paper or dilapidated fur
niture or some other thing which are 
not worth-keeping. If they are allow
ed to keep on waiting for a long time 
for the sanction etc. they may be eaten 
by white ants, insects etc. And ulti
mately they may be worth nothing at 
•11. I think the Board hq* to be given 
the power that whatever they consider

to be waste that should be disposed of. 
-Only rare manuscripts may be kept. 
Our idea in constituting the Board is 
to keep responsible people from Gov
ernment so that they would take all 
possible care to see that they do not 
dispose of anything which is valuable.

Article 4 deals with the Constitution 
of the Board which says that four 
members can be nominated by the 
Board. The stress has been laid on 
academicians rather than on librarians. 
As stated here, and if we stick to our 
decision, in the Library, the Director 
can also be a non-Librarian. And if 
the Board is constituted with the 
Secretaries of the Ministry of Educa
tion and Finance, and other people 
who are academicians, then the whole 
show would be run by non-technical 
people who do not know the working 
of the library at all. With the advent 
of automation, there should be some
one who knows something about the 
library business. The resignation of 
any member should be made prefer
ably to, and should be accepted byr 
the Board which should then intimate 
the Central Government. The vaca
tion of office by a member should cer
tainly be delinked from notification in 
the Government o ' India Gazette, 
where sometimes it takes months for 
the news to appear.

It has been stated that a person who 
is nominated mid-way, the post should 
be filled up for the remaining period 
only. If we keep like this the Board 
will cease to exist on one day and we 
have to wirit for the new Board. It 
may take a long time and the Director 
may have to wait for so many thing? 
which he wants to do urgently. It 
would be better if the Board is given 
perpetuity i.e. if somebody’s term 
expire*, the" other persfen nominated 
may be allowed to continue for the < 
term of three years. In this way, peo-
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pie may come and go but the B oard  
will remain for ever and the Director 
will not not be without the Bca rd  and 
he will be able to run the library.

Clause 13(1): It is about the appo
intment of the Director. Preference 
shown in the Bill to a non-librarian is, 
perhaps, on account of two reasons. 
One is the recent experience of the 
Government of India with some indi
vidual librarians and the other is the 
belief that there is a dearth of persons 
of adequate calibre to fill up the post. 
If we have in mind the experience 
with some of the persons, then that 
should not be generalised, and if we 
feel that there are not enough libra
rians with adequate calibre to AH up 
this post, then this situation needs to 
be remedied. If we feel that in future 
we will never get good librarians, I 
think this is too much of despondency. 
There was time when there was 
vaccum every where in India after in
dependence. The librarians were run
ning their institutions singly and their 
performance could be seen. The libra
rians came in lime-light while other 
officers who ran offices jointly were 
not discovered. We shotild not try to 
perpetuate this situation. If we do not 
throw opportunities to the librarians— 
professional ones—no talented libra
rian will come forward. We want 
talented people to join this profession 
when dearth is being felt.

Clause 13(2): As things are, the
Government regulation says that a 
person who is deputed out of Govern
ment service should not be on deputa
tion for more than three years—three 
years is maximum—after two years 
they generally try to call him back. 
We should be prepared for three years, 
tenure when the person on deputation 
is called back or option is thrown as 
to whether he wants to come back or 
wants to get absorbed. The possibility 
of absorption is not there because we 
are providing a five years. When the 
man goes back after three years, we 
will aga£n be looking for a librarian. 
Incidentally, we may get a person- 
young and fit—for National Library.

Two years’ probation period, I think, 
is a long enough period to study a
person if he is properly viewed and 
assessed at every step.
Chapter V '

30(2): That is a minor amendment 
of wording.

30(2) (g): The intention is that what
ever money the library gets, the Board 
will decide what amount should be 
kept in the Current Account and then 
whatever amount is left that should be 
invested. We see that continuously 
we are making expenditure and we 
therefore have to have a Current 
Account. This has been my experi
ence in Delhi Public Library. We 
have Current Account and if there are 
some funds which we feel are to lie 
with us unspent, the Board can decide 
in which way the amount , *̂n be in
vested. Therefore, this thing .should 
be corrected.

Functions and duties of the Library 
have not been properly laid down.

80(3;
“The Central Government may, 

after consultation with the Board, 
by notification in the Official Gaz
ette, amend, vary or rescind any 
regulation which it has approv
e d .. . .”.

Supposing the Central Government 
does not amend, vary or rescind and 
it approves of the regulation as it is 
proposed by the Board, it should say 
that it shall come into force or has 
been approved. There is a minor 
change in wording required.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You are a Direc
tor of the Delhi Public Library. Since 
when?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: I took over in 
1967.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is there any con
vention or rule that the Director of 
your Library will always Be a quali
fied Librarian or there is no such rule?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: The Service
By-laws specify that he should be ft 
trained Librarian.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: Under which
organisation is this Library?

SHRI J. c. MEHTA; It is under the 
Department of Culture.

MR. CHAIRMAN: As it is directly 
under the Government, did you expe
rience any difficulty? Here, some 
views have been expressed that it 
should be an autonomous body.

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: Our Library is 
governed by the Delhi Library Board 
which is an autonomous organisation. 
We have experienced no difficulty in 
running the library. On the contrary 
I And that things move much quicker 
when we have some autonomy.

MR. CHAIPMAN: Do you regard the 
autonomy allowed to your institution 
as sufficient?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: Yes, Sir.
MR. CHAIRMAN: You have made a 

distinction between an academician and 
a librarian in your memorandum on 
page 3. Don’t you feel that a trained 
Librarian, if appointed as Director, 
will be faced with certain difficulties 
because he has to take decisions on 
various administrative matters, like 
the financial control, control of em
ployees and various other matters con
cerned with administration. All this 
requires an administrator. So, will a 
technical person without the experi
ence of administration be suitable to 
head the institution?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: This would ap
ply to almost any institution. For 
instance, we have Vice-Chancellors in 
the Universities who are academicians 
and they do the administration work 
also. When a suitable candidate for 
the National Library is considered, 
one shall also have to see what expe
rience he has got as an administrator. 
If he has been running a very big 
library with a large staff and large 
funds, he will have the necessary 
experience.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: You said that 
the Delhi Public Library is under a

Board. Are the people working tltere 
employees of the Government or of the 
Board?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: All the persons 
there are employees of the Board, but 
in my case, my appointment is made 
by the Ministry in consultation with 
the Board. Therefore, the conditions 
of my service continue to be handled 
by Government, whereas the staff is 
governed by the Board. We are not 
creating in the Board of National 
Library a replica of Delhi Public Li
brary. We can take care of these 
things.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: The emplo
yees of Delhi Public Library are undeT 
the governance of the Board, that is 
what you said. I wanted to know, if 
by that you mean that they are em
ployees of the Board.

SHRI J. C. MEHTA.- They are em
ployees of the Board. But they are 
governed by Government rules, be
cause they have adopted the same 
rules there.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: Was Delhi 
Public Library established by an Act 
of the Board? Is it financed by Gov
ernment or by donations?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: It was estab
lished by a Resolution of the Ministry 
off Education. It is hundred per cent 
financed by Government. We do not 
depend on donations, though they are 
welcome.

SHRI NIREN GHOSH: Most of the 
people in the Board would be erstwhile 
civil servants. What is the benefit 
lhat you get in a Board? What is the 
experience of the other countries?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: So far as the 
Libraries in other countries are con
cerned, they initially did start on this 
very system and some of them still 
are like that. It is not I, that am pro
posing the Board; National Library 
Board has been proposed In the Bill.
I am commenting on that, that it is 
not going to harm much. We are 
seeing too much danger ahead. I have 
personal experience of the Government
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offices also. It appears that I can run 
tilings better and more quickly now 
than I could do earlier when I v/as 
completely under the Government.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I have been in
formed by the Ministry that the Dir
ector, Delhi Public Library, is an em
ployee of the Board, though he is 
appointed by the Government. He is 
not an employee of the Government. 
Generally, the person is an employee 
ol the appointing authority. Don’t 
you feel there is anomaly in this?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: As I said in the 
beginning, it is a diarchy. I am gov
erned by two bodies. I belong to the 
Board, but am appointed by the Min
istry. My terms and conditions can
not be changed unless the Government 
agrees.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That will not
create any difficulty?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: Anything can 
create difficulties any time. What 
system man has made is perfect, which 
runs successfully at all time and 
which suits all people at all places?

SHRI SOMCHAND SOLANKI: I feel 
your Delhi Public Library has 6°t a 
constitution which, to my mind, has 
quite a few anomalies. On the one 
hand, you say that you are appointed 
by the Government; on the other hand 
you say that your service rules etc. 
are those which are framed by your 
Board. Is that correct?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA; Framed by the 
Board, but with the agreement of tho 
Ministry.

SHRI SOMCHAND SOLANKI; You 
are actually an employee of the Min
istry or an employee of the Board?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: That is where 
the anomaly lies. I cannot give or 
verdict *s to whether I belong to the 
Ministry or to the Board. .

SHRI SQMCfltAND, SOLANKI: You 
might have notice^ that tills Bill is 
supposed to give a greater measure of 
autonomy. What do you' feel about 
this.

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: I have stated 
that fears have been expressed as to 
whether autonomy will be ruinous to 
a Library. It is for all of us to give 
proper thought to it and make a con
stitution for the Board which to us 
appears to be the best and most prac
ticable. Wherever there are lacunae 
or shortcomings in the Bill, they can 
be considered in consultation.

SHRI SOMCHAND SOLANKI: We 
find that the Bill is being" opposed by 
people connected with the Library 
on the ground that the employees of 
the Library are at the moment em
ployees of the Government, but the 
moment the Bill is enacted they will 
cease to be employees of the Govern
ment and will become employees of 
the Board. Have you any comment to 
make on this point?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: I can state from 
my own experience that I also had the 
came fears, when I was to leave the 
Government service I also, in my 
childishness, thought that leaving the 
Government means insecurity or some
thing like that. But I have seen that 
there is no insecurity if we work 
properly. If we arev good workers, 
things go in the same smooth manner 
as they went in the Government. So, 
[ have told my friends in the National 
Library that these are imaginary fears. 
We had never seen autonomy and 
independence; we are now being set 
free out of a cage; we had got used 
to the cage and the security of the 
cage; if we get an opportunity to get 
out of it, I don’t think there is much 
harm in it. Although much can be 
said if the institution stays with the 
Government but once it has been 
decided that it should be run by a 
Board, I don’t feel there is as much 
danger as is visualised. Most of it is. 
exaggerated and imaginary, I feel.

SHRI SOMCHAND SOLANKI: 
There is also a feeling that the Li
brary movement should not be con
fined to the National Library at 
Calcutta but that it should be built up 
in all pjarts of the country, especially 
In metropolitan cities like Delhi;
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Bombay and Madras. In that ease, 
would H be better ii it it ays with the 
Government?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: This is a deci
sion which the Government has to 
take, but I can say that the argument 
out of which it has been said that il 
the National Library stays with the 
Government this movement can be 
built up more quickly, is not correct.
II we can have a National Library 
Board at Calcutta we can have one 
at Madras and other places also if we 
have Libraries there. If we have more 
Boards, they can function autonomous
ly and speedily put up the Libraries 
whenever they desire to put up ana 
they can deliver the goods much 
quicker than the Government.

SHRI SOMCHAND SOLANKI: Since 
when has the Delhi Public Library 
been working?

SHRI J. C- MEHTA: It was set up in 
1951.

SHRI SOMCHAND SOLANKI: Dur
ing this period of 22 years, how many 
books have you acquired?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: We have about 
six lakhs of books.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: Do you 
feci that the powers given to the 
Board under this Bill are adequate 
enough and are they really and truly 
powers of autonomy?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: To begin with.
( feel that as the Bill reads, they 
should be considered enough. But we 
cannot take it that the situation will 
be frozen; there is always room for 
experimenting and amending. Even 
the Constitution of India has been 
amended so many times; why can’t 
this constitution be amended?

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: Out of 
the ten Directors, nine ate to be no
minated by the Government. Do 
you think that this is good enough?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: I have not 
commented on this in my Memoran

dum. but this is a thing which can be 
changed.

SHRI PATIL ri'TTAPPA: Vou
have also flatf r! :n your memorandum 
that some provisions aie necessary to 
inspire confKlence among the stall o* 
the Lihravy. What, tccording to you 
are those provisions which you dejn  
would be necessary?

SHRI J. C. MEIITA: There are one 
or two things where they tried to 
read between the lines and they leel 
insecure about it. For instance, it was 
s*id that the Boqrd, having acted in 
good faith, cannot be sued or 
something like that. They probably 
thought that they will be under the 
thumb of the Director or somebody 
and that even if their interests have 
been transgressed they cannot sue the 
Board. But I have told my friends 
that we in Delhi Public Library have 
a Board and we have the same sort 
of provisions but we were sued in the 
Supreme Court in one case and there 
was no objection at any stage. They 
have that fear because they think a 
Board cannot be sued. A Board can’t 
be sued when they are acting in their 
rapacity as a Board, but when they 
are acting versus an employess, why 
can’t they be sued? We are an auto
nomous body completely and we have 
the same provisions. The law courts 
these days give you protection under 
Clause 311 which has been quoted in 
the court. We were sued in the Sup
reme Court and in the High Court 
also.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: Apart 
from providing some provisions for 
the staff in the National Library, what 
exactly do you have in mind to make 
this National Library a library worthy 
of the country?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: I have indi
cated at the end of my memorandum 
that It is-not part of my Job to com
ment on the m i  itself. This is some
thing on which the experts of the 
cowitrv should give some thought ra
ther than our talking across the table.
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‘‘li. (i) The Central Government 
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opinion possesses academic* quali
fications of distinction or is a dis
tinguished Librarian, as the Direc
tor of the Library.”

a> Ir wf'T m tc ra «r4 *>err | ?
^  irjTcT ; q>r,% fl>T SITO’h'V 

tft 5TRT t  I 5T? 5»nff V iz&l 
| a> w Qfr |r<n | «>t 

W 7<a ant \, rT. f3RT 
f  it ar̂ r arrat 11
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SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISHRA: Sir, 
I would like to know the composition 
of the Delhi Public Library Board. I 
want to know whether it is a body ap
pointed by the Government of India. 
How many officials and non-officials 
are there in the Board?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: The Chairman 
is nominated by the Minister for 
Education and the Ministry of 
Education or which ever Department is 
responsible for the Delhi Public Libra
ry nominatees two of its officers to be 
on the Board. Then there are two no
minees of the Delhi Administration, 
one of whom should be the Director 
of Education. Then there are two no
minees from the Delhi Municipal Cor
poration, one be from the N.D.M.C. 
and the other from the Delhi Metro
p o l i s  Council Fau* members, on the 
basis of their experience a*id m^rit, 
can be co-opted by. the Board. The 
Chairman who is the nominee of the 
Minister is the Presiding Officer of the 
Board and the Pirector is an Ex-officio 
Secretary and is also a Member.

SHHI SHYAM DHAR MISHRA: 
Now coming to- the question o f auto
nomy to the Board, t!6 you facl that 
there should be autonomy or not?
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Do you agree with me if I say that 
your Boards’ Chairman and some other 
Members are nominated by the Gov
ernment and therefore itcantiot be an 
autonomous Board? You say that it 
should be an autonomous board but it 
you want that it should be completely 
an autonombus Board why should we 
at all take th£ trouble of going to 
Parliament for legislation? Why not 
have a resolution passed or by a le
gislation under the Companies’ Law 
or by a legislation under the Society 
Act—create a Society for this pur
pose—enacted by a body so that there 
can be more than a statutory autono
my or the type of autonomy you have 
suggested?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: In our type 
of autonomy, I Would say that the 
Chairman who is only nominated by 
the Minister is not necessarily, and 
has never been an officer of the Minis
try. So far, he has been either a pub
lic man or an academician and he will 
not be somebody working in any Mi
nistry. Then the Vice-Chairman, two 
Members from the Metropolitan Coun
cil, two Members from the Municipal 
Corporation, one Member from the 
N.D.M.C. and four members who are 
co-opted as member are all non-official 
Members. They do not belong to the 
Ministry. Therefore, I do not think 
that it is a body being run by the Mi
nistry. Whether we want to have this 
sort of autonomy or not, when the 
things are still in hand we can dis
cuss and then decide what sort of au
tonomy we should have. The act has 
not yet been passed and we are only 
discussing It.

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISHRA: 
There Is no point in discussing this. 
We want to arrive at a final stage. I 
want to know one more thing on this 
very point Now will you kindly re
fer to clause 5 of the Bill which says:

“5. The Central Government shall 
appoint a member from among the 
members of the Board referred to in 
clauses <•), Cb), (c) and (d) of

subsection (1) of .section 4 as 
Chairman of the Board.”

What does it mean? Perhaps it means  ̂
that in the Central Government it 
should be either the Secretary of the 
Ministry or the Secretary of the Mini
stry of Finance or within the six no
minees of the Chairman.

In your case, there are three or four 
agencies public men, Metropolitan 
Council and the State Govt. So, what 
type of autonomy do you want?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: I frankly agree 
with you that the lions’ share in the 
National Library Board goes to the 
Central Govt. Here, we can seek an 
amendment of the clause.

MR. CHAIRMAN: He wanted to 
know what type of autonomy do you 
want?

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MIlSHRA: I 
gave you so many types of autono
mies. I do not know what type of au
tonomy you prefer?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: There is no 
question of my preference, but I would 
prefer a statutory autonomy where the 
Govt, has more responsibility for run
ning the library rather than taking my 
type of autonomy where a board has 
been created only by a resolution. As 
far as National Library is concerned, 
the interest of the whole nation is in
volved and therefore it should be a 
statutory autonomy.

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: As 
far as clause 4 is concerned, instead of 
having two Secretaries, whether you 
will agree that there should be only 
one or two officers and all of them 
should be librarians and academicians 
coming from Universities and especial
ly the Secretary should not be .the 
Chairman. We know how the Secre
taries to the Govt, of India are func* 
tioning. They h*Ve go so matty things 
to do. If you feel that it will do Jus
tice, kindly tell us.

iSHRI J. C. MEHTA! FratfkJy, I have 
no comments to offer on this point.
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SHBI SHYAM DHAH MISHA: You 

said that instead of one National Lib
rary, there should be more than one 
National Libraries. You said that it 
was an open question and the Parlia
ment could do it. At this stage, we 
have to decide whether we should do 
it or not. Suppose, we decide not to 
have more than one National Libra
ries? Instead of having more than one 
National Libraries, we may have lour 
of five regional libraries and the Na
tional Library should be apex of the 
regional libraries? Will you wecome 
that idea? As far as this Bill is con
cerned, it will take care of the re
gional libraries.

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: When I made 
my comments on the Bill as it was, 
there was no mention of the other li
braries although it was expressed in 
various meetings of the librarians 
where the Bill was discussed that it 
should be a comprehensive Bill. 
Speaking about the National Librdfy 
services and placing the National Li
brary at the apex of the regional libra
ries, was discussed there. But unless it 
is Jhere in the body of the Bill, I can
not say anything.

SHRIMATI MARAGATHAM CHAN
DRASEKHAR: As far as the composi
tion of the Board is concerned, whe
ther it will be conducive to the growth 
of the library movement?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: Mostly, it«has 
been constituted with a view to run
ning the National Library. In so far 
as the part it has to play to boost he 
National Library Movement, of course, 
the Bill is inadequate. But, I think, of 
course, the Bill is inadequate. But, 1 
think, if the Government feels like 
this, it can put a clause accordingly. 
If this Library has to be a single li
brary, then I 3o not think it can do 
much in the Movement. So far as 
the Library Movement is concerned, It 
is the Public Libraries, which form a 
major portion of the Library Move
ment. To that eartcxrt the States are 
responsible. Unless they move in the 
matter nothing can be done.

SHRIMATI MARAGATHAM CHAN
DRASEKHAR: As far as article 4 of

your memorandum is concerned, do 
you think if the Chairman or the Di
rector is a librarian, then the work 
will be done in a much better way?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: It is a ve"y 
common experience that if we have 
not worker with our own hands, wc 
are likely to be cheated by our ser
vants. People who run their own 
kitchen, know where the servants 
cheat. That is, what I feel, happens in 
offices. If an officer does not know 
much about the intricacies of work, 
the lower staff will try to play some 
mischief. It is just like a college boy 
who watend Rs. 501- to buy a blotting 
paper. I suggest that some one who is 
more permanent to stay should be a 
librarian.^

DR. V. . SINGH: It is suggested that 
this National Library could be an apex 
of regional libraries. If it could be 
like this, then what is the type of re
lationship which he thinks should be 

‘ between apex bodies and the regional 
bodies. I asked this question because 
there is a National Library at Calcut
ta. We are adding a new chapter and 
we must know the outlines of the new 
chapter.

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: Well, Regional 
Libraries will have a sort of general 
guidance from the National Library. 
The National Library should have a 
sort of relationship----

DR. V. B. SINGH: What should be 
the sort of relationship?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: You will have 
to make out a whole constitution for 
that. The relationship should be o f 
such a nature where the National 
Library can lay down the policies and 
the policy should be such that all the 
books and other Library resources 
can be available to the readers in Re
gional Libraries.

DR. V. B. SINGH: Under the ex
isting practice, every publisher has 
to send a copy of his publication to 
the National Library. So, would you 
like such copies to be given to the 
Regional Libraries also? Secondly, 
there are certain provisions in the 
existing report, with regard to the
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relationship between the National 
Library and the Regional Libraries. 
'What are you reactions to thaA?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: So far as the 
question of making available the 
copies of the books etc. to all the 
Regional Librariea is concerned, this 
depends upon as to how many lib* 
raries you will have. If you require 
20 copies, I do not think the publisher 
will send 20 copies free of cost, to all 
the Regional Libraries. These are all 
matters to be discussed in detail, 
where not only the librarians and the 
Government, but, the publishers are 
also involved.

DR. V. R. SINGH: What should be 
the qualifications of the vChairman? 
should he be nominated?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: If he is
nominated, then the qualification 
question does not arise.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA1:
Mr. Mehta, on page 1 of your memo
randum, you have said:

“My friends at Calcutta have
some fears, may be exaggerated, 
that by handing over the Library to 
n Board their services will b*» less 
gicura and therefore all their argu
ments concentrate on the conti
nuance of th? status quo

Is it not? Secondly, the Jha Commit
tee had recommended that the Govern
ing Council should be formed by the 

Government by a Resolution. It has 
further recommended that this should 
not be a statutory body, but, powers 
should be delegated to it. Do you 
thinK that there is some essential 
diffeience between these two types of 
Committee, the one autonomous and 
the other one statutory?

SHRI J, C. MEHTA?: So far as the 
frst oart of your question is con
cerned, I have said enough earlier. In 
so far as the recommendations of the 
Committee are concerned, I do not 
think U has been m ĉte public, I have 
not seen the report. Unless I see it,
I cannot answer that part.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: 
From your experience, I would like 
to be enlightened as to whether 
there is any difference between an 
autonomous body and a body which is 
strictly under Government control?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: Well, firstly,
there is this difference. The one is 
autonomous and the other is not. The 
rest o f the differences, you will know, 
in their actual working.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: You 
have the experience as the Director 
of the Delhi Public Library. Do you 
think that more powers should be 
given to the Director so that he can 
function in a better manner for effi
cient administration of the Delhi 
Public Library? Do you want more 
powers—executive and administrative?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: I am satisfied 
as things are.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: My
last question is this. I would like to 
know whether the workers and the 
staff in autonomous bodies can enjoy 
th*>ir mMs and privileges under the 
Trade Unions Act?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: Well, I think, 
it all depends on the nature of the 
institution to which they belong. 

There are so many autonomous orga
nisations which are non-Government 
organisations. If they are factories, 
they come under the Factories Act. 
But, the question of a body being 
autonomous or statutory in character 
does nQt come in the way of trade 
unions.

SHRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR:
It is also observed that Government 
shirks its re^ppnsibpity in case of 
autonomous bodies. Is the Govern
ment not answerable to Parliament in 
case , of autonomous bodies? What is 
ypMr experience?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: I think the 
Government is answerable even in 
case of autonomous bodies. I get all 
>the Parliament questions , whenever 
Parliament is }n session, The Govern*
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ment is responsible and it has to ans
wer all the querries.

SHRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR: 
ifr. Mehta, you have rich experience 
with regard to the working of auto
nomous bodies. Are you satisfied with 
their working?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: I am satisfied.

SHRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR: 
Do you think, where there are defici
encies, that Government intervention 
is necessary? *

SHRI J. C. MEHTA; I think, so far, 
no occasion has arisen in the course 
of my experience. But, if it comes to 
that, well, the Government's partici
pation or intervention can be sought. 
I think I can seak it.

MR CHAIRMAN: During your ten
ure, has any occasion ever arisen 
where relsented any kind of inter
ference.

SHRI J. C. MEHTA; That is not in 
my nature. I do not resent.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But, has any oc
casion ever arisen?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: There has been 
no occasion.

SHRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR: 
Do you think that the administration 
as envisaged in the Bill, is better than 
the administration run by you, which 
is an autonomous body?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA; It is too early 
to assess it; unless we work it and 
compare it, it is difficult to say.

SHRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR: 
Because you have gone through the 

bill and you have experience of the 
working of the autonomous body, you 
tran compare between the administra
tion envisaged by the present bill and 
your experience as a director of an 
autonomous body.

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: There is not 
much difference so far as working is

concerned. Whatever systems or 
structures you adopt, unless you run 
them honestly, you cannot have ideal 
things. We have got the best culture 
on paper; but how are things being 
done in actual practice? On paper, 
things may look simple, If we have 
got good people to run the show, they 
smoothly, otherwise, things take a bad 
shape.

SHRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR: 
Do you think that thfo bill will lead 
to a better climate or provide good 
leadership?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: I feel that if 
you get the right sort of officers, it 
would help.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: You referred to clause 13 of 
this bill regarding the appointment of 
librarians. I think the Central Gov
ernment can appoint a person who has 
experience, as also technical and 
general qualifications. But would you 
feel satisfied if the word ‘or’ in the 
bill is replaced?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: Why could we 
not say, “if he is a librarian of the 
right academic standard?” If we put 
“and”, this would mean accepting it 
half-heartedly.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: The point is substituting “and” 
for “or” , is that it would lead to the 
best combination.

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: That solves, 
half the problem.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: To my mind, it appears that 
a person who, in the first place, has 
a good academic qualification, need 
not have technical qualifications of 
that standard; otherwise, high techni
cal qualifications are necessary. 
Secondly, there are two libraries 
which are serving the purpose of 
reference for the whole of the country. 
One is the National Library at Cal
cutta. Secondly, there is the Central
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Reference Library. Would you, as a 
witness, give ua your opinion whether 
or not a merger of the two would be 
in the interests of the national 
character of the National Library; 
and whether the merger would make 
it central as well as a national library 
and. therefore, truly national?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: There is
difference of opinion on this. Some
times, the trend is towards amalgama
tion; but then we sometimes decen
tralise thing. I do not know. I have 
not been working in that library. If 
their separation is creating some diffi
culties, most certainly they should be 
amalgamated and if they are perform
ing their functions— which are quite 
apart from each other smoothly, they 
can run separately as well.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Are you aware that there was 
a committee appointed by the Gov
ernment i.e. Jha Review Committee 
on the National Library, Calcutta for 
which this bill is also there. Have 
you gone through that report?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: I have not 
seen it.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: One of their recommenda
tions, viz. No. 6, relates to the 
composition of the Council, parallel to 
the board here. It says, ‘The Advi
sory Council of the National Library 
should be replaced by a Governing 
Council. It should have eminent 
persons from the universities, distin
guished educationists and administra
tors of proved Tyorth” I am doubtful 
whether “proved worth” m?ans facing 
agitations. It says that men of 
“academic bent of mind, scientists of 
repute and achievement, should be 
the member of the Governing Council. 
The Council should be instituted by a 
resolution of the Government and not 
by statute.” What have you to say to 
the recommendations made here? One 
is regarding the constitution of the 
Council in which, for your clarifica
tion I may mention, the word /lib
rarian,” , has not been mentioned as 
6iichv Therefore, there ia no reference 
to the librarianship as a profession.

Secondly, there is a legal aspect to 
this. The Council should be insti
tuted by a resolution of the 
Government. Therefpre, the Govern
ing Council should enjoy some dele
gated autonomy and not statutory 
autonomy. -

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: Yes, Sir. I 
think when the Jha Committee re
ported, this National Library Board 
was not thought of. When it has 

\ come, probably the Council also has 
been taken care of.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: This is not the question. There 
is a specific proposition. Have you 
read it?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: If we have a 
statutory board, we will have to have 
a statutory council also. If there is 
no board, then the delegated authority 
should be enjoyed by that council,
i.e. delegated by a resolution.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Are you in favour of delegated 
autonomy?

SHRI J. C. MEHTA: I am in favour 
of statutory autonomy for the Council, 
because if the board does come into 
being, how can we have a part outside 
it? We will have to take the whole. 
The executive council will have to 
stay in the statute itself.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: I am not very clear about this, 
because by delebated autonomous 
body, we mean a body created by the 
resolution of the executive; whereas 
a statutorily autonomous board hav
ing this would be the creation of the 
legislature. It would be passed in the 
Parliament.

SHRI J. C. MEHTA; It is going to 
be the creature of the executive when 
it is a bill; $nd then, you have to con
vert it into an Act.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Mehta, the 
Members of the Committee feel very 
grateful to you for enlightening them 
with your views ai}d answers to their 
questions. We tfrarfk you ag|iin.

(The witness then withdrew)
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MR. CHAIRMAN: I want to inform 
you that the evidence that you would 
give here would be treated aa public 
and is liable to be published unless 
you specifically desire that all or any 
part of the evidence tendered by you 
is to be treated as confidential Even 
though you might desire the evidence 
to be treated as confidential, such 
evidence is liable to be made available 
to the Members of Parliament.

SHRI ASOKE CHATTERJEE: I
have signed a paper to that effect.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have not 
tendered any memorandum. You state 
your views briefly and thereafter the 
Members might desire to get some 
elucidation.

SHRI ASOKE CHATTERJEE: I
have gone through this Bill. I have 
hardly any comments to make except
ing one or two suggestions.

I would like to make a few com
ments in respect of a few Sections 
only. One is Section 5, where there 
is a stipulation for the appointment 
of the Chairman of the Board It says:

‘The Central Government shall 
appoint a member frovn among the 
members of the Board referred 
to in clauses (a), (b), (c) and (d) 
of sub-section (1) of Section 4 as 
Chairman of the Board.’*

I am afraid, I do not find mysslf in 
agreement with this. I would rather 
suggest that the appointment of 
th-> Chairman be restricted to cate
gories (c) and (d) of sub-section (1) 
of Section 4. .This is because (a) 
refers to Secretary in the Ministry or 
Department of the Central Govern
ment dealing with matters relating to 
the Library and (b> refers to the 
Secretary in th? Ministry of the 
Central Government dealing with 
finance. Somehow 1 feel that the 
Chairman of the Board should not be

an official. To be brief, I would give 
three reasons for it. One is that the 
Secretary in any Ministry is a person, 
whose services can be transferred. 
Secondly, a Secretary in a Ministry 
need not necessarily be a very know
ledgeable person about library affairs, 
whereas in the ease of persons under 
categories (c) and (d), it is more than 
likely that persons who are very 
knowledgeable about national library 
should be on the Board. Thirdly, if 
you will permit me to say so, Sir, a 
Secretary in a Ministry is very often 
a Member of a dozen or so Com
mittees. The Chairman, I should 
imagine, is an important functionary 
in this Board and a person who is a 
Member of a dozen or so other Com
mittees would probably not take as 
much interest, or would not be able 
to give as much attention to the Board 
as would be required. That is why, I 
personally feel that the appointment 
of the Chairman of the Board should 
be restricted to persons only who are 
under categories (c) and (d).

Then, Sir, if you will kindly turn 
to Section 9, sub-clause (3), here is a 
stipulation that if any member, being 
an officer of the Government, is un
able to attend any meeting of the 
Board, he may, with the previous 
approval of the Chairman, authorise 
any perscfn in writing to do so. The 
Chairman can be an official of the 
Government, and if he is unable to 
attend a meeting, I do not see, how 
he can authorise somebody else to 
attend. That is why, I feel that the 
Chairman being a very important 
functionary on the Board should be 
from categories (c) or (d) of section
4. That was one comment that I 
wanted to make.

My other comment is with regard 
to Section 19(2). In this there is a 
stioulation that subject to such regu
lations as may be made by the Board 
in this behalf, the Board may, from 
tim* to time, purchase or otherwise 
acquire such manuscripts, books,
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articles or things *s may, in the 
opinion of the Board, be worthy of 
preservation in the Library. I am not 
very clear about it, because it is within 
my knowledge that apart from the 
National Library in Calcutta, there 
are very old and valuable manuscripts 
and other booto in private collections 
all over the country and in some 
public libraries also. I am not sure, 
if this involves acquiring and purchase 
of these and whether this involves 
actual shifting of the manuscripts and 
books from those libraries where they 
presently exist. I am not sure, but if 
it involve*!, as it probably would, 
physically taking away such manu
scripts and books from those libraries 
—I a'm not talking of private collec
tions, but of libraries it should not be 
done. That is what I personally feel. 
Perhaps some ways and means could 
be found to keep those books and 
those manuscripts where they are and 
still extend the authority of the 
National Library for their preserva
tion etc. To give you an example, 
there is the oldest and the first public 
library in my home town, in Uttar - 
para in District Hooghly, West Bengal. 
In that Library, there are very valu
able manuscripts and books. But it 
is a matter of prestige, matter of 
convenience to scholars as also the 
residents of the district, that they 
would not ordinarily like their books 
and manuscripts to be physically 
shifted to the National Library. Of 
course, same of them have their own 
doubts whether the National Library 
would be able to preserve them pro
perly, but there I do not agree. But I, 
personally think that for the benefit 
of the scholars, acquisition is good, but 
these need not necessarily be shifted.
I am not verv sure, if this is intended, 
as I said, if it means physical shifting' 
of all such books and manuscripts, it 
need not be done,

With the rest of the Sections, I find 
myself almost entirely in agreement. 
A* I can see, tho scope of the Bill 
itself is very limited. It is about the 
comiyi«ttlon of a Board in whom the 
management of the National Library 
would vest in future. For that the

provisions that you have envisaged 
are perfectly all right to my mind.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: i would like to have your 
opinion of on this because our experi
ence in the Library profession is that 
they don’t like this clause. They think 
it is directly loaded in favour 
oif people from the public field 
and does not give credepce to the 
people from the Library profession, 
especially this Clause 13 which relates 
to the appointment of a Librarian or 
Director—whatever he is td be called. 
How would you react to the sugges
tion that this Clause should be re
phrased like this:

“The Central Government shall 
appoint a person who, in its opinion 
possesses academical qualifications 
of distinction or is a distinguished 
Librarian, as the Director of the 
Library.”

Here, it is *or\ If it is substituted by 
‘and’ how would you rnact to it?

SHRI A ^ jCE CHATTERJEE: On
the face of it, I would perhaps agree 
I would like to substitute ‘or’ with 
‘and* because the work of a Director 
of a Library, to my mind, is some
what 0f a technical nature. This 
needs a special kind of know-how 
which is not perhaps possible for 
every academician as such to have. In 
any case, whenever we think of 
appointing a Librarian anywhere— 
whether for a big library or small 
library—we do insist upon the person 
possessing certain basic qualifications 
and competence in Library Science. 
Therefore, I would perhapi say that a 
person with high academic qualifica
tions will not probably meet the 
requirements of this Bill. Because, 
once again, the Chairman or other 
Members of the Board may or may 
not be technically knowledgeable 
about matters of the Library, but the 
Director who will have to run the 
Library should be a Librarian with 
certain particular competence. So, I 
would react quite favourably to the 
suggestion that ‘or’ should be substi
tuted by ‘and*.
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SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 

SHAR: Secondly, I would invite your 
attention to Section 4 about the 
composition of the Board, Clause (c) 
sub-clause (i) reads—

“four shall be from among per- 
cons who, in the opinion of the 
Central Government, are educa
tionists or have special knowledge 
of, and experience in, matters relat
ing to the administration of
libraries” .

Here, too, people working in libraries 
have felt that they have been ignored 
bo far a? theip- representation on the 
Board is concerned. Now, those per
sons who hav,e some experience in 
matters relating to the administration 

, of libraries may be non-technical per
sons—may be persons having no
library qualifications or may be
pergonc. who have failed in this sub
ject, though they might occupy a 
high opinion in the estimation of the 
Government. So, if we are to satisfy 
the Library profession as such, would 
you suggest that there should be some 
representation—at least one member— 
from pemons who are actually Libr- 
rians by profession?

SHRI ASOKE CHATTERJEE: The 
situation here, as 1 see it, is slightly 
different. Unlike the Director, who in 
my opinion should be a person with 
some technical knowledge, the four 
persons. I must confess that I do not 
have a very intimate knowledge of 
the functioning of tl̂ e Delhi Public- 
Library, except that I have been inside 
it as many people have many times 
bsen.

But. coming to the second part of 
the question as to whether the Delhi 
Pubic Library can function better as 
an autonomous Board or under Gov
ernment, I think that in all cases—and 
I feel very strongly about it also—a 
Public Library should function under 
an Autonomous Board. A Public 
Library, as I see it. is different from 
a University Library. is stated In 
the Statement of Objects and Reasons 
of this Bill that a person who has 
attained the age of 18 can utilise the

services of the National Library. Now, 
our University Libraries and such 
other libraries are not open to every
body; they are open only to those 
who are enrolled. Since a Public 
Library functions differently. If the 
management of the Public Library is 
vested in an autonomous Board I 
think it can run itself better. Of 
course I do not have, as I said in the 
beginining, any personal knowledge as 
to hew the Delhi Public Library is 
faring. I have never gone that deep 
into it, but if it is not faring well 
then the reason is certainly not that 
the Management is vested in an auto
nomous Board; there could be many 
other reasons which should be looked 
into and taken care of, on the. Board 
need not necessarily be Librarians or, 
as you said correctly, they need not 
have any technical knowledge about 
how to run a Library. I know of 
several distinguished , scholars who 
have been, in their time, in charge of 
Libraries without possessing any 
technical knowledge about how to 
run a Library. Besides, having a 
Librarian on the Board and having an 
educationist on the Board makes a lot 
of difference. Because, a library after 
all, consists of books, manuscripts and 
other things. A Librarian m ay know 
how to maintain these books and 
manuscripts but he does not know 
what books or •manuscripts are needed 
and from where they can possibly be 
had. So. here we need distinguished 
educationists. If you want to make 
some kind of a small reservation for 
thesp oersons one member from 
amongst the four can be a Librarian: 
that concession can be made. But 
pvpn if vou restrict it to educationists,
I tv»ink it will meet the requirement* 
of th« Bill.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR; So you think that if at all. 
there should be only one member 
among these four?

SHRI ASOKE CHATTERJEE; Yea 
Sir: there is no harm in having one.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: I
think you have got some experience
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o f the Delhi Public Library; if bo, I 
would like to know from you whether 
the Public Library as it is at Delhi 
functions properly ag an autonomous 
body and whether you Ihink it can 
function better under direct Govern
ment control.

SHRI ASOKE CHATTERJEE: I 
would say that it should be either an 
autonmoua Board or the kind of 
Board that you are envisaging here 
for the national library itself.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: We 
are discussing on the National Library, 
Calcutta. The purview and the jurii- 
dictions of the Bill are very limited. 
We are discussing on the Review 
how to improve the functions and 
Committee recommendations as to 
management of this national library. 
In that conection we are also dis
cussing on the question of systems of 
national library. Do ,you think that 
this bill is not at all sufficient for 
creating an atmosphere of national 
library movement in India and i* so, 
do you think that the bill should be 
drafted in a different manner?

SHRI ASOKE CHATTERJEE: Well, 
as I said it beiore and as I have been 
able to understand, the scope of this 
bill is limited. This envisages the 
establishment of a Board for the 
management of the existing national 
library in Calcutta. But the question 
you put in regard to national library 
movement is a much wider question 
and certainlv in this bill there in 
nothing which can have a hearing on 
that movement and off and on a topic 
like this I won’t like to venture any 
opinion, because this needs a very 
great deal of thinking and a great deal 
of information about different 
libraries. In fact. I would not like to 
venture any opinion on this but then 
this bill, as it is, certainlv has nothing 
to do with the national library move
ment, as you call it.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: 
Mv next question is this. In the Bill 
you will And that there is a proposal

for constituting an autonomous body— 
Governing Council—which would be 
composed of 10 Members out of which 
sx would be nomnated by the Central 
Government. Then, how can you call 
it an autonomous body if the majority 
of members are nominated by the 
Central Government? What is your 
suggestion on this?

SHRI ASOKE CHATTERJEE: Are
you referring to Section 4, sir?

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: 
Yes.

SHRI ASOKE CHATTERJEE; Wei-, 
I don’t see what other way can be 
there to nominate this Board unless 
it is done by the Central Government. 
If you allow me to ask a question on 
this, horw also are you going to have 
a Board? As it is, it may be done; 
one way, of course, is getting some 
persons elected from amongst the 
Members. But in regard to national 
library, it is certainly not a matter 
which should be left to the choice of 
some members who have registered 
themselves as members of the library. 
And certainly the Board has to be 
nominated and if the Board is 
nominated by the highest authority 
in the country, namely Central 
Government—that may be of course 
the Ministery of Education and Minis
try of Ciilture—then I should imagine 
though the members of the Board are 
nominated by the Central Govern
ment. I will sav that there would.be 
autonomy to function. Besides, you 
are nominating 4 or 3 educationists 
and one person is nominated by the 
Chairinan, University Grants Commis
sion. These nominated Members have 
knowledge of and experience in the 
administration of libraries, science and 
technology. I think It must be quite 
all right. There is no harm.

SHRIMATI M A R A G A T H A M  
CHANDRASEKHER: I want to know
one thing from the witness. The bill 
proposes two separate bodies for the 
management of the national library. 
One body will be the Board and the 
other will be the executive council
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If this is so, does the witness feel that 
there should be two Chairman, that is 
one Chairman for each Body? Do you 
feel that one Chairman for both should 
be sufficient for discharging the duties 
of the national library?

SHRI ASOKE CHATTERJEE: How 
can there be two such bodies? It is 
not clear to me but to achieve some 
kind of cohesion, some kind of inter
relationship, I think, both the bodies 
should be headed by one Chairman. 
Otherwise, there will be clashes and 
it will not function properly. But 
frankly speaking I myself am not very 
clear on this point.

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: Sir,
the hon. witness has opted for an 
autonomous Board and has said that 
he prefers that type of autonomy that 
is in the Bill. I would like to ask him 
to read various clauses including 
Clauses 3 and 4 of the Bill which refer 
to the composition of the Board. Again 
1 would ask him to read the clauses 18, 
19 and 25 which refer to Duties of 
Board and the Powers of Board 
(Clauses 18, 19 and 25 were read out). 
Therefore, does he not feel that while 
it satisfies him that it is an autonomous 
Board, actually it is not an autonomy 
in the real sence of the term? Actually 
the power is somewhere else and 
somebody else is assigning the power. 
The Chairman should not be from 
A and B, but should be from C and D. 
If he means that it should not be the 
officer of the Ministry, I can under
stand that. But why did he not extend 
ixis logic further and say that the 
nomination itself should not be from 
the Central Government. Let there be 
regional representation. There are 
Universities, libraries, regional centres, 
in the Bill, we can say ea^h library 
can send one person. Some such 
pattern should be there. Then we can 
say that th,ere will be a real autonomy. 
^iU ,you agree with me? , Now. the 
pattern of the Government itself vis 
changing. . Today you are seeing this 
Gpvernm^t; tomorrow, you may * t*  
seeing another Government. The 
change may come so successively that

the whole librarian movement w ill 
jeopardise.

SHiU ASOKE CHATTERJEE: When 
I mention the other possibility of an 
election, I did not rule out other ways 
of getting the Board nominated. In 
the case of these four or five 
distinguished educationists, I take it 
that in the actual operative part of 
this Bill, before the Central Govern
ment chooses the distinguished 
educationist, they will consult the 
Universities or the State Governments 
and through the State Governments 
other people.

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: Are
you sure about it?

SHRI ASOKE CHATTERJEE: I 
cannot be sure.

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: Now, 
you have heard that the Chief Justice 
cannot be consulted about the appoint
ment of judges. I am not talking of 
today. We are talking about the 
legislation which will be in the statute. 
Therefore, you please give me an 
answer not for today, but for 
posterity,

SttRI ASOKE CHATTERJEE: I 
cannot give an answer for posterity. 
But, as things stand today, and in a 
kind of political system in which we 
are working and we hope to function, 
I do not entirely rule out the ldnd 
of misgivings you have. This mAy 
happen. But it need not necessarily 
happen.

(SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: Then 
all right. ,. , ,

SHRI AJJOKA CHATTERJEE: W hen 
you are choosing these persons,, jpf 
course, all kinds off interests may com e 
inM n ia y , '^ li^ e v e r  may be t^e 
authority to qhoo?e. But in a thljig 
like this, T do ftope the authority w ho 
chooses wj[ll be objective enough and 
would plso con$uK the academic w orld  
befpre choojin* .such piejrsons, , yB^t, i t  
jc n t cana* a
straight no to vour question. Whet you 
say may happen.
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SHRI SHYAM DHAK MISRA: I am 

satisfied. Another question is instead 
of this autonomous board of the 
pattern envisaged in this Bill, there is 
a Statutory Board. This binds this 
Government and other future Govern
ments. This is a pattern which may 
be continued and within this, either 
they can do good or bad—both are 
possible.

SHRI ASOKE CHATTERJEE: I mm 
not able to follow you.

SHRI SHYAM DHAR MISRA: My
point is we are going to give an 
autonomy by a statute and if it is 
passed like this with certain amend
ments (3, 30, 19, 16 and 28), which 
according to some of us, puts a lot of 
restrictions and not an autonomy. We 
got this evidence at many places. It 
is no secret to tell you. Let the Board 
be constituted by the resolution of the 
Government.

And not by a statute so that 
the Government takes the full 
responsibility directly what is likely 
to happen. After all, there are bad 
men and good men; there are bad 
Governments and good Governments. 
Today, it is a good Government; 
tomorroy, it may be a bad Government 
and any bad Government may misuse 
its provisions and may make this Act 
as a scape-goat. Therefore, give them 
complete freedom so that total 
responsibility of the development of 
the National Library rests with them 
and they do not make a scape-goat of 
this Act as there is a fashion to make 
scape-goat of many things.

SHRI ASOKE CHATTERJEE: I
frankly say that this is a very 

hypothetical situation that you are 
envisaging. For example a had
Government may impose military rule 
or some such kind of rule. That is a 
kind, which, in my opinion, we need 
not take into account. When you are 
making an enactment what a bad 
Government will do in terms of misuse 
of power, that nobodv can say. But 
as .far as National Library is 
concerned, the things which are there 
are very sacred to the nation.
It is not like just any other library

like the Delhi Public Library or any 
other library. It has valuable 
possessions. Even if there is some 
curbing of the kind of autonomy 
which you are envisaging, in the 
interest of the articles which are kept 
in the National Library, I would say 
that you have to curb that much of 
autonomy. Now, hypothetically it may 
turn out to beg academic discussion 
of what may or may not happen. In 
managing a library of this kind, you 
have to have a very special kind of 
enactment and it is a very special type 
of situation. So, what is good for 
other libraries need not necessarily be 
good for the National Library. Though 
apparently, you see a contradiction, in 
the autonomy which this Bill envisa
ges and the kind of fears which some 
of the witnesses might hav eexpressed 
or some of you might have, I, for one,— 
of course you are going to effect 
changes in the Bill when you take up 
discussion clause by clause, you may 
relax some of the stipulations or omit 
some of them—I for one would say 
that it is better to stick to the 
provisions of this Bill when you are 
managing the National Library.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: Sir,
Mr. Chatterjee, has suggested a sort 
of dichotomy in regard to the appoint
ment of the Chairman of the Board. 
While he had no objection for the 
Chairman being drawn from category 
(c) and (d) he had definitely an 
animus against persons being drawn 
from categories (a) and (b). If the 
Government really wants a particular 
person of its choice to be appointed, 
he may be even from the class from 
which Mr. Chatterjee wants the 
Chairman to be apnointed, namely, 
categories (c) and (d). Government 
can so nominate a person in category 
(c) and also see that he is also 
appointed as the Chairman. Therefore,
I do not am* appreciation of this 
point. If Chairman can b§ chosen 
from amongst these ten or fifteen or 
whatever the number we ultimately 
arrive at—of course, certain qualifl- 
c°tions have to be fixed for the 
Chairman of the Board—in that case,
I do not think there would be any
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infringement of autonomy, and on the 
other hand, there would be greater 
fulfilment of the objective of 
autonomy. What would Mr. Chatterjee 
like to say on this?

S H Iil A S O K E  C H A T T E R JE E : At
4he very outset, 1 must assure you 
that I have no animus against persons 
coming from categories (a) and (b). 
The objections which I have are based 
on something quite different. As I 
•aid, the Secretary in the Ministry or 
the Department of the Central Govern
ment dealing with matters relating to 
the library, would be one particular 
Secretary and he is a changeable 
person. Today, he may be the 
Secretary in one particular Ministry 
and tomorrow he may go somewhere 
else. The same is true about the 
Secretary in the Ministry of Central 
Government dealing with finance. 
These two officials will go on changing. 
Their job is as such. They need not 
necessarily have any expertise on 
matters pertaining to the library. That 
was one reason. The other reason, 
why I want them to be excluded, is 
this. A person by virtue of his being 
Secretary in one particular Ministry— 
you know it and I know it—will be 
on an umpteen number of committees. 
He may be the Chairman of other 
Government Committees. This will be 
one more. I would not like the 
Chairman being an important func
tionary, taking this up as just any 
other of his many official obligations. 
You said that the persons can also be 
so nominated. You said it because you 
thought that I have an animus against 
the Secretaries in the Ministries as 
such, or against the bureaucracy. Not 
the least. Perhaps, a 'Secretary would

do much better in another kind of 
committee or a Board, but, not on this 
Board. The reasons are those three 
which I have given; but, no animus.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: I would 
like to know from the witness another 
thing. In view of the fact that we are 
a Federal Union consisting of 21 States, 
would it not be better if there is a 
greater participation of the States in 
the National Library, so that they 
could feel that they have a say in the 
affairs of the National Library and 
they can also identify themselves with 
the cultural and academic development 
in the country?

SHRI ASOKE CHATTERJEE: Most 
certainly, yes. But, if by implication, 
this means that every State should be 
represented, then, my answer is most 
certainly No. Of course, there should 
be a feeling of participation. In fact, 
something has got to be done. But;
I would like to make one thing clear. 
The States must feel that they are 
participating in this, and in fact, the 
assets of the National Library would 
have been called from the States and 
will, in future, be gathered from the 
States. There should definitely be a 
sense of participation. But, I do not 
know whether you want to extend the 
participation to the composition of the 
Board itself. If that was what vou 
had in mind, then, very frankly 
speaking. I would say that it would 
be v e ry  unwieldv and that i«* not the 
9ort of thing needed for the National 
Library.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Chatterjee,
we are very thankful to you for 
enlightening the Committee with your 
views. Thank you very much.

(The Committee then adjourned)
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(The witness was called in and he 

took his seat)
MR. CHAIRMAN: I may point out 

to you that your evidence may be 
treated as public and is liable to be 
made public unless you specially de
sire that all dr any part of the evi
dence tendered by you is to be treated 
as cortfldentiai, 1 may also add that 
even though you may desire the evi
dence to fee treated as confidential, it 
is liable to be made available to the 
Members of Parliament. You are 
doubtless aware that whatever dis- 
cussipns we have here is treated as 
confidential and is not to be made 
public till the Report of this Commit
tee is presented to Parliament.

. Dr. Sheikh, you may first state what 
you want to say and thereafter the 
Members might desire to put soiree 
question for elucidation.

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: I would like to 
submit that the problem of the library 
expansion and extension activities in 
the country as a whole has not made 
sufficight progress during the last 25 
years inspite of the fact that we have 
declared several libraries as coming 
under the Deposits t>f Books Act and 
so on. But is appears that the whole 
question of making the Central libra
ries and national libraries through 
Which the regional and district libra
ries would be upgraded In various

Witnesses E xa m in e d

ways and assisted by way of sending 
books for circulation, that problem 
has remained practically unattended to 
ahd what we know as library grid 
system has almost been frozen. This 
is an unfortunate state of affairs. 
When we say the library facilities 
should be made available particular
ly to the far-off regions in each State 
and moreover collection of ancient 
lore from these regions—maybe of an
cient type—is also an important func
tion of a library system, I belive, this 
activity could have taken better shape 
and if we are thinking now of a natio
nal library system, may be through 
one library or several other libraries, 
the question of coordination of work 
of extension activities of libraries and 
of reaching facilities to the interior 
areas must be taken up place. That is 
my first point.

In Maharashtra also we have got no 
better experience on the question of 
setting up of a library grid. That, I 
think, to a great extent has not work
ed, and as such, we have to review 
our procedures. I believe that the en
tire question of proper library system 
for the country is an absolute must, if 
we feel that library work as such 
should be attended to in an integrated 
and efficient manner.

Secondly, the total allocation for li
brary work in th© country—whether 
centralised or decentralised libraries—
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has not been proportionately good 
enough for maintaining both the lite
racy and knowledge up-to-dateness of 
the people in this respect. Therefore, 
some recommendation has to come at 
ail levels that this should also be 
done.

Thirdly, the co-ordination part of 
the Library knowhow work has got to 
be done. Facilities like Library train
ing, book-keeping training, costing of 
books etc. are a matter of groat signi- 
ftnance from the point of view at the 
socialist and democratic pattern of ex
panding knowledge to the common 
man. Monstly what happens all over 
the country is that second-hand or 
second class material or even third- 
hand or fourth-hand materials come 
to the Libraries as first class or origi
nals. Sir, I submit that this is not a 
very good state of affairs if the egcli- 
tarian society is to be a knowledgeable 
society. If the society has got to con
tribute to the special upkeep to the 
national upkeep and political upkeep 
of the country, then surely we will 
have to provide the means to the 
people to better their knowledge im
prove their contributions and get back 
altogether as individuals and as units 
of our society the things that are 
necessary in a democratic set up.

Unfortunately, the system that is 
being envisaged in your Bill is only 
pertaining to one particular National 
Library which is being ret up in Cal
cutta. Now Surely, Sir there are throe 
other Libraries which were originally 
considered as the seats for deposits 
of text-books and books under an Act 
etc. These Libraries may be consider
ed in £he proposed Bill for the same 
facilities. Therefore, these have got to 
be brought into focus from the 
point of view of a National Library 
through a regional grid system and 
for there should be some kind of co
ordinated society and they should! be 
treated as original libraries. They 
should be given all the facilities like 
finance, knowhow and the co-ordi

nated inputs that are required in or
der to bring them upto a level where 
we can say that the National Library 
is well covered by the National Library 
system. Because through them you

will go to regional libraries, the Dist
rict Libraries and so on. Therefore, 
you could say that we have really 
taken care oi the country as a whole 
in so far as this branch is concerned.
It is not that we have set up only one 
Library in our country in one part but 
it will mean that we have taken care 
of other parts of the country if we 
consider the old Libraries which are 
in three or four important cities. This 
is most important.

Further more, Sir, we have so many 
language groups and if we want to 
see that the growth of language sys
tem takes place, surely translations of 
good books from one area to the other 
should be encouraged and books 
should be made available from one 
Library system into another Library 
system and the question of transla
ting and making them available to 
other regional groups is an important 
one, as has been taken care of by al
lotting financial grants for various 
languages for translating these books 
into and from those books. Of course 
text-books are translated but not the 
books in other languages of general cul
ture and other things which are meant 
for people as a whole. So, my sub
mission is that this aspect of the mat
ter is also an important one in a 
Library System. When modem kinds 
of considerable assistance to the Lib
ra ry  in the shape of micro-filming, 
documentation in the shape of preser
vation and sending different books to 
others in the shape of contributions 
and other things are provided, all 
kind** of individuals will be coming 
into the picture. I do not think our .
people are severed with that standard 
system in the sense that the library 
has become the repository of univer
sal knowledge. It has not become 
such a place where a person can go 
and get answers to his problems. 
Therefore it is necessary to provide 
guidance to the people—who want to 
seek guidance so that their time is 
not Wasted. Guidance can be given 
by the Librarians as a whole who 
know it better from the point of
view of philosophy of the life and *
administration of the Library. This 1* ^
an important point which is perhaps
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not reflected in the Bill. This will have 
to be taken care of by issuing instruc
tion* in this behalf.

Another point is, we feel, that the 
number of people that have been put 
on the Board here—many of them of 
course happen to be educationists— 
are required to be knowledgeable 
people with sufficient Library Science 
experience and will have to be 
brought into picture, in case they 
waot the persons with expertise in 
this field and can run these institu
tions very efficiently. This is perhaps 
not done. Our experience is that 
more money can be spent on more 
institutions in the country as these 
have got to be brought into focus and 
more liaison can be created between 
the* National Libraries and the Uni
versity Libraries, District Libraries, 
Regional libraries and all that so
that there can be a link to these 
Libraries. Therefore, such a Bill as 
this may perhaps have an amend
ing clause by which it could take
under its auspices other Libraries 
like Regional Libraries, University 
Libraries, etc. so that all of them 
function as a Library grid for our 
country.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have given 
a good suggestion. But we have 
'before this Committee a concept of 
true National Library. Can you sug
gest the picture of a real National 
Library? Here this Committee, as 
you know, is concerned with the Bill 
that is before us. It would be more 
helpful if you could suggest as to the 
composition and functioning of the 
^National Library in order to consider 
them for incorporation in the Bill.

DR. A. U. SHEnCH: By providing 
•certain amount of finance for the 
improvement of the Libraries, provid
ing know-how, training facilities 
lor Librarians and others, we can see 
whether the system of national lib
rary grid could be established all 
over the country. This is one sugges
tion. As far as the question of ap- 
’pointment of a Director or a Librarian 
is  concerned, if there are four or five

libraries set up at the national level 
in the country, they could h,ave a 
cadre of librarians who could be ex
changed between these libraries from 
time to time and provide for a long 
term engagement rather than fOr a 
period of five years. According to the 
present Bill, it becomes an ad hoc 

appointment of a senior Librarian or 
a Director and where will he go after 
that period? The system should pro
vide for a transfer of people from 
time to time, from one area to another 
area so that their experience and 
knowledge of the other libraries’ sys
tem should not be lost to the country.

MR, CHAIRMAN: If you kindly 
express your ideas while referring 
to a particular clause and how those 
ideas should be incorporated in that 
particular clause, that would help the 
Committee.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Our purpose 
of visitjng the National Library qt 
Calcutta was only to see how it was 
functioning. From Bombay, we will 
go to Poona and so on. But the basic 
question is whether there should be 
some kind of a national moving lib
rary or not?

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: I am thankful 
to the hon. Members for their sugges
tions that these things a»%e valid in 
the sense that we are thinking of the 
national approach to the problem of 
having a National Library grid. This 
i« a concept of the library on the 
national pattern. I was submitting 
that perhaps this and other enabling 
clauses could come in the Statement 
of Objects and Reasons enabling the 
library to undertake such functions 
as will serve the purpose to some ex
tent. If you think of the National 
Library being kept at Calcutta, then 
it must contain a sufficient number of 
films and books in all the languages 
of the country; the best literature in 
all the languages of the country must 
be maintained in the National Lib
rary. If a man wants to go to the 
Library in order to know about the 
literature, he will be able to get * 
certain amount of bibliographies; he
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will be able to get the material of his 
own subject. In the library itself, he 
should be able to get the material 
which will enable him to know what 
is happening in Tamilnadu and Maha
rashtra; he should be able to get the 
material for that place for that pur
pose. Secondly, the library should 
contain all that kind of material in a 
language which the people should 
know so that they can get easy guid
ance on that score. If this National 
Library is having a treasure house of 
all the languages of the country in 
that place, then it must subscribe to 
the best part and they should have a 
liaison with other libraries in order 
to get these books to and fro. This is 
just as in each area all books of other 
areas must also be kept. This is a 
very important thing because people 
are now transferred from one region 
to another region. I was the Munici
pal Commissioner in Bombay City. We 
were running schools in 14 languages 
in Bombay City. We had to keep a 
library for each section of the people; 
we had to have a cultural centres for 
each section of the people; we had to 
evolve a proper library system, be
cause, after all, mother tongue has 
been accepted as the best educator 
for all purposes. If this is so, then 
the people going to other areas and 
staying there for work should not feel 
lost that they are completely cut off 
in their own country from their own 
cultural heritage and so on. In that 
case, we have to maintain a section 
of periodicals in our reading rooms 
and in that section we have to main
tain the latest list of books and biblio
graphies as well as their translated 
versions. If you say even that lib
rary as sudh is the only object of the 
Bill, then that library has got to be 
developed at that level where all 
these things must be maintained. Can 
that happen and how can that hap
pen? In order to do that. I Ibelieve 
the objects should be so construed; 
the staff pattern , will have to be so 
changed;, the financial sUu?ture wiu 
have to be so cast; the liaison part, 
and the coordination part with other 
ar<?as wil? have to be so done.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRAVAR- 
TI: You have just now said that we 
must have a Library system build up 
from the village level upto the State 
level. I have got my doubts about 
this. My question is whether we can 
have five, six or ten National Libraries 
in a country in the true sense of the 
National Library? By a National Lib
rary, we understand that a Library 
where we have aill the rare materials. 
Now, we cannot find seven copies o f  
rare manuscripts and valuable things 
from the past history to be distri
buted among the six National Lib
raries. How do you think about this 
idea that the National Library should 
be the only one library where anybody 
would like to go and study whatever 
he wants to study? Apart from the 
National Library, it should remain 
under the control of the Government 
directly. Apart from that, we should 
have a system of central library or 
the zonal library. This zonal library 
will cater to the needs of the general 
public. But the National Library is 
usually ' meant not for the general 
public coming from schools and col
leges and other areas, but it should 
be meant for the scholars who are 
doing research and specialisation on 
certain subjects. There should be 
only one library where all the ma
terial will be placed at one place. Do 
you think that we should have regional 
libraries whose action should be co
ordinated? As you have just now 
suggested that there should be some
thing in the nature of a central uni
versity and this may be developed 
into a library system where it should 
co-ordinate the activities of each other 
and should have a Chief Librarian 
who will be transferred from one 
place to another place to which all the 
regional libraries will be co-ordinated. 
But if you support them in terms of , 
five or six National Libraries set up. 
in different parts of the country, then 
I dp not know how it is going to serve 
the purpose in the true sense where 
highly qualified people conduct parti
cular research and how copies ot 
rare manuscripts can be distribute#*.
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among the different National Libraries 
all over %he country? It cannot be 
diitributed. That will create a lot of 
difficulty. What is your opinion about 
that? '

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: I generally 
agree. Afterall there would have to 
be some levels of national library. It 
will be necessary to spread out facili
ties to some extent to other regions. 
Therefore, if you call them regional 
libraries they will have to be of the 
standard where you can get practi
cally everything or call the same from 
other places. So, it is a system of lib
raries. If you have four or five cen
tral places from where library sys
tem receives its impulses then that 
will be a national library. Much 
smaller countries than ours have 10 
to 15 libraries of the level of national 
library.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: Have you 
gone through Jha Committee report? 
At page 11 there is a suggestion regar
ding autonomous body for adminis
tration. Do you agree with this sug
gestion?

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: Autonomy is a 
matter of different interpretations 
at different places. I am sorry to saj 
when you make an independent trust 
for a library grid system very often 
the trustees do not come up to the 
level expected of them. When any
thing is made into an absolute auto
nomous thing it becomes static. In the 
library system you cannot have elec
tions by which you will bring up a 
proper level of competence to come 
to the top in the library management. 
Quite often these things are managed 
by a man-made system in which 
really good persons do not come up 
to' the top management. Therefore, 
autonomous institutional structure is 
a thing, which I do not know, whe
ther it can be imposed from the top 
all of a sudden. Autonomy is a kind 
of. top management which you are 
entrusting, to some people whom you 
consider to be better in national im
portance but it is not always given

to us to predict what God has in store 
for those persons. Quite often we 
have got the experience that thing* 
have a tendency as soon as there is a 
final autonomous stature given to any 
body that system becomes ptatic and 
non-progressive.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: You have 
suggested there should be four or five 
regional libraries. Is it feasible to 
have four or five national libraries?

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: If it is a ques
tion of national library system then it 
has to be spread in three, four or five 
regional because there will be some 
homogeniety of interest and under
standing. Travel is difficult for scho
lars who want to use the national 
library. There may be different at
mosphere and he may not be able to 
get people to talk to. Therefore, it 
will be better if you have four or five 
central places from where the lib
rary system receives its impulses.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR: The pro
posal is that the National Library 
should be run by an autonomous 
Body and there is a very strong opi
nion against this proposal. My ques
tion is. Whether you accept in prin
ciple to run this academic institute 
by an autonomous body? If so, what 
are the principles on which this auto
nomous Body should be based? This 
is the first question. If we do not 
accept it in principle then the system 
of National Library will come under 
the direct control of the Government. 
So, do you consider that there should 
be better! management than the 
management of the autonomous body? 
My second question is: Whether you 
consider the National Library at Cal
cutta should be the apex library in 
the system of library movement and 
in the system of regional and other 
libraries?

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: Sir, the first 
question is about autonomous body. 
It can be answered by saying that 
the autonomy enjoyed by certain 
people or certain number of people 
under managed system is not the 
real autonomy. Therefore, you must
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ensure that there must be checks and 
balance in the system of autonomy 
also so that you will be also to call 
for performance returns, you 'will be 
able to get certain Committees going 
into the accounting and maintenance 

of books and so on and also see that 
the concept of National Library 
should be of highly order. Whether it 
can be done only in one region, is it 
possible to conceive this in four 
different places in which the National 
Library grid is spread out, etc. should 
be considered. But if you have the 
system in one place-a crystalised sys
tem in one place and one autonomous 
body—then this will mean that we 
are running a great risk. Therefore, I 
believe that both from the point of 
view of utility and expansion and 
approach to the people for whom faci
lities should be made available the 
body should be spread into all the 
regions linking with one another for 
the purpose of sharing of knowhow 
and sharing of knowledge, sharing the 
experience, sharing books, sharing of 
systems of Libraries, etc. This is the 
fancept I would suggest for of the 
National Library which should be 
in three or four places especially for 
a country like ours where different 
kinds of languages are spoken. That 
is m y view. Hon. Member’s second 
question was about the apex library.
I think I have answered this question 
thyt it should be the best amongst 
equals and this question should be 
•considered at some level but you will 
be the best Judge I may recall thet I 
said that it should be like a bank of 
bankers.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: I
have got one >pertinent question to 
ask. I think that very little has been 
done in respect of education and deve
lopment of library movement in the 
country for the last 25 years. This ii 
what you also said at the beginning. 
If yon think like that, then do you 
feel that Government could take up 
development of library movement as 
you suggested at the beginning?

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: Of course, the 
39taie ha* to take the lead in this

matter. In a poor country like ours, 
people cannot afford to buy books so 
that they may become knowledgeable 
persons in different fields. My second 
submission is that more funds should 
be allotted for this purpose.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: Do 
you expect that this Library move
ment should be a movement run and 
managed at the national level or at 
the regional, district and local levels?

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: Sir, it will
have to be a kind of co-operative 
management between the people’s 
library movement and educational and 
cultural movements which should be 
sponsored by the State. It will have 
to be a co-operative kind of move
ment of all concerned. It may not be 
possible to take the big lqpd all of a 
sudden. It is because there is paucity 
of funds and all these things, the 
State should take care of them and 
the Centre should give a large 
amount of money to the State for 
this purpose.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: So far as the 
composition of the Board and the 
Executive Council is concerned the 
position is made clear in the proposed 
BiU. But I want to know from you 
one thing. What would you suggest 
in so far as the strength of the Exe
cute ve Couucil is concerned? How 
many Members should represent the 
Executive Council?

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: It should be 
big enough to give representation to 
all the regions because if it is National 
Library it should give representation 
to all shade3 of opinions. Moreover 
within those people who are so re
presented, there will have to be expert# 
and experienced administrators and 
Government of India nominees and 
after the Board is constituted about 
1|3 strength of the Board should be in 
the Executive Council. If there are 35 
Members in the Board, 11 Members 
should corstitute the Execiitive Coun
cil and it the whole Board meets about 
once a year, then this Council should 
meet at least once in 4 months.
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SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN; You have 

said about tihe au'onomous body and 
other things. Do you suggest any 
changes in the composition of the 
Board? Because you have said about 
the autonomous body and its failures.

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: Failures may 
•occur because there is no account
ability.

SHE! Y. S. MAHAJAN: You say 
the autonomous body should be made 
accountable. I said that it would 
accountable because the annual report 
will go to Parliament where it will be 
-discussed.

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: To some ex
tent, the report will help to make it 
accountable. Perhaps the audit will 
have to be provided at the central 
level. We have noticed that between 
audit and criticising body of this 
nature in Parliament and f°r actually 
getting the things done, it will have 
to be at the local level where it has 
got to be done. There is a great hia
tus between Parliament and local 
levels.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: Would you 
suggest any other method of accoun
tability?

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: There will
be few checks and 'balances if auto
nomy is to be granted fully. If you 
see as it is, the actual fact of «»• 
matter is that you are nominating a 
large number of people.

SHRI Y. S.. MAHAJAN: Do you
suggest that some members should be 
elected?

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: There should
be an element of election in a body °* 
that nature if it has got to function 
from the grass-root. Let us come to 
the regional level and the National 
Library at Calcutta. At that level, we 
should take one or two persons from 
eech region so that a certain amount 

o f  elected representatives of the people 
in the library movement should t* 
Sere You are saying the Ubrary 
movement has to be d e v e l ^  b y ^

raries, then we have to see who has 
to tell them that you send your per
sons to the regional libraries and the 
latter send their persons to the Natio
nal libraries. You cannot but concede 
that? You can say that this is a natio
nal library system being catered to by 
the consensus of the people.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: Have you
passed such an Act in Maharashtra 
and how much have you spent?

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: We have an 
Act in Maharashtra, Tamilnadu and 
another State. We give Rs. 25 lakhs 
per annum for the central library and 
we have set aside ai large amount of 
money for the library system. Our 
budget carires a large amount for the 
plan and non-plan items. Our main 
purpose is that whatever we spend 
should get better results. So, we are 
doing as far as possible and yet the 
system does not function as it should 
function.

SERI SAROJ MUKHERJEE: You
have mentioned three library systems 
Do you think that these three types of 
library systems can be brought under 
one system of a National Library or 
any other kind of a library?

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: It can be done 
indirectly. We have submitted that 
there may be an electoral college of 
thg various types of insfttutions. But 
tne National Library is the only library 
which caters to the scholars of the 
country. Hiey have certainly to take- 
care of the Ubrary system at the village 
level too. If there is any system of 
give and take from top to bottom, then 
it is a good thing. There should be 
a system where people can easily go 
and find their answers nearer to their 
homes and the system has to function 
as a whole; it cannot function as a 
stalement at one place. It will have 
to be changed. It is possible to evolve 
a system of this nature. If Parliament 
can function, why cannot the National 
Library grid?

MR. CHAIRMAN: As far as possi
ble, we should keep our eyes on the 
provisions of the Bill. I do not want
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to prevent any Member from discuss
ing the general aspects of the Bill. But, 
strictly speaking, it could be more rele
vant if we keep our eyes on the various 
provisions of the Bill.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: If we con
centrate all our energy only on the 
National Library, then what is the 
purpose of our coming over here. In 
Calcutta, one basic question was raised 
and that was whether this National 
Library will confine itself to this Bill 
or whether it will go further?

MR. CHAIRMAN: This is a matter 
to be decided and discussed by the 
Committee itself.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: We can ask 
their suggestions. The scope of this 
Bill should be extended.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You can put
certain questions to the witness that 
this aspect should be put like that and 
so on.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Dr. Sheikh, 
as for as the object*, which are men
tioned in this Bill are concerned, whe
ther their scope should be extended or 
not7 What are your considered views 
on the scope of the Bill and whether 
that can be extended or not?

MR. CHAIRMAN: In his earlier
statement he has stated that its scope 
should be extended and incorporated in 
the Bill. Maybe, he has stated that in 
the written statement.

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: Only one clari
fication. The Bill says: This is the
Bill for National Library. We are 
talking of one and only one library 
under the Bill. There is no enabling 
clause to say that this Parliament may 
declare any other library to be natio
nal library on certain conditions being 
fulfilled. This enabling clause is no<t 
obtained here. The mis-understanding 
that will prevail is that something pre
conceived is being thought of here just 
in order to preserve some kind of 
heritage which is obtained at one place 
and not allowed to move from thaft 
place. My submission Is you should 
call it a national library system bill 
and give it a scope a enabling it to

establish other national libraries in the 
country and enabling them to work 
together.

SHRI SAROJ MUKHERJEE: I want 
to know your opinion whether it will 
function better if it is in the hands of 
the Government department or if it is 
in the hands of an autonomous body?

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: It will have 
to be a judicious admixture of the 
two experiences of administration— 
State patronage and peoples’ own 
effort and peoples' own representation. 
It has to be achieved. It is a difficult 
thing. My submission is 1|? of the 
people should represent the library 
system; 1|3 may be of the Central Gov
ernment and 1|3 may come from the 
autunomous body people. This should 
be integrated with the other three or 
four libraries which should be declar
ed national libraries.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: The main need to bring thin 
Bill has arisen because the National 
Library at Calcutta had not functioned 
properly and as Jha Committee says 
there is lot of confusion and lot of con
tradiction in the whole. Therefore, 
what should be *the type of librarians 
to control these libraries. For example, 
for this Board it has been stipulated 
'Chairman or Director. There was 
difference of opi” ion as to the quali
fications of important functionary. 
There was line of opinion that this man 
should be a administrator with good 
experience but the people who came to 
us from the Library itself said that it 
should be a librarian first and scholar 
later. Now, what is your opinion? 
Should the preference be given to a 
person who has served as a librarian 
for a considerable time in the library 
profession or you prefer the other way 
round, that is, he may or may not be 
a librarian? '

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: There are views 
and views on the subject of techno
crats versus general administrators. 
But here in this particular case per
haps giving, unitary control to one in
dividual for ;aU the function® of natio
nal library-r-there are five or six func-
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lions of the national library system 
which are envisaged in the proposition 
c f this nature—that person should be 
both experienced in library science and 
good at administration, finance and 
controls. Should this be left to an 
individual or should we have a com
mittee of four to five people with ex
pertise? The Chairmw of the library 
system will be a person as a man who 
is a coordinator with sufficient experi
ence, knowledge and all that. But I 
submit all the others should not feel 
they are just nothing. My submission 
is you have a group of persons man
aging the library and if an experienced 
librarian happens to be in that system 
he can be promoted. But at the same 
time you will have to take into con
sideration the overall upkeep of Lib
rary. If the person is capable of doing 
things, then you will perhaps succeed.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA
SHA R: Would you prefer that this 
organisation should 'be managed by 
one person or do you think that there 
should be some sort of rotation from 
time to time? .

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: No, Sir. Five 
years will be enough and later on if 
you do not want to remove him after 
this period of five years, then the 
person with five years’ training and 
other experience will be helpful to the 
working of the Library system.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND pARA- 
SHAR: You have suggested that the 
Board should have one Member from 
the State Government, one from the 
Central Government and one from 
the Libraries of automonous body. 
Would you think, that one Member 
from the Universities should also be 
included in this Board?

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: I submit that 
there should be one Member for repre
senting the Universities in the Boarq.

SHRI S. A. SHAMIM: The tempta
tion of the witness is to suggest var&us 
changes in the Bill and the temptation 
of the Members is also to discuss this 
Bill elaborately. I would like to re
mind the Members that in any caae we

are discussing the Bill but at the same 
I would like to remind the Members 
that we could not discuss it beyond the 
scope of the aims and objects of the 
Bill.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is for us to 
discuss. Let us not take up that ques
tion now then the witness is there.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: You have 
argued that there should be more 
control on the functioning of the 
National Library by Parliament. May 
I take it that your suggestion is that 
the Executive Council or the Mar) ag
ing Committee of the Library should 
be elected by the Members of Parlia
ment?

DR. A. U. SHEIKH: Obviously I
submit that the rules can be made 
laying down the procedures to be 
followed for all these bodies. These 
rules, under the Bill for the manage
ment of the Institutions, can be chang
ed by the Government from time to 
time on the basis of the experience 
obtained. The rules under each Act or 
Bill can be made for functioning of 
this Body. It is not necessary that 
these rules should go to Parliament 
every time for approval even whie 
there is a small change like a coma 
here or there. This kind of change can 
be done by the Government. But what 
I felt was that if you make it an 
autonomous body under an Act of 
Parliament, then the Court of Law 
will give so such protection to the 
people who will got stuck up in such 
autonomous body and they might act 
against the interests of the organisa
tion and ^ would be very difficult to 
control them later on.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have giVan 
us a lot of information on this sub
ject. On behalf of myself and the 
Cbmmittee. I thank you very much 
for having taken the trouble of penn
ing here to appear before th« Com
mittee and for fumisring useful data 
and valuable information. Thank you 
very tmicht ■ <

(The witness then withdrew)

I
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Spokesmen:

(i) Shri Ajit Kumar Banerjee.
(ii) Shri S. M. Joshi.
ME. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Ajit Kumar 

Banerjee, I welcome you to this sitting 
of the Committee. I may make it 
dear to you that your evidence may 
be treated as public and is liable to 
be made public unless you specially 
desire that all or any part of the evi
dence tendered by you is to be treated 
ag confidential. I may also add that 
even though you may dsire' the 
evidence to be treated as confidential, 
it is liable to be made available to the 
Memebrs of Parliament. Yau are 
doubtless aware that whatever discus
sions we have here is treated as con
fidential and is not to be made public 
till the Report of this Committee is 
presented to Parliament.

I may further point out to you that 
if you want to say anything on this 
subject, you can state briefly and 
thereafter the Mebers may like to 
put the questions and you may 
answer them. While giving your 
ideas, you may also suggest what 
kind of management can be considered 
by us for incorporation in the pro
posed Bill.

SHRI AJIT KUMAR BANERJEE: 
Our submission is a very brief and 
simple one, which pertains to Clause 4. 
A representative of the Asiatic Socie
ty of Bombay, it is suggested shall 
also be appointed as a member of the 
Naional Library Board.

The Asiatic Society of Bombay is a 
learned Society functioning for the 
last 16 years in Western India. The 
Society is also conducting a big Lib
rary and reading room. The Library 
has about 5,58.000 books and files of 
old Journals at present. Our Library is 
also t\ recipient under the Delivery of 
Books and Newspapers (Public Lib
raries) Act, 1954, as amended in 1950,

like the National Library at Calcutta. 
We appreciate that there can be only 
one National Library for a Nation. 
However, we would like to suggest 
that in view of the standing, status, 
experience and the work which is be
ing done by the Society in Western 
India and specially in a cosmopoliton 
Metropolis like Bombay, the Society 
may be as sociated with the manage, 
ment of the National Library which 
will be primarily effected through the 
National Library Board as convisaged 
under Chapter 2 of the draft Bill. 
Hence the suggestion. We feel that we 
have a case for representation on the 
Board and w© feel that this could be 
done without effecting any change in, 
the strength of the Board. That is 
the only suggestion that we want to 
•make. As far as clause 18 is concer
ned, I think, what is really implied 
is that the Board will be entrusted 
with the control and direction of the 
management. The management itself 
will be by the Executive Council, and 
under the Executive Council, the 
Director of the library will function. 
That is all we have to say.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are you receiv
ing the books regularly?

SHRI AJIT KUMAR BANERJEE: 
We are receiving the books regularly 
and continuously.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: Do you know that a similar 
demand Is also made by the Asiatic 
Society of West Bengal, Society of 
India and some other learned bodies 
and therefore it would be difficult, for 
the Govt, to accommodate all these 
interests? How do you think about 
this?

SHRI AJIT KUMAR BANERJEE: 
We certainly appreciate the diffi
culties. But we feel that the Library 
of the Asiatic Sooiety here stands on
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• special footing, it is almost com
parable to the National Library. 
Therefore, it has a special position in 
this respect.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR; Would you like to enlarge 
the Board so that other similar 
bodies would be tepresented on the 
Board just as your Society would be 
represented on the Board? 1 think 
your society is also having a tradi
tion of its own. In order to acco
mmodate these bodies, we have to en
large the scope of the Board. Do you 
have any objection?

SHRI AJIT KUMAR BANERJEE* 
If other libraries are also qualified to 
be represented on the Board, we 
should certainly have no objection.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: As you claim to have a spe
cial tradition of your own in this res
pect, have you considered the pattern 
of a National Library Management in 
other countries?

SHRI AJIT KUMAR BANERJEE: 
One of our members has got some 
experience of other libraries as well 
as the National Library in the Urilted 
States of America. I think we have 
a member who has got special ex
perience of the application of a Na
tional Library Science not only in 
this country but in other countries 
also.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: There were two seminars
which were held at Paris and Manila 
respectively. One librarian from the 
National Library, Calcutta, participa
ted in the seminar which was held at 
Manila and they had produced cer
tain reports. Have y°u got any com
ments to offer on this?

SHRI AJIT KUMAR BANERJEE: I 
have not seen then and therefore I 
would not be able to offer any com
ments. I am sorry.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: You 
have just now said that you have got 
no objection if other bodies are to be 
represented on the Board.

SHRI AJIT KUMAR BANERJEE: 
If there are other institutions of a 
comparable nature and they are 
qualified to be represented on the 
Board, we would certainly have no 
objection; they could also be taken on 
the Board. If the Board has to be 
enlarged, then that is a decision that 
we have to take. We have to have a 
small and compact Board and it has 
to have a limit of its own. A line has 
to be drawn some where and each 
case has to be treated on its merit.

SHRI N. G. GORAY: I presume
that yours is an autonomous body. If 
that is so, would you not subscribe to 
the view that your body is also 
incorporated in this Bill? So far as 
the National Library is concerned, it 
should also be an autonomous body 
and should not be a part and parcel 
of the Government body.

SHRI AJIT KUMAR BANERJEE:
I would say that we should have the 
maximum possible autonomy which 
would lead to before sufficiency of 
management as well as administration 
in the long run. That is m y view and 
experience.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: I
want to know for the sake of 
information how many books you have 
got in your library and how much staff 
you have employed in your library?

SHRI AJIT KUMAR BANERJEE: 
The total number of books is nearly
6 lakhs and the total staff employed 
is about 70 people.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: How 
many people come to your library 
daily for reading purposes?

SHRI AJIT KUMAR BANERJEE: 
About 250 people daily.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: Regarding 
the question of Mr. Parashar may I 
think that the members on the Board 
may be nominated by rotation? Will 
you agree to that?

SHRI AJIT KUMAR BANERJEE:
Yes. Sit. That could be done. I would 
not object to that
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DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: As a matter of fact, the main 
purpose of the Bill and the contro
versy which has arisen is whether this 
National Library should be given the 
autonomous status taking into consi
deration the comments of the Central 
Education Ministry or it should run 
under the Ministry as it was being 
done for the last so many years? . 
Complaint has been received that its 
service has been declining for the last 
few years. Even for a small thing, 
they have to go to the Ministry and 
the Chief Librarian says that it is 
difficult to work like this. Secondly, 
if you make it an autonomous body 
like the universities, then it is not 
gojng to improve the situation. On 
the contrary, it will further deteriorate 
the situation. What is your concrete 
opinion about it? Do you think by 
making it an autonomous body is it 
going to function better than if it 
remains under the direct control of 
the Ministry of Education which is 
an advisory body with different 
numbers throughout the country?

SHRI AJIT KUMAR BAKERJBSi 
I am not aware of this controversy. 
My own feeling is that it is desirable 
to have the maximum possible 
autonomy whatever system is adopted. 
It depends on the kind of people who 
are chosen to run the management 
But, I think, the maximum amount of 
autonomy is essential

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: In that case just like
universities are giving maximum 
autonomy or IITs they are responsible 
to Parliament. This will also be an 
autonomous body and responsible to 
Parliament and will not function as a 
wing of the Ministry. Out of the two 
which would you prefer?

SHRI AJIT KUMAR BANERJEE: 
Overall policy may be laid down but 
in day-to-day running, I think, it 
should be autonomous.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you, very
much, Mr. Banerjee.

m . Shri S. K. Havanur, Librarian,Tata 
Research, Bombay:

(The witness then withdrew) 
Institute of Fundamental

MR. CHAIRMAN: I may point out
"to you that your evidence may be 
treated as public and is liable to be 
made public unless you specially 
desire that all or any part of the 
evidence tendered by you is to be 
treated as confidential. I may also add 
that even though you may desire the 
evidence to be treated as confidential, 
it is liable to be made available to the 
Members of Parliament. You are 
doubtless aware that whatever 
discussions we have here is treated as 
confidential aqd. is not to be made 
public till the Report of this Com
mittee is presented to Parliament.

Mr. Havanur would like you to say 
something apart from what you have 
said in youi memorandum?

SHRI S. K . HAVANUR: Yes please, 
1 began with Clause 4: This clause is 
about the composition of the Board.

I strongly feel that this Board should 
be broad-based. The Library frater
nity should be specifically represented 
here. I would also say that the science 
community may nominate one member 
so that we would be giving due 
importance to scientific affairs in this 
field. Of course, there is provision in 
Clause IV (c) that Central Govern
ment is to nominate one person haying 
experience in science and technology. 
I feel that CSIR or any other science 
organisation should also be given a 
chance to nominate some one.

Further Indian Library Association 
or the ‘Indian Association for Special 
Libraries and Information Centre* 
should nominate some one for this pur
pose. Perhaps it would bq better if 
there are about 15 Members on the 
Board instead of 10 as stated here in 
this clause.

Clause 5 refers to the apointttient of 
the Chairman of the Board. It state*
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as: The Central Government shall
appoint a member from among the 
members of the Board referred to in 
clause (a), (b), (c) and (d) of sub
section (1) of section 4 as Chairman 
of the Board.”

Now with regard to (a) and (W> 
these refer to Central body, it would 
be better if some one other then the 
Government official is appointed as the 
Chairman of the Board.

Clause 9 of the Bill. It refer to the 
Meetings of Board: “The Board shall 
meet at such times and places etc.” 
This Board, as an Executive Body, 
should meet more often. 1/ suggest 
that there should be some mention as 
to how vnany times ihe Board should 
meet.

Clause 10(1) refers to the Executive 
Council. In the case of the Executive 
Council, there is no mention as to who 
should be the Secretary of this 
Council. The term of office has also 
not been stated, whereas in the case 
of the Board it is mentioned that the 
Members will serve on the Board for 
three years or so.

Clause 10(2) states: “Provided that 
a representative each from the Minis
try of the Central Government dealing 
with finance and the Ministry or De
partment of the Central Government 
dealing with culture shall be members 
of the Executive Council” I would say 
that it is not necessary because al
ready two Government officials are 
represented in the Board and I do not 
find any reason why there should again 
be a representative eadh from the Mi
nistry of the Central Government deal
ing with finance etc. in the Executive 
Council, as well.

The functions of the Executive Coun
cil are not specifically stated although 
it is stated here that the Board can 
direct the Executive Council as to 
what to do and what not io do. It 
is not very clear from this Bill as to 
the difference between the functions 
of t1ae Board and those of the Exe
cutive Council. But more important 
suggestion I would like to make, is that

there is really no need for an Exe
cutive Council. The Board itself has 
all the executive powers and it is a 
small body consisting of only 10 or 12 
Members. On the other hand it would 
be much better to have an Advisory 
Council rather than Executive Coun
cil. The Advisory Council should 
mostly consist of Librarians. This is 
absolutely necessary and I would like 
to emphasise tihis point. Another rea
son is that the National Library can
not have all the material at its com
mand from the various sources in the 
country. Our country is quite large 
but the resources are very limited. 
Therefore it is essential to seek co
operation of the various libraries in 
the country. If an Advisory Council 
is there, it will help quite a lot.

Then I come to Clause 16 of the Bill. 
It states thus: “The Library shall con
tinue to be located at Calcutta/* It is 
quite O. K. for me but theh I suggest 
that there should be provision in 
the Act for the establishment of three 
or four regional centres. Since our 
country is vast, we cannot expect any 
one Library to serve the entire country 
with the limited resources. If there 
are three or four regional centres in 
places like Bombay, Delhi, Madras.

Then I come to Clause 18—Duties 
of the Board. In the Bill, I notice 
that there is no mention anywhere 
about the aims and objects of the Na
tional Library. I know it is not that 
essential to state. But in order to give 
an idea of the functions of the National 
Library they need to be mentioned, 
especially in this clause. It is worth
while if the duties of the Board are 
mentioned in this Bill.

As I can see there are three dimen
sions to the National Library—one is 
the collection, the other is dissemina
tion and the third is co-ordination. As 
for co-ordination, certain libraries 
which have already developed a very 
good collection in their respective sub
jects, should be treated as National 
Centres and the main National Library 
should encourage them to develop 
further. I may quote for example the



Institute of Management, Ahmedabad 
This Institute has got a very good 
library on Management and it can be 
treated as a National Centre. Take 
lor example Bhabha Atomic Re
search Centre, Bombay. It has a very 
good collections on nuclear science 
and atomic energy. Certainly it 
should be treated as a National Centre. 
We have got similar libraries in res
pect of agriculture, medicine, etc. 
For these, there should be provision 
for their growth, in the Bill. As I 
said in the beginning, we have also 
to recognise certain regional libraries 
which have good collections on various 
subjects as branches of the National 
Library.

As for clause 25 at page 8 of the 
Bill, I have submitted that this would 
be nullifying the very concept of an 
autonomous body as far as the Na
tional Library is concerned. This 
should be deleted. If the Govt, in
terference is there, then it is not pos
sible to have autonomy. I do not want 
to stress more about this, but, it is 
1 well known fact that if there is any 
interference from the Government side 
autonomy is meaningless. There 
would be red tapism and the things 
will be delayed. The National Library 
is a very important institution, but 
al] these years it is just a name’s 
sake. The collection is also not com
prehensive and it does not truly re
flect the entire reading resources of 
the country. Dissemination is also 
absolutely nil. There is no inter
library co-operation; there is no in
ternational exchange system. All 
these things are required in order to 
run it successfully. This is the place 
wherein we can bring out those things 
in the Act itself so that in future there 
would be more and more co-opera
tion and coordination.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: The main purpose of this 
Bill is to make the National Lib
rary an automonous body. Do you 
think if it is converted into an auto
nomous body it will function in a bet
ter manner than it has been running 
for the last 40—50 years under tfie 
dufcct control of the Ministry of Edu

cation? Do you also realise that so 
long as it is attached to the Ministry 
for its development and other func
tions, whatever the financial respon
sibilities are there, those are 4o be 
borne by the Government? But once 
you make it an autonomous body like 
our universities in this country, then 
what happens is that you will start 
getting ad hoc grants and these grants 
are mostly limited. For example, 
they can fix a grant of Rs. 40 lakhs 
for a few years with the result that 
you may find that the growth of the 
National Library has stopped com~ 
pletely just as the growth of many 
universities in the country stops be
cause of the financial difficulties? Un
der these circumstances, do you allow 
the National Library to become an 
autonomous body and its development 
is also stopped or it sfoould better be 
linked with the Ministry and work 
under it as is being done now?

SHRI S. K. HAVANUR: For the
last 25 years since independence Per~ 
haps the National Library has been 
functioning as a subsidiary office of 
the Ministry of Education and it has 
not made any progress. There are so 
many autonomous bodies which are 
functioning very well because they 
are autonomous. In this respect, I 
may mention the Tata Institute of 
Fundamental Research which is an 
autonomous body, but 96 per cent of 
its revenue covnes from the Central 
Government. You know the fame 
that it has achieved.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: A section of our people have 
got the feeling that by making it an 
autonomous body the situation is noc 
going to improve. It is also due to 
the fact that the proper person is not 
handling that institution for a long 
time.

SHRI S. K. HAVANUR: But there
was a ‘proper’ person in the name 
of Shri Kesavan wtio did make somo 
progress so far as the intial work is 
concerned. As I said earlier, we are 
far away from the concept of a 
National Library. We have yet to 
achieve that Even Shri Kesavan



could not do much because it was not 
an autonomous body.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: What is your 
opinion about the Bose Institute?

SHRI S. K. HAVANUR: I do not
know much about it.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: What about
the other Institutes?

SHRI S. K. HAVANUR: While I
was in Calcutta, I visited that Insti
tute, But it was a L2*ief visit. Since 
I do not know tlhe functioning of that 
body, I would not be able to say about 
its merits or demerits.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: Are you
aware of its functioning?

SHRI S. K. HAVANUR: No, Sir.
SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: Do 

you suggest that there should be only 
one library and it should be financed 
by local resources? Do you think that 
gradually it also creates a situation in 
which the National Library at Cal
cutta is also financed, if not entirely, 
but partly by open resources?

SHRI S. K. HAVANUR: I entirely 
agree with you. Some of. the States 
in the country have enacted the law 
relating to the libraries. There are 
other States which have not done yet. 
But when most of the States have this 
legislation, they have to shell down 
part of their library cess.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: The Tata
Institute of Fundamental Research is 
being run as an autonomous body. 
The efficiency is very high over there. 
Is it not a fact that the scope of this 
Library is very limited to the extent 
that only the research students, tea
chers and others who are working in 
the Institute only they utilize this 
Library?

SHRI S. K. HAVANUR: We have 
research workers wlao are inter
nationally known scientists and also 
who are just his B.Scs.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: As in the 
case of Calcutta University Library

or any other university library they 
are autonomous institutions because 
their scope of function is limited to 
certain atmosphere. The scope of the 
National Library is very large and the 
number of beneficiaries is much wider. 
In view of this wider scope do you 
think that if it is made autonomous 
body don’t you feel there will be cer
tain difficulty in giving shape to auto
nomous body?

SHRI S. K. HAVANUR: I beg to
differ. In tlhis country there are cer
tain autonomous bodies in 1 various 
fields. You are saying national lib
rary has to work on a larger canvas 
where autonomy may not help very 
much. Theoratically speaking irres
pective of the fact that the complex 
is very big autonomy should not come 
in the way and conversely we need 
not say if it is in the hands of the 
government, it would function better.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: It is only
in name ‘National Library*. Can you 
spell out a complex which can be 
made really national library?

SHRI S. K. HAVANUR: Thif is, of 
' course, a matter of detail. As I say, 

there must be regional centres. It is 
only at regional centres that it can 
function efficiently. Secondly at a 
Central place like Calcutta there 
should be a bibliographical record as 
to where a particular material is 
available. Then it should have the 
powers enough to have access to that 
material, for the benefit of the indi
vidual requestor.

Also, the national library should 
have micro-filming and other facili
ties. As regards reading facilities, 
■naturally if the regional centres are 
there it would be easier. Then INB 
at present is not being brought out as 
regularly as BNB its counterpart in 
U.K. does. Then again there are 
foreign countries which require mate
rial from India on India. The Na
tional Library should be able to cater 
to these requirements.

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Don't you 
think there should be some kind °f
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hostel facilities available to the scho
lars and others at a cheaper cost?

SHRI S. K. HAVANUR: It is cer
tainly desirable to have hostel ac
commodation at a nominal rent and 
it should be given.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND FARA- 
SHAR: Mr. Havanur you have
clearly outlined the three objective^ 
of national library. Of the three, so 
far as the location of the library is 
concerned that is most crucial. Now, 
this Bill in its Chapter I clause 2 and 
sub-clause (d) defined that the lib
rary should be at Calcutta. My plea 
is why should it not be at Raipur so 
that we can develop an entirely spa
cious campus, hostel facilities, etc. 
Secondly, the regional centres which 
wilh be four to five for that too one 
point was raised by Mr. Chakrabarti. 
There may be certain manuscripts of 
which we cannot find two copies. 
Only one copy may be available. 
That can only be at th© Central head
quarters of the national library and

not at the regional centres. So, for 
that matter would you suggest it 
should be amended and tfoe national 
library should be at a place which is 
central? -

SHRI S. K. HAVANUR: I would
say for the simple reason that the na
tional library as such is already there 
at Calcutta and should continue. The 
second point is we need not attach 
much importance to the geographical 
situation in this country, we can move 
from on© place to another mudh easily. 
Thirdly, we are already thinking of 
establishing regional centres there in 
different parts of the country where
in we can store microfilmed copies of 
rare material.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Have you got 
any other point to make?

SHRI S. K. HAVANUR: No, Sir.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very 

much for your valuable suggestion.
(The witness then withdrew)

IV. Dr. M. B. Bach, Head, Centre of Advanced Study in Education, 
Lokmanya Tilak Road, Baroda

MR. CHAIRMAN: Before we pro
ceed further, j would like to infom 
you that your evidence may be treat
ed as public and is liable to be made 
public unless you specially desire 
that all or any part of the evidence 
tendered by you is to. be treated as 
confidential. I may also add that 
even though you may desire the evi
dence to be treated as confidential 
it is liable to be made available to 
the Members of Parliament. You are 
doubtless aware that whatever dis
cussions we have here is treated as 
confidential and is not t0 be made 
public till the Report of the Com
mittee is presented to Parliament.

I think you have sent your Memo
randum to this Committee which has 
been circulated to the Members of 
the Committee. If you desire to Bay

something other than those suggested ; 
in your Memorandum, you may 
briefly state them.

DR. M, B. BUCH: Mr. Chairman,
I may be permitted to refer to Clause 
4 of the Bill regarding the Compo
sition of the Board. As it has been 
visualised in this Bill the Board shall 
have 10 Members and there will also 
be ag Executive Committee. Now, 
the Executive Committee will have 
some Members who are the Members < 
of the Board and some Members who 
are not the Members of the Board.
If the Executive Committee has to 
implement the decisions of the Board, 
there is a likelihood of some clashes 
between the Executive Committee and 
the Board. My suggestion here is 
this. Here is a Board which is highly 
technical in nature and this Board is 
going to manage and develop the 
National Library. I visualise that
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instead o£ having only 10 Members, 
the base of the Board might be a bit 
broader, it might consist of 14 or 15 
Members with representations given 
to persons who have worked in the 
area of Library Science for a long 
period. Here we have got 4 educa
tionists, that is all right. But inclu
sion of mere educationists will not 
be helpful. We should have more 
tactful persons who have actually 
developed Libraries in some parts of 
our country. We have got one no
minee of the Chairman of the UGC. 
I would suggest rather having a no
minee of the Chairman we have the 
Chairman of the UGC. This is No. 1. 
No. 2 is about the representation 
from the branch of Science and Tech
nology. Now, I visualise that the 
National Library will have highly 
efficient documentation Centre which 
will be located in Calcutta. For refer
ence purposes people cannot go to 
Calcutta where the Library is located. 
There is a mention here that there will 
be mircro-filming, documentation ser
vice and other things. Now. if you want 
to have a good decumentation service 
which will provide service to all 
people interested in the country, then 
I visualise that not merely a man of 
Science and Technology qualification 
but the man who is expert in Library 
system should be there because 
science and technology subjects 
are so specialised that a person hav
ing knowledge of these subjects will 
be in a position to provide the type 
of data and other information to 
people in the country. So, the first 
suggestion is that the composition of 
the Board can be broad based con
sisting or about 14 or 15 persons 
with technical qualifications.

My second suggestion is that the 
Executive Committee should consist 
of Members of the Board only and 
not the outsiders.

My third suggestion is that since 
the Government is going to have its 
own nominees on the Board, j 
strongly feel that the Government

organisation like the National Library 
ought to be under the close vigilance 
of the Government. Of course we are 
going to put experts in various fields 
as well as educationists and other" 
But I do not understand why the 
Government should appoint the 
Director when the Board Chairman 
is being appointed by the Govern
ment? The Government will be hav
ing its own nominees and Govern
ment bodies like UGC etc. Then let 
the Board be given the freedom to 
select or appoint its own Director. 
The Director should be appointed by 
the Board rather than by the Gov
ernment. Then what will happen 
is that the Executive Committee can 
be held responsible for implementing 
the decisions which the Board might 
take because they will be involved in 
the process of decision making.

My next suggestion is about the 
functions of the Library. I am 
visualising here that the Institution 
is not merely going to maintain or 
manage the affairs of the National 
Library and we have rightly put here 
“for providing reference and research 
facilities”. Now we are talking of 
research in Library system and 
Library science. Then the question 
will arise, if not now but later on, 
that this branch of the National 
Library shall have to be affiliated 
with one or the other University. So, 
it should give its own Degree be
cause there is going to be research 
scholars who will definitely go to the 
National Library for studies in Library 
Science. Then they shall have some 
arrangements with the University of 
Calcutta or some other university. 
But it is this Library which will have 
to add one more function. In our 
country large institutions are coming 
up in all areas. For instance, here 
in Bombay we have the Tata Institute 
of Fundamental Research and Train
ing. There is no agency that is ac
tually building up a good Library. 
Even after 12 years of its existence, 
the NCERT is still struggling for 
establishing a library of its own.
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Then I visualise that this Board 
will be providing extension service by 
way of giving advice to various 
national level institutions to build up 
the Libraries. * This function should 
be added in the proposed Bill. Some
where it should be provided in its 
functions or scope because the people 
will not be able to go to Calcutta for 
reference purposes. With all our 
good intentions, it will not be pos
sible for us to provide micro-card or 
micro-film to all. At page 8, it is 
something highly academic in nature; 
it is a service organisation and I en
tirely agree as far as its composition is 
---------- ^  Let the people be nomi-

-* -tic -y the Government or Govern
ment body. After this “I feel this 
composition of the Central Govern
ment on the question of policy shall 
be final.” That might be deleted. Here 
is a library and the persons are more 
interested in developing it. When we 
have appointed persons who are tech
nically more qualified in library 
science and are doing good work, we 
must put full faith on them, on the 
development of this library. You 
kindly see page 9, paragraph 30 and 
line 18. My feeling is that we should 
not compel the Board that the regu
lation should be there only with the 
previous approval of the Government. 
We should actually give full respon
sibility for taking a decision and run
ning the organisation. These are the 
only thing® that we have to say.

SHRj SAMAR GUHA: That shows 
in name the autonomy has been given 
to this National Library, but in reality 
and in action almost the whole control 
of running of these institutions has 
been vested in the hands of the 
central bureaucracy.

DR. M. B. BUCH: I would say of 
late that wherever there are auto-

l\ Shri T D. Waknis, Ex-curator Sc

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. T. D. Waknis, 
before w? proceed further, I would 
like to inform you that the evidence

nomous bodies it & this fear that is 
coming up that perhaps that body 
may not be running properly and here 
is a key national organisation the 
only of its kind in the country. If 
the Government is trying to exercise 
more and more control, it is very 
clear and I said that I did not mind 
so long as the persons who were ap
pointed are the persons who are tech
nically qualified. It is the Govern
ment who will identify these persons 
throughout the country and put them 
there. Instead of four educationists, 
let there be eight educationists. The 
fear only is this that many a time 
these autonomous bodies are being 
supported by various Ministries and 
these autonomous bodies are actually 
being used in order to accommodate 
some persons who are being trans
ferred from one Ministry to another. 
This has happened and as a result 
of this some of the institutions have 
not been developed. I am pained to 
see that the National Council of 
Education, Research and Training 
could not be developed for about 12 
years because it was not given the 
full autonomy. You are right when 
you say, “let us accept two things.0 
The first thing is regarding the control 
of the Government on a body like 
this. This control will be exercised 
not by Government officers, but by 
the people who are good in library 
science, who have devoted their life 
work. Government have identified 
them an£ put them on the Board. 
From that point of view, there is 
nothing wrong over there.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very 
much for your valuable suggestions.

(The witness then withdrew)

Librarian, Maharashtra, Bombay

you give would be treated as public 
and is liable to be published, unless 
you specifically desire that all or any 
part of the evidence tendered by you
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is to be treated as confidential. Even 
though you mitfht desire your evi
dence to be treated as confidential, 
such evidence i8 liable to be made 
available to the Members of Parlia
ment. I would now request you to 
just express your views and thereafter 
the Members might put certain ques
tions to you and you should try to be 
as brief as possible. While expressing 
your views, you should try to tell the 
Committee as to Jiow those views can 
be incorporated in the body of the 
Bill because that would help the Com
mittee.

SHRI T. D. WAKNIS: The Board 
is to consist of ten members, three of 
them being there by virtue of their 
office, six will be nominated by the 
Government and one will be nomi
nated by the University Grants Com
mission. Government will nominate 
one University representative, an
other who has knowledge and expe
rience in Science and technology and 
four others who may be either dis
tinguished educationists or know
ledgeable and experienced Librarians. 
My remarks on this are as follows: 
One can readily understand the ex~ 
officio appointment of the Director of 
Library as member Secretary. But the 
ex-officio appointments of Secretaries 
of the Government in Ministries of 
Education and Finance seem to be 
unimaginative. If the Government is 
really anxious to devolve on the 
Board the responsibilities of Library 
administration why should it seek to 
embroil their Secretaries in Library 
affairs. They have abundant work 
on hand and they are at their back 
and call when Government intend to 
issue directives to the Board. Simi
larly no useful purpose can be served 
by making the U.G.C. nominate one 
member who can be double of the 
distinguished educationists or Univer
sity representative *Whom Govern
ment will be definitely nominating. 
Government should content itself 
with four nominees each one institu
tion which deserves representation 
it is the Indian Library Association.

If may be called upon to suggest a 
panel of four Librarians out of whom 
Government may appoint two. To
gether with the Director they will 
present the views of those who work 
inside the Library counter, as against 
the views of users and patrons of 
library who stand outside the counter.

In clause 9 the number of times 
the Board will meet during the course 
of a year is not specified. As in Com
pany Law the number should be men
tioned in the Act itself. There should 
be at least four meetings of the Board 
one for each quarter. At these meet
ings the Director should lay before 
the Board the report of the work 
done in the previous quarter and the 
programme for the ensuing quar
ter. This would enable the Board to 
give timely advice and guidance.

The place of the meeting should 
invariable to the Board Room in the 
National Library. The members of 
the Board have an opportunity of 
seeing the work done and the library 
staff have an opportunity of meeting 
the Board members. The occasion of 
the Board meeting should be availed 
of, to fdrge ties of friendship between 
the management and the workers.

The Board is empowered in clause
10, to constitute an Executive Coun
cil with the Director of Libraries as 
its chairman, to exercise such powers 
as the Board may choose to delegate 
to it.

The composition of the executive 
council is not satisfactory. It is to 
consist of some members of the 
Board, some outsiders and two re
presentatives of the Government mi
nistries of Education and Finance. It 
will make a motley group. It may 
embarrass the Director to issue orders 
of administration. Why should not 
the executive function be left entirely 
to the Director and the officers and 
men whom the Board will employ to 
perform its functions, as contempla
ted in clause 10? : : •
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In clause 12 Government have 
stated in ambivelant terms that they 
will appoint as the Director a person 
in possession of academic qualifica
tions of distinction or a distinguished 
librarian. This is in line with the 
Governments habitual ways of think
ing that an academic or administra-^ 
tor is a hero at all points even in 
these days of pinpointed specialism. 
The Director cannot do without pro
fessional qualifications. He canot 
administer the library without them 
in such a way that the National Li
brary becomes a model to all other 
libraries in the country. He should 
be in possession of triple qualifica
tions, academic, professional and 
managerial. The establishment of 
rapport not only with the staff but 
the wider circle of library’s patrons 
must be the Director’s goal. He 
should possess attributes which make 
him ‘world loving and by the world 
loved'. The library profession will 
enter a cayeat against the appoint
ment of a non professional.

In clause 17, it is categorically 
stated that the library shall continue 
to be located at Calcutta. There has 
been a hue and cryprobsl against this 
location ever since the founding 
of the library. The protest is based 
on practical reasons. The Govern
ment are the largest users of the 
Library’s foreign resources acquired 
at considerable cost. The distinctive 
mark of modern library is its dis
semination of information. Through 
their embassies Government have ac
cess to information which the am
bassadors glean by reading between 
the lints of printed material. But 
their scientific storage and speedy 
retrieval is accomplished by the 
sophisticated techniques of librarian- 
sfcipb The Government should not 

have separation from it by a distance 
of over thousand miles. Practically 
all - over the world the National 
libraries are housed at the seats of 
Governments. Calcutta is not the 
capital of India since 1911. The fact

that it could make available palatial 
accommodation for the library in the 
Belvedere should not have made the 
Government bite the bait. It reminds 
one of the story of a Scotchman who 
committed suicide in order to avail 
himself of the offer of a fine free hur
ried by the undertaker.

While on the subject of the loca
tion of the Library it is useful to re
call that the National Library is not 
the only the hereficiary of the Deli
very of Books Act 1954 amended in 
1956. There are two shadow collec
tions hestovs the same loving cace on 
these shadow collections as it does, 
on the Calcutta collection people in 
the south will have to make long and 
expensive journeys to Calcutta. If 
the National Library was to be in 
Delhi their toil trouble and expense 
would at least be halved. Calcutta 
will then nourish a shodow collection: 
as Bombay and Madras do presently. 
Who knows Government may be 
moved to deal even handed justice 
and generosity to Bombay, Madras and 
Calcutta without discommunication?

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA/- 
BARTI: The main question in this 
Bill is a controversy between the 
autonomous body and the institution 
run under the direct control of the 
Government As in the first part, 
that is, constitution of the Board you 
stated though this Bill is meant for 
making the national library an auto
nomous body but in practice it is 
holding its complete control of nomi
nation system and this nomination  ̂
has every chance to be misused. I 
feel the national library should be 
one in any country because its pur
pose is entirely different but parallel 
to the national library there should 
be some regional libraries which 
should be taken care of by the Gov
ernment. Do you feel by making it 
an autonomous body it is going to 
improve the working condition of 
the national libraries as te envisaged
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in the Bill or by keeping it under the 
direct control of the Ministry and 
give it more freedom to work? 
Which way will it function properly?

SHRI T. D. WAKNIS: The first
question is about the location of the 
Library. It has been there in Calcutta 
for so long. It has been there since 
1948 when the Library was establish
ed. Prior to that date the Library was 
intended to be used by the Govern
ment officials for the purposes of re
ference and information. Later on 
when the capital was shifted to 
Delhi, this old Library was being used 
as a public Library. Even now the 
so called National Library in Calcutta 
is being used as a public Library 
also. This kind of misuse should be 
stopped. The public Library function 
of this Library in Calcutta has to be 
entrusted to some other body.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: You are correct.

SHRI T. D. WAKNIS: I have stated 
that it should be shifted to the seat 
of the Government for the simple 
reason that it is going to be of great 
use to the Government. After all, 
the National Library does not com
prise only the publications that are 
brought out in India inself. Apart 
from the publications that will be 
used and stored and preserved for 
study in the National Library, the 
National Library now serves the pur
pose of disseminating the latest infor
mation on all subject* to various peo
ple and the groups. The users of this 
Library at Calcutta will naturally be 
the Government Departments espe
cially the foreign materials that come 
to the Library at concessional price 
and sometimes by exchange, while 
the speedy exchange of the information 
that is wanted cannot be done except 
through the sophisticated means of 
various systems and of increasing the 
strength of the Librarians for advice. 
Now, if the Government want any in
formation, either they have to tele
phone or travel about thousand miles

Or so. Even for getting actual mate
rial they will be put to a lot of diffi
culty. All the world over, there is no 
national library of a country which is 
situated in a place other than its own 
capital. That is why I have said that 
it is for the betterment or for the im
provement of the services to the vari
ous people especially to the Govern
ment Departments that the location 
should be shifted.

As I have already mentioned, in a 
vast country like India it is not neces
sary to have one National Library for 
the preservation of the publications. It 
is necessary that we should have two 
or three shadow collections where 
materials will be received. I think 
Government have already made provi
sion under the Delivery of Books Act 
of 1964 that people living in Calcutta 
could have access to the Indian publi
cations as those living in Bombay 
and Madras are doing. Unfortunately, 
what has happened in Bombay and 
Madras is that the Government 
have not been so generous and 
liberal as they could have been 
If they really want that the materials 
that have been entrusted to the care 
of the old Libraries in Bombay and 
Madras, then the people of regions 
will benefit. I have got experience 
from a Bombay Library where mate
rials were found to have been dumped 
without any indexing Or cateloguin'g 
or any possibility of their being made 
available or accessible to the reader. 
Well, as I said these throe regional 
centres could be chosen for shadow 
collections in so far as the preservation 
of Indian publications are concerned.
If the Government take it on them
selves to treat them without discrimi
nation I would say that these thi*fee 
centres would come up and the people 
of the country will be greatly benefit
ed

The shadow collections are ateo 
necessary for another reason. We can 
also think of danger* due to natural 
calamities. If the National library 
is located in one pluee, it is likely to
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tered in different places, then it is 
quite possible that even if in one place 
it is lost, it could be made good from 
.•another place.

‘SHKI SAMAR GUHA; Apart from 
-the question of the location of the 
Library I want to ask one thing, Is it 
i.ot a fact that research workers, scho
lars, professors and academicians are 
the r :a i users o f the Library?

SHRI T. D. WAKNIS: Yes, Sir.
SHRI SAMAR GUHA: Is it not a

fact that if it is only meant for the 
Government officials for reference and 
other purposes, then they can go to 
the Research and Reference Library 
located in Delhi? Apart from the Li
brary in Parliunent House, there is a 
Research & Reference Library of the 
.Central Gorvemment.

‘SHRI T. D. WAKINS: My submis
sion is that the Central R &R Library 
in Delhi may not have the best means 
of retrieval. Well I have no personal 
knowledge of this but I know for cer
tain that the equipment with t h e ---- ^

SHRI SAMAR GUHA: That is a 
^different thing but your argument was

based on the fact that the Library is 
necessary for the Government people.

SHRI T. D. WAKNIS; My humble
uggestion would be like this that al

though Government are the greatest 
users of the foreign material that has 
been collected it is the indigenous 
material that is of greater use to 
scholars in the country and research 
workers belonging to various 
fields. I am sure the Govern
ment officials would really depend 
upon the National Library. I was sub
mitting, Sir, when the scholars and the 
Research workers work in a Library 
they work on the materials that con
cern our national heritage and they go 
deep into this subject for the reason 
that they would like to have the roots 
of the problems that they may be 
facing Apart from that it is only the 
Government who are making the 
greatest use of the foreign materials?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you Mr,
Waknis for your valuable information.

(The witness then withdrew)

VI. Shrimati Hansaben Mehtai Advo* cate, Bombay.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Hansa Mehta,
thank you very much for your coming 
fiver here, before we proceed, I would 
like to inform you that the evidence 
you give would be treated as public 
and is liable to be published, unless 
ypu specificially desire that all or any 
part of the evidence tendered by you 
is to be treated as confidential. Even 
though you might desire your evidence 
to be treated as confidential, such evi
dence is liafc's to be made available to 
the Members of Parliament. Since you 
have not submitted your memorandum 
to the Committee, I request you to ex
press your ideas in brief for the bene
fit of the Members of this Committee 
and thereafter the Members might 
like to put ccitain questions. While 
expressing your ideas if yo u  tell us

how those ideas can be incorporated 
in the b ody of the Bill that would be 
helpful to us.

SHRIMATI HANSABEN MEHTA: 
In Chapter 2 regarding the establish
ment and incorporation of the Board, 
generally it is the head of the depart
ment or the head of the body which 
should be involved and not the Board 
itself. So, it should be the Chairman 
who may be sued and be sued. My 
another suggestion regarding the same 
chapter 16 that the Chairman should be 
elected by the members of the Board. 
The Board should be made autono
mous and therefpre it should not be 
approved by the Govt, after it has 
nominated the first Board. Then re



garding the qualified persons, there is 
no mention that these persons should 
be qualified especially in the admini
stration of the library. There is an
other suggestion at page a regarding 
renomination of the member. Sup
pose one member is nominated. Un 
less and until there is a difference of 
opinion, every time he will be re
nominated and the result will be that 
there will be no new ideas. So, there 
should be some provision that he 
should be renominated only once and 
the next time the other people should 
come in.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: She is suggesting two terms.

SHRIMATI HANSABEN MEHTA: 
page 4, first paragraph, clause 2. In 

this respect, suppose a member has 
some interest in the contract. If the 
disclosure is not complete, he should 
resign or he should be asked to re
sign. Once the interest is there in a 
particular case, the interest may con
tinue in future. As far as clause 3 
regarding proxy is concerned, this 
will be useless. This authority should 
not be given. If a member cannot 
come in the meeting, the committee 
can go ahead. As far as clause 10 is 
concerned, not more than 15 members 
should be appointed. Otherwise, there 
will be a crowd. So, the number 
should be specified. At page 5, the 
location of the library is given in Cal
cutta. In my opinion, in Calcutta 
Library, people of the entire Nation 
will not be able to take advantage. So, 
there should be some branches in the 
big cities or another library similar to 
this should be opened so that the ma
ximum number of people can take ad
vantage of this. If one library is des
troyed, another library is there. The 
Board should be given the power for 
opening the branches. At page 6, 
clause 18(1), line 8 the following 
words are to be added after .. . ‘Board 
.. . “according to sub-section 2 given 

’below” Then in 19(1) line 17, after 
•"Govt, may think fit to impose” the

following words should be added: 
‘‘subject to the provisions of the Act.” 
Then kindly see Chapter 4, 21(3) ‘ ‘a 
sum of money...........as may be pro
vided by regulation made.” This may 
b̂e kept because the saving a/c may 

also give more interest. There is not 
the business body which requires ope
ration of current a|s. Whatever the 
Board might feel, they can open their 
alc. Then at page 8, Chapter 5, clause 
(c) section 29(2) regarding qualifica
tions for a person to be nominated as 
a Member of the Board and the pro
cedure to be followed in removing 
him. As far as disqualification is con
cerned, it is not mentioned here 
specifically.

Anybody can be disqualified for any 
reasons. It should fit in with the dis
qualification mentioned in the Act. 
There should be specific mention.

Further no provision is made for 
the dissolution of the Board. There 
should be some provision. After the 
dissolution of the Board all the pro
perty should be reverted to the Cen
tral Government.

With all this thing, it is my opi
nion, maximum interference of the 
Government is there in the Act. If 
Government is having ‘maximum inter
ference there is no need for having 
autonomous body at all. Minimum in
terference of Government should be 
there.

Further a Director should be ap
pointed by the Board and not by the 
Government because a Director has 
to work with the Board and not with 
the Government.

SHRI Y. S. MAttAJAN: As the in
terest of a particular Member is only 
as regards a particular contract and 
once he divulges his interest it is en
ough. Why should he resign?

SMT. HANSABEN MEHTA: If he
makes disclosure and if he is present
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automatically other Members will be 
influenced because of the relations of 
the colleague to give voting in his 
favour. That is why he should re
sign and independent views will be

taken.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very 

much Smt. Mehta
(The Committee then adjourned)
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I. Dr. P. K. Kelkar, Director, LLT., Bombay

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Kelkar, I
welcome you to this sitting of the 
Committee. I may make it clear to 
you that your evidence may be treated 
as public and is liable to be made 
public unless you specifically desire 
that all or any part of the evidence 
tendered by you is to be treated as 
confidential. I may also add that even 
to be treated as confidential, it is 
liable to be made available to the 
Members of Parliament. You are 
doubtless aware that whatever dis
cussions we have here is treated as 
confidential) and is not to be made 
public till the Report of this Com
mittee is presented to Parliament.

I think you have sent your Memo on 
the subject and if you want to say 
further on the subject, you can state 
it very briefly. Thereafter the Mem
bers may like to put questions to you,

DR. P. K. KELKAR: Sir, my views 
are in two parts. One is with regard 
to the act itself and my feeling is 
that the autonomy that is proposed in 
the Bill is not really adequate. With 
regard to the financial matters, it se
ems to be that the procedures that 
are followed should be in the form of 

block grant which is made by the 
Finance Committee or some body like

that and not subject to further scru
tiny by the Government because our 
general experience has been whenever 
on Board there are representatives of 
the two Ministries, they may agree to 
certain items at the time of the meet
ing but when they go back to their 
respective Ministries they may follow 
different approach. I think this - is 
something which may cause a lot of 
difficulties for the organisation. That 
was one of the points I have made in 
my Memorandum. Another point was 
similar one which I made. That was 
about the quorum arrangement. But 
there is no specific arrangement made 
for adjournment meetings. Of course, 
these are minor points but they are 
important ones. Apart from this, I 
had mad? certain general observations. 
My own feeling is that the role of a 
National Library is quite different 
from what it used to be. We are ac
customed to British Museum and 
like that. I think we have made a 
demarcation line between the National 
Library and other librari<»«j, Now, the 
purpose of the library, professionally, 
may mean the very use where only 
scholars are able to take advantage of 
the publications that have been made 
available here. But I- think the pre
sent concept of the society is quite 
different and I do not think the 
library facilities are what really 
amount to information processing 
techniques.
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Ope of the basic difficulties with 
modern libraries is to get rid of the 
naterial which is not really relevant. 
Now in countries like the USA and the 
UK where you have one particular 
library in Washington or the British 
Museum in London and so on in which 
there are a large quantity of collec
tions. But in this country we do not 
have library facilities like these in 
foreign countries and therefore I sug
gested that this Bill should make pro
vision for associate National Libraries 
and they should start from 1940 and 
onwards with modern things and in 
regard to three language formula it is 
to my way of thinking, is an extremely 
important point. The library service 
should be for retrieval of informa
tion and the amount of extracting the 
bibliography which has been made by 
modern intelligent scientists and so 
on should be available to people and 
mimeography and other like facilities 
are available in abundance. There is 
no need at all to pile up books of all 
kinds and then search for the material. 
Therefore, this type of library service 
should be organised so that people 
living in big cities could get the ma
terials ready especially when there is 
a three language approach and they 
will know where to look forward and 
what is required. Now, I have seen 
organisations like these elsewhere. 
This is point No. 1.

The second point is much more 
important which should be borne in 
mind. The modern technology has 
produced material in terms of Casset 
tape recorders of different types, Video 
long-pjaying records, etc. Now, for 
example, Phillips have develojped a 
long-playing video recorder. I am told 
within two years they will be able to 
produce 5006 records per hour. Now 
the facility of the record is that for 
3100 tapes recorded at one Unit and 
the method of extracting the infor
mation where computed techniques 
are used, is found easier, for example, 
the whole load can be on that record.

If one picture comes, it can be more 
stationary, although the recorder is 
moving all the while and the descrip
tion or information can be in these

languages and you can choose as you' 
like. I think the methods that are 
available on the limited resources that 
we should have, if we make an ex
periment we can produce exhibitions 
at the points where we want 
and I believe, therefore, iJhat 
there must be another organisation 
which has casset tape-recorder video 
long plane of such material available 
which can be in these languages. In 
fact, it can be used by many people 
as long as they like to learn and 
India has a tradition, as far as I know, 
of carrying knowledge from genera
tions to generations to the spoken 
words and we are losing that and de
pending only on the written words 
that modern technology has brought. 
Take, for example, the population of 
comics. There are some people who 
learn quite a lot not only through the 
library, but through the picture and 
much information can go along like 
that. Then there is no provision for 
creating posts of the scholars; there is 
no provision at all for supporting pro
jects in various universities because 
library is not a static science. The 
modern methods are available; we 
need not investigate them. But we can 
make use of that material by refer
ring communication system; -computer 
may be anvwhere; you need not have 
it in the library. But what it does is 
that it can be in the form of a tape 
and can be made available immedia
tely to anybody. We wa^. and it is 
quite possible to have a large number 
of projects going on in various univer
sities where a lot of material in the 
regional as well as Hindi languages 
will become available to lot of peo
ple and this will have a greater im
pact. This cannot happen unless this 
organisation has enough autonomy. It 
can bring a large number of people 
into operation without having them on 
their pay rolls. We need not be in a 
b\a city. For example, an organisation 
like INSDOC (just as in Breat Bri
tain) it extracts within a minute any
thing that appears in the world and it 
has get client?lr of people whose pro
file is built up. There are 16 informa
tion scientists working and everything 
goes on tape quickly and the whole
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thing is sent to them. So, they need 
not buy books. Now universities and 
.other places have got limited facili
ties. But if we make these facilities 
available, so that according to the 
needs it can be focussed in terms of 
extracting information, bibliography,—
I think it will be helpfull.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Have you ever 
visited the National Library of Calcut
ta?

DR. P. K. KELKAR: To my shame,
I must say I have not done it. But I 
have visited many big libraries.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Have you visited 
some of the libraries in Bombay?

DR. P. K. KELKAR: In fact, I hap
pened to be in Kanpur where we built 
up a library from the scratch. We 
spent a crore of rupees and the kind 
of facilities that exist there are in 
many ways quite unique. I am quite 
familiar with them and I get best out 
Oi them.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Members would 
like to have your observations about 
the conditions of the library here in 

. Bombay?
DR. P.K. KELKAR: According to 

.my thinking, it is only catering to the 
needs of the selected type of clientele 
a certain habit that has been built 

-and also the types of habits that are 
associated with what you call normal
ly a cultured person in the formal 
sense. But these libraries give you 
what you want within these limits. 
But I do not know whether they are 
capable of providing the kind of ma
terial that is required now for a ma
jority of the persons.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: We
would like to know how the autonomy 
could be extended?

DR. P. K. KELKAR: It could be 
extended in two ways. First of all. the 
representation should be from the peo
ple who know what exactly a library 
.can provide and they have a proper 1 
place in the scheme of things. Second
ly, the finances of this library should 
be decided ih terms of needs of the^

library. We may not have enough 
money naw.v But our plans must be 
such that whatever little input we 
have in those plans should not be was
ted and we should be able to do some
thing ad hoc and for that purpose au
tonomy should be there. Today, as I 
said, once the budget is passed, there 
should be no further interference 
from the authorities who are supposed 
to control the library. As far as the 
present Bill is concerned, I think it 
does not provide for the creation of 
different cadres and so on. Similarly, 
it does not provide for autonomy for 
purposes of preparing projects by dif
ferent people in terms of making out 
certain schemes or extracting certain 
type of materials which may not be 
existing and so on. It can be made 
available easily by the people who are 
involved in that. But the resources 
which can engage young people as 
students, which can work for their 
post-graduate and research degrees, 
have become much more significant, 
according to me, than the kind of per
manent staff that we have in the li
brary who will work only according 
to the prescribed time.

SHRI PATIL PUTTAPPA: You are 
referring that there should be an As
sociate National Library. In view oi 
the fact that you want an Associate 
National Library, is it your intention 
that the States should be involved?

DR. P. K. KELKAR: No, Sir. It is 
the responsibility of the 'States to in
crease the library habits. Multiplica
tion of experiments is the responsibi
lity of States and the creation of the 
seats is the national responsibility. 
Otherwise, the States will wash their 
hands off.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: 
You do not want to have the represen* 
tatives of the Ministry of Finance, 
Education and the Government body 
because you feel that when they go 
back they change their minds and so 
on. How do you except that anybody 
from the library side would automa
tically approve of this thing? Now 
the question of availability of the 
resources is also considered to be the



217

most important aspect of any national 
aspects. These are just two things 
■which must go hand in hand. There
fore, I feel the representatives of 
these Ministries must <be on the gov
erning body of the National Library 
and also on the Finance Committee.

DE. P. K. KELKAR: I have accept
ed it wholeheartedly in the memoran
dum that I have submitted. My point 
is whatever discussion regarding 
paucity of resources and so on should 
take place before the budget is formed 
and once all these limitations have 
been formulated then they should not 
be checked.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: You 
want first the Ministry should indicate 
the resources available and then the 
Library Committee will come forward 
and present need.

DR. P. K. KELKAR: There is
something like previous  ̂ budgets. 
Then you can suggest a development 
plan which is subject to pruning. 
Then yearly budget cannot be out of 
proportion to what happened last 

year. This budget be first formulated 
and then in the meeting of the Finance 
Committee whatever is to be cut out 
will be done by mutual discussion and 
once this is formed it seems to me it 
should be reasonably binding.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: I cannot 
agree with you. The officials in high 
authority some time agree at a meet
ing but differ when they go back to 
their offices. Perhaps, you have gone 
through the Bill—Clause 6. There is 
sufficient provision for fund. Is it not 
sufficient to run a national library?

DR. P. K. KELKAR: I wish it were 
true. If you take IITS they are getting 
funds from abroad for development. 
In their rules and regulars identical 
words have been used. The amount of 
money that we have been able to get 
from other resources is hardly five 
per cent of what the Government has 
to give and as I visualise the possibi
lity of public coming and supporting 
it is very remote.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: I would
like you to refer to page 9 regarding

the formation of Board to make regu» 
lations. Is it not sufficient, as you 
think, fop the best interests of the 
National Library?

DR. P. K. KELKAR: It all depends 
on what view you take of the National 
Library. If you take the same view 
as has been current for the last 50 
years then this type of provision is all 
right. But, I think, we are looking 
for something quite different and to 
that extent it does not provide for 
that.

SHRI SHAKTI KUMAR SARKAR: I 
think you do not fully agree with the 
composition of the Board. May I 
request you to explain your views? Is 
it really autonomous or something like 
sub-committee of the Government?

DR. P. K. KELKAR: Any Board that 
is formed there are two parts—its 
composition and secondly the way 
Government treats it. The manner in 
which the provisions are laid down it 
is quite possible for the Board to be 
very sub-servient to the Government. 
Secondly, the composition as it is, the 
Government is nominating most of 
the people. Further there is no 
specific indication whether the people 
who are concerned with Library are 
likely to be there or not. This is a 
question quite difficult to be answered.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: You are aware of the fact 
that this particular Bill arose out of 
the fact that some people thought this 
Library is not functioning well over 
the past 10 yeans and some reorgani
sation is needed and if it is transferred 
from the hands of the Government 
to an autonomous body it may function 
well. As you stated in your preamble 
you want the associate national libr
ary and so on would you think instead 
of having this Bill another Bill may 
be there with all these provisions vis
ualising that there ishould not be one 
library but there should be some 
branches in different regions at the 
top of which there should be a Central 
library? What are your views about 
that?
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SHRI P. K. KELKAR: My own 
feeling is like this. This Kill has a 
very limited scope and its approach 
is, to my mind, at least somewhat 
negative. They want that this library 
should be carried on as it is but some
thing is wrong there and perhaps by 
giving a little autonomy, things will 
be all right. I think this type of 
approach at this stage in the develop
ment of the country to my opinion is 
not very adequate.

SHRI DHARAMRAO AFZALPUR- 
KAR; In your reply you have stated 
that after passing the budget there 
should not be any interference. I 
want to know from you what type of 
interference should not be there.

SHRI P. K. KELKAR: I would put 
it like this. The budget when it is 
framed, should be framed in a manner 
which should normally be acceptable 
to the Government in turn, and not 
something as a first exercise. It should 
be more or less a final exercise.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: My specific
question is this. We have got 5 IITs 
in our country. But they have no 
separate Boards as their own. Of 
course we have got a Council. Now, 
would you think that the National 
Library should be a Board or an 
Advisory Council as in IITs?

SHRI P. K. KELKAR: I would put 
it like this with slight modifications 
because all the IITs are independent 
units with their own identities but 
associate libraries cannot be compared 
with IITs. At least for a few years to 
come, the source and the material 
cannot be collected over night. There
fore, I think that autonomy for the 
Associate Library is necessary.

SHRI D. P. YADAV: The question 
is about the administration, mainten
ance and working of the Library. 
Would you like that there should be a 
Board, whether autonomous or non- 
autonomous, or th§re ohould be a 
Council as th© IITs have got?

SHRI P. K. KELKAR: I would like 
one similar to that.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: You have preferred it to be 
an autonomous body and do you 
expect that there may likely to be 
any kind of interference in the affairs 
of the Library after the budget is 
passed, by the Government? Now, 
most oL^he libraries which are func
tioning in a very efficient manner, are 
run by the Government. This is one 
feeling and the other feeling is that 
almost all the witnesses who gave 
evidence before this Committee at 
Calcutta were in favour of the library 
working directly under the Govern
ment. How do you react to th*3 
opinion? Do you think that it would 
be better managed under an autono
mous administration?

SHRI P. K. KELKAR: The functions 
of the national libraries in other 
countries are quite different from 
those we expect our National Library 
to do. Now, take for example, the 
Museum. Even if it ia run by Govern
ment and so on, so far as the library 
services are concerned, it does not 
come into the picture at all. But the 
main function of the national library 
is the collection and repository of 
books while here it is not only we 
want it to be repository but *3 also an 
instrument to bring about the kind of 
change in terms of information, dis
semination and processing which I 
think is much greater to pur need 
because there are about a hundred 
libraries in the US with volumes more 
than two millions and if you expect 
them to be run by Government, there 
will not be much effect at all. But 
we are a poor country and we want 
to have a jump and we want to have 
the same type of efficiency but it 
can be done with good organisation.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: The National Library in India 
as a repository of books national 
heritage, culture and all that, is also 
to be at the D»3trict and public levels, 
which would be a disseminating body. 
Now the States and the Union Terri
tories and various universities are 
already having Libraries of their own. 
But one thing is very clear that the
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national library cannot -be at the 
same time repository and of the cul
tural heritage of the country and if 
that becomes repository or monolithic 
body, then it may not function pro
perly. For that purpose, we may 
have clear things. The national 
library which is the repository of the 
books Qf the country with some 
regional libraries can do disseminat
ing aspect of work.

SHRI P. K. KELKAR: I will not say 
it repository. With modern techniques 
with bibliography, the material can 
be made available—rather I suggested

only a hundred thousand and 1940 
and onwards, So these functions can 
be co-ordinated they are the repository 
but now only few people can take 
advantage and various facets are 
required by the people for limited 
purpose.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Kelkar, the 
Committee is thankful for your valu
able contribution.

SHRI P. K. KELKAR: Thank you. 
Sir.

(The witness then withdrew.)

II. Air Vice-Marshal ML B. Nalk Commandant, National Defence
Academy, Poona.

MR. CHAIRMAN; Air Vice-Marshal 
M. B. Naik before we proceed, I 
would like to inform you that the 
evidence you give would be treated 
as public and is liable to be publish
ed, unless you specifically desire that 
all or any part of the evidence ten
dered by you is to be treated as 
confidential. Even though you might 
desire your evidence to Ibe treated as 
confidential, such evidence is liable to 
be made available to the Members of 
Parliament. Your memorandum has 
been circulated to the Members of 
this Committee. In addition to that, 
if you desire to say anything more 
here you can do so and thereafter 
the Members might put certain 
questions.

AIR VICE-MARSHAL M. B. NAIK. 
I do not have anything to add to the 
memorandum that has already been 
submitted to the Committee,

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have stated 
in you r memorandum that at least 
one person should -be nominated from 
the Defence Establishment. W hy do 
you consider that is very necessary?

AIR VICE-MARSHAL M. B. NAIK: 
In the explanation given under this 
point, we have stated that a large 
number of Defence Establishments 
have large libraries and it would help

in the functioning of the libraries to 
have a person on the Board from the 
Defence Establishment.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Regarding re
nomination beyond two terms, sup
pose you are very much associated 
with the library movement; you have 
technical knowledge, long experience 
and your continued association would 
be very beneficial. Under these 
circumstances, you are forced to 
retire. Would it not be in the interest 
of the institute itself to utilize your 
services further in view of your long 
experience and knowledge?

AIR VICE-MARSHAL M. B. NAIK: 
It is merely a process that we thought 
we would adopt in suggesting this.

MR. CHAIRMAN; But you do not 
want to really enforce these rules.

AIR VICE-MARSHAL M. B. NAIK: 
It is left to the Board, Sir.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Would you like 
to leave it to the nominating autho
rity? -

AIR VICE-MARSHAL M. B. NAIK: 
Certainly, it could be left to the 
nominating authority.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: Regarding 
the composition of the Board, you
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have suggested that one person should 
be there from the Defence Establish
ment.

AIR VICE-MARSHAL M. B. NAIK: 
If the question is whether I should 
suggest more members, I am afraid, I 
may not be able to answer that. But 
I submitted before you according to 
the explanation that we have stated 
in our memorandum.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: There is a 
provision, you please go through it.

AIR VICE-MARSHAL M. B. NAIK: 
I do not think it is necessary.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: You want 
that one person should be nominated 
from the Defence Services?

AIR VICE-MAHSHAL M. B. NAIK: 
Yes, Sir.

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: 
What will be your reactions if the 
National Library and such institutes 
be under the direct control of the 
Government or would it be better if 
there is an autonomous administra
tion?

AIR 'VICE-MARSHAL M. B. NAIK: 
All the Defence establishment libr
aries are under the Ministry of

HI. Shri K. D. Puranik, Director

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Puranik I 
may point out to you that your 
evidence may be treated as public 
and is liable to be made public un
less you specifically desire that all or 
any part of the evidence tendered by 
you is to be treated as confidential. 
I may also add that even though you 
•may desire the evidence to ibe treat
ed as confidential, it is liable to be 
made available to the Members of 
Parliament. You are doubtless aware 
that whatever discussions we have 
here is treated as confidential and is 
not to be made public till the Report 
of this Committee is presented to 
Parliament.

Mr. Puranik, you may briefly express

Defence. The day-to-day administra
tion of the libraries in the defence- 
establishments is being run by the 
Ministry of Defence. They function 
very well. Most of the Defence estab
lishments have very selective libraries. 
The overall control should be exer
cised by a department of the Govern
ment.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: It was suggested at Calcutta 
by one of the witnesses that in order 
to preserve the national status and 
the national character of the library a 
man of national eminance such as 
the Vice-President of India or the 
Speaker of the Lok Sabha should be 
the Chairman of the governing Board. 
What is your reaction to this 
suggestion?

AIR VICE-MARSHAL M. B. NAIK: 
I am afraid I am not in a position to 
comment on this.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Thank you very 
much, Air Vice-Marshal Naik. The 
Committee is thankful for your views 
and your memorandum will be taken 
into consideration.

(The witness then withdrew)

of Libraries, Government of Maharashtra, 
Bombay

your views and thereafter the Mem
bers might like to put some questions. 
It would be more helpful if while ex
pressing your views you could refer 
to various provisions of the Bill under 
consideration.

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: Mr. Chair
man, Sir, I have two or three import
ant points to mention The first is 
regarding the autonomy of the Board. 
The autonomy to be useful has to be 
at various levels. The first level would 
be that of policy-making and obvious
ly the next would be that of imple
mentation. As it is in the Bill the 
Board proposed to be constituted 
would not have the necessary auto-
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noxny. In  the statement of objects 
and reasons it is stated that the Board 
would be autonomous but the various 
^provisions in the Bill itself show that 
the Board would not get the necessary 
autonomy. For example, Section 3 
says that the Board would hold and 
dispose of property and contract etc. 
In the very next Section we Aullify 
what is provided in the earlier sub
section “except with the previous ap
proval of the Central Government.” 
The Board cannot dispose of things 
like periodicals, furniture, etc.

Section 25 deals with the directions 
on question of policy and the two pro
visions made in sub-section (1) and
(2) clearly deprive the Board of *ts 
autonomy. The decision of the Cen
tral Government is final. In Section 
30 the provision is made in such a 
way that the Board which is proposed 
to be an autonomous Board cannot 
make its own regulations. It has to 
be with the previous approval of the 
Central Government. These are the 
three main provisions which deprive 
the Board of its autonomy which in 
effect would result in the Board being 
responsible for the management of the 
libraries but without any authority on 
policy making and when we come to 
implementation, I think, the National 
Library Bill.

It lacks provision in that respect 
also. At the implementation level, we 
have provided an Executive Council 
and the Director of the Library shall 
be the Chairman—that is also provided 
in the Bill. But as the head of the 
Institution, the Director should be 
given sufficient powers to implement 
all policies laid down by the Board 
and he should be held responsible for 
implementation of policies. That will 
be possible as the provisions envisag
ed.

My another point would be regard
ing the composition of the Board. 
Clause 4 sub-section (c) (ii) says that 
‘‘one shall be a representative of any 
of the universities in India". I think 
it is not necessary in view of the 

Clause 4(c) where it reads as: “one

person to be nominated by the Chair
man of the University Grants Com
mission to represent that Commission” 
and therefore we need not have a re
presentative from UGC and since we 
are going to nominate a member out 
of the many universities in India, this 
provision is not necessary. But I 
would submit that the experienced 
Librarians have not been given the 
representation on the Board. Admi
nistration and management of Libra
ries are a specialised job and this has 
been recognised throughout the world. 
And if we have to entrust the work of 
management of the National Library 
to an autonomous body consisting of 
educationists who are the principal 
users of the Library, who will be able 
to study the needs of the educationists, 
who will be able to say what is re
quired of the National Library, etc. 
then along with them we should have 
experienced librarians who would be 
qualified, who would be holding high
est qualification in Library Science 
and who would be having experience 
in Library and Library systems. The 
National Library is not an isolated 
Library. It has to be at the apex of 
the Library System of the country. 
That is very necessary. If that is so, 
then we must provide an experienced 
Librarian on the Board. Under Clause 
4 sub-section (c) (i) it is stated as: 
“four shall be from among persons 
who, in the opinion of the Central 
Government are distinguished educa
tionists or have special knowledge of, 
and experience in, matters relating to 
the administration of libraries”. It is 
possible that the Librarians would not 
get representation on the Board.

Now I come to the point regarding 
the appointment of Director. This 
relates to Clause 13(1). Here it is 
stated as: “The Central Government 
^hall appoint a person, who in its 
opinion possesses academical qualifica
tions of distinction or is a distinguish
ed Librarian, as the Director of the 
Library.”

In the above Clause if the word ‘or’ 
is changed into ‘and’ I would not have
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much objection. But that is not pos
sible because the minimum qualifica
tion a person should possess is that he 
should hold the qualification in Li
brary Science and have experience in 
the management of Libraries. What 
I said at the beginning about the 
representation on the Board also holds 
good, much more so in the case of 
Director, he has to implement the 
policies of the Board for which he 
should have the knowledge of Library 
Science, he should have experience of 
Library management, he should have 
experience in Library training and so 
on$gnd so forth. As the provision 
stands, the person who may 'be appo
inted as Director, cannot have Libra
ry experience or qualifications and 
then in my opinion, he would not be 
able to do justice to the post.

Then I come to the Clause 18 re
garding the Duties of the Board Here 
it is mentioned as “including pro
grammes for photo copying of manus
cripts and books”. Here it is men
tioned in isolation. The functions of 
National Library, if at all they have 
to be mentioned in the Act itself, 
should cover all the important func
tions clearly. The three important 
functions, namely, preservation of 
books and manuscripts of national im
portance, then provision for biblio
graphical facilities and the third co
operation and co-ordination that is 
expected of a national library, all 
these three important functions should 
be mentioned here.

Now I come to the question of auto
nomy again because I want to submit 
one more point here. If the autonomy 
is to be given, it can be given to the 
present governing Council. We are 
trying to create a Board under the Act 
and give autonomy to it but we have 
a governing Council. Now in this we 
have a Director, we have a Librarian— 
of course in the case of National 
Library, we may change the designa
tion; here we may call him Director 
or Adviser, that is a different matter— 
but if the only obstacle in the deve
lopment of National Library is the

lack of autonomy, then the governing 
Council can, by executive orders of 
the Board, delegate the powers to the 
head of the Institution whosoever he 
is and then if there is any other need 
in alteration or addition of this Bill, 
there is no provision made here be
cause the Bill has been based on cer
tain Heport which has not been pub
lished for the public. Therefore one 
has to go by what is provided in the 
Bill itself. I think I have mentioned 
all the important points. If there are 
questions, I would be glad to answer 
them.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: I would like to ask a question 
about the controversial matter of 
autonomy and direct control. Do you 
think it is possible for a Library in a 
Circle to cater to the needs of the 
entire country by becoming a National 
Library both in the matter of reposi
tory of books and cultural heritage, 
etc? On the other hand, you put an 
agency for the dissemination of this 
knowledge to at least a cross-section 
of the society which is deeply inter
ested in such dissemination—maybe 
research scholars and eminent univer
sity people. I personally think that 
it is not possible to create such a vast 
institution and that this institution 
becomes both the repository institu
tion as also the dissemination institu
tion for disseminating purposes. We 
will have to have a number of other 
regional centres and you may call 
them regional libraries, associate libra
ries. But their functions would be 
specifically involved more disseminat
ing aspect than the aspect of collec
tiveness and preserving cultural heri
tage. What have you got to say on 
this?

SHRI K. D. FURANIK: I have re
ferred in my earlier submission o the 
functioning of the National Library in 
respect of coordination and co-opera
tion. The National Library has to co
ordinate the activities of the specialis
ed institutions and libraries in their 
respective fields. I am to mention 
here that the INSDOC is doing some
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undertaken a bibliographic work in 
respect of social sciences and that 
work need not be duplicated by the 
National Library. But the National 
Library has to undertake to see that 
all the fields of knowledge—humanity, 
arts, social science, applied sciences 
find the needs of the scholars and re
search workers—has to be coordinated 
at the national level and this is the 
responsibility of the National Library.
I do not say that from one centre you 
can cater to the needs of all the scho
lars and research workers throughout 
the country. In fact, in this connec
tion, the location of the National Li
brary has to be thought of. In all the 
countries of the world, the National 
Library is at the head of the Centre 
of the Government and it has to be 
there. The distant factor in our coun
try would not be important. From 
Calcutta to Trivandrum or from Tri
vandrum to Delhi or from Delhi to 
Trivandrum, probably there is no dis
tant factor. But people from all over 
the country go to the Government 
very often and the other users of the 
National Library, the main users of 
the National Library, they should get 
the benefit of the services of the 
National Library. Even in Delhi, Gov
ernment would get more services from 
the National Library than if it is in 
Calcutta. That is obvious. As it is, 
people from other parts of the coun
try do not feel that it is a National 
Library of the country because it has 
not made any impact on the library 
development in other States. It need 
not undertake anything from, say, peo
ple in Maharashtra, but it can surely 
coordinate what is being done in 
different parts of the country and 
I mentioned the one activity that we 
are doing here. We are indexing all 
articles in Maharashtra; we are in
dexing periodicals not only in 
monthly, quarterly, (but important 
articles in daily, weekly and fort
nightly and tare publishing subject- 
wise lists in the Association Journal. 
This work need not be undertaken by 
the National Library. But in our 
country so many activities of this 
type must be existing. All this CO

ordination work has to be done by the 
National Library. .

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: That means you are in favour 
of shifting the National Library from 
Calcutta to New Delhi and in your 
opinion that would enhance the pres- 
tigate of the National Library simply 
because it would be located at a place 
where we have the seat of the na
tional Govt. Secondly, do I take 
from your reply that you think that 
the present status of the library does 
not give the national prestige.

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: So far it
has not made any impact on other 
parts of the country; it has to deve
lop in that line. As it is, periodicals 
published by the National Library 
have some impact; but more has to be 
done.

MR. CHAIRMAN: From the prac
tical point of view, do you think it is 
possible to shift the National Library 
from Calcutta to Delhi?

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: There
would be financial difficulties. Then 
there will be the problem of trans
porting the staff, because you cannot 
shift all the staff.

* MR. CHAIRMAN: It would be
worthwhile considering that also.

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: Yes, Sir.

SHRI NARAIN CHAND PARA- 
SHAR: It would (be in the fitness of 
things if a person of national emi
nence like the Speaker of the Lok 
Sabha or the Chairman of the Rajya 
Sabha is the Chairman of the Board 
of Management?

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: Before I 
give an answer to this question, I 
would like to mention what is being 
done in other countries. In Great 
Britain, they are trying to constitute 
a National Library Board. The Dante 
Committee has recommended that the 
Chairman and three Members of this 
Board should be full-time members 
and they should have maximum ex

M3
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pertise in library science manage
ment, etc. If necessary, they can 
take the help of part-time members 
if the job is to manage a library. A 
lot of time will have to be devoted to 
do it; it depends whether the dignita
ries mentioned above can devote so 
much time.

SHRI SAKTI KUMAR SARKAR: 
According to the composition of the 
Board, do you think they will be able 
to fulfil the conditions of the Dante 
Committee?

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: The expe
rienced librarian should be there. I 
think that point I have touched. I 
have said that expert librarians are 
very necessary on the Board. I have 
also said that educationists are also 
necessary on ihe Board.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: I 
suppose you are the Director of the 
State Library and that is run by the 
Department of the Govt.?

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: I do not
run any library. I am a Director of 
the public library under the Public 
Library Act. My job is to see that the 
public libraries are established and 
developed in the States.

SHRI VIRENDRA AGARWAL: That 
is to say, you are opposed to the idea 
of a National Library. Why are you 
opposed to the idea of autonomy?

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: In fact, I 
said that autonomy is necessary at 
the policy making level and also at 
the execution leveL

SHRI SANAT KUMAR RAHA: 
There are two aspects regarding the 
administration which are agitating the 
minds of the people. One aspect is 
that the National Library like insti
tutions could be run by the Govt, di
rectly under its control. Another as
pect is that it should be run by auto
nomous body with great powers. Is 
this the compromised formula? Un
der the present circumstances, do you 
think this formula will be able to 
deliver the goods?

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: We have 
not given sufficient autonomy to the 
Board. Unless we give autonomy to 
the Board, whichever Board is consti
tuted, it would not be able t0 werve 
the purpose.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: Do you 
suggest the Board may be empowered 
to dispose of very very valuable 
articles or documents according to 
their sweet will?

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: That would 
not happen because the responsibilities 
of the Board are laid down.

SHRI MAHABIR DASS: It is re
garding disposal. There must be some 
control by the Central Government.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA
BARTI: At the beginning of your 
speech you mentioned that autonomy 
means autonomy in both policy making 
and implementation and the way Bill 
has been prepared it will not fulfil, 
either of the two things. At the same 
time you suggested if a better organi
sation so far as National Library at 
Calcutta is concerned then this can 
be done by a simple executive order 
by giving more powers to the present 
governing council. As an experienced 
Government officer you may enlighten 
us keeping under the direct control of 
the Government how more powers 
can be given to the governing council 
so that it may function better. Further, 
if we want to have a better library 
system you suggest one apex library 
and associate libraries and there 
should be coordination and for that 
we want a separate Bill. But so far as 
the present Bill regarding the 
National Library at Calcutta is con
cerned you do not think it will serve 
the purpose for which it is brought 
because it is neither autonomous nor 
under the government. Because 
you have sugigested that by 
executive orders given to the present 
Governing Council, we should have 
comprehensive Bill so that Library
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System in the country may develop 
properly.

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: In fact I 
did not suggest a comprehensive
Bill----  I did not mention about
the regional National Libraries as you 
have just now mentioned. What I 
have said is that exists specialised 
libraries in all parts of the country and 
they are doing their work in their 
respective fields. The National Lib
rary is the only library which can 
undertake responsibility of co-ordi
nating the activity. I have not men
tioned any regional national library. 
That is a separate subject. The 
present Bill does not cover Regional 
Libraries.

Then, Sir, you have mentioned above 
the executive orders. In this connec
tion, I have expressed my opinion 
that now because there is no autono
my, we are thinking of an autonomous 
body. We are thinking whether the 
term ‘Board' or the 'Governing 
Council’ should be retained and 
whether the composition of the Gov
erning Council can also be changed 
and ii it is to be changed, there should 
be no difficulty. Since there is lack 
of autonomy and because there is more 
supervision and it is upto the Govern
ment to issue orders, there are diffi
culties in its functioning, at present. 
Once the Board is constituted, their 
functions will be regulated and they 
would have full powers. The policies 
will be laid down by the Board and 
the functions will be performed 
according to the policies framed.

DR. RAJAT KUMAR CHAKRA- 
BARTI: Then it will be directly 
under the control of the Ministry. This 
is like an autonmous body of the Uni
versity. Now the IIT Boards are not 
directly under the Ministry. But they 
are responsible to the Parliament. 
They have to submit their reports to 
Parliament, but that is a different 
question. Once it is brought under 
the control of Ministry, then the 
administration will be done by the 
Ministry. And the other one, that is, 
the Board’s functioning, will only be

supervised by Parliament and the 
Ministry will not be responsible for 
this. Can you tell us whether the 
Governing Council can be given more 
powers so that it can run more effi
ciently instead of making it com
pletely an autonomous body like IIT 
or CSIR?

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: In so far as 
the autonomy is concerned, I men
tioned already that it should be in 
respect of policy maiking and at the 
implementation level. On these as
pects I mentioned very clearly. The 
policy making should refer only to the 
functions assigned to the national 
library because the Board or the Gov
erning Body is not likely to frame 
policy outside the functions assigned 
to it. Once the Board lays down 
policies in the development of library 
and in respect of functions, there is no 
reason why it cannot be done by 
Government's decision without an Act 
of Parliament.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: You said 
that the Universities need not be 
given representation.

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: I only said 
that there would be duplication. We 
have a very small number of Mem
bers on the Board. Once you give 
representation to UGC, there is no 
need for giving representation to any 
other University. If it is to be a small 
Board, the UGC representation should 
be sufficient to look after the Uni
versities’ interests.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: You have 
mentioned that a body cannot be 
autonomous unless it has the power 
of policy making and getting it im
plemented. As we understand, no 
autonomous body usually lays down 
the basic policies but the day-to-day 
decisions are taken by the autonomous 
body and the implementation part of 
the work is also done by the autono
mous body. Is there any autonomous 
body in India of your conception, 
where the basic policies are framed 
by the autonomous body and the im
plementation also is done by that 
body? )
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SHRI K. D. PUANAIK: Now Sir, 
you have introduced a new concept, 
that is, basic policies. When I said 
that the functions of such Body should 
be mentioned in the Bill itself, then 
everything including the basic policies 
would come under the heading 
‘functions’.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: Is ther« 
any autonomous body? Can you give 
the name of such body?

IV. Shri V. V. Bhatt, Maharashtra

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Bhat, before 
we proceed further, I may make it 
clear to you that your evidence may 
be treated as public and is liable to 
be made public unless you specially 
desire that ail or any part of the evi
dence tendered by you ia to be treated 
as confidential. I may also add that 
even though you may desire the 
evidence to be treated as confidential, 
it is liable to be made available to 
the Members of Parliament. You are 
doubtless aware that whatever discus
sions we have here is treated as con
fidential and is not to be made public 
till the Report of this Committee is 
presented to Parliament.

I think you have not sent any Me
morandum to this Committee. So, you 
may please give your suggestions on 
the proposed Bill so that we may like 
to consider them for incorporation in 
the Bill.

SHRI V. V. BHAT: I have got two 
suggestions to offer. In the formation 
of the Board, two things are omitted. 
One is that the representation to the 
Associations has not been given. One 
representative from the Library Asso
ciation should be taken on the Board. 
Another point is that there are Library 
Directorates in different States, es
pecially in 4 States at present. 
Unfortunately, no representation has 
been given for these Directorates. My 
submission is that Library Directorates 
of these 4 States should be given 
representation on the Board. These

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: I said that 
the functions should be mentioned in 
the Bill itself. That is the basic 
policy.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you Mr.
Puranik for your valuable information.

SHRI K. D. PURANIK: Thank you, 
Sir.

(The witness then withdrew).

State Library Associate, Bombay

are the two points that I want to sub
mit to the Committee. As far as the 
appointment of a Director is con
cerned, no specific rule has been laid 
down. Even the qualifications of a 
Librarian are not mentioned there. 
My submission is that these should be 
clearly mentioned. A^ far as Lib- 
ration is concerned, he should be a 
qualified Librarian.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: As far as 
page 5, 31(1) of the Bill is concerned 
you have suggested that he should 
also be a distinguished Librarian.

SHRI V. V. BHAT: That means he 
should be a qualified Librarian.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Supposing, they 
are asked to suggest the names of a 
few Librarians. Will they always 
suggest the name of the qualified 
Librarian?

SHRI V. V. BHAT: Yes, Sir.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are you sure
about it?

SHRI V. V. BHAT: Yes, Sir.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: You have 
mentioned that the Library Associa
tion has not been given any represen
tation. Do you suggest that such 
Association should be there in each 
State?

SHRI V. V. BHAT: I do not say that 
every State should have represent*-, 
tion. All India Library Association 
is there. .
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SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: Is it a non
official body?

SHRI V. V. BHAT: Yes, Sir. I do 
not say that every State should be 
given representation.

V. Prof. (Miss) A. Dastur, Department
Bombay,

MR. CHAIRMAN: I hope you have 
gone through the Bill in the short 
time that you could have.

MISS A. DASTUR: I generally 
agree with the Bill, Sir. There are 
certain points which I would like to 
stress for the benefit of the Members. 
The composition of the Board is 
wisely kept at ten. The number is 
small, very effective and functional. 
As far as 4C(2) (1) is concerned, per
haps that one representation is very 
small. As far as C(3) is concerned, it 
is very wisely laid down that one 
number shall be from amongst per
sons with special knowledge and 
experience in science and technology. 
Today, Humanity and Social Sciences 
have come to acquire a status in 
knowledge and study of their own. 
Although I favour small Boards, I 
would urge that these two disciplines 
should be included with a specialists 
in the Science and Technology on the 
Board. The composition of the Board 
may be corrected, even if it means by 
increasing the number by one or 
two, I think, it would be worthwhile. 
As far as page 3 clause 7(c) is con
cerned, no irregularity, I would 
suppose, should be overlooked. As far 
as page 5 is concerned. Bill lays down 
the Library was continued to be 
located at Calcutta.” If this Library 
is to be located at Delhi, we would be 
able to make much better use of it 
because the Parliament is there and 
all the parliamentary and other papers 
may be more easily available to the 
people, it would serve much more 
useful purpose if it is located in the 
Capital of the country. I find that a 
crore of rupees has been earmarked 
for construction in the Fifth Plan.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very 
much for your valuable suggestions. 
The Committee may consider them.

(The witness then withdrew)

of Civics and politics University of
Bombay.

Possibly that could be withheld for 
the time being and when it is permit
ted to move over there, at that time 
a little more will be added to that 
one crore and that the Library should 
possibly go over there, if it has to 
9erve its real national purpose. Then 
on page 8 under miscellaneous, re- 
C? ding salpption of Board is 
concerned, perhaps I am allergic to 
directions from Government. But that 
apart, when the Government has very 
carefully selected this Board, as one 
hopes, then the question of policy 
should not enter; the board should 
decide, all matters of details that 
come up. Then there is a issue of 
dir actions of the Government to the 
Board. This is given on the last page 
of the memorandum. I think autono
my should be given to the Board for 
the simple reason, as I said, that we 
would expect people of competence, 
knowledge, past experience, organisa
tion and management on the Board, 
and for them to be constantly instruc
ted by the Government even on 
matters of detail which they want to 
pursue or on matters of policy which 
role is essentially political-oriented—I 
do not think will serve the purpose of 
a National Library. I would urge 
that the Board should be left as 
autonomous as it can possibly be.

The finances of the order of Rs. 27 
lakhs per year for a National Library 
are much too little. Conceeding that 
it is a recipient library, it will still 
have to go in for purchase of books. If 
If these Rs. 27 lakhs also include 
administrative charges then, I think, 
it is a pittance which we give to a 
library which we call a National 
Library.

SHRI Y. S. MAHAJAN: Do you 
think for creating any autonomous
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body it is necessary that policy 
decision should also be left to the 
autonomous body? Is there any such 
autonomous body in India? I think 
there is non. We have autonomous 
corporations and autonomous uni
versities.

MISS A. DASTUR: My understand
ing of the autonomous university is 
that every university makes its own 
policies. Secondly, what can be the 
policies which the Board may follow 
apart from giving excellent library 
service to scholars and student#? Here 
it cannot be a matter of policy which 
will cut across any policy decision 
which the Government may take. But 
there will be danger if at any stage a 
biased government comes into exis
tence. Th* library and its acquisition 
will suffer from that political social 
and for economic bias. Leaving the 
library to develop naturally as a 
store- house of knowledge, I think, 
the Government would be well- 
advised not to issue directives.

PROF. RASHEEDUDDIN KHAN: 
We are happy that an eminent 
scholar of social science like Miss 
Dastur has come to give the benefit 
of her experience before the Com
mittee. Firstly, I would like to ask 
you about the composition of the 
Board. Would you  like to suggest that 
the number goes up to 16 instead of 
10 and it should include at least four 
representatives ftfom universities— 
one from social science; one from 
humanities, etc.

MISS A. DASTUR: Sixteen possibly 
would be the maximum. I would have 
even opted for 12 to 13.

PROF. RASHEEDUDDIN KHAN: 
We had heard in Calcutta very strong 
plea from a very large number of 
people that it ought not to be given 
to an autonomous board. Their argu
ment was that it should be part of 
the Government department as emo
luments and service conditions are 
much better. Secondly autonomous 
bodies in India, with the exception of 
universities, have not worked in the 
manner we wanted them to work. As 
you have referred to clause 25 re

garding policy and other things it j 
apparent what the Bill purports i 
is in give a modicum of autonomy 
rather than a functional autonomy 
This is a half-way house. What are 
your views about it?

MISS A. DASTUR: I would rather 
have it as an autonomous body for the 
simple reason if there is any fear of 
emoluments and the salaries being 
not protected, I think there should be 
no fear on that account the Govern
ment should guarantee that; but the 
Library certainly should be main
tained on an autonomous unit because 
government’s hand in this Board is a 
very big hand and, I think, the Gov* j 
ernment should satisfy itself that' 
those whom it appoints are really 
bent toward3 cultivating and nour

ishing a really national institute and 
that is where, I believe, being run as 
a Government department is not 
good. What one hears about the lib
raries these days is very difficult to 
sort out what is what. And the library 
service is such that an autonomous 
body could work it up much better. 
Moreover Government Departments
are noted all that efficient competantly 
to manage National Library.

PROF. RASHEEDUDDIN KHAN: 
In the morning we visited the Asiatic 
Society of Bombay. The Condition 
of the library was so bad and it 
looked like a dungeon. Now, this 
library is under the management of the 
autonomous bodjy. It functions far In 
excess of the capacity. This is the 
picture one gets from a library 
managed by the autonomous body. 
Autonomy means autonomy given to 
to the staff but the national library 
means that by an act of Parliament, 
no such organisation should remain 
autonomous. ,

MISS A. DASTUR: I did not com
pare it with the National Library for 
which the finances are going to come 
from the government. It cannot be 
put an a par with almost a private 
library. It is not an autonomous lib 
rary in the sense that it is a privr* 
library with extremely limited flnanc 
and with a small membership. There-
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.fore, I would still say that we cannot 

■^compare it with a National Library. If 
"I am a little dhauviniatic, if you go to

7 Bombay University, of course, you 
will get a very different impression 
and our resources are extremely 
limited and because it is a part of the 
University and because we have a 
very competent staff, we have been 
able to maintain a very fine 
service and the whole thing 
is very well organised. Now, I think 
the hon. Members will not carry this 
impression that other Bombay lib
raries are also in the same condition.

PROF. RASHEEDUDDIN KHAN: 
Article 13(1) states as: The Central 
Government shall appoint a person, 
who in its opinion possesses academi
cal qualification of distinction or is a 
distinguished Librarian, as the 

' Director of the Library.0 What is 
your reaction to this proposition? 
Should there be an eminent scholar, 
educationist or an eminent Librarian?

MISS A. DASTUR: I would like to 
change the word 4or* into ‘and* in that 
proposed Clause. There should be a 
combination of the two. Leaving it 
merely to a very able Librarian is not 
good because a very fine Librarian 
would be purely a technician, he might

be an expert by qualification and 
organisation but what to get and 
where to get and how to obtain and to 
keep in touch, with the rapidly multi
plying knowledge in the world is the 
most important thing. Under the 
Indian context it is very necessary to 
take into consideration limited finan
cial resources of our country so that 
there is no wastage in every respect. 
I think we will have somebody with 
very high academic qualification and 
I do not think today in India it is 
difficult to have a combination of the 
two. Suppose, we do not find this, we 
could get somebody academically very 
highly placed, trained in art and 
practice of Librarianship. It should 
not be difficult. He should be learned 
and knowing the technique of Lib
rarianship and then he is capable of 
reaching the top level as the Director 
of the Secretary.

MR. CHAIRMAN: So, we are very 
thankful to you for the valuable sug
gestions and if you have to state 
anything more, you can send us a 
Memorandum covering the points 
which you have not mentioned here. 
Thank you very much.

(The Committee then adjoumted.)
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